
ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
Monday, April 19, 2021 - 5:00 PM

City Hall Council Chambers - 385 Goliad St., Rockwall, TX 75087

I. Call Public Mee ng to Order

II. Execu ve Session.
The City of Rockwall City Council will Recess into Execu ve Session to discuss the following ma er
as authorized by Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code:

1. Discussion regarding sale of city-owned real property off of IH-30 pursuant to Sec on §551.072
(Real Property) and Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney).

2. Discussion regarding agreements between the City of Rockwall and Blackland Water Supply
Corporation (WSC) pursuant to Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney).

3. Discussion regarding Rockwall Municipal Court pursuant to Sec on 551.071 (Consulta on with
Attorney) and pursuant to Section 551.074 (Personnel Matters)

4. Discussion regarding non-emergency ambulance services contract pursuant to Sec on 551.071
(Consultation with Attorney).

5. Discussion regarding contract with Legacy Humane Society pursuant to Sec on §551.071
(Consultation with Attorney).

6. Discuss regarding City Charter provisions related to gran ng a u lity franchise, pursuant to
Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney)

III. Adjourn Execu ve Session

IV. Reconvene Public Mee ng (6:00 P.M.)

V. Invoca on and Pledge of Allegiance - Councilmember Macalik

VI. Proclama ons

1. Public Safety Telecommunicators Week
VII. Open Forum

This is a me for anyone to address the Council and public on any topic not already listed on the agenda or set for a
public hearing. Per Council policy, public comments should be limited to three minutes out of respect for other ci zens'

me. If you have a topic that warrants longer me, please contact the City Secretary at kcole@rockwall.com to be
placed on the Agenda during the "Appointment Items" por on of the mee ng. This will allow your topic to be
provided sufficient me for discussion and will permit proper no ce to be given to the public. On topics raised during
Open Forum, please know Council is not permi ed to respond to your comments during the mee ng since the topic
has not been specifically listed on the agenda (the Texas Open Mee ngs Act requires that topics of
discussion/delibera on be posted on an agenda not less than 72 hours in advance of the Council mee ng). This, in
part, is so that other citizens who may have the same concern may also be involved in the discussion.

VIII. Take any Ac on as a Result of Execu ve Session

IX. Consent Agenda

These agenda items are rou ne/administra ve in nature, have previously been discussed at a prior City Council
mee ng, and/or they do not warrant Council delibera on. If you would like to discuss one of these items, please let
the City Secretary know before the meeting starts so that you may speak during "Open Forum."

1. Consider approval of the minutes from the April 5, 2021 regular City Council mee ng, and take any
action necessary.

1



2. Consider awarding a bid to Urban Infraconstruc on and authorizing the Interim City Manager to
execute a contract in the amount of $500,000 for Concrete Pavement Repair Services (per unit
price) to be funded out of the General Fund, Streets and Drainage Opera ons Budget, and take
any action necessary.

3. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a two-year contract with Evoqua Water
Technologies for chemical injec on at the Fontana, Timber Creek, and Mims Li  Sta ons to
eliminate effluent odors for $90,000 annually to be funded by the Wastewater Opera ons Budget,
and take any action necessary.

4. Consider approval of Hotel Occupancy Tax (HOT) Subcommi ee recommenda on to award
$12,715 to the South Central Nau que Rega a and authorize the Interim City Manager to execute
associated contract, and take any action necessary.

5. P2021-009 - Consider a request by Brenda Kennedy for the approval of a Replat for Lot 1, Block A,
Kennedy Addi on being a 0.2342-acre parcel of land iden fied as Lot 1, Block A, Richard Harris
Subdivision No. 5 Addi on, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 7 (SF-7)
District, addressed as 701 N. T. L. Townsend Drive, and take any action necessary.

6. P2021-010 - Consider a request by Doug Stewart on behalf of Bryan Wreyford for the approval of a
Replat for Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Wreyford Addi on being a 2.97-acre parcel of land iden fied as Lot
1 of the Crowell’s Hidden Valley Estates Addi on, Collin County, Texas, situated within the City of
Rockwall’s Extraterritorial Jurisdic on (ETJ), generally located at the southeast corner of the
intersection of County Road 949 and County Road 536, and take any action necessary.

7. P2021-011 - Consider a request by Mike and Cheryl Birdwell for the approval of a Final Plat for
Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Birds Nest Addi on being a 4.02-acre tract of land iden fied as Tract 15 of the
J. Smith Survey, Abstract No. 191, Rockwall County, Texas, situated within the City of Rockwall’s
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ), addressed as 171 Birds Nest Lane, and take any action necessary.

8. P2021-012 - Consider a request by Jose Campos of Hines on behalf of CDT Rockwall/2017 LLC for
the approval of a Preliminary Plat for Phase 2 of the Saddle Star Subdivision being a 29.002-acre
tract of land iden fied as Tracts 1, 1-05, 2-03, & 2-07 of the P. B. Harrison Survey, Abstract No. 97,
City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 79 (Ordinance No.
20-35), situated within the SH-205 By-Pass (SH-205 BY OV) District, generally located east of the
intersection of Featherstone Drive and N. John King Boulevard, and take any action necessary.

9. P2021-013 - Consider a request by Bart Carroll for the approval of a Preliminary Plat for the
Landon Subdivision being a 32.60-acre tract of land iden fied as Tract 13 of the S. McFadgin
Survey, Abstract No. 142, Rockwall County, Texas, situated within the City of Rockwall’s
Extraterritorial Jurisdic on (ETJ), generally located at the southwest corner of the intersec on of S.
Munson Street and Streetman Road, and take any action necessary.

10. P2021-014 - Consider a request by Humberto Johnson, Jr. of the Skorburg Company on behalf of
Jen-Liang Wu for the approval of a Preliminary Plat for the Nelson Lake Subdivision being a 121.16-
acre tract of land iden fied as Tract 2 of the J. M. Gass Survey, Abstract No. 88, City of Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 90 (PD-90) for Single-Family 10 (SF-
10) District, generally located at the southeast corner of the intersec on of FM-1141 and FM-552,
and take any action necessary.

11. Consider authorizing the Interim City Manager to execute a facility use agreement with the
Rockwall YMCA for the purposes of providing swim lessons to members of the Boys and Girls Club
at the Gloria Williams Swimming Pool, and take any action necessary.

12. Consider approval of canopy repairs associated with March 17, 2021 storm damage at Leon Tu le
Athle c Complex/Ballfields ($2,500 insurance deduc ble, to be funded out of the Recrea onal
Development Fund), and take any action necessary.

X. Appointment Items

1. Appointment with Planning & Zoning Commission chairman to discuss and answer any ques ons
regarding planning-related cases on the agenda.

2. Appointment with Eva Cannon of Siren Rock Brewing Co. to discuss corporate iden ty signage in
the Downtown (DT) District, and take any action necessary.

2



XI. Public Hearing Items

If you would like to speak regarding an item listed below, please turn in a (yellow) "Request to Address City Council"
form to the City Secretary either before the mee ng or as you approach the podium. The Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem
will call upon you to come forth at the proper time. Please limit your comments to no more than three minutes.

1. Z2021-006 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Pat Atkins of KPA
Consul ng, Inc. on behalf of the owners C. D. T. Rockwall 2017, LLC; Saddle Star Holdings, LLC; and
Gwendolyn Reed for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Amendment to Planned
Development District 79 (PD-79) [Ordinance No. 20-35] for the purpose of amending the
development standards contained in Ordinance No. 20-35 for a 70.408-acre tract of land iden fied
as Tracts 1, 1-03, 1-5 & 2-03 of the P. B. Harrison Survey, Abstract No. 97, City of Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 79 (PD-79) for Single-Family 8.4 (SF-
8.4) District land uses, situated within the SH-205 By-Pass Overlay (SH-205 BY-OV) District, located
on the north side of John King Boulevard east of the intersec on of John King Boulevard and
Featherstone Drive, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

2. Z2021-007 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Kevin Harrell of the
Skorburg Company on behalf of Ben Klu s, Jr. of the Klu s Farm, LLC for the approval of an
ordinance for a Zoning Change from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Planned Development
District for Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District land uses on a 196.009-acre tract of land iden fied as
Tract 6 of the J. A. Ramsey Survey, Abstract No. 186, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas,
zoned Agricultural (AG) District, generally located at the northeast corner of the intersec on of
FM-549 and FM-1139, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

XII. Ac on Items

If your comments are regarding an agenda item below, you are asked to wait un l that par cular agenda item is up
for discussion, and the Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem will call you forth to the podium to hear your comments (please limit
to 3 minutes or less). This allows for all public comments to be grouped with each specific agenda item for the Council
to consider, and they are then easily referenced in meeting recordings.

1. Discuss and consider an ordinance amending Chapter 22, Miscellaneous Offenses, of the Municipal
Code of Ordinances to adopt changes that would address regulatory ac ons for improvements and
storage on unleased land within the takeline, and take any action necessary. (1st reading)

2. Discuss and consider a request by Nicholas Gamez of DFDVB Homes, LLC on behalf of Zach Shipley
for the approval of a Major Waiver to the Downtown (DT) District parking requirements for a
Restaurant with Less Than 2,000 SF without Drive-Through or Drive-In on a 0.018-acre tract of land
iden fied as a por on of Lot 7, Block M, Rockwall OT Addi on, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County,
Texas, zoned Downtown (DT) District, addressed as 109 E. Washington Street, and take any ac on
necessary.

3. Discuss and consider a request by Cameron Slown of Teague, Nall and Perkins, Inc. on behalf of
Elias Pope of 8020 Hospitality, LLC for the approval of a Variance to the parking requirements for a
Restaurant with 2,000 SF or More without a Drive-Through or Drive-In on a 0.90-acre parcel of land
iden fied as Lot 5, Block A, Harbor District Addi on, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas,
zoned Planned Development District 32 (PD-32) [Ordinance No. 17-22], situated within the IH-30
Overlay (IH-30 OV) District, generally located at the southeast corner of the intersec on of the IH-
30 Frontage Road and Sunset Ridge Drive, and take any action necessary.

4. Discuss and consider gran ng permission for an alcohol waiver associated with the city's May 15,
2021 Founders Day Fes val at Harry Myers Park in accordance with Chapter 30, Ar cle I, Sec. 30-2,
"Regulated Activities in Parks" of the Code of Ordinances, and take any action necessary.

5. Discuss and consider bond program street appurtenances, and take any action necessary.
6. Discuss and consider update from Rockwall Police Chief regarding a ri on, recrui ng and

retention associated with the Police Department, and take any action necessary.
7. Discuss and consider appointments to the city's ART Commission and Comprehensive Plan

Advisory Committee (CPAC), and take any action necessary.
XIII. Execu ve Session.

3



The City of Rockwall City Council will Recess into Execu ve Session to discuss the following ma er
as authorized by Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code:

1. Discussion regarding sale of city-owned real property off of IH-30 pursuant to Sec on §551.072
(Real Property) and Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney).

2. Discussion regarding agreements between the City of Rockwall and Blackland Water Supply
Corporation (WSC) pursuant to Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney).

3. Discussion regarding Rockwall Municipal Court pursuant to Sec on 551.071 (Consulta on with
Attorney) and pursuant to Section 551.074 (Personnel Matters)

4. Discussion regarding non-emergency ambulance services contract  pursuant to Sec on 551.071
(Consultation with Attorney).

5. Discussion regarding contract with Legacy Humane Society pursuant to Sec on §551.071
(Consultation with Attorney).

6. Discuss regarding City Charter provisions related to gran ng a u lity franchise, pursuant
to  Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney)

XIV. Reconvene Public Mee ng & Take Any Ac on as Result of Execu ve Session

XV. Adjournment

This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Request for accommoda ons or interpre ve services
must be made 48 hours prior to this mee ng. Please contact the City Secretary's Office at (972) 771-7700 or FAX (972) 771-7727 for
further information.

The City of Rockwall City Council reserves the right to adjourn into execu ve session at any me to discuss any of the ma ers listed on
the agenda above, as authorized by Texas Government Code ¶ 551.071 (Consulta on with A orney) ¶ 551.072 (Delibera ons about
Real Property) ¶ 551.074 (Personnel Matters) and ¶ 551.087 (Economic Development)

I, Kristy Cole, City Secretary for the City of Rockwall, Texas, do hereby cer fy that this Agenda was posted at City Hall, in a place readily
accessible to the general public at all mes, on the 16th day of April, 2021 at 4:00 p.m. and remained so posted for at least 72
continuous hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting.

Kristy Cole, City Secretary
or Margaret Delaney, Asst. to the City Sect.

Date Removed

4



 
Proclamation 

 

Whereas, each year the second week in April is designated as “National Public 
Safety Telecommunications Week” in the State of Texas; and 

 

Whereas, the week is set aside by the State to recognize the diligent efforts of 
9-1-1 operators and other communications specialists who serve our communities; and 

 

Whereas, men and women who work in this capacity are “unseen first 
responders,” providing critical assistance to callers in times of great need; and 

 

Whereas, 9-1-1 dispatchers work in an environment that is often high-paced 
and stressful, being called upon to utilize their specialized skills and training to make 
split second decisions, which, at times, could mean the difference between life and 
death; and 

 

Whereas, the City of Rockwall would like to recognize and applaud its own 
dispatch personnel for the stellar job each of them performs to ensure the safety and 
wellbeing of our residents. 

 

Now, Therefore, I, Jim Pruitt, Mayor of the City of Rockwall, Texas, do hereby 

proclaim April 11 – 17, 2021 as 
 

PPuubblliicc  ssaaffeettyy  tteelleeccoommmmuunniiccaattoorrSS  WWEEEEKK  
in the City of Rockwall and urge all citizens to take time to thank these staff members 
for their dedication and hard work towards protecting and serving both our citizens as 
well as our Police and Fire Department personnel. 
 

In Witness Whereof, I hereunto set my hand and official seal this 12th day of April, 
2021.    
      
 
 
 
        Jim Pruitt, Mayor 

Rockwall
, 

Texas 

5



MINUTES  
ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

Monday, April 05, 2021 - 5:00 PM  
City Hall Council Chambers - 385 Goliad St., Rockwall, TX 75087  

 
      
I.  

 
CALL PUBLIC MEETING TO ORDER  
 
Mayor Pruitt called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. Present were Mayor Jim Pruitt, Mayor Pro 
Tem Kevin Fowler and Council Members Anna Campbell, Dana Macalik, John Hohenshelt, Bennie 
Daniels and Trace Johannesen.  Mayor Pruitt then read the below listed discussion items into the 
record before recessing the public meeting to go into Executive Session.    

II.  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION.    
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL WILL RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING MATTER AS 
AUTHORIZED BY CHAPTER 551 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE:  

  
1.  Discussion regarding Rockwall Municipal Court pursuant to Section 551.071 (Consultation with 

Attorney) and pursuant to Section 551.074 (Personnel Matters)   
2.  Discussion regarding possible acquisition of real property in the vicinity of FM-549 and SH-205 pursuant 

to Section §551.072 (Real Property).   
3.  Discussion regarding legal issues related to personnel matters pursuant to Section 551.071 

(Consultation with Attorney).   
4.  Discussion regarding (re)appointments to city regulatory boards, commissions, and committees - 

specifically the N. TX Municipal Water District (NTMWD) Board - pursuant to Section 551.074 (Personnel 
Matters) 

III.  
 
ADJOURN EXECUTIVE SESSION  

IV.  
 
RECONVENE PUBLIC MEETING (6:00 P.M.)  
 
Mayor Pruitt reconvened the public meeting at 6:07 p.m. with all seven council members being 
present.    

V.   INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - COUNCILMEMBER CAMPBELL 
 
Councilmember Campbell delivered the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

      
VI.  

 
PROCLAMATIONS  

 
1.  Child Abuse Awareness & Prevention Month 

 
Mayor Pruitt called forth several representatives from various organizations within Rockwall 
County (i.e. the Child Advocacy Center, Rainbow Room, Court Appointed Special Advocates, 
the Rockwall County District Attorney, etc.). He read the proclamation, and representatives 
from each organization present said a few words. 
  

2.  Robotics Week 
 

6



Mayor Pruitt called forth students (elementary thru high school aged) who serve on local 
robotics teams. He then read and presented them with a proclamation declaring “Robo 
Week” in the City.  One of their representatives then briefly said a few words. 

   
 

3.  Texas Coalition for Affordable Power (TCAP) - Recognition of Rockwall's 20 Year Membership 
 
Margaret Somereve from TCAP came forth and presented Mayor Pruitt with a certificate of 
appreciation, recognizing Rockwall for being a TCAP member for the last 20 years. 
 

VII.  
 
OPEN FORUM  
 
Mayor Pruitt explained how Open Forum is conducted and asked if anyone would like to come 
forth and speak at this time. 
 
Clark Staggs 
1601 Seascape 
Rockwall, TX 75087 
 
Mr. Staggs came forth and thanked various staff members from both the Water and Streets 
Departments for recently assisting him with needs related to shutting his water off and with 
removing a tree that was blocking the alleyway behind his home. 
 
Bob Wacker 
Featherstone 
Rockwall, TX 
 
Mr. Wacker briefly came forth and questioned why generators went down during the winter storm 
events. 
 
There being no one else wishing to come forth and speak at this time, Mayor Pruitt then closed 
Open Forum.    

VIII.  
 
TAKE ANY ACTION AS A RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
Fowler moved to reappoint Chip Imrie to the North TX Municipal Water District (NTMWD) Board 
of Directors. Hohenshelt seconded the motion, which passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays.    

IX.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA  

 
1.  Consider approval of the minutes from the March 15, 2021 regular City Council meeting, and take any 

action necessary.  
2.  Consider authorizing the Interim City Manager to enter into a Boundary Agreement with the City of 

Heath to make minor corrections to the City's corporate limits, including approval of an ordinance 
concerning this matter, and take any action necessary. (2nd reading)  

3.  Z2021-004 - Consider a request by Juan Maldonado for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use 
Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision for the purpose of constructing a single-
family home on a 0.1150-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 890, Block E, Rockwall Lake Estates #1 
Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 75 (PD-75) for 
Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District land uses, addressed as 418 Perch Road, and take any action necessary 
(2nd Reading). 

7



 
4.  Z2021-005 - Consider a request by Kevin Harrell of the Skorburg Company on behalf of Alex Freeman 

and Mark G. & Jessica K. Taylor for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Change from an 
Agricultural (AG) District to a Planned Development District for Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District land 
uses on a 37.844-acre tract of land identified as Tracts 17 & 17-01 of the W. M. Dalton Survey, Abstract 
No. 72, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, generally located at 
the southeast corner of the intersection of FM-1141 and Clem Road, and take any action necessary (2nd 
Reading).  

5.  Consider authorizing the Interim City Manager to execute an interlocal agreement with the North 
Central TX Emergency Communications District ("NCT9-1-1") for regional 9-1-1 services, and take any 
action necessary.  

6.  Consider authorizing the Interim City Manager to execute a professional engineering services contract 
with Cardinal Strategies Engineering Services, LLC to perform phase 2 of the Squabble Creek Watershed 
Hydrologic & Hydraulic Update in an amount not to exceed $82,000.00, to be funded out of the 
Engineering Consulting Budget, and take any action necessary.  

7.  Consider authorizing the Interim City Manager to execute contract amendment to the professional 
engineering services contract with Volkert, Inc., to perform the engineering design and construction 
plans for the IH-30 Utility Relocation Project in an amount not to exceed $210,419.00, to be funded out 
of the Water and Sewer Fund, and take any action necessary.  

8.  Consider authorizing the Interim City Manager to execute a contract amendment to the professional 
engineering services contract with Dannenbaum Engineering Company – Dallas, LLC, to perform the 
construction bidding and administration services for the Ridge Road West Reconstruction Project in an 
amount not to exceed $33,262.62, to be funded out of the 2018 Street Bond Fund, and take any action 
necessary.  

9.  Consider approval of a professional engineering services contract with Birkhoff, Hendricks, & Carter, 
L.L.P. to perform the engineering design services for the IH-30 Water Line Crossing Project in an amount 
not to exceed $94,465.00, to be funded out of the Water and Sewer Fund, and take any action 
necessary.  

10.  Consider authorizing the Interim City Manager to execute an Interlocal Purchasing Agreement between 
the City and North Central Texas Council of Governments, and take any action necessary. 
 
Councilmember Johannesen moved to approve the entire Consent Agenda (#s 1, 2, 3, 4, 
5, 6, 7, 8, 9, and 10). Councilmember Macalik seconded the motion. The ordinance 
captions were read as follows: 
 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO. 21-15 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS CONFIRMING AND APPROVING A 
JOINT ORDINANCE AND BOUNDARY AGREEMENT 
SETTING FORTH UPDATED CORPORATE BOUNDARIES 
FOR THE CITY OF ROCKWALL AND THE CITY OF HEATH; 
PROVIDING FOR CERTAIN AGREEMENTS AND 
ADJUSTMENTS TO THE CORPORATE BOUNDARIES OF 
THESE CITIES; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE, AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 
 
 
 

8



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO. 21-16 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-245 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC) [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE 
CITY OF ROCKWALL AND PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
75 (PD-75) [ORDINANCE NO. 16-01], ROCKWALL COUNTY, 
TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A 
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) FOR RESIDENTIAL INFILL IN AN 
ESTABLISHED SUBDIVISION TO ALLOW THE CONSTRUCTION 
OF A SINGLE-FAMILY HOME ON A 0.115-ACRE PARCEL OF 
LAND, IDENTIFIED AS LOT 890, BLOCK E, ROCKWALL LAKE 
ESTATES #1 ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL 
COUNTY, TEXAS; AND MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED 
AND DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; 
PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A 
PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR 
A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO. 21-17 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 
CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO CHANGE THE ZONING 
FROM AN AGRICULTURAL (AG) DISTRICT TO PLANNED 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 91 (PD-91) FOR SINGLE-FAMILY 16 
(SF-16) DISTRICT LAND USES ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, 
BEING A 38.012-ACRE TRACT OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS TRACT 
17 & 17-01 OF THE W. M. DALTON SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 72, 
CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS AND MORE 
FULLY DESCRIBED HEREIN BY EXHIBIT ‘A’ AND DEPICTED 
HEREIN BY EXHIBIT ‘B’; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL 
CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO 
EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) 
FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
The motion passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 

 

X.  
 
APPOINTMENT ITEMS  

 
1.  Appointment with representatives of Oncor Electric Delivery to provide a presentation on the February 

2021 winter storm, and take any action necessary. 
 
Cindy Tayem with ONCOR came forth and addressed the Council concerning this 
appointment item. She generally explained that during this “short supply” winter storm 
event, there was not enough power generation in order to support demand on the electric 
grid. She shared that electric providers were asked by ERCOT (Electric Reliability Council of 
Texas) to assist them in order to avoid ‘blackouts,’ which would have taken weeks and 
possible a month or more to recover from. She went on to explain the various ‘players’ 

9



involved in electric generation and delivery and their individual roles. She went on to recap 
steps that Oncor took in advance of the impending winter weather event(s) back in February 
and then went into detail regarding “load shed” (outages) that took place throughout the 
severe weather event. She acknowledged that Mayor Pruitt (and others) have expressed a 
desire to have more frequent and better communication with Oncor representatives during 
severe events that impact power. She shared that Oncor was absolutely inundated and 
overwhelmed with calls and app-generated messages to the company regarding outages, 
and it was difficult to decipher which outages were caused by rolling outages and which 
were caused by actual damages to equipment. She indicated that Oncor is working to 
improve all of these things and to perform data analytics in order to better understand how 
to decipher things better in the future. She stressed that any and all actions that Oncor took 
were at the request of ERCOT in order to avoid a true ‘blackout’ situation. 
 
Mayor Pruitt generally expressed displeasure with misinformation that the City had received 
from Oncor that it then passed along to city residents (re: how long power would be out, 
when it might come back on, etc.). Also, he is still curious how Oncor decided which portions 
of our city would be without power for three days at a time and which areas would never 
experience outages at all. He is particularly concerned about neighborhoods that are “all 
electric” (no gas) that were without power for 2 and 3 days consistently (no power at all 
whatsoever) (i.e. Lakeside Village). Ms. Tayem shared that Oncor did not know or realize 
that they would be unable to shed sufficient power with rotating / rolling outages. She went 
on to provide various pieces of information, generally detailing the challenges and events 
that took place the week of the severe winter weather storm event. 
 
Following various questions and expressions of concern from Council Members, Ms. Tayem 
thanked the Council for its time.  No action was taken as a result of this item. 
 

XI.  
 
ACTION ITEMS  

 
1.  Discuss and consider non-emergency ambulance service transfer rates and possible exclusivity 

associated with transfers made within the City of Rockwall, and take any action necessary. 
 
Mayor Pruitt provided extensive background information pertaining to this topic, including 
a brief history of past ‘emergency’ and ‘non-emergency’ EMS / ambulance transport services 
within the City of Rockwall.  He went on to explain that he recently sent a letter to 
ambulance service providers who provide non-emergency transfer/transport services within 
the City, inviting them to attend this evening and provide information on their transfer rates 
and associated services. 
 
Ricky Jones 
Medic One Medical Response 
Farmers Branch, TX 
 
Mr. Jones expressed that he understands the City of Rockwall wanting have some sort of 
regulations in place in order to control, to some degree, the company(ies) providing services 
within its city.  However, he suggested that perhaps the City might consider having a “back-
up” company in place that could be vetted and approved by the County of Rockwall 
Emergency Services Corporation.  Mr. Jones went on to share some details regarding rates 
that his company charges for both “Basic Life Support” (BLS) and “Advanced Life Support” 
(ALS) services. He explained that Medicare allowable rates are generally charged; however, 

10



for those patients who do not have insurance (who are “private pay”), he provided details 
on those rates too. He went on to explain that his company provides “mutual aid” type non-
emergency transport services in both Hunt and Ellis Counties (both of which have non-
emergency exclusivity provisions in place). 
 
Mr. James Swartz 
Careflite 
3110 S. Great SW Parkway 
Grand Prairie, TX 75052 
 
Mr. Swartz came forth and provided a PowerPoint presentation to the Council. He generally 
explained that exclusivity creates a monopoly and decreases response times, ultimately 
negatively impacting patient care. He believes that competition makes services improve – 
monopolies do not. He went on to share that instituting “exclusivity” of non-emergency 
transports would inhibit Careflite’s ability to provide air ambulance transport services to 
patients who need those types of transports. He generally spoke strongly in opposition of 
the City of Rockwall instituting “exclusivity” related to non-emergency transport services. 
 
Mayor Pruitt called for a brief break, recessing the meeting at 7:46 p.m.  He reconvened the 
meeting at 7:58 p.m. 
 
Michael Gilbert 
Allegiance Mobile Health 
1681 S. Broadway St. 
Carrollton, TX 75006 
 
Mr. Gilbert came forth and shared that his company only provides non-emergency transport 
services. He shared that he provided each council member with a handout that outlines 
information about his company. Following brief questions and answers between Mr. Gilbert 
and the Council, Mitch Ownby from Medic Rescue came forth. 
 
Mitch Ownby 
Chief, Rockwall County EMS / Medic Rescue 
(no address provided) 
 
Mr. Ownby came forth and addressed the Council concerning this topic. He explained that 
his company is currently the ‘exclusive’ provider within Rockwall County for 9-1-1 emergency 
ambulance services.  He spoke briefly about his company having two paramedics on each 
ambulance and the level of service / capability that his trucks provide to patients on board.  
Thirty-seven or thirty-eight percent of his company’s current business is non-emergency 
transport services. The remainder is 9-1-1 emergency service business.  He went on to 
explain that ‘exclusivity’ demand would be met by his company (to provide non-emergency 
transports, along with 9-1-1 transports) by the addition of more ambulances, which would 
enable the company to keep up with its obligations / “performance based” standards. 
General discussion took place pertaining to his company’s current performance standards 
associated with the 9-1-1 contract it has in place with the County’s Emergency Services 
Corporation. 
 
Curtis Smith 
Acadian Ambulance 

11



(no address provided) 
 
Mr. Smith came forth and provided brief compliments to the city and county, indicating that 
it is a desirable county in which to do business.  He acknowledged that his company did bid 
on the 9-11 ambulance services contract several years ago in response to the RFP (“request 
for proposals”) at the time. He went on to speak about his company’s non-emergency 
transfer rates and how billing works. He shared that, to his knowledge, only the cities of 
Arlington and Ft. Worth have exclusivity (non-emergency) in place. He stated that he would 
love to be Rockwall’s “exclusive” provider for non-emergency transport services.  He also 
shared that his company can provide most all of the same services that Careflite provides 
(minus “air transport” services). 
 
Following the various discussions that took place, the Council took no action pertaining to 
this agenda item at this time. 
   

2.  Discuss and consider directing staff to make changes to the Municipal Code of Ordinances addressing 
regulatory actions for improvements and storage on unleased land within the takeline, and take any 
action necessary. 

Mayor Pruitt began discussion of this item, explaining that this topic focuses on those 
residents who live along the Lake Ray Hubbard Takeline and do and do not lease the area 
between their back yards and the lakefront. This ordinance would clarify that if you do not 
currently pay to lease the takeline area, then you’re not allowed to store things in that area 
(i.e. lawn chairs). Indication was given that this ordinance will come before Council for action 
at the next, regular council meeting (1st reading of the ordinance). At this time, no action 
was taken. 
 

 
3.  Discuss and consider (3) pickleball courts to be located at The Park at Hickory Ridge, including the 

preliminary budget, and take any action necessary. 
 
Parks Director, Travis Sales, came forth and briefed the Council on this agenda item.  
Following various questions and answers between council members and Mr. Sales, Mayor 
Pruitt made a motion to move forward and amend the budget to accommodate the shortfall 
associated with installing a parking lot. Councilmember Hohenshelt seconded the motion, 
which passed unanimously of those present (7 ayes to 0 nays). 
  

4.  Discuss and consider filling vacancies on the city's Comprehensive Plan Advisory Committee (CPAC), and 
take any action necessary. 
 
Mayor Pruitt moved to appoint Jim Turner to serve. Councilmember Daniels seconded the 
motion, which passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 
 

XII.  
 
CITY MANAGER'S REPORT, DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS AND RELATED DISCUSSIONS PERTAINING TO CURRENT CITY ACTIVITIES, 
UPCOMING MEETINGS, FUTURE LEGISLATIVE ACTIVITIES, AND OTHER RELATED MATTERS.  

 
1.  Building Inspections Monthly Report - February 2021   
2.  Fire Department Monthly Report - February 2021  
3.  Parks & Recreation Department Monthly Report - February 2021  
4.  Police Department Monthly Report - February 2021 

12



 
5.  Sales Tax Historical Comparison   
6.  Water Consumption Historical Statistics  

 
Interim City Manager, Mary Smith, indicated that monthly reports have been included in the 
informational meeting packet for review, and staff is happy to answer any questions Council 
may have. No action was taken pertaining to this agenda item. 
 
Council did reconvene in Executive Session following the close of the public meeting agenda. 
So Pruitt recessed the public meeting at 8:39 p.m. to do so. 
 

XIII.  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION.    
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL WILL RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING MATTER AS 
AUTHORIZED BY CHAPTER 551 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE:  

  
1.  Discussion regarding Rockwall Municipal Court pursuant to Section 551.071 (Consultation with 

Attorney) and pursuant to Section 551.074 (Personnel Matters)   
2.  Discussion regarding possible acquisition of real property in the vicinity of FM-549 and SH-205 pursuant 

to Section §551.072 (Real Property).   
3.  Discussion regarding legal issues related to personnel matters pursuant to Section 551.071 

(Consultation with Attorney).   
4.  Discussion regarding (re)appointments to city regulatory boards, commissions, and committees - 

specifically the N. TX Municipal Water District (NTMWD) Board - pursuant to Section 551.074 (Personnel 
Matters) 

XIV.  
 
RECONVENE PUBLIC MEETING & TAKE ANY ACTION AS RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
Council came out of Executive Session and Mayor Pruitt reconvened the public meeting at 9:10 
p.m.  No action was taken. 

XV.   
 
 

ADJOURNMENT  
 
Mayor Pruitt adjourned the meeting at 9:10 p.m. 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, THIS 19th DAY 
OF APRIL, 2021. 
 
 

JIM PRUITT, MAYOR 
ATTEST:  

 
 

KRISTY COLE, CITY SECRETARY 
    

 

13



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, Interim City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Lea Ann Ewing, Purchasing Agent

DATE: April 19, 2021

SUBJECT: BID AWARD FOR CONCRETE PAVEMENT REPAIR SERVICES

Attachments
Bid Tabulation

Summary/Background Information
Approved in the Streets and Drainage Operating Budget are funds to make concrete pavement
repairs.  In the past, the City has outsourced this type of work.  The last contract for these
services was awarded to two contractors, XIT and Medrano.  The current contracts have
expired.  This construction repair contract was competitively bid last month and two bids were
received.        

The Pavement Repairs Contract includes materials, equipment and labor to make street,
curb/gutter, alley, ramp and sidewalk/trail repairs and all the incidentals that go with this type of
work.  Full description of the work is provided in the attached unit price bid worksheet.  The
annual contract amount is estimated to be $500,000.  This budget year staff is anticipating
$375,000 in pavement and sidewalk work and $125,000 in specialty work (curb and gutter,
ramps, brick repairs, and excavation) 75% and 25% respectively.  Following this memo is the
bid tabulation form.  The bid award is per unit price.  The contract term is for 12 months with the
option to renew at the end of the initial year for three consecutive years. 

Bids received from Urban Infraconstruction out of Ft. Worth and EM Construction located in
Mesquite.   Urban’s bid packet was complete while EM Construction did not provide all of the
required documents and failed to complete the bid form.  Urban Infraconstruction currently has
similar pavement contracts with the Cities of Plano and Carrollton.  Urban’s current and
previous work references have been positive.

Action Needed
For Council consideration is the annual Concrete Pavement Repairs Contract bid award by unit
price to Urban Infraconstruction and authorize the City Manager to execute a contract for this
service. 

 

14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM                  
  
 
TO: Mary Smith, Interim City Manager  
  
FROM: Amy Williams, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
DATE: April 16, 2021 
  
SUBJECT: Lift Station Chemical Injection Systems  
  

  
 On February 07, 2017, staff brought before City Council to authorize the City Manager to execute a 
contract with Evoqua Water Technologies to install an injection system at the Fontana and Timber Creek Lift 
Stations to eliminate effluent odors. 
 
     The reason for the installations was to eliminate sewer odor complaints from residents along Daybreak 
Drive in the Lofland Subdivision. The existing sanitary sewer system in Daybreak Drive receives sanitary sewer 
effluent from the Fontana and Timber Creek Lift Stations. The lift stations discharge into the existing gravity 
flow system creating an environment for hydrogen sulfide to be emitted from the wastewater collection system.  
 
     In the 2018 budget, the Wastewater Division of Public Works requested the installation of an injection 
system at the Mims Lift Station to eliminate odors and hydrogen sulfide affecting residents in Windmill Ridge 
and Lake Rockwall Estates. Mims Lift Station discharges into the gravity line at Tubbs Road and Walnut Lane.  
 
     The product injected is BIOXIDE Plus 71 solution is a product which combines the benefits of BIOXIDE 
solution with a proprietary blend component to achieve highly effective odor and corrosion control. BIOXIDE 
solution controls sewage odor naturally, rather than chemically. This process eliminates the odor, prevents 
corrosion and overcomes safety concerns associated with atmospheric hydrogen sulfide.  
 
     BIOXIDE Plus 71 solution is environmentally safe. It contains no hazardous substances as defined by 
the CERCLA list of reportable quantities and the OSHA Hazard Communication Standard (29 CFR 
1910.1200). The active ingredient is nitrate salts which is a stable, safe compound found in nature. This 
compound is selected as the active ingredient in BIOXIDE solutions because it specifically interacts with 
naturally occurring bacteria to remove and prevent dissolved sulfide, resulting in an effective, safe and effective 
product.  
 
 Staff requests City Council consideration to renew the contract with Evoqua Water Technologies for a 
two-year contract for Fontana, Timber Creek, and Mims Lift Stations to eliminate effluent odors with an 
estimated amount of $90,000 annually. 
 
 

22



2650 Tallevast Road
Sarasota, FL  34243 USA

Tel:  +1 (800) 345-3982
Fax: +1 (941) 359-7985

Page 1 of 2

April 16, 2021

Mr. Rick Sherer
City of Rockwall
385 South Goliad St.
Rockwall, TX  75087
Email:  rsherer@rockwall.com
CC:  Steve Clawson (sclawson@rockwall.com)

RE:   2021-2023 TWO-YEAR BIOXIDE® PLUS 71 FSOC PRICING
CITY OF ROCKWALL, TX
Evoqua Quote No. Q210223SB01 (REF: 2017-181906 r1)

Dear Mr. Sherer:

Evoqua Water Technologies LLC would like to thank you for your business and we look forward to
serving your H2S and odor control needs in the years to come. Evoqua would like to renew the supply of
BIOXIDE® Plus 71 Solution, feed system and quarterly service for a two (2) year agreement.

Your current delivered price for BIOXIDE Plus 71 mirrors NTMWD’s price of $3.01 per gallon in minimum
2,000 gallon full loads. The new two-year agreement will take effect immediately and remain firm through
April 30, 2023.

The above price is for BIOXIDE Plus 71, equipment and preventative maintenance. The maintenance
schedule and optimization services will remain quarterly to align with the NTMWD Agreement. An Evoqua
service technician will visit the site to perform routine maintenance on the dosing equipment, optimize
chemical dosing, conduct compliance sampling and provide a written report. Routine service shall
include, but not be limited to:

1. Check the equipment for proper operation
2. Perform sulfide sampling at the control point
3. Perform scheduled preventative maintenance on equipment.

The above pricing and services apply to FONTANA, TIMBER CREEK, and MIMS Road Lift Stations.

All other Terms and Conditions of the original contract no. 2017-181906r1 are considered a part of this
renewal and shall apply. Any applicable taxes due are not included.

Evoqua appreciates your business and support and looks forward to continuing to provide you the quality
products, services and lowest cost solutions. If you have any questions or need additional information,
please contact me at (432) 232-4935 or via email at byron.smith@evoqua.com.

Sincerely,

Evoqua Water Technologies LLC

Byron Smith

Byron Smith
Technical Sales Representative

23



Q210223SB01
Page 2 of 2

RE:   2021-2023 TWO-YEAR BIOXIDE® PLUS 71 FSOC PRICING
CITY OF ROCKWALL, TX
Evoqua Quote No. Q210223SB01 (REF: 2017-181906 r1)

Evoqua will process your order when we receive acceptance of this proposal, by signing below and
returning to municipalservices@Evoqua.com or via fax to: (941) 359-7985.

Company Name: _____________________________________________________

This ____ day of __________________________________Month __________Year

By:  _______________________________________________________________

Title:  ______________________________________________________________

P.O. Number_________________________________________________________

24



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  
 
TO:  Mayor and Council Members 
 
FROM: Hotel Occupancy Tax Sub-committee Members  

Mary Smith, Assistant City Manager 
 
DATE:  April 16, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: South Central Nautique Regatta – Chamber of Commerce   
  

 
The Chamber of Commerce is requesting HOT funds to assist with the South Central 
Nautique Regatta to be held in Rockwall August 6-8.  This is a large group of Ski Nautique 
owners who meet annually to view demonstrations, attend education sessions, and learn 
about new products.  Many of the owners bring their own boats and the Factory brings 
demonstration models as well.  The Owners group will participate in several events at the 
Hilton as well as around the Rockwall area and on the lake.  The Chamber is the umbrella 
organization requesting HOT funds for this event and will use the funds to enhance the 
quality of the event with slip rentals for the boats, musical entertainment, and other 
equipment rentals needed to put on a first-class event.  There will be a 200 room-block at 
the Hilton for 2 nights.  This is an annual event which has been held in other locales and if 
this is a successful event then the Owners Group would anticipate planning to host in 
Rockwall for five years.  The total request was for $12,715.  

 
Prior to Council action on the above, the Hotel Occupancy Tax budget is as follows: 

 
   Fund Balance carried forward  $ 823,355 
       Budgeted Revenues       750,000 
       Previously Allocated Funding   (600,120) 
     Projected Fund Balance  $ 973,235 
 

 
 
Subcommittee members Kevin Fowler, Dana Macalik, and Bennie Daniels discussed the request 
and recommend $12,715 award from hotel occupancy taxes for this event.  Council is asked to 
consider approving the funds as recommended by the subcommittee and authorizing the 
Interim City Manager to execute the agreement with the Chamber. 
 
 

25



26



27



28



29



	

	

 
 

SCHEDULE OF EVENTS 
 

Friday, August 6th  
 
Ongoing all day  - Poker Run (grab your map at registration!) 
       
10:00am-5:00pm - Boat Owner Check-in – WWA Tent at Harbor Park 
    2059 Summer Lee, Rockwall Texas 75032 
 
11:00pm-5:00pm - Demo Rides with Nautique Pro Athletes 
 
12:00pm-3:00pm - Vendor Education/Product Sessions 

    
  

 
Saturday, August 7th 
Ongoing all day - Poker Run  
 
8:00am-12:45pm - Demo Rides with Nautique Pro Athletes  
 
10:00am-1:30pm - Vendor Education/Product Sessions 

 
1:30pm-3:45pm - Demo Rides with Nautique Pro Athletes  
 
1:30pm-2:30pm - Gromfest Contest  
 
3:00pm   - Group Boat Photo  
 
5:30pm-8:30pm - Nautique Owner’s Dinner -  

Ballroom @ Hilton Rockwall Lakefront 
    2055 Summer Lee Dr. Rockwall, TX 75032 
    Themed Dinner – Theme coming soon! 
 
6:30pm  - Poker Run, Gromfest and more Awards! 
 

 
 

Sunday, August 8th 

 
8:00am-10:15am - Demo Rides with Nautique Pro Athletes 

	

	

30



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, Interim City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: April 19, 2021

SUBJECT: P2021-009; REPLAT FOR LOT 1, BLOCK A, KENNEDY ADDITION

Attachments
Case Memo
Development Application
Location Map
Replat

Summary/Background Information
Consider a request by Brenda Kennedy for the approval of a Replat for Lot 1, Block A, Kennedy
Addition being a 0.2342-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 1, Block A, Richard Harris
Subdivision No. 5 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 7
(SF-7) District, addressed as 701 N. T. L. Townsend Drive, and take any action necessary.

Action Needed
The City Council is being asked to approve, approve with condition, or deny the replat.

31



PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL CASE MEMO 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 

385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

DATE: April 19, 2021 

APPLICANT: Brenda Kennedy 

CASE NUMBER: P2021-009; Replat for Lot 1, Block A, Kennedy Addition 

SUMMARY 

Consider a request by Brenda Kennedy for the approval of a Replat for Lot 1, Block A, Kennedy Addition being a 0.2342-acre 
parcel of land identified as Lot 1, Block A, Richard Harris Subdivision No. 5 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, 
zoned Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District, addressed as 701 N. T. L. Townsend Drive, and take any action necessary. 

PLAT INFORMATION 

 The applicant is requesting to replat a 0.2342-acre existing parcel of land (i.e. Lot 1, Block A, Richard Harris Subdivision 
No. 5 Addition) into one (1) lot (i.e. Lot 1, Block A, Kennedy Addition) for the purpose of establishing easements and 
delineating the floodplain boundaries necessary to construct a single-family home. 

 The subject property was annexed prior to 1934 based on the August 25, 1934 Sanborn Map.  The City’s historic zoning 
maps show that the subject property was zoned Commercial (C) District as of January 3, 1972.  Between May 16, 1983 
and December 7, 1993, the subject property was rezoned Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District.  On June 9, 1986, the City Council 
approved a final plat (Case No. PZ1986-037-01) establishing the subject property as Lot 1, Block A, Richard Harris #5 
Addition.  This plat was filed with Rockwall County on October 7, 1986.  On January 4, 2021 City Council approved a 
Specific Use Permit (SUP) [Ordinance No. 21-02; S-238] allowing the construction of a single-family home on the subject 
property. 

 The surveyor has completed the majority of the technical revisions requested by staff, and this Replat -- conforming to the 
requirements for plats as stipulated by Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the Municipal Code of Ordinances -- is recommended 
for conditional approval pending the completion of final technical modifications and submittal requirements. 

 Conditional approval of this Replat by the City Council shall constitute approval subject to the conditions stipulated in the 
Conditions of Approval section below. 

 With the exception of the items listed in the Conditions of Approval section below, this Replat is in substantial compliance 
with the requirements of Chapter 38, Subdivision, of the Municipal Code of Ordinances. 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

If the City Council chooses to approve the Replat for Lot 1, Block A, Kennedy Addition, staff would propose the following 
conditions of approval:   

(1) All technical comments from the Engineering, Planning and Fire Departments shall be addressed prior to the filing of this
subdivision plat.

(2) Any construction resulting from the approval of this Replat shall conform to the requirements set forth by the Unified
Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted
engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state
and federal government.

32



PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 2 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

On April 13, 2021, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend approval of the replat with the 
conditions of approval by a vote of 7-0. 

33



34



RE
NF

RO

PARK PLACE

T L
 TO

WN
SEN

D

BOYDSTUN

P2021-009- LOT 2, BLOCK A, RICHARD HARRIS SUBDIVISION
REPLAT - LOCATION MAP =      

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user.

City of Rockwall

0 50 100 150 20025
Feet

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com I35



8
.4

2
'

POINT OF
BEGINNING

B
A

S
IS

 O
F

 B
E

A
R

IN
G

S

100YR W
.S

. E
LEV=535.71

100YR W
.S

. E
LEV=536.19

100YR W
.S

. E
LEV=535.82

MIN FFE
ELEV=538.19

100YR
 FLO

O
D
 PLAIN

100Y
R

 F
LO

O
D

 P
LA

IN

SURVEY DATE

SCALE

CLIENT

FILE #

NOTES

H.D. Fetty Land Surveyor, LLC

1) According to F.E.M.A. Flood Insurance Rate Map. Community Panel No. 48397C0040 L dated 
   SEPT 26, 2008, this property lies in Zone X. This property does not appear to lie within a 100-year 
   flood plain.

Firm Registration no. 101509-00

2) BEARING SOURCE: CITY OF ROCKWALL CONTROL MONUMENT SYSTEM.

3) ALL 1/2" IRS ARE CAPPED WITH  YELLOW PLASTIC CAPS "RPLS 5034."

4) Property owner shall be responsible for maintenance, repair, and replacement of drainage and detention
systems on site.

SITE
LOCATION

LOT 1, BLOCK A

VICINITY MAP
N.T.S.

13,252 S.F.
0.30 ACRES

36



SURVEY DATE

SCALE

CLIENT

FILE #

NOTE: It shall be the policy of the City of Rockwall to withhold issuing building permits until
all streets, water, sewer and storm drainage systems have been accepted by the City. The
approval of a plat by the City does not constitute any representa tion, assurance or guarantee
that any building within such plat shall be approved, authorized or permit therefore issued,
as required under Ordinance 83-54.

                               SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

NOW, THEREFORE KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

THAT I, Harold D. Fetty, III, R.P.L.S. No. 5034, do hereby certify that I prepared this plat
from an actual and accurate survey of the land, and that the corner monuments shown thereon
were properly placed under my personal supervision.

____________________________________________
Harold D. Fetty, III
Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 5034

RECOMMENDED FOR FINAL APPROVAL

________________________                _______________________
Planning and Zoning Commission          Date

O F

A

ED

X

R
N

A
L

EI S T

ISSE

R

O

ET

EG
A

R

O

P

R

S
T

L

ET

F

5034

VU R ED
S

OYN
A

HAROLD D. FETTY III

S

Given upon my hand and seal of office this _______day of _____________________, ___________.

__________________________________                              _____________________________
Notary Public in and for the State of Texas                     My Commission Expires:

STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF ROCKWALL

H.D. Fetty Land Surveyor, LLC
Firm Registration no. 101509-00

                                      OWNER'S CERTIFICATE
                                      (Public Dedication)
STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF ROCKWALL

WHEREAS BRENDA K. KENNEDY, BEING THE OWNER OF A TRACT OF land in the
County of Rockwall, State of Texas, said tract being described as follows:

BEING Lot 1, Block A, of Richard Harris Subdivision No. 5, an Addition to the City of Rockwall, Rockwall 
County, Texas, according to the Plat thereof recorded in Cabinet B, Slide 339, Plat Records, Rockwall 
County, Texas, and being more particularly described as follows:

BEGINNING at a 1/2" iron rod with yellow plastic cap stamped "RPLS 5034" set for corner in the east
right-of-way line of Townsend Drive, at the southwest corner of said Lot 1, Block A;

THENCE N. 02 deg. 45 min. 59 sec. E. along said right-of-way line, a distance fo 26.86 feet to a 1/2" iron
rod with yellow plastic cap stamped "RPLS 5034' set for corner in the surving right-of-way of Renfro Street;

THENCE in a northeasterly direction along a curve to the right having a central angle of 56°55'45", a radius
of 103.09 feet, a tangent of 55.89 feet, a chord of N 31°13'26"E, 98.27 feet along said right-of-way line, an
arc distance of 102.43 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with yellow plastic cap stamped "RPLS 5034" set for corner
at the north corner of said Lot 1, Block A;

THENCE S. 38 deg. 37 min. 41 sec. E. a distance of 195.70 feet to a 1/2" iron rod found for corner;

THENCE S. 04 deg. 22 min. 37 sec. E. a distance of 21.33 feet to a 1/2" iron rod found for corner;

THENCE N. 67 deg. 03 min. 28 sec. W. a distance of 152.66 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with yellow plastic
cap stamped "RPLS 5034" set for corner;

THENCE N. 83 deg. 54 min. 39 sec. W. a distance of 35.65 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing
13.252 square feet or 0.30 acres of land.

NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF ROCKWALL

I the undersigned owner of the land shown on this plat, and designated herein as KENNEDY ADDITION,
LOT 1, BLOCK A, an Addition to the City of Rockwall, Texas, and whose name is subscribed hereto, 
hereby dedicate to the use of the public forever all streets, alleys, parks, water courses, drains,
easements and public places thereon shown on the purpose and consideration therein expressed. I
further certify that all other parties who have a mortgage or lien interest in KENNEDY ADDITION, LOT 1,
BLOCK A, have been notified and signed this plat.

I understand and do hereby reserve the easement strips shown on this plat for the purposes
stated and for the mutual use and accommodation of all utilities desiring to use or using same.

I also understand the following;

1.       No buildings shall be constructed or placed upon, over, or across the utility
easements as described herein.

2.      Any public utility shall have the right to remove and keep removed all or part of any
buildings, fences, trees, shrubs, or other growths or improvements which in any way endanger or
interfere with construction, maintenance or efficiency of th eir respective system on any of
these easement strips; and any public utility shall at all times have the right of ingress or
egress to, from and upon the said easement strips for purpose of construction, reconstruction,
inspecting, patrolling, maint aining, and either adding to or removing all or part of their
respective system without the necessity of, at any time, procuring the permission of anyone.

3.      The City of Rockwall will not be responsible for any claims of any nature resulting
from or occasioned by the establishment of grade of streets in the subdivision.

4.      The developer and subdivision engineer shall bear total responsibility for storm drain
improvements.

5.      The developer shall be responsible for the necessary facilities to provide drainage
patterns and drainage controls such that properties within the drainage area are not adversely
affected by storm drainage from the development.

6.      No house dwelling unit, or other structure shall be constructed on any lot in this
addition by the owner or any other person until the developer and/or owner has complied with
all requirements of the Subdivision Regulations of the City of Roc kwall regarding improvements
with respect to the entire block on the street or streets on which property abuts, including
the actual installation of streets with the required base and paving, curb and gutter, water
and sewer, drainage structures, storm structures, storm sewers, and alleys, all according to
the specifications of the City of Rockwall; or

Until an escrow deposit, sufficient to pay for the cost of such improvements, as determined by
the city's engineer and/or city administrator, computed on a private commercial rate basis, has
been made with the city secretary, accompanied by an agreement signed by the developer and/or
owner, authorizing the city to make such improvements at prevailing private commercial rates,
or have the same made by a contractor and pay for the same out of the escrow deposit, should
the developer an d/or owner fail or refuse to install the required improvements within the time
stated in such written agreement, but in no case shall the City be obligated to make such
improvements itself.  Such deposit may be used by the owner and/or developer as p rogress
payments as the work progresses in making such improvements by making certified requisitions to
the city secretary, supported by evidence of work done; or

Until the developer and/or owner files a corporate surety bond with the city secretary in a sum
equal to the cost of such improvements for the designated area, guaranteeing the installation
thereof within the time stated in the bond, which time shall be fixed by the city council of
the City of Rockwall.

7) Property owner shall be responsible for maintenance, repair, and replacement of drainage and detention
systems on site.

I further acknowledge that the dedications and/or exaction's made herein are proportional
to the impact of the subdivision upon the public services required in order that the
development will comport with the present and future growth needs of the City; I , my 
successors and assigns hereby waive any claim, damage, or cause of action that I may have
as a result of the dedication of exaction's made herein.

_________________________________________________
BRENDA K. KENNEDY

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared BRENDA K. KENNEDY
known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and 
acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purpose and consideration therein stated.

                                         APPROVED

I hereby certify that the above and foregoing plat of KENNEDY ADDITION, LOT 1, BLOCK A, an 
addition to the City of Rockwall, Texas,  an addition to the City of Rockwall, Texas,
was approved by the City Council of the City of Rockwall on the ___ day of________ ,______.

This approval shall be invalid unless the approved plat for such addition is recorded in the
office of the County Clerk of Rockwall, County, Texas, within one hundred eighty (180) days
from said date of final approval.

Said addition shall be subject to all the requirements of the Subdivision Regulations of the
City of Rockwall.

WITNESS OUR HANDS, this ______ day of _________________ ,______________.

__________________________________              ______________________________________
Mayor, City of Rockwall                                             City Secretary City of Rockwall

________________________________                       __________
City Engineer                                                                      Date

37



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, Interim City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: April 19, 2021

SUBJECT: P2021-010; REPLAT FOR LOTS 1 & 2, BLOCK A, WREYFORD ADDITION

Attachments
Case Memo
Development Application
Location Map
Replat

Summary/Background Information
Consider a request by Doug Stewart on behalf of Bryan Wreyford for the approval of
a Replat for Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Wreyford Addition being a 2.97-acre parcel of land identified
as Lot 1 of the Crowell’s Hidden Valley Estates Addition, Collin County, Texas, situated within
the City of Rockwall’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ), generally located at the southeast
corner of the intersection of County Road 949 and County Road 536, and take any action
necessary.

Action Needed
The City Council is being asked to approve, approve with condition, or deny the replat.

38



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL CASE MEMO 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

DATE: April 19, 2021 
 

APPLICANT: Bryan Wreyford 
 

CASE NUMBER: P2021-010; Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Wreyford Addition  
 
 

SUMMARY 
 
Consider a request by Doug Stewart on behalf of Bryan Wreyford for the approval of a Replat for Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Wreyford 
Addition being a 2.97-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 1 of the Crowell’s Hidden Valley Estates Addition, Collin County, 
Texas, situated within the City of Rockwall’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ), generally located at the southeast corner of the 
intersection of County Road 949 and County Road 536, and take any action necessary. 
 
PLAT INFORMATION 
 
 The applicant is requesting the approval of a Replat for a 2.97-acre parcel of land (i.e. Lot 1, Crowell’s Hidden Valley Estates 

Addition) for the purpose of creating two (2) lots (Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Wreyford Addition).  The subject property is situated 
in Collin County and is within the City of Rockwall’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ).  Both properties will have frontage on 
County Road 536, with Lot 1 having 300-feet of frontage and Lot 2 having 293.98-feet of lot frontage.   
 

 The proposed final plat is subject to the requirements of Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the City’s Municipal Code of 
Ordinances, and the Interlocal Subdivision Agreement between Collin County and the City of Rockwall.  According to the 
Interlocal Subdivision Agreement between Collin County and the City of Rockwall, the City of Rockwall shall have exclusive 
jurisdiction to regulate all subdivision plats within the City of Rockwall’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) in accordance with 
Chapter 212 of the Texas Local Government Code, its adopted Subdivision Ordinance or other applicable codes or 
ordinances. 

 
 The surveyor has completed the majority of the technical revisions required by staff, and this plat -- conforming to the 

requirements for plats as stipulated by Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the Municipal Code of Ordinances and Interlocal 
Agreement between Collin County and the City of Rockwall -- is recommended for conditional approval pending the 
completion of final technical modifications and submittal requirements. 
 

 Conditional approval of this plat by the City Council shall constitute approval subject to the conditions stipulated in the 
Conditions of Approval section below. 
 

 With the exception of the items listed in the Conditions of Approval section of this case memo, this plat is in substantial 
compliance with the requirements of Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the Municipal Code of Ordinances and the Interlocal 
Agreement between Collin County and the City of Rockwall. 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
If the City Council chooses to approve the Replat for Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Wreyford Addition, staff would propose the following 
conditions of approval: 
 
(1) All technical comments from City Staff (i.e. Engineering, Planning and Fire Department) and Collin County shall be 

addressed prior to filing of the plat with Collin County;  
 

39



(2) The applicant shall have the city approved plat mylar signed by the Collin County Development Services Department prior 
to staff accepting the plat for filing purposes; and, 

 
(3) Any construction resulting from the approval of this plat shall conform to the requirements set forth by the Unified 

Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted 
engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state 
and federal government. 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 
On April 13, 2021, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend approval of the replat with the 
conditions of approval by a vote of 7-0. 

40



41



536
949

CHAPARRAL TROT

SPU
R A

T S
AN

DS
 LA

KE

SM
ITH

P2021-010- LOTS 1 & 2, BLOCK A, WREYFORD ADDITION
REPLAT - LOCATION MAP =        

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user.

City of Rockwall

0 130 260 390 52065
Feet

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com I42



43



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, Interim City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: April 19, 2021

SUBJECT: P2021-011; FINAL PLAT FOR LOTS 1 & 2, BLOCK A, BIRDS NEST
ADDITION

Attachments
Case Memo
Development Application
Location Map
Replat

Summary/Background Information
Consider a request by Mike and Cheryl Birdwell for the approval of a Final Plat for Lots 1 & 2,
Block A, Birds Nest Addition being a 4.02-acre tract of land identified as Tract 15 of the J. Smith
Survey, Abstract No. 191, Rockwall County, Texas, situated within the City of Rockwall’s
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ), addressed as 171 Birds Nest Lane, and take any action
necessary.

Action Needed
The City Council is being asked to approve, approve with condition, or deny the final plat. 

44



 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL CASE MEMO 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 

385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

DATE: April 19, 2021 
 

APPLICANT: Mike and Cheryl Birdwell 
 

CASE NUMBER: P2021-011; Final Plat for Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Birds Nest Addition 
 

 

SUMMARY 
 
Consider a request by Mike and Cheryl Birdwell for the approval of a Final Plat for Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Birds Nest Addition 
being a 4.02-acre tract of land identified as Tract 15 of the J. Smith Survey, Abstract No. 191, Rockwall County, Texas, 
situated within the City of Rockwall’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ), addressed as 171 Birds Nest Lane, and take any action 
necessary. 
 
PLAT INFORMATION 
 
 The applicants are requesting the approval of a Final Plat to subdivide one (1) tract of land (i.e. Tract 15 of the J. Smith 

Survey, Abstract No. 191) into two (2) parcels of land (i.e. Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Birds Nest Addition) for the purpose of 
conveying one (1) lot (i.e. Lot 2, Block A; the lot with the existing single-family home) and constructing a single-family 
home on one (1) lot (i.e. Lot 1, Block A).  According to the subdivision plat, each of the two (2) residential lots will be a 
minimum of 1½-acres in size, and be accessible via the existing private road (i.e. Birds Nest Lane). The plat also shows 
that an additional 32-feet of right-of-way will be dedicated to the existing right-of-way for Camp Creek Road.  This 
dedication conforms to the Rockwall County Thoroughfare Plan.    
 

 The proposed Final Plat appears to be in conformance with the requirements of Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the City’s 
Municipal Code of Ordinances, the City’s Standards of Design and Construction Manual, and Exhibit ‘A’, Subdivision 
Regulations for Review of Plats in the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) of the City of Rockwall, of the Interim Interlocal 
Agreement between Rockwall County and the City of Rockwall.     

 
 The surveyor has completed the majority of the technical revisions requested by staff, and this plat -- conforming to the 

requirements for plats as stipulated by Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the Municipal Code of Ordinances and Exhibit ‘A’ of 
the Interim Interlocal Cooperation Agreement between Rockwall County and the City of Rockwall -- is recommended for 
conditional approval pending the completion of final technical modifications and submittal requirements. 
 

 Conditional approval of this plat by the City Council shall constitute approval subject to the conditions stipulated in the 
Conditions of Approval section below. 

 
 With the exception of the items listed in the Conditions of Approval section of this case memo, this plat is in substantial 

compliance with the requirements of Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the Municipal Code of Ordinances and Exhibit ‘A’ of the 
Interim Interlocal Cooperation Agreement between Rockwall County and the City of Rockwall. 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
If the City Council chooses to approve the Final Plat for Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Birds Nest Addition, staff would propose the 
following conditions of approval: 
 
(1) All technical comments from City Staff (i.e. Engineering, Planning and Fire Department) and Rockwall County shall be 

addressed prior to submittal of civil engineering plans. 
 

45



 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 2 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

(2) Any construction resulting from the approval of this Final Plat shall conform to the requirements set forth by the Unified 
Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city 
adopted engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by 
the state and federal government. 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 
On April 13, 2021, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend approval of the final plat with the 
conditions of approval by a vote of 7-0. 

46



47



CAMP CREEK

FARM

BIR
DS

 NE
ST

SHADY 
CRE

EK

P2021-011- LOT 1 & 2, BLOCK A, BIRDS NEST ADDITION
REPLAT - LOCATION MAP =      

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user.

City of Rockwall

0 160 320 480 64080
Feet

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com I48



3
7

4
.0

0
'

EAST 267.85'

294.15'

3
3

5
.5

2
'

2
8

5
.3

9
'

32
.2

0'

26.83'

32
.4

4'

POINT OF
BEGINNING

NOTES

SURVEY DATE

SCALE

CLIENT

FILE #H.D. Fetty Land Surveyor, LLC
Firm Registration no. 101509-00

1) According to F.E.M.A. Flood Insurance Rate Map. Community Panel No. 48397C0030 L dated 
   SEPT 26, 2008, this property lies in Zone X. This property does not appear to lie within a 100-year 
   flood plain. 

2) BEARING SOURCE: RECORDED DEED IN VOLUME 676, PAGE 247, R.P.R.R.C.T.

3) ALL 1/2" IRS ARE CAPPED WITH  YELLOW PLASTIC CAPS "RPLS 5034."

4) PROPERTY OWNER TO MAINTAIN, REPAIR, AND REPLACE DRAINAGE SYSTEMS ON SITE.

B
A

S
IS

 O
F

 B
E

A
R

IN
G

S

S
 1

°0
6

'0
1

''E
 2

2
3

.4
6

'

1
3

3
.9

9
'

LOT 1

1.73 ACRES
75,554 SF

LOT 2

2.06 ACRES
89,717 SF

SITE
LOCATION

49



NOTE: It shall be the policy of the City of Rockwall to withhold issuing building permits until
all streets, water, sewer and storm drainage systems have been accepted by the City. The
approval of a plat by the City does not constitute any representa tion, assurance or guarantee
that any building within such plat shall be approved, authorized or permit therefore issued,
as required under Ordinance 83-54.

                               SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

NOW, THEREFORE KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

THAT I, Harold D. Fetty, III, R.P.L.S. No. 5034, do hereby certify that I prepared this plat
from an actual and accurate survey of the land, and that the corner monuments shown thereon
were properly placed under my personal supervision.

____________________________________________
Harold D. Fetty, III
Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 5034

RECOMMENDED FOR FINAL APPROVAL

________________________                _______________________
Planning and Zoning Commission          Date

O F

A

ED

X

R
N

A
L

EI S T

ISSE

R

O

ET

EG
A

R

O

P

R

S
T

L
ET

F

5034

VU R ED
S

OYN
A

HAROLD D. FETTY III

S

foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purpose and

foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purpose and

consideration therein stated.

consideration therein stated.

Given upon my hand and seal of office this _______day of _____________________, ___________.

Given upon my hand and seal of office this _______day of _____________________, ___________.

__________________________________                              _____________________________

__________________________________                              _____________________________

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas                     My Commission Expires:

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas                     My Commission Expires:

STATE OF TEXAS

STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF ROCKWALL

COUNTY OF ROCKWALL

SURVEY DATE

SCALE

CLIENT

FILE #H.D. Fetty Land Surveyor, LLC

known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the

known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the

Firm Registration no. 101509-00

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared MIKE BIRDWELL

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared CHERYL BIRDWELL

                                         APPROVED

I hereby certify that the above and foregoing plat of BIRDS NEST ADDITION, LOT 1 & 2, BLOCK A, 
an addition to the Rockwall County, Texas, was approved by the City Council of the City of Rockwall
on the ___ day of________ ,______ in accordance with the requirements of the Interlocal Cooperation
Agreement fro Subdivision Regulation in the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction ( ETJ) of the City entered into by
the City of Rockwall and Rockwall County.

This approval shall be invalid unless the approved plat for such addition is recorded in the
office of the County Clerk of Rockwall, County, Texas, within one hundred eighty (180) days
from said date of final approval.

WITNESS OUR HANDS, this ______ day of _________________ ,______________.

__________________________________              ______________________________________
Mayor, City of Rockwall                                             City Secretary City of Rockwall

________________________________                       __________
City Engineer                                                                      Date

________________________________                       __________
Rockwall County Judge                                                       Date

                                      OWNER'S CERTIFICATE
                                      (Public Dedication)
STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF ROCKWALL

WHEREAS Mike and Cheryl Birdwell, BEING THE OWNERS OF A TRACT OF land in the
County of Rockwall, State of Texas, said tract being described as follows:

All that certain lot, tract or parcel of land situated in the JAMES SMITH SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 191,
Rockwall County, Texas, and being a part of that 6.238 acres tract of land as described in a Warranty 
deed from William James Russell, et al to Michael G. Birdwell and wife, Cheryl L. Birdwell, dated March 
13, 1992 and being recorded in Volume 676, Page 247 of the Real Property Records of Rockwall County,
Texas, and being more particularly described as follows:

BEGINNING at a 3/8" iron rod found for corner at the Northwest corner of said 6.238 acres tract of land, 
said point being in a turn in Camp Creek Road;

THENCE N. 67 deg. 35 min. 46 sec. E. along Camp Creek Road, a distance of 321.63 feet to a "PK"
nail found for corner;

THENCE S. 00 deg. 02 min. 00 sec. E. a distance of 653.36 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with yellow plastic 
cap stamped "RPLS 5034" found for corner;

THENCE S. 88 deg. 08 min. 57 sec. W. a distance of 289.05 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with yellow plastic 
cap stamped "R.S.C.I. RPLS 5034" found for corner;

THENCE N. 00 deg. 26 min. 30 sec. W. along said west boundary line, a distance of 133.99 feet to a 
1/2" iron rod found for corner;

THENCE N. 01 deg. 06 min. 01 sec. W. along the west boundary line of said tract, a distance of 406.20
feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 4.02 acres of land.

NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF ROCKWALL

We the undersigned owners of the land shown on this plat, and designated herein as BIRDS NEST
ADDITION, LOT 1& 2, BLOCK A, an Addition to the County of Rockwall, Texas, and whose name is 
subscribed hereto, hereby dedicate to the use of the public forever all streets, alleys, parks, water 
courses, drains, easements and public places thereon shown on the purpose and consideration 
therein expressed. We further certify that all other parties who have a mortgage or lien interest in 
BIRDS NEST ADDITION, LOT 1 & 2, BLOCK A, have been notified and signed this plat.

We understand and do hereby reserve the easement strips shown on this plat for the purposes
stated and for the mutual use and accommodation of all utilities desiring to use or using same.

We also understand the following;

1.       No buildings shall be constructed or placed upon, over, or across the utility
easements as described herein.

2.      Any public utility shall have the right to remove and keep removed all or part of any
buildings, fences, trees, shrubs, or other growths or improvements which in any way endanger or
interfere with construction, maintenance or efficiency of th eir respective system on any of
these easement strips; and any public utility shall at all times have the right of ingress or
egress to, from and upon the said easement strips for purpose of construction, reconstruction,
inspecting, patrolling, maint aining, and either adding to or removing all or part of their
respective system without the necessity of, at any time, procuring the permission of anyone.

3.      The City and County of Rockwall will not be responsible for any claims of any nature resulting
from or occasioned by the establishment of grade of streets in the subdivision.

4.      The developer and subdivision engineer shall bear total responsibility for storm drain
improvements.

5.      The developer shall be responsible for the necessary facilities to provide drainage
patterns and drainage controls such that properties within the drainage area are not adversely
affected by storm drainage from the development.

6.      No house dwelling unit, or other structure shall be constructed on any lot in this
addition by the owner or any other person until the developer and/or owner has complied with
all requirements of the Subdivision Regulations of the City of Rockwall regarding improvements
with respect to the entire block on the street or streets on which property abuts, including
the actual installation of streets with the required base and paving, curb and gutter, water
and sewer, drainage structures, sto rm structures, storm sewers, and alleys, all according to
the specifications required by the Interlocal Cooperation Agreement for Subdivision Regulation in
the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction of a Municipality entered into by the City of Rockwall and County; or

7) Property owner shall be responsible for maintaining, reparing and replacing all systems within
the drainage and dentention easements.

Until an escrow deposit, sufficient to pay for the cost of such improvements, as determined by
the County's chosen engineer and/or County administrator, computed on a private commercial rate basis, 
has been made with the city secretary, accompanied by an agreement signed by the developer and/or
owner, authorizing the city and county to make such improvements at prevailing private commercial rates,
or have the same made by a contractor and pay for the same out of the escrow deposit, should
the developer and/or owner fail or refuse to install the required improvements within the time
stated in such written agreement, but in no case shall the County be obligated to make such
improvements itself.  Such deposit may be used by the owner and/or developer as progress
payments as the work progresses in making such improvements by making certified requisitions to
the City and County, supported by evidence of work done; or

Until the developer and/or owner files a corporate surety bond with the County in a sum
equal to the cost of such improvements for the designated area, guaranteeing the installation
thereof within the time stated in the bond, which time shall be fixed by the Commissioner's Court of
Rockwall County.

I further acknowledge that the dedications and/or exaction's made herein are proportional
to the impact of the subdivision upon the public services required in order that the
development will comport with the present and future growth needs of the County; I , my 
successors and assigns hereby waive any claim, damage, or cause of action that I may have
as a result of the dedication of exaction's made herein.

_________________________________________________
MIKE BIRDWELL

________________________________________________
CHERYL BIRDWELL

50



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, Interim City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: April 19, 2021

SUBJECT: P2021-012; PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR SADDLE STAR SOUTH, PHASE 2
ADDITION

Attachments
Case Memo
Development Application
Location Map
Preliminary Plat
Preliminary Drainage Plan
Preliminary Utility Plan

Summary/Background Information
Consider a request by Jose Campos of Hines on behalf of CDT Rockwall/2017 LLC for the
approval of a Preliminary Plat for Phase 2 of the Saddle Star Subdivision being a 29.002-acre
tract of land identified as Tracts 1, 1-05, 2-03, & 2-07 of the P. B. Harrison Survey, Abstract No.
97, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 79
(Ordinance No. 20-35), situated within the SH-205 By-Pass (SH-205 BY OV) District, generally
located east of the intersection of Featherstone Drive and N. John King Boulevard, and take
any action necessary.

Action Needed
The City Council is being asked to approve, approve with condition, or deny the preliminary plat.

51



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL CASE MEMO 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 
 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

DATE: April 19, 2021 
 

APPLICANT: Jose Campos; Hines 
 

CASE NUMBER: P2021-012; Preliminary Plat for Phase 2 of the Saddle Star Estates South Subdivision 
 
 

SUMMARY 
 
Consider a request by Jose Campos of Hines on behalf of CDT Rockwall/2017 LLC for the approval of a Preliminary Plat for 
Phase 2 of the Saddle Star Subdivision being a 26.827-acre tract of land identified as Tracts 1, 1-05, 2-03, & 2-07 of the P. B. 
Harrison Survey, Abstract No. 97, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 79 
(Ordinance No. 20-35), situated within the SH-205 By-Pass (SH-205 BY OV) District, generally located east of the intersection 
of Featherstone Drive and N. John King Boulevard, and take any action necessary. 
 
PLAT INFORMATION 
 
 The purpose of the applicant’s request is to Preliminary Plat Phase 2 of the Saddle Star Estates South Subdivision for the 

purpose of ensuring compliance with the Master Plat, which was recently changed [Case No. P2020-006].  This phase of 
the subdivision will be comprised of 77, 70’ x 125’ single-family residential lots and three (3) common areas on a 29.002-
acre tract of land.  The three (3) common areas will total 5.5-acres, and incorporate an amenity center.  In addition to the 
preliminary plat, the applicant has also submitted a preliminary drainage plan indicating the proposed drainage 
calculations and a preliminary utility plan indicating the proposed locations for the water lines, sanitary sewer lines, and 
the proposed fire hydrants and sanitary sewer manholes.  The following is the lot composition of the Saddle Star Estates 
South Subdivision:   

 
Lot Type Minimum Lot Size (FT) Minimum Lot Size (SF) Dwelling Units (#) Dwelling Units (%) 

A 70’ x 125’ 8,750 SF 143 78.44% 
B 80’ x 125’ 10,000 SF 33 21.56% 

  176 100.00% 
   

 On February 4, 2020, the Parks and Recreation Board approved pro-rata fees of $59,064.00 (i.e. 176 lots @ $428.00 per 
lot) and cash-in-lieu of land fees of $42,090.00 (i.e. 176 lots @ $305.00 per lot) for the Saddle Star South Addition by a 
vote of 5-0.  As part of this motion, the Parks and Recreation Board approved these fees to be used to incorporate private 
amenities into Phase 2 of the development to provide a playground.  Per the recommendations of the Parks and 
Recreation Board, detailed invoices showing the cost of the proposed private amenities are required to be submitted prior 
to the acceptance of Phase 2. The pro-rata equipment and cash in lieu of land fees are subject to change each year as 
the cost of land and the City’s land use assumptions change, and will be finalized at the time of final plat. 
 

 The surveyor has completed the majority of the technical revisions requested by staff, and this plat -- conforming to the 
requirements for plats as stipulated by the Subdivision Ordinance in the Municipal Code of Ordinances -- is recommended 
for conditional approval pending the completion of final technical modifications and submittal requirements. 

 
 Conditional approval of this plat by the City Council shall constitute approval subject to the conditions stipulated in the 

Conditions of Approval section below. 
 

 With the exception of the items listed in the Conditions of Approval section of this case memo, this plat is in substantial 
compliance with the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance in the Municipal Code of Ordinances. 

52



 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
If the City Council chooses to approve the preliminary plat for Phase 2 of the Saddle Star Estates South Subdivision, staff 
would propose the following conditions of approval: 
 
(1) All technical comments from City Staff (i.e. Engineering, Planning and Fire Department) shall be addressed prior to 

submittal of civil engineering plans. 
 

(2) The development shall adhere to the recommendations from the February 4, 2020 Parks and Recreation Board meeting. 
 

(3) Any construction resulting from the approval of this plat shall conform to the requirements set forth by the Unified 
Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city 
adopted engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by 
the state and federal government. 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 
On April 13, 2021, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend approval of the preliminary plat 
with the conditions of approval by a vote of 7-0. 
 
 

53



54



55



56



JOHN KING

WI
ND

Y

TO
PA

Z

HA
YS

RANDAS

FAIR

PA
RK

 CE
NT

RA
L

NA
UT

ILU
S

MIRANDA

EMILY

GR
OV

ER

PETREL

MONTROSE

GIDEON

ROCKING H

FEATHERSTONE

JAN
ET

EV
ER

T

GRANITE FIELDS

MIDDLETON

MELODY MEADOW

GOOSE LAKE

SARAH

BRIDLE RANCH

NORTH RIDGE
JOH

N K
ING

HA
YS

P2021-012- SADDLE STAR ESTATES SOUTH PHASE 2B
PRELIMINARY PLAT - LOCATION MAP =        

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user.

City of Rockwall

0 260 520 780 1,040130
Feet

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com I57



 

58



59



J
 
o
 
h
 
n
 
 
 
 
K
 
i
 
n
 
g
 
 
 
 
B
 
l
 
v
 
d
.

J o h n    K i n g    B l v d.

Open Space
5.70 Ac.

Ex. Pond

F e a t h e r s t o n e  D r.

Open Space
1.20 Ac.

Landscape
5
0
' O

pen S
pace/

1
.3

5
 Ac.

EXISTING POND 2

EXISTING

POND 1

EX INLET JK-2

INLET

A-2

12.24 cfs

INLET

A-1

7.96 cfs

INLET

B-1

12.48 cfs

INLET

B-2

13.83 cfs

(0.75 cfs

BYPASS)

INLET

B-3

6.73 cfs

INLET

B-4

12.70 cfs

INLET

B-5

14.31 cfs

(0.35 cfs

BYPASS)

INLET

C-2

6.15 cfs

INLET

D-1

1.15 cfs

INLET

D-2

1.47 cfs

INLET

C-3

3.91 cfs

INLET

C-4

6.74 cfs

EX INLET JK-1

INLET

C-1

0.98 cfs

(0.05 cfs

BYPASS)

PHASE 1 BOUNDARY

EX-M

EX-L2

EX-B

EX-L1

EXISTING POND 3

(REMOVED W/ PHASE 1)

TO BE

REMOVED

IN ULTIMATE

DEVELOPMENT

G-2

K-1

J-1

F-1

X-10

F-7

E-1

K-2

K-3

A-3

F-8

C

E-2

A-4

A-5

F-3

OS7

OS8

D-2

B-5a

B-4

B-2

B-1

B-3

C-2

C-4

X-4

E-3

X-3

X-1

A-1

X-2

D-1

OS2

OS3

C-3

X-6

X-7

A-2

X-8

C-1

B-5b

B-5c

P-1

OS9

X-9

OS11

P-2

X-11

F-5

F-6

E-4

06824-2 PRELIM DA.DWG

ENGINEERING / PROJECT MANAGEMENT /
CONSTRUCTION  SERVICES - FIRM REG. #F-001145

201 WINDCO CIR, STE 200, WYLIE, TX  75098
972-941-8400   FAX: 972-941-8401   WWW.ECDLP.COM

DRAWN:

CHECKED:

DATE:

DATE:

DWG FILE NAME: 

PROJECT NO.:

REVISIONS:

OF

SHEET 

06812

RCK

CAUTION!   EXISTING UTILITIES

03/30/2021

MJH

1SADDLE STAR SOUTH PHASE 2
CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

1
PRELIMINARY DRAINAGE

EXHIBIT

* ALL RESPONSIBILITY FOR ADEQUACY OF DESIGN REMAINS WITH

THE DESIGN ENGINEER. THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, IN REVIEWING

AND RELEASING PLANS FOR CONSTRUCTION, ASSUMES NO

RESPONSIBILITY FOR ADEQUACY OR ACCURACY OF DESIGN.

5
6
0

D

COMPARISON - GIDEON GROVE-NORTH (6/5/2018)

GG-OS2/OS3=2.85 AC (8.3 CFS) SS-X1/X2/X3=1.61 AC (7.90 CFS)

CASE #: P2021-012

60



PRELIMINARY UTILITY EXHIBIT

06824-2 PRELIM UT.DWG

ENGINEERING / PROJECT MANAGEMENT /
CONSTRUCTION  SERVICES - FIRM REG. #F-001145

201 WINDCO CIR, STE 200, WYLIE, TX  75098
972-941-8400   FAX: 972-941-8401   WWW.ECDLP.COM

DRAWN:

CHECKED:

DATE:

DATE:

DWG FILE NAME: 

PROJECT NO.:

REVISIONS:

OF

SHEET 

06824-2

RCK

CAUTION!   EXISTING UTILITIES

03/30/2021

MJH

SADDLE STAR SOUTH PHASE 2
CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS 1

1

CASE #: P2021-012

61



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, Interim City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: April 19, 2021

SUBJECT: P2021-013; PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR THE LANDON SUBDIVISION

Attachments
Case Memo
Development Application
Location Map
Preliminary Plat
Preliminary Drainage Plan
Preliminary Water Plan
CASH Will Serve Letter

Summary/Background Information
Consider a request by Bart Carroll for the approval of a Preliminary Plat for the Landon
Subdivision being a 32.60-acre tract of land identified as Tract 13 of the S. McFadgin Survey,
Abstract No. 142, Rockwall County, Texas, situated within the City of Rockwall’s Extraterritorial
Jurisdiction (ETJ), generally located at the southwest corner of the intersection of S. Munson
Street and Streetman Road, and take any action necessary.

Action Needed
The City Council is being asked to approve, approve with condition, or deny the preliminary plat.

62



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL CASE MEMO 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 
 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

DATE: April 19, 2021 
 

APPLICANT: Bart Carroll 
 

CASE NUMBER: P2021-013; Preliminary Plat for Lots 1-19, Block A, Landon Subdivision 
 
 

SUMMARY 
 
Consider a request by Bart Carroll for the approval of a Preliminary Plat for the Landon Subdivision being a 32.60-acre tract of 
land identified as Tract 13 of the S. McFadgin Survey, Abstract No. 142, Rockwall County, Texas, situated within the City of 
Rockwall’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ), generally located at the southwest corner of the intersection of S. Munson Street 
and Streetman Road, and take any action necessary. 
 
PLAT INFORMATION 
 
 The applicant is requesting the approval of a Preliminary Plat for a single-family residential subdivision (i.e. The Landon 

Addition), which will be situated on a 32.60-acre tract of land located within the City of Rockwall’s Extraterritorial 
Jurisdiction (ETJ).  According to the preliminary plat, the development will consist of 19 single-family residential lots that 
will be a minimum of 1½-acres in size.  The development will be accessible via a 50-feet roadway (i.e. Streetman Road) 
that will connect to the existing S. Munson Road.  The preliminary plat also shows that an additional 30-feet of right-of-
way will be dedicated to Streetman Road.  This dedication conforms to the Rockwall County Thoroughfare Plan.    
 

 In addition to the preliminary plat, the applicant has submitted preliminary drainage and utility plans indicating how the 
development will be served.  According to Section 38-5(d)(1), Policy, of Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the Municipal Code 
of Ordinances, “(l)and proposed for development in the city and in the city’s extraterritorial jurisdiction must be served 
adequately by essential public facilities and services, including water facilities, wastewater facilities, roadway and 
pedestrian facilities, drainage facilities and park facilities …. Land shall not be approved for platting or development 
unless and until adequate public facilities necessary to serve the development exist or provision has been made for the 
facilities whether the facilities are to be located within the property being developed or offsite.”  The applicant’s proposed 
preliminary plat appears to show the provision of sufficient public facilities. Additionally, the applicant has provided a Will 
Serve Letter from Cash Special Utility District indicating this district holds the Certificate of Convenience and Necessity 
(CCN) for the subject property and is able to provide water to the property.   

 
 The purpose of the preliminary plat is to provide sufficient information to evaluate and review the general design of the 

development ensuring compliance with Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the City’s Municipal Code of Ordinances, the City’s 
Standards of Design and Construction Manual, and Exhibit ‘A’, Subdivision Regulations for Review of Plats in the 
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) of the City of Rockwall, of the Interim Interlocal Agreement between Rockwall County 
and the City of Rockwall.  In addition, the preliminary plat is required to meet all of the requirements of the Interim 
Interlocal Cooperation Agreement for Subdivision Regulation in the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction of a Municipality between 
Rockwall County and the City of Rockwall, the City of Rockwall’s Standards of Design and Construction Manual, and 
Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the Municipal Code of Ordinances. 
  

 The surveyor has completed the majority of the technical revisions requested by staff, and this plat -- conforming to the 
requirements for plats as stipulated by Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the Municipal Code of Ordinances and Exhibit ‘A’ of 
the Interim Interlocal Cooperation Agreement between Rockwall County and the City of Rockwall -- is recommended for 
conditional approval pending the completion of final technical modifications and submittal requirements. 
 

63



 Conditional approval of this plat by the City Council shall constitute approval subject to the conditions stipulated in the 
Conditions of Approval section below. 

 
 With the exception of the items listed in the Conditions of Approval section of this case memo, this plat is in substantial 

compliance with the requirements of Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the Municipal Code of Ordinances and Exhibit ‘A’ of the 
Interim Interlocal Cooperation Agreement between Rockwall County and the City of Rockwall. 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
If the City Council chooses to approve the Preliminary Plat for Lots 1-19, Block A, the Landon Addition, staff would propose 
the following conditions of approval: 
 
(1) All technical comments from City Staff (i.e. Engineering, Planning and Fire Department) and Rockwall County shall be 

addressed prior to submittal of civil engineering plans. 
 

(2) Any construction resulting from the approval of this Preliminary Plat shall conform to the requirements set forth by the 
Unified Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city 
adopted engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by 
the state and federal government. 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 
On April 13, 2021, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend approval of the preliminary plat 
with the conditions of approval by a vote of 7-0. 
 
 

64



65



FM 548 MUNSON

JONES

POETRY

STREETMAN

LACI

BUD

SANTA FE

WALLA
CE

MATT

WANDA

WELDON

COUNTRY MANOR

GAIL

BOASEWAY

HENNLICH

FLEM
ING

MELODY

BENNETT
MAYCEN

P2021-013- THE STANDARDS PHASE ONE
PRELIMINARY PLAT - LOCATION MAP =        

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user.

City of Rockwall

0 800 1,600 2,400 3,200400
Feet

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com I66



67



”

”

” ”
“ ”

” ”
“ ”

”
” “ ”

” ”
“ ”

” ”
“ ”

”
”

“ ”

68



69



70



71



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, Interim City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: April 19, 2021

SUBJECT: P2021-014; PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR THE NELSON LAKE SUBDIVISION

Attachments
Case Memo
Development Application
Location Map
Preliminary Plat
Preliminary Drainage Plan
Preliminary Water and Wastewater Plan
Tree Mitigation Plan
Approved Concept Plan
Proposed Lot Mix

Summary/Background Information
Consider a request by Humberto Johnson, Jr. of the Skorburg Company on behalf of Jen-Liang
Wu for the approval of a Preliminary Plat for the Nelson Lake Subdivision being a 121.16-acre
tract of land identified as Tract 2 of the J. M. Gass Survey, Abstract No. 88, City of Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 90 (PD-90) for Single-Family 10
(SF-10) District, generally located at the southeast corner of the intersection of FM-1141 and
FM-552, and take any action necessary.

Action Needed
The City Council is being asked to approve, approve with condition, or deny the preliminary plat.

72



 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL CASE MEMO 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 

385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

DATE: April 19, 2021 
 

APPLICANT: Humberto Johnson Jr.; Skorburg Company 
 

CASE NUMBER: P2021-014; Preliminary Plat for Nelson Lake Subdivision 
 

 

SUMMARY 
 
Consider a request by Humberto Johnson, Jr. of the Skorburg Company on behalf of Jen-Liang Wu for the approval of a 
Preliminary Plat for the Nelson Lake Subdivision being a 121.16-acre tract of land identified as Tract 2 of the J. M. Gass 
Survey, Abstract No. 88, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 90 (PD-90) for 
Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District land uses, generally located at the southeast corner of the intersection of FM-1141 and FM-
552, and take any action necessary. 
 
PLAT INFORMATION 
 
 The purpose of the applicant’s request is to Preliminary Plat a 121.16-acre tract of land (i.e. Tract 2 of the J. M. Gass 

Survey, Abstract No. 88) into 260 residential lots for the purpose of developing a residential subdivision.  The proposed 
subdivision will consist of three (3) lot types (i.e. [1] 60’ x 120’, [2] 70’ x 120’, and [3] 72’ x 120’), and incorporate 
approximately 50.34-acres of open space.  In addition, the proposed subdivision will be constructed in a single phase, 
and will adhere to the following density and dimensional requirements: 
 

Lot Type (see Concept Plan) ►  A B C 

Minimum Lot Width (1) 60’ 70’ 72’ 

Minimum Lot Depth 120’ 120’ 120’ 

Minimum Lot Area 7,000 SF 8,400 SF 8,600 SF 

Minimum Front Yard Setback (2), (5) & (6) 20’ 20’ 20’ 

Minimum Side Yard Setback 5’ 6’ 6’ 

Minimum Side Yard Setback (Adjacent to a Street) (2) & (5) 20’ 20’ 20’ 

Minimum Length of Driveway Pavement 20’ 20’ 20’ 

Maximum Height (3) 36’ 36’ 36’ 

Minimum Rear Yard Setback (4) 10’ 10’ 10’ 

Minimum Area/Dwelling Unit (SF) [Air-Conditioned Space] 2,200 SF 2,200 SF 2,200 SF 

Maximum Lot Coverage 65% 65% 65% 
 

General Notes: 
1:  Lots fronting onto curvilinear streets, cul-de-sacs and eyebrows may have the front lot width reduced by 20% as measured at the 

front property line provided that the lot width will be met at the Front Yard Building Setback.  Additionally, the lot depth on lots 
fronting onto curvilinear streets, cul-de-sacs and eyebrows may be reduced by up to ten (10) percent, but shall meet the minimum 
lot size for each lot type referenced in Table 1. 

2:  The location of the Front Yard Building Setback as measured from the front property line. 
3:  The Maximum Height shall be measured to the eave or top plate (whichever is greater) of the single-family home. 
4: The location of the Rear Yard Building Setback as measured from the rear property line. 
5: Sunrooms, porches, stoops, bay windows, balconies, masonry clad chimneys, eaves and similar architectural features may 

encroach beyond the Front Yard Building Setback by up to ten (10) feet for any property; however, the encroachment shall not 
exceed five (5) feet on Side Yard Setbacks.  A sunroom is an enclosed room no more than 15-feet in width that has glass on at 
least 50% of each of the encroaching faces. 

6: Flat front entry garage configurations are permitted on up to 35% (i.e. a maximum of 91 lots) of the total number of lots provided 
that: [1] no more than 45% (i.e. a maximum of 60 lots) of the lots for Lot Type ‘A’ have a flat front entry garage, [2] no more than 

73



 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 2 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

25% (i.e. a maximum of 31 lots) of the combined total of the Lot Type ‘B’ and Lot Type ‘C’ may have a flat front entry garage, and 
[3] the front yard building setback for all lots with a flat front entry garage is increased to a minimum of 25-feet. 

 
The subject property was annexed by the City Council on August 30, 1999 by Ordinance No. 99-33.  At the time of 
annexation, the subject property was zoned Agricultural (AG) District.  On April 4, 2005, the City Council approved Ordinance 
No. 05-16 [Case No. Z2005-007] changing the zoning of the subject property from an Agricultural (AG) District to a 
Neighborhood Services (NS) District and a Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District.  The property remained zoned Neighborhood 
Services (NS) District and Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District until the City Council adopted Planned Development District 90 
(PD-90) [Ordinance No. 21-09] on February 1, 2021. 
 
 On April 6, 2021, the Parks and Recreation Board reviewed the Preliminary Plat and made the following 

recommendations concerning the proposed subdivision: 
 

(1) The property owner shall pay pro-rata equipment fees of $138,060.00 (i.e. $531.00 x 260 Lots), which will be due 
prior to the issuance of a building permit. 
 

(2) The property owner shall pay cash-in-lieu of land fees of $145,600.00 (i.e. $560.00 x 260 Lots), which will be due 
prior to the issuance of a building permit.      

 
 The surveyor has completed the majority of the technical revisions requested by staff, and this Preliminary Plat -- 

conforming to the requirements for plats as stipulated by the Subdivision Ordinance in the Municipal Code of Ordinances -
- is recommended for conditional approval pending the completion of final technical modifications and submittal 
requirements. 

 
 Conditional approval of this Preliminary Plat by the City Council shall constitute approval subject to the conditions 

stipulated in the Conditions of Approval section below. 
 

 With the exception of the items listed in the Conditions of Approval section of this case memo, this plat is in substantial 
compliance with the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance in the Municipal Code of Ordinances. 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
If the City Council chooses to approve the Preliminary Plat for the Nelson Lake Subdivision, staff would propose the following 
conditions of approval: 
 
(1) All technical comments from City Staff (i.e. Engineering, Planning and Fire Department) shall be addressed prior to 

submittal of civil engineering plans. 
 

(2) The applicant will be required to plant two (2), four (4) inch canopy trees on each residential lot to satisfy the tree 
mitigation requirements. 

 
(3) The subdivision of land shall adhere to the recommendations of the Parks and Recreation Board. 

 
(4) Any construction resulting from the approval of this Preliminary Plat shall conform to the requirements set forth by the 

Unified Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city 
adopted engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by 
the state and federal government. 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 
On April 13, 2021, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend approval of the preliminary plat 
with the conditions of approval by a vote of 7-0. 

74



75



FM 552

CLEM

FM
 11

41

COUNTRY

STO
DG

HIL
L

QUAIL RUN

AN
NA

 CA
DE

BOYETT

TANNERSON

TABER

COBBLESTONE

OL
D M

ILL
WO

OD
PANHANDLE

RE
D V

AL
LEY

STO
NE

Y H
OL

LO
W

SK
YV

IEW

OR
CH

AR
D

TRAIL

FARM

CRESTVIEW

SADDLEBROOK
JOHN KING

TAU
BE

R
CANYON RIDGE

CHUCK WAGON
NO

RT
H R

IDG
E

NO
RT

HC
RE

ST
SA

ND
ER

SO
N

PLEASANT ACRES

MA
RT

Y

PRINGLE

CLE
M 

RO
AD

LONGHORN

PA
INT

ED
 PO

NY

THE ROCK

SA
ND

STO
NE

JOHN KING

P2021-014- PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR NELSON LAKES
PRELIMINARY PLAT - LOCATION MAP =        

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user.

City of Rockwall

0 670 1,340 2,010 2,680335
Feet

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com I76



5
7

0

5
7

0

5
6
9

5
6
9

5
6
9

5
6
9

56
9

5
6
9

539

5
2
2

5
2
2

5
2
2

5
2
2

5
2
2

5
2
2

522
5
2
2

5
2
2

522

522

5
2
2

522

5
2
2

5
2
2

5
2
1

5
2
1

5
2
1

5
2
1

5
2
1

5
2
1

521

5
2
1

5
2
1

521

521

5
2
1

5
2
1

5
2
1

5
2
0

520
5
2
0

52
0

5
2
0

5
2
0

520

5
2
0

5
2
0

520

520

5
2
0

5
2
0

5
2
0

5
19

5
19

5
1
9

5
19

5
19

5
19

51
9

5
19

5
1
9

519 5
1
9

5
19

5
19

519

518

5
1
8

518

5
18

5
18

5
18

5
18

5
1
8

5
18

51
8

5
18

51
8

5
0
9

509

5
0
9

5
0
9

510

51
0

510

5
10

507

5
0
7

5
0
7

507

508

5
0
8

50
8

5
0
8

506

5
0
6

5
0
6

5
0
5

5
0
5

504

5
0
4

5
0
2

504
505

506
507508

509

510 511

5
1
1

5
11

5
11

51
2

5
12

512

5
1
2

512

513

5
1
3

513

5
13

51
3

5
1
4

5
14

514

5
14

5
15

5
15

5
1
5

515

5
1
5

51
6

5
16

5
1
6

516

5
1
6

5
17

5
17

5
1
7 517

5
1
7

5
18

518

518

5
18

5
19

5
19

519

5
1
9

5
2
0

520

520

5
2
0

5
2
1

521

5
2
1

5
2
1

5
2
2

522

522

5
2
2

5
2
2

5
2
3

523

523

5
2
3

5
2
3

523

5
2
3

5
2
3

5
2
3

5
2
3

5
2
3

523

523

5
2
3

52
3

523

523

5
2
3

5
2
3

5
2
3

5
2
4

5
2
4

5
2
4

5
2
4

524

5
2
4

524

524

5
2
4

5
2
4

524
524

5
2
4

5
2
4

5
2
4

5
2
4

524 524

524

5
2
4

5
2
5

5
2
5

525

525

5
2
5

5
2
5

5
2
5

5
2
5

5
2
5

5
2
5

5
2
5

525

525

525

5
2
5

5
2
5

52
5

525

525

5
2
5

5
2
5

52
5

5
2
6

5
2
6

526

526

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

526

526

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

52
6

52
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
7

527

527

527

5
2
7

5
2
7

52
7

527

5
2
7

527

5
2
7

5
2

7

5
2
7

5
2
7

5
2
7

527

527

5
2
7

5
2
7

5
2
7

5
2
7

5
2
7

5
2
8

5
2
8

528

528

5
2
8

528

528

5
2
8

5
2

8

5
2
8

5
2
8

5
2
8

52
8

5
2
8

5
2
8

52
8

52
8

528

5
2
8

528

5
2
8

5
2
8

5
2
8

5
2
9

5
2
9

5
2
9

52
9

5
2
9

529

529

52
9

5
2
9

5
2
9

5
2
9

5
2
9

5
2
9

529

529

529

529

529

529

5
2
9

5
3
0

5
3
0

5
3
0

5
3
0

5
3

0

5
3
0

5
3
0

5
3
0

53
0

530

530

53
0

5
3
0

5
3
0

5
3
1

5
3
1

5
3
1

53
1

5
3
1

53
1

53
1

5
3
1

5
3
1

5
3
1

5
3
1

5
3
1

5
3
1

5
3
1

5
3
1

5
3

2

5
3
2

5
3
2

5
3
2

532

532

532

5
3
2

5
3
2

5
3
2

5
3
2

532

5
3
3

5
3
3

5
3
3

533

53
3

53
3

5
3
3

5
3
3

5
3
3

5
3
3

5
3
4

53
4

5
3
4

5
3
4

5
3
4

53
4

534

5
3
4

53
4

534

5
3
4

5
3
4

5
3
5

5
3
5

5
3
5

5
3
5

5
3
5

53
5

535

53
5

5
3
5 5

3
5

5
3
5

5
3
5

5
3
6

536

5
3
6

5
3
6

53
6

536

5
3
6

536

5
3
6

536

5
3
6

5
3
6

5
3
6

5
3
7

5
3
7

5
3
7

5
3
7

53
7

5
3
7

537

5
3
7

5
3
7

537

5
3
7

53
7

537

5
3
8

5
3
8

5
3
8

5
3
8

53
8

538

538

538

5
3
8

53
8

5
3
8

5
3
8

5
3
9

5
3
9

5
3
9

5
3
9

5
3
9

53
9

53
9

539

53
9

5
3
9

5
3
9

5
3
9

5
3
9

5
3
9

5
4

0

540

5
4

0

5
4
0

5
4

0

5
4

0

5
4
0

54
0

5
4

0

540

54
0

5
4

0

5
4
0

5
4
0

5
4
0

5
4
1

5
4
1

5
4
1

541

5
4

1
5
4
1

5
4
1

54
1

541

5
4

1

541

541

5
4

1

5
4
1

5
4

1

5
4
1

5
4
2

5
4
2

542

54
2

5
4
2

5
4
2

5
4
2

5
4

2

5
4

2

5
4
2

542

5
4
2

542

542

5
4
2

5
4

3

5
4

3

5
4
3

5
4
3

543

5
4

3

5
4

3

54
3

54
3

5
4

3

5
4
3

5
4
3

543

5
4

3

543

54
3

5
4
3

5
4

4

5
4

4

5
4

4

5
4

4

544

5
4

4

5
4

4

5
4

4

54
4

5
4
4

5
4

4

5
4
4

5
4
4

544

5
4
4

5
4

4

544

5
4
4

5
4

5

5
4
5

5
4
5

5
4

5

545

5
4
5

5
4
5

5
4

5
5
4
5

54
5

5
4
5

5
4
5

5
4
5

5
4
5

545

5
4

5

5
4
5

54
5

545

5
4

6

5
4
6

5
4

6

54
6

546

546

5
4
6

5
4

6

5
4
6

54
6

5
4
6

5
4
6

5
4
6

5
4
6

546

5
4

6

546

5
4
6

5
4

6

5
4

7

5
4
7

5
4

7

54
7

547

547

5
4
7

5
4

7

5
4
7

5
4
7

5
4

7

5
4
7

5
4
7

5
4
7

54
7

5
4

7

547

54
7

5
4

8

5
4
8

5
4

8

5
4
8

548

548 548

5
4

8

5
4
8

54
8

5
4

8

5
4
8

5
4
8

5
4

8

548

5
4

8

548

5
4
8

5
4

9

5
4

9

5
4
9

5
4
9

549

5
4
9

5
4

9

5
4
9

5
4
9

5
4

9

5
4

9

5
4
9

5
4

9

549

5
4

9

549

5
4

9

5
5
0

550

5
5
0

5
5
0

550

550

5
5
0

5
5
0

55
0

5
5
0

5
5

0
5
5
0

5
5
0

550

5
5
0

550

5
5
0

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

551

5
5
1

5
5
1

55
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
2

5
5
2

552

5
5
2

552

5
5
2

5
5
2

5
5
2

5
5
2

5
5
2

5
5
2

5
5
2

552

5
5
2

552

5
5
3

5
5
3

553

5
5
3

553

5
5
3

55
3

5
5
3

5
5
3

5
5
3

5
5
3

5
5
3

5
5
3

5
5
3

5
5
3

5
5
4

5
5
4

5
5
4

5
5
4

554

5
5
4

5
5
4

5
5
4

5
5
4

5
5
4

554

5
5
4

55
4

5
5
4

5
5
4

5
5
5

5
5
5

5
5
5

55
5

5
5
5

5
5
5

5
5
5

5
5
5

5
5
5

555

5
5
5

5
5
5

55
5

5
5
6

556

5
5
6

55
6

5
5
6

5
5
6

5
5
6

5
5
6

5
5
6

5
5
6

5
5
6

556

5
5
7

557

5
5
7

557

5
5
7

5
5
7

5
5
7

5
5
7

5
5
7

5
5
7

557

55
7

5
5
8

558

5
5
8

5
5
8

5
5
8

5
5
8

5
5
8

558

5
5
9

559

5
5
9

5
5
9

5
5
9

5
5
9

5
5
9

559

560

560

5
6
0

5
6
0

560

56
0

56
0

5
6
1

561

5
6
1

5
6
1

561

56
1

5
6
2

5
6
2

5
6
2

5
6
2

562

5
6
2

5
6
3

56
3

5
6
3

5
6
3

563

563

5
6
4

5
6
4

5
6
4

5
6
4

564

56
5

565

5
6
5

5
6
5

5
6
5

5
6
6

5
6
6

5
6
6

566

5
6
7

5
6
7

5
67

5
6
7

5
6
7

5
6
8

568

5
6
8

568

0  50 100 200

SCALE:  1" = 100'

OF

OUT OF THE

IN THE

CORWIN ENGINEERING, INC.

PREPARED BY

200 W. BELMONT, SUITE E

972-396-1200

ALLEN, TEXAS 75013

CITY OF ROCKWALL

ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

PRELIMINARY PLAT

TOTAL ACRES

TOTAL RESIDENTAL LOTS

DENSITY

LEGEND

N.T.S.

ALL STREET INTERSECTIONS

R.O.W.

R
.O
.W
.

VISIBILITY ESMT.

25' X 25'

OWNER

CASE #P2021-014

LOCATION MAP

N.T.S.

H.O.A. - HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

R.O.W. - RIGHT OF WAY

U.E. - UTILITY EASEMENT

D.E. - DRAINAGE EASEMENT

B.L. - BUILDING LINE

2.151

CITY OF ROCKWALL GRID

SYSTEM COORDINATES

ELEV = 539.0

AND LOTS.

DETENTION, AND OPEN SPACE EASEMENTS

REPLACE, AND REPAIR ALL DRAINAGE, 

HOA/PROPERTY OWNER TO MAINTAIN,

BE MAINTAINED BY THE HOA.

ALL OPEN SPACE AREAS WILL

NOTES:

F.M. 552

F
.M
. 

1
1
4

1
(
8

0
' 

R
.O
.W
.)

(80' R.O.W.)

NORTH COUNTY LANE

(50' R.O.W.)

(50' R.O.W.)

(
5
0
' 

R
.O
.W
.)

(
5

0
' 

R
.O
.W
.)

(
5

0
' 

R
.O
.W
.)

(50' R.O.W.)

(50' R.O.W.)

(50' R.O.W.)

(50' R.O.W.)

(50' R.O.W.)

(
5

0
' 

R
.O
.W
.)

(
5

0
' 

R
.O
.W
.)

(
5
0
' 

R
.O
.W
.)

(
5
0
' 

R
.O
.W
.)

(5
0
' 
R
.O
.W
.)

S
T

R
E

E
T
 

A

S
T

R
E

E
T
 

B

S
T

R
E

E
T
 

C

S
T

R
E

E
T
 

D

STREET E

S
T

R
E

E
T
 

F

STREET G

STREET H

S
T

R
E
E
T
 
I

STREET J

STREET K

S
T

R
E

E
T
 

L

S
T

R
E

E
T
 

M

STREET N

S
T

R
E

E
T
 

O

(
5

0
' 

R
.O
.W
.)

5
0
' 
R

OPEN SPACE

0.699 AC

LOT 22 BLK F

1.312 AC.

AMENITY CENTER

LOT 39 BLK J

OPEN SPACE

0.162 AC.

LOT 11 BLK E

OPEN SPACE/DRAINAGE ESMT.

2.541 AC.

LOT 17 BLK A

OPEN SPACE/DRAINAGE ESMT.

45.585 AC.

LOT 43 BLK J

20' R.O.W. DEDICATION

1
0
' 

R
.O
.W
. 

D
E

D
IC

A
T
IO

N
1
0
' 

R
.O
.W
. 

D
E

D
IC

A
T
IO

N

10'

30'

30'

30'

L
O

T
 

3
0
 

B
L

K
 

C
 
-
 

O
P

E
N
 

S
P

A
C

E
 
-
 
0
.1

3
8
 

A
C
.

L
O

T
 
2
8
 

B
L

K
 

D
 
-
 

O
P

E
N
 

S
P

A
C

E
 
-
 
0
.1

2
8
 

A
C
.

NELSON LAKE ESTATES

J.M. GLASS SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 88

214-522-4945

DALLAS, TEXAS 75225

8214 WESTCHESTER DRIVE., SUITE 710

APPLICANT

SKORBURG COMPANY, LTD.

UNISON INVESTMENT

TORRANCE, CA 90505

23545 CRENSHAW BLVD., STE. 201

LOTS 1-43, BLOCK J

LOTS 1-36, BLOCK I

LOTS 1-16, BLOCK H

LOTS 1-12, BLOCK G

LOTS 1-22, BLOCK F

LOTS 1-21, BLOCK E

LOTS 1-39, BLOCK D

LOTS 1-43, BLOCK C

LOTS 1-19, BLOCK B

LOTS 1-17, BLOCK A

TOTAL ACRES 120.883

TOTAL OPEN SPACE LOTS 6

TOTAL RESIDENTIAL LOTS 260 

260

120.883

MARCH 2021      SCALE 1" = 100'

LOCATION

PROJECT

F
.M
. 

1
1
4

1

JOHN KING

F.M. 552

2602343.262 7040467.443

YX

CITY OF ROCKWALL GRID

SYSTEM COORDINATES

569.5

26002333.683 7038508.057

YX

ELEV =

STREET P

5
0
' R

5
0
' R

5
0
' R

LOT 19 BLK B - OPEN SPACE - 0.630 AC.

5
7
.5
' R

5
7
.5
' R

50' R

5
0
' R

5
0
' 
R

RECLAIMED

AREA TO BE

32.5' R.O.W. DEDICATION

VOL. 4695, PG. 35

CITY OF ROCKWALL

VOL. 6424, PG. 27

KARL DANIEL ERWIN

V
O

L
. 

G
, 

P
G
. 

5
9

D
A

L
T

O
N
 

R
A

N
C

H

R.O.W.

100' PROPOSED

90' EX. R.O.W.

E
X
. 

8
0
' 

R
.O
.W
.

1
0
0
' 

R
.O
.W
.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

1
5
' 
S

A
N
. 

S
W

R
. 

E
S

M
T
.

NCRS EASEMENT

CITY LIMITS

C
IT

Y
 

L
IM
IT

S

CITY LIMITS

C
IT

Y
 

L
IM
IT

S
EX. ZONING  PD-90

VISIBILITY & SIDWALK EASEMENT DETAIL

VOL. 5070, PG. 320

LANDSCAPE ESMT.

20' FARMERS ELEC. 

VOL. 5070, PG. 320

15' FARMERS ELEC. ESMT.

VOL. 5070, PG. 320

15' FARMERS ELEC. ESMT.

VOL. 5070, PG. 320

LANDSCAPE ESMT.

20' FARMERS ELEC. 

50 YEAR FLOODPLAIN

APPROX. LOCATION

50 YEAR FLOODPLAIN

APPROX. LOCATION

50 YEAR FLOODPLAIN

APPROX. LOCATION

2
0
' 
S

A
N
. 

S
W

R
. 

E
S

M
T
.

SETBACK EASEMENT

EROSION HARZARD

SETBACK EASEMENT

EROSION HARZARD

SETBACK EASEMENT

EROSION HARZARD

S
E

T
B

A
C

K
 

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

E
R

O
S
IO

N
 

H
A

R
Z

A
R

D

1
5
' 

W
A

T
E

R
 

E
S

M
T
.

2
0
' 
S

A
N
. 

S
W

R
. 

E
S

M
T
.

55'

45' 45'

30'x30' V.A.M.30'x30' V.A.M.

30'x30' V.A.M.

30'x30' V.A.M.

DEDICATION

10' R.O.W.

& NCRS EASEMENT

100 YEAR FEMA FLOODPLAIN

APPROX. LOCATION

100 YEAR FEMA FLOODPLAIN

APPROX. LOCATION

& NCRS EASEMENT

100 YEAR FEMA FLOODPLAIN

APPROX. LOCATION

2
0
' 
S

A
N
. 

S
W

R
. 

E
S

M
T
.

2
0
' 
S

A
N
. 

S
W

R
. 

E
S

M
T
.

20' SAN. SWR. ESMT.

LAND USE SINGLE FAMILY DEVELOPMENT 

1 1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1
1

144'

120'

7
3
'

1
2

5
'

30'

69' 60' 60' 75' 75' 60'
" " " "

75' 75'
79'

79' 75' 75'

60' 60'" " " "

60' 60'" " " "

1
2

5
'

1
2

5
'

1
2

5
'

1
2

5
'

1
2

5
'

1
3

0
'

1
2

5
' " " " " " "

" " " " " ""

75'

75'

75'

1
2

5
'

1
2

5
'

" " " " " " " " " " " " " " 60'

" " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " "

60' " " " " " " " " " " " " " " 60'

60' " " " " " " " " " " " " " " 60'

" " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " "

7
2
'

8
8
'

1
1
6
'

50'

5
1'

72'

1
2

6
'

2
8
' 76' 110'

72'""""""""""""""""""""""72'

72'""""""""""""""""""

""

1
2

7
'

1
2

6
'

1
1
8
' 1

2
4
'

33'
51
'

30'
43'

4
6
'

" " "

1
2

4
'

"

2
0
0
'

14
2
'

80'
120'

1
2
0
'

1
2
0
'

120'

120'

"

"

5
8
'

7
2
'

7
2
'

7
2
'

7
2
'

8
6
'

8
6
'

7
9
'

75'60'

1
2

5
'

84'70'

70'

86' 84'135'

120'

1
1
5
'

1
2
5
'

" " "

84' 75'60'

60' 72' 72' 100'" " "

1
2

0
'

1
2

5
'

1
2
5
'" " " " "

86'72' 72'" " "

220'

178'

50
'

60'
60' 129'

12
0
'

1
2
5
'

1
1
3
' 1
2

5
'

" " " " " "

" " " " "

79' 73'60' 60'" " " " "125'

1
0
4
'

1
0
2
'

7
0
'

7
0
'

7
0
'

7
0
'

1
1
0
'

8
2
'

123'

120'

30'

86' 72'

1
2

5
'

1
2

5
'

1
2
5
'

1
2
5
'

1
3

1
'

1
3
5
'

117'

75' 60' 60' 110'

" " " " " " " "

"""""""

" " " " " "

" " " " " " "

72'
75'

" " " " " "

60' " " " " "75'

57' 3
1'

17
1'

60'"

2
0
3
'

2
4

8
'

18
5
'

312'

246'

14
2
'

5
8

1
'

120'

120'

"

1
0
2
'

7
2
'

7
2
'

7
2
'

7
2
'

916'

165' 162' 162' 120'

108' 108' 108'
120'

120'
137'

4
5
'

4
5
'

4
5
'

4
5
'

120'

120'

120'

120'

108'

137'

137'
137'

3
3
'

8
6
'

8
6
'

8
6
'

3
6
'

9
3
'

7
3
'

7
2
'

8
2
'

8
6
'

8
6
'

3
6
' 3

8
'

10
8
'

10
9
' 10

9
'

3
8
'

8
6
'

7
1
'

7
2
'

8
6
'

112'

1
0
0
'

7
2
'

7
7
'

3
0
'905'580'

3
3
'

120'

7
2
'

7
2
'

7
2
'

7
2
'

8
6
'

8
6
'

80'

2
9
'

59'

72'

9
1
'

1
2

0
'

1
2
0
'

105' 2
8
'

7
0
'

11
'

5
3
'

111'
76' 60'

7
9
'

7
0
'

30'

123'

1
0
8
'

"
"

"
"

"

7
0
'

"
"

"

7
0
'

5
3
'

1
2

0
'

1
2

0
'

120'

120'

"

"

"

"

1
2
3
'

1
2
0
'

11
2
'

60' 60' 60'25'
" " " " " " " " " " " " " " "

76' 60'
60' 60' 60'

" " " " " " " " " " " " " " "

76' 60'
60' 60' 60'25'

" " " " " " " " " " " " " " "

76'

76'

101'

" " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " "
""""""""""""""""""

1
2
0
'

1
2
0
'

1
2
0
'

1
2
0
' "

86' 72'

1
2

1
'

1
2

1
'

70'72'" " " 60' 60'" " " " " 76'

60' 60'" " " " " 76'

60' 60'
" " " " " 76'

1
2
1
'

1
2
1
'

1
2
1
'

1
2
1
'

1
2
1
'

1
2
1
'

"""""" "

"""""" "

" " " " " " " " " "
""""""""""

2

3
4

5

6
7

8

9 10

11

12 13

14

15 16

172

3

4567
8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

222324252627282931323334353637383940414243

2

70'"" 23'

23'

86' 72'
70'72'

" " " 70'""

86' 72'
70'72'

" " " 70'""

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

20212223242526272930313233343536373839

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

12
131415161718192021

2

3

4

5

6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15161718192021

12
0'

2

3

4

5

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30

3132333435

36

37

38

41

42

2

3

4
5

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

910111213141516

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

192021222324252627282930313233343536

A

A

B
B B

C

C

D

D

E

E

F

F

F G

H

H

I

I

J

J

J

J

1
9
9
'

1
9
7
'

3
0
9
'

479' 307' 325' 185'

2
3
1
'

1
3

8
'

2
9
2
'

1367'

830'

2
9
0
'

2
9
2
'

94'

3
0
0
'

143'

505'
135'

12
9
'

7
9
'

14
1'

5
7
'

484'63'

72'

135'

6
3
'

2
1
0
'

564'
1160'

3
0
0
'

509' 650'

3
0
0
'

3
0
0
'

11
6
'

18
'

9
7
'

96'

79'

2
9
'

4
0
'

5
0
'

5
0
'

18

20' B.
L.

20' B.L. 20' B.L. 20' B.L. 20' B.L. 20' B.L. 20' B.L. 20' B.L.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

2
0
' 
B
.L
.

2
0
' 
B
.L
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

20' B.L.

20' B.L.
20' B.L.

20' B.L. 20' B.L.

20' B.L.20' B.L.

20' B.L.
20' B.L.

20' B.L.

20' B.L.20' B.L.
20' B.L.

20' B.L. 20' B.L.
20' B.L.

20' B.L.

20' B.L.
20
' B
.L
.

20' B.L.

20' B.L.

20' B.L.

20' B.L.

20' B.L.

20' B.L. 20' B.L.

20' B.L.

2
0
' B
.L
.

20' B.L. 20' B.L.
20' B.L.

20' B.L.
20' B.L. 20' B.L.

"

"

"

86'

18
'

72' 72' 72'

" " "

72' 72' 72' 72'

120'

120'

120'

7
2
'

7
4
'

7
0
'

7
2
'

147'

137'
137'

137' 137'

220'

26'

20'72'

" "

9'

60'

1
2
'

120'

120'

7
2
'

7
2
'

7
2
'

120'

120'

112'

12
6
'

16'

1
2

4
'

""

1
2

3
'

" " " "

1
2

3
'

" "

1
2

4
'

1
2

5
'

1
2

6
'

1
2

5
'

9'

15'
536'

6'

3
5
'

N
0
0
°

5
4
'0

8
"

W
 
 
 
 

1
9
3
9
.2

2
'

7
0
.1
8
'

N
4
4
°
13
'3

2
"
E

N89°24'07"E  1689.49' 244.60'
N88°55'07"E

120.92'

S86°18'46"E
89.52'

N82°2
8'16"E

229.61'
N88°55'07"E

5
6
.6

4
'

N
4
3
°
5
9
'4

1"
E

192.83'
N88°55'07"E

S
0
0
°

3
5
'1
0
"
E
 
 
2
0
3
2
.1

1
'

S89°34'35"W  1352.18'S89°01'01"W  1292.27'

72'

72'

13
3
'

6 7 8 9

1011
12

110'

12
0
'

120'

120'

50'

1
2
5
'

60'60'

60'60'

1
2
9
'

1
2

5
'

17
2
'

8
7
'

7
8
'

9
1'

9
4
'

6
9
'

6
5
'

7
5
'

13
1'

3
6
'

2
3
4
'

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

10' U.E.

10' U.E.10' U.E.

10' U.E.

10' U.E.

10' U.E.

10' U.E.

10' U.E.

10' U.E.

10' U.E.

10' U.E.

10' U.E.

10' U.E. 10' U.E.10' U.E.10' U.E.10' U.E.

10' U.E.

10' U.E.

10' U.E.

10' U.E. 10' U.E.

10' U.E.
10' U.E.

10' U.E. 10' U.E.

10' U.E.

10' U.E. 10' U.E. 10' U.E. 10' U.E.

10' U.E.

10' U.E.

10' U.E.

10' U.E.

10' U.E.
10' U.E.

10' U.E.
10' U.E.

10
' 
U
.E
.

1
0
' 

U
.E
.

10
' 

U
.E
.

2
0
' 

B
.L
.

10
' 
U
.E
.

10
' 

U
.E
.

10' U.E.

10' U.E.

7
2
'

7
5
'

7
0
'

7
2
'

7
2
'

"

72' 72' 72' 72' 72'

72'72'72'72'

39

1
2
0
'

1
2
0
'

8
4
'

8
6
'

77



    

50' ROW

N.T.S.

‚"/FT ‚"/FT

28'

1.0' 1.0'

6" CROWN

LESS THAN 15.  MIN. 95% STANDARD DENSITY

OR AS REQUIRED TO REDUCE P.I. TO 

6"-7 1/2%  LIME STABILIZED SUBGRADE  

(TYP)

5' SIDEWALK

2.0'

24" O.C.B.W.*

CONC. PVMT.  #3 BARS

6" - 3600 psi REINF.

*MIN. 6 • SACK MIX IF HAND PLACED

TYPICAL PAVEMENT SECTION - LAYDOWN CURB

1.5' 1.5' 9.5'9.5'

OF

OUT OF THE

IN THE

CORWIN ENGINEERING, INC.

PREPARED BY

200 W. BELMONT, SUITE E

972-396-1200

ALLEN, TEXAS 75013

CITY OF ROCKWALL

ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

PRELIMINARY PLAT

OWNER

CASE #P2021-XXX

NELSON LAKE ESTATES

J.M. GLASS SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 88

UNISON INVESTMENT

TORRANCE, CA 90505

23545 CRENSHAW BLVD., STE. 201

LOTS 1-43, BLOCK J

LOTS 1-36, BLOCK I

LOTS 1-16, BLOCK H

LOTS 1-12, BLOCK G

LOTS 1-22, BLOCK F

LOTS 1-21, BLOCK E

LOTS 1-39, BLOCK D

LOTS 1-43, BLOCK C

LOTS 1-19, BLOCK B

LOTS 1-17, BLOCK A

TOTAL ACRES 120.883

TOTAL OPEN SPACE LOTS 6

TOTAL RESIDENTIAL LOTS 260 

MARCH 2021

Mayor, City of Rockwall                   City Secretary          City Engineer

approval.

County Clerk of Rockwall, County, Texas, within one hundred eighty (180) days from said date of final

This approval shall be invalid unless the approved plat for such addition is recorded in the office of the

Texas, was approved by the City Council of the City of Rockwall, on the      of                ,2021.

I hereby certify that thr above and foregoing plat of an addiiton to the City of Rockwall,

Planning & Zoning Commission Chairman         Date

Reviewed for preliminary Approval:

214-522-4945

DALLAS, TEXAS 75225

8214 WESTCHESTER DRIVE., SUITE 710

APPLICANT

SKORBURG COMPANY, LTD.

78



5
7

0

5
7

0

5
6
9

5
6
9

5
6
9

5
6
9

56
9

5
6
9

5
2
2

5
2
2

5
2
2

5
2
2

5
2
2

5
2
2

522
5
2
2

5
2
2

522

522

5
2
2

522

5
2
2

5
2
2

5
2
1

5
2
1

5
2
1

5
2
1

5
2
1

5
2
1

521

5
2
1

5
2
1

521

521

5
2
1

5
2
1

5
2
1

5
2
0

520

5
2
0

52
0

5
2
0

5
2
0

520

5
2
0

5
2
0

520

520

5
2
0

5
2
0

5
2
0

5
19

5
19

5
1
9

5
19

5
19

5
19

51
9

5
19

5
1
9

519 5
1
9

5
19

5
19

519

518

5
1
8

518

5
18

5
18

5
18

5
18

5
1
8

5
18

51
8

5
18

51
8

5
0
9

509

5
0
9

5
0
9

510

51
0

510

5
10

507

5
0
7

5
0
7

507

508

5
0
8

50
8

5
0
8

506

5
0
6

5
0
6

5
0
5

5
0
5

504

5
0
4

5
0
2

504
505

506
507508

509

510 511

5
1
1

5
11

5
11

51
2

5
12

512

5
1
2

512

513

5
1
3

513

5
13

51
3

5
1
4

5
14

514

5
14

5
15

5
15

5
1
5

515

5
1
5

51
6

5
16

5
1
6

516

5
1
6

5
17

5
17

5
1
7 517

5
1
7

5
18

518

518

5
18

5
19

5
19

519

5
1
9

5
2
0

520

520

5
2
0

5
2
1

521

5
2
1

5
2
1

5
2
2

522

522

5
2
2

5
2
2

5
2
3

523

523

5
2
3

5
2
3

523

5
2
3

5
2
3

5
2
3

5
2
3

5
2
3

523

523

5
2
3

52
3

523

523

5
2
3

5
2
3

5
2
3

5
2
4

5
2
4

5
2
4

5
2
4

524

5
2
4

524

524

5
2
4

5
2
4

524
524

5
2
4

5
2
4

5
2
4

5
2
4

524 524

524

5
2
4

5
2
5

5
2
5

525

525

5
2
5

5
2
5

5
2
5

5
2
5

5
2
5

5
2
5

5
2
5

525

525

525

5
2
5

5
2
5

52
5

525

525

5
2
5

5
2
5

52
5

5
2
6

5
2
6

526

526

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

526

526

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

52
6

52
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
7

527

527

527

5
2
7

5
2
7

52
7

527

5
2
7

527

5
2
7

5
2

7

5
2
7

5
2
7

5
2
7

527

527

5
2
7

5
2
7

5
2
7

5
2
7

5
2
7

5
2
8

5
2
8

528

528

5
2
8

528

528

5
2
8

5
2

8

5
2
8

5
2
8

52
8

5
2
8

5
2
8

52
8

52
8

528

5
2
8

528

5
2
8

5
2
8

5
2
9

5
2
9

52
9

5
2
9

529

529

52
9

5
2
9

5
2
9

5
2
9

5
2
9

5
2
9

529

529

529

529

529

529

5
2
9

5
3
0

5
3
0

5
3
0

5
3
0

5
3
0

5
3

0

5
3
0

5
3
0

5
3
0

53
0

530

530

53
0

5
3
0

5
3
0

5
3
1

5
3
1

53
1

5
3
1

53
1

53
1

5
3
1

5
3
1

5
3
1

5
3
1

5
3
1

5
3
1

5
3

2

5
3
2

5
3
2

5
3
2

532

532

532

5
3
2

5
3
2

5
3
2

5
3
2

5
3
3

5
3
3

5
3
3

533

53
3

53
3

5
3
3

5
3
3

5
3
3

5
3
3

5
3
4

53
4

5
3
4

5
3
4

5
3
4

53
4

534

5
3
4

53
4

534

5
3
4

5
3
4

5
3
5

5
3
5

5
3
5

5
3
5

5
3
5

53
5

535

53
5

5
3
5 5

3
5

5
3
5

5
3
5

5
3
6

536

5
3
6

5
3
6

53
6

536
5
3
6

536

5
3
6

536

5
3
6

5
3
6

5
3
6

5
3
7

5
3

7
5
3
7

5
3
7

53
7

5
3
7

537

5
3
7

5
3
7

537

5
3
7

53
7

5
3
8

5
3
8

5
3
8

5
3
8

53
8

538

538

538

5
3
8

53
8

5
3
8

5
3
8

5
3
9

5
3
9

5
3
9

5
3
9

53
9

53
9

539

53
9

5
3
9

5
3
9

5
3
9

5
3
9

5
4

0

5
4
0

5
4

0

5
4

0

5
4
0

54
0

5
4

0

540

54
0

5
4

0

5
4
0

5
4
0

5
4
0

5
4
1

5
4
1

541

5
4

1
5
4
1

5
4
1

54
1

541

5
4

1

541

541

5
4

1

5
4
1

5
4

1

5
4
1

5
4
2

542

54
2

5
4
2

5
4
2

5
4
2

5
4

2

5
4

2

5
4
2

542

5
4
2

542

542

5
4
2

5
4

3

5
4

3

5
4
3

5
4
3

543

5
4

3

5
4

3

54
3

54
3

5
4

3

5
4
3

5
4
3

543

5
4

3

543

54
3

5
4
3

5
4

4

5
4

4

5
4

4

5
4

4

544

5
4

4

5
4

4

5
4

4

54
4

5
4
4

5
4

4

5
4
4

5
4
4

544

5
4
4

5
4

4

544

5
4
4

5
4

5

5
4
5

5
4
5

5
4

5

545

5
4
5

5
4
5

5
4

5
5
4
5

54
5

5
4
5

5
4
5

5
4
5

5
4
5

545

5
4

5

5
4
5

54
5

545

5
4

6

5
4
6

5
4

6

54
6

546

546

5
4
6

5
4

6

5
4
6

54
6

5
4
6

5
4
6

5
4
6

5
4
6

546

5
4

6

546

5
4
6

5
4

7

5
4
7

5
4

7

54
7

547

547

5
4
7

5
4

7

5
4
7

5
4
7

5
4

7

5
4
7

5
4
7

5
4
7

54
7

5
4

7

547

54
7

5
4

8

5
4
8

5
4

8

5
4
8

548

548 548

5
4

8

5
4
8

54
8

5
4

8

5
4
8

5
4
8

5
4

8

548

5
4

8

548

5
4
8

5
4

9

5
4

9

5
4
9

5
4
9

549

5
4
9

5
4

9

5
4
9

5
4
9

5
4

9

5
4

9

5
4
9

5
4

9

549

5
4

9

549

5
4

9

5
5
0

550

5
5
0

5
5
0

550

550

5
5
0

5
5
0

55
0

5
5
0

5
5

0
5
5
0

5
5
0

550

5
5
0

550

5
5
0

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

551

5
5
1

5
5
1

55
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
2

5
5
2

552

5
5
2

552

5
5
2

5
5
2

5
5
2

5
5
2

5
5
2

5
5
2

5
5
2

552

5
5
2

552

5
5
3

5
5
3

553

5
5
3

553

5
5
3

55
3

5
5
3

5
5
3

5
5
3

5
5
3

5
5
3

5
5
3

5
5
3

5
5
3

5
5
4

5
5
4

5
5
4

5
5
4

554

5
5
4

5
5
4

5
5
4

5
5
4

5
5
4

554

5
5
4

55
4

5
5
4

5
5
4

5
5
5

5
5
5

5
5
5

55
5

5
5
5

5
5
5

5
5
5

5
5
5

5
5
5

555

5
5
5

5
5
5

55
5

5
5
6

556

5
5
6

55
6

5
5
6

5
5
6

5
5
6

5
5
6

5
5
6

5
5
6

5
5
6

556

557

5
5
7

557

5
5
7

5
5
7

5
5
7

5
5
7

5
5
7

5
5
7

557

55
7

5
5
8

558

5
5
8

5
5
8

5
5
8

5
5
8

5
5
8

558

5
5
9

559

5
5
9

5
5
9

5
5
9

5
5
9

5
5
9

559

560

560

5
6
0

5
6
0

560

56
0

56
0

5
6
1

561

5
6
1

5
6
1

561

56
1

5
6
2

5
6
2

5
6
2

5
6
2

562

5
6
2

5
6
3

56
3

5
6
3

5
6
3

563

563

5
6
4

5
6
4

5
6
4

5
6
4

564

565

5
6
5

5
6
5

5
6
5

5
6
6

5
6
6

5
6
6

566

5
6
7

5
6
7

5
67

5
6
7

5
6
8

568

5
6
8

568

0  50 100 200

SCALE:  1" = 100'

OF

OUT OF THE

IN THE

CORWIN ENGINEERING, INC.

PREPARED BY

200 W. BELMONT, SUITE E

972-396-1200

ALLEN, TEXAS 75013

CITY OF ROCKWALL

ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

OWNER

CASE #P2021-XXX

F
.M
. 

1
1
4

1
(
8

0
' 

R
.O
.W
.)

NORTH COUNTY LANE

S
T

R
E

E
T
 

A

S
T

R
E

E
T
 

B

S
T

R
E

E
T
 

C

S
T

R
E

E
T
 

D

STREET E

STREET G

STREET H

S
T

R
E
E
T
 
I

STREET J

STREET K

S
T

R
E

E
T
 

L

S
T

R
E

E
T
 

M

STREET N

S
T

R
E

E
T
 

O

OPEN SPACE

0.699 AC

LOT 22 BLK F

1.312 AC.

AMENITY CENTER

LOT 39 BLK J

O
P
E

N
 
S
P

A
C
E

0
.3

6
3
 

A
C
.

L
O

T
 
11
 B

L
K
 
E

OPEN 
SPACE/

DRAI
NAGE 

ESMT.

2.
54

1 A
C.

LOT 
17
 B

LK 
A

OPEN SPACE/DRAINAGE ESMT.

45.698 AC.

LOT 43 BLK J

L
O

T
 
3
0
 

B
L

K
 

C
 
-
 

O
P

E
N
 

S
P

A
C

E
 
-
 
0
.1

3
8
 

A
C
.

L
O

T
 
2
8
 

B
L

K
 

D
 
-
 

O
P

E
N
 

S
P

A
C

E
 
-
 
0
.1

2
8
 

A
C
.

NELSON LAKE ESTATES

J.M. GLASS SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 88

214-522-4945

DALLAS, TEXAS 75225

8214 WESTCHESTER DRIVE., SUITE 710

APPLICANT

SKORBURG COMPANY, LTD.

UNISON INVESTMENT

TORRANCE, CA 90505

23545 CRENSHAW BLVD., STE. 201

LOTS 1-43, BLOCK J

LOTS 1-36, BLOCK I

LOTS 1-16, BLOCK H

LOTS 1-12, BLOCK G

LOTS 1-22, BLOCK F

LOTS 1-21, BLOCK E

LOTS 1-39, BLOCK D

LOTS 1-43, BLOCK C

LOTS 1-19, BLOCK B

LOTS 1-17, BLOCK A

TOTAL ACRES 120.883

TOTAL OPEN SPACE LOTS 6

TOTAL RESIDENTIAL LOTS 260 

MARCH 2021      SCALE 1" = 100'

FEMA FLOODPLAIN

APPROX. 100 YEAR

STREET P

OPEN SPACE
LOT 19 BLK B - 0.630 AC.

E
X
. 

W
A

T
E

R
L
IN

E

EX. WATERLINE

EX. WATERLINE

18" RCP

2
4
"
 

R
C

P

24" RCP 18" RCP

3
6
"
 
R

C
P

24" RCP

3
6
"
 
R

C
P

2
4
" 

R
C
P

4
2
"
 
R
C
P

18
"
 
R

C
P

30" RCP

2
7
"
 

R
C

P

24" RCP18" RCP

24" RCP

21" RCP

21" RCP

21" RCP

1
8
"
 

R
C

P

2
1
"
 

R
C

P

3
0
"
 
R
C
P

1
8
"
 

R
C

P

S
T

R
E

E
T
 

F

2
4
"
 

R
C

P

24" RCP

DRAINAGE PLAN

PRELIMINARY

F.M. 552 (80' R.O.W.)

SETBACK EASEMENT

EROSION HAZARD

SETBACK EASEMENT

EROSION HAZARD

SETBACK EASEMENT

EROSION HAZARD

& NCRS EASEMENT

FEMA FLOODPLAIN

APPROX. 100 YEAR 

& NCRS EASEMENT

FEMA FLOODPLAIN

APPROX. 100 YEAR 

FEMA FLOODPLAIN

APPROX. 50 YEAR 

FEMA FLOODPLAIN

APPROX. 50 YEAR 

1 1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1
1

2

3
4

5

6
7

8

9 10

11

12 13

14

15 16

172

3

4567
8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

222324252627282931323334353637383940414243

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

20212223242526272930313233343536373839

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

12
131415161718192021

2

3

4

5

6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15161718192021

2

3

4

5

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30

3132333435

36

37

38

41

42

2

3

4
5

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

910111213141516

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

192021222324252627282930313233343536

18
FL=536.0   1

AC.

2.66

Q

13.0

  2
AC.

0.85

Q

4.2 

  3
AC.

1.18

Q

5.8 

  4
AC.

1.92

Q

9.4 

  5
AC.

2.22

Q

10.9

  6
AC.

1.16

Q

5.7 

  7
AC.

0.92

Q

4.5 

  8
AC.

1.43

Q

7.0 

  9
AC.

2.08

Q

10.2

10
AC.

0.83

Q

4.1 

11
AC.

2.37

Q

11.6

12
AC.

1.35

Q

6.6 

13
AC.

2.68

Q

13.1

14
AC.

0.99

Q

4.8 

15
AC.

1.63

Q

8.0 

16
AC.

2.18

Q

8.3 

17
AC.

1.49

Q

7.3 

18
AC.

2.38

Q

8.3 

19
AC.

2.15

Q

10.6

20
AC.

2.18

Q

10.7

21
AC.

1.94

Q

8.0 

23
AC.

2.19

Q

10.7

22
AC.

1.32

Q

6.4 24
AC.

2.19

Q

10.7

25
AC.

0.98

Q

4.8 

26
AC.

2.19

Q

10.7

27
AC.

1.84

Q

9.0 

28
AC.

2.57

Q

12.6

29
AC.

0.79

Q

3.9 

30
AC.

3.21

Q

15.7

31
AC.

3.05

Q

15.0

32
AC.

0.87

Q

4.2 

33
AC.

3.61

Q

17.734
AC.

1.72

Q

8.4 

35
AC.

2.6 

Q

12.9

36
AC.

3.03

Q

14.8

6 7 8 9

1011
12

39

79



5
7

0

5
7

0

5
6
9

5
6
9

5
6
9

5
6
9

56
9

5
6
9

5
2
2

5
2
2

5
2
2

5
2
2

5
2
2

5
2
2

522
5
2
2

5
2
2

522

522

5
2
2

522

5
2
2

5
2
2

5
2
1

5
2
1

5
2
1

5
2
1

5
2
1

5
2
1

521

5
2
1

5
2
1

521

521

5
2
1

5
2
1

5
2
1

5
2
0

520

5
2
0

52
0

5
2
0

5
2
0

520

5
2
0

5
2
0

520

520

5
2
0

5
2
0

5
2
0

5
19

5
19

5
1
9

5
19

5
19

5
19

51
9

5
19

5
1
9

519 5
1
9

5
19

5
19

519

518

5
1
8

518

5
18

5
18

5
18

5
18

5
1
8

5
18

51
8

5
18

51
8

5
0
9

509

5
0
9

5
0
9

510

51
0

510

5
10

507

5
0
7

5
0
7

507

508

5
0
8

50
8

5
0
8

506

5
0
6

5
0
6

5
0
5

5
0
5

504

5
0
4

5
0
2

504
505

506
507508

509

510 511

5
1
1

5
11

5
11

51
2

5
12

512

5
1
2

512

513

5
1
3

513

5
13

51
3

5
1
4

5
14

514

5
14

5
15

5
15

5
1
5

515

5
1
5

51
6

5
16

5
1
6

516

5
1
6

5
17

5
17

5
1
7 517

5
1
7

5
18

518

518

5
18

5
19

5
19

519

5
1
9

5
2
0

520

520

5
2
0

5
2
1

521

5
2
1

5
2
1

5
2
2

522

522

5
2
2

5
2
2

5
2
3

523

523

5
2
3

5
2
3

523

5
2
3

5
2
3

5
2
3

5
2
3

5
2
3

523

523

5
2
3

52
3

523

523

5
2
3

5
2
3

5
2
3

5
2
4

5
2
4

5
2
4

5
2
4

524

5
2
4

524

524

5
2
4

5
2
4

524
524

5
2
4

5
2
4

5
2
4

5
2
4

524 524

524

5
2
4

5
2
5

5
2
5

525

525

5
2
5

5
2
5

5
2
5

5
2
5

5
2
5

5
2
5

5
2
5

525

525

525

5
2
5

5
2
5

52
5

525

525

5
2
5

5
2
5

52
5

5
2
6

5
2
6

526

526

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

526

526

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

52
6

52
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
7

527

527

527

5
2
7

5
2
7

52
7

527

5
2
7

527

5
2
7

5
2

7

5
2
7

5
2
7

5
2
7

527

527

5
2
7

5
2
7

5
2
7

5
2
7

5
2
7

5
2
8

5
2
8

528

528

5
2
8

528

528

5
2
8

5
2

8

5
2
8

5
2
8

52
8

5
2
8

5
2
8

52
8

52
8

528

5
2
8

528

5
2
8

5
2
8

5
2
9

5
2
9

52
9

5
2
9

529

529

52
9

5
2
9

5
2
9

5
2
9

5
2
9

5
2
9

529

529

529

529

529

529

5
2
9

5
3
0

5
3
0

5
3
0

5
3
0

5
3
0

5
3

0

5
3
0

5
3
0

5
3
0

53
0

530

530

53
0

5
3
0

5
3
0

5
3
1

5
3
1

53
1

5
3
1

53
1

53
1

5
3
1

5
3
1

5
3
1

5
3
1

5
3
1

5
3
1

5
3

2

5
3
2

5
3
2

5
3
2

532

532

532

5
3
2

5
3
2

5
3
2

5
3
2

5
3
3

5
3
3

5
3
3

533

53
3

53
3

5
3
3

5
3
3

5
3
3

5
3
3

5
3
4

53
4

5
3
4

5
3
4

5
3
4

53
4

534

5
3
4

53
4

534

5
3
4

5
3
4

5
3
5

5
3
5

5
3
5

5
3
5

5
3
5

53
5

535

53
5

5
3
5 5

3
5

5
3
5

5
3
5

5
3
6

536

5
3
6

5
3
6

53
6

536
5
3
6

536

5
3
6

536

5
3
6

5
3
6

5
3
6

5
3
7

5
3

7
5
3
7

5
3
7

53
7

5
3
7

537

5
3
7

5
3
7

537

5
3
7

53
7

5
3
8

5
3
8

5
3
8

5
3
8

53
8

538

538

538

5
3
8

53
8

5
3
8

5
3
8

5
3
9

5
3
9

5
3
9

5
3
9

53
9

53
9

539

53
9

5
3
9

5
3
9

5
3
9

5
3
9

5
4

0

5
4
0

5
4

0

5
4

0

5
4
0

54
0

5
4

0

540

54
0

5
4

0

5
4
0

5
4
0

5
4
0

5
4
1

5
4
1

541

5
4

1
5
4
1

5
4
1

54
1

541

5
4

1

541

541

5
4

1

5
4
1

5
4

1

5
4
1

5
4
2

542

54
2

5
4
2

5
4
2

5
4
2

5
4

2

5
4

2

5
4
2

542

5
4
2

542

542

5
4
2

5
4

3

5
4

3

5
4
3

5
4
3

543

5
4

3

5
4

3

54
3

54
3

5
4

3

5
4
3

5
4
3

543

5
4

3

543

54
3

5
4
3

5
4

4

5
4

4

5
4

4

5
4

4

544

5
4

4

5
4

4

5
4

4

54
4

5
4
4

5
4

4

5
4
4

5
4
4

544

5
4
4

5
4

4

544

5
4
4

5
4

5

5
4
5

5
4
5

5
4

5

545

5
4
5

5
4
5

5
4

5
5
4
5

54
5

5
4
5

5
4
5

5
4
5

5
4
5

545

5
4

5

5
4
5

54
5

545

5
4

6

5
4
6

5
4

6

54
6

546

546

5
4
6

5
4

6

5
4
6

54
6

5
4
6

5
4
6

5
4
6

5
4
6

546

5
4

6

546

5
4
6

5
4

7

5
4
7

5
4

7

54
7

547

547

5
4
7

5
4

7

5
4
7

5
4
7

5
4

7

5
4
7

5
4
7

5
4
7

54
7

5
4

7

547

54
7

5
4

8

5
4
8

5
4

8

5
4
8

548

548 548

5
4

8

5
4
8

54
8

5
4

8

5
4
8

5
4
8

5
4

8

548

5
4

8

548

5
4
8

5
4

9

5
4

9

5
4
9

5
4
9

549

5
4
9

5
4

9

5
4
9

5
4
9

5
4

9

5
4

9

5
4
9

5
4

9

549

5
4

9

549

5
4

9

5
5
0

550

5
5
0

5
5
0

550

550

5
5
0

5
5
0

55
0

5
5
0

5
5

0
5
5
0

5
5
0

550

5
5
0

550

5
5
0

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

551

5
5
1

5
5
1

55
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
2

5
5
2

552

5
5
2

552

5
5
2

5
5
2

5
5
2

5
5
2

5
5
2

5
5
2

5
5
2

552

5
5
2

552

5
5
3

5
5
3

553

5
5
3

553

5
5
3

55
3

5
5
3

5
5
3

5
5
3

5
5
3

5
5
3

5
5
3

5
5
3

5
5
3

5
5
4

5
5
4

5
5
4

5
5
4

554

5
5
4

5
5
4

5
5
4

5
5
4

5
5
4

554

5
5
4

55
4

5
5
4

5
5
4

5
5
5

5
5
5

5
5
5

55
5

5
5
5

5
5
5

5
5
5

5
5
5

5
5
5

555

5
5
5

5
5
5

55
5

5
5
6

556

5
5
6

55
6

5
5
6

5
5
6

5
5
6

5
5
6

5
5
6

5
5
6

5
5
6

556

557

5
5
7

557

5
5
7

5
5
7

5
5
7

5
5
7

5
5
7

5
5
7

557

55
7

5
5
8

558

5
5
8

5
5
8

5
5
8

5
5
8

5
5
8

558

5
5
9

559

5
5
9

5
5
9

5
5
9

5
5
9

5
5
9

559

560

560

5
6
0

5
6
0

560

56
0

56
0

5
6
1

561

5
6
1

5
6
1

561

56
1

5
6
2

5
6
2

5
6
2

5
6
2

562

5
6
2

5
6
3

56
3

5
6
3

5
6
3

563

563

5
6
4

5
6
4

5
6
4

5
6
4

564

565

5
6
5

5
6
5

5
6
5

5
6
6

5
6
6

5
6
6

566

5
6
7

5
6
7

5
67

5
6
7

5
6
8

568

5
6
8

568

0  50 100 200

SCALE:  1" = 100'

OF

OUT OF THE

IN THE

CORWIN ENGINEERING, INC.

PREPARED BY

200 W. BELMONT, SUITE E

972-396-1200

ALLEN, TEXAS 75013

CITY OF ROCKWALL

ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

OWNER

CASE #P2021-XXX

F.M. 552

F
.M
. 

1
1
4

1
(
8

0
' 

R
.O
.W
.)

(80' R.O.W.)

NORTH COUNTY LANE

S
T

R
E

E
T
 

A

S
T

R
E

E
T
 

B

S
T

R
E

E
T
 

C

S
T

R
E

E
T
 

D

STREET E

S
T

R
E

E
T
 

F

STREET G

STREET H
S
T

R
E
E
T
 
I

STREET J

STREET K

S
T

R
E

E
T
 

L

S
T

R
E

E
T
 

M

STREET N

S
T

R
E

E
T
 

O

OPEN SPACE

0.699 AC

LOT 22 BLK F

1.312 AC.

AMENITY CENTER

LOT 39 BLK J
O
P
E

N
 
S
P

A
C
E

0
.3

6
3
 

A
C
.

L
O

T
 
11
 B

L
K
 
E

OPEN SPACE/DRAINAGE ESMT.

2.541 AC.

LOT 17 BLK A

OPEN SPACE/DRAINAGE ESMT.

45.698 AC.

LOT 43 BLK J

L
O

T
 
3
0
 

B
L

K
 

C
 
-
 

O
P

E
N
 

S
P

A
C

E
 
-
 
0
.1

3
8
 

A
C
.

L
O

T
 
2
8
 

B
L

K
 

D
 
-
 

O
P

E
N
 

S
P

A
C

E
 
-
 
0
.1

2
8
 

A
C
.

NELSON LAKE ESTATES

J.M. GLASS SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 88

214-522-4945

DALLAS, TEXAS 75225

8214 WESTCHESTER DRIVE., SUITE 710

APPLICANT

SKORBURG COMPANY, LTD.

UNISON INVESTMENT

TORRANCE, CA 90505

23545 CRENSHAW BLVD., STE. 201

LOTS 1-43, BLOCK J

LOTS 1-36, BLOCK I

LOTS 1-16, BLOCK H

LOTS 1-12, BLOCK G

LOTS 1-22, BLOCK F

LOTS 1-21, BLOCK E

LOTS 1-39, BLOCK D

LOTS 1-43, BLOCK C

LOTS 1-19, BLOCK B

LOTS 1-17, BLOCK A

TOTAL ACRES 120.883

TOTAL OPEN SPACE LOTS 6

TOTAL RESIDENTIAL LOTS 260 

MARCH 2021      SCALE 1" = 100'

& NCRS EASEMENT

FEMA FLOODPLAIN

APPROX. 100 YEAR

STREET P

WATER & SANITARY SEWER PLAN

PRELIMINARY

LEGEND

T

EXIST. WATER LINE

PROP. SANITARY SEWER

PROP. MANHOLE

PROP. CLEANOUT

EXIST. SANITARY SEWER

EXIST. MANHOLE

PROP. WATER LINE

PROP. FIRE HYDRANT AND VALVE

EXIST. FIRE HYDRANT AND VALVE

PROP. FLUSH VALVE

PROP. STORM SEWER

PROP. CURB INLETS

PROP. CONC. HEADWALL

PROP. GATE VALVE

OPEN SPACE
LOT 19 BLK B - 0.630 AC.

8" SS

8" SS
8" SS

8" SS

8" SS
8" SS

8
"
 
S

S 8
"
 
S

S

8
"
 
S

S

8
"
 
S

S

8
" 

S
S

8" SS 8" SS

8" SS 8" SS 8" SS

8" SS
8" SS

8" SS 8" SS 8" SS

8
"
 
S

S

8
"
 
S

S

8
"
 
S

S

8
"
 
S

S
8
"
 
S

S
8
"
 
S

S

8" WL 8" WL
8" WL

8
"
 

W
L

8" WL

8" WL

8
"
 

W
L

8
" 

W
L

8" WL

8
"
 

W
L

8
"
 

W
L

8
"
 

W
L

12" WL
12" WL

8
"
 

W
L

8
"
 

W
L

8
"
 

W
L

8" WL
8" WL

8" WL

8" WL
8" WL

8
"
 

W
L

8
"
 

W
L

8
"
 

W
L

8" WL 8" WL

8" WL

8
"
 

W
L

8" WL8" WL

8" WL

8
"
 

W
L

S.S.

EX.

1
2
"
 

W
L

FORCEMAIN

FORCEMAIN

FORCEMAIN

F
O

R
C

E
M

A
IN

LIFTSTATION

8" SS

8
"
 

W
L

8" WL

8" SS

8
"
 
S

S

8
"
 
S

S

8
"
 

W
L

EX. 16" WATERLINE

EX. 16" WATERLINE

E
X
. 

1
6
"
 

W
A

T
E

R
L
IN

E
E

X
. 

1
6
"
 

W
A

T
E

R
L
IN

E

8
"
 
S

S

8
"
 
S

S
8
"
 
S

S

FEMA FLOODPLAIN

APPROX.  100 YEAR

& NCRS EASEMENT

FEMA FLOODPLAIN

APPROX. 100 YEAR

FEMA FLOODPLAIN

APPROX. 50 YEAR

FEMA FLOODPLAIN

APPROX. 50 YEAR

1 1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1
1

2

3
4

5

6
7

8

9 10

11

12 13

14

15 16

172

3

4567
8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

222324252627282931323334353637383940414243

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

20212223242526272930313233343536373839

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

12
131415161718192021

2

3

4

5

6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15161718192021

2

3

4

5

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30

3132333435

36

37

38

41

42

2

3

4
5

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

910111213141516

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

192021222324252627282930313233343536

A

A

B
B B

C

C

D

D

E

E

F

F

F G

H

H

I

I

J

J

J

J

18

T T

T

TT

T

TT

T

T

T

T TT

T
T

T T

T T

TT

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T TTT

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T

T

T

T

T T

T

6 7 8 9

1011
12

T

39

80



5
7

0

5
7

0

5
6
9

5
6
9

5
6
9

5
6
9

56
9

5
6
9

5
2
2

5
2
2

5
2
2

5
2
2

5
2
2

5
2
2

522
5
2
2

5
2
2

522

522

5
2
2

522

5
2
2

5
2
2

5
2
1

5
2
1

5
2
1

5
2
1

5
2
1

5
2
1

521

5
2
1

5
2
1

521

521

5
2
1

5
2
1

5
2
1

5
2
0

520

5
2
0

52
0

5
2
0

5
2
0

520

5
2
0

5
2
0

520

520

5
2
0

5
2
0

5
2
0

5
19

5
19

5
1
9

5
19

5
19

5
19

51
9

5
19

5
1
9

519 5
1
9

5
19

5
19

519

518

5
1
8

518

5
18

5
18

5
18

5
18

5
1
8

5
18

51
8

5
18

51
8

5
0
9

509

5
0
9

5
0
9

510

51
0

510

5
10

507

5
0
7

5
0
7

507

508

5
0
8

50
8

5
0
8

506

5
0
6

5
0
6

5
0
5

5
0
5

504

5
0
4

5
0
2

504
505

506
507508

509

510 511

5
1
1

5
11

5
11

51
2

5
12

512

5
1
2

512

513

5
1
3

513

5
13

51
3

5
1
4

5
14

514

5
14

5
15

5
15

5
1
5

515

5
1
5

51
6

5
16

5
1
6

516

5
1
6

5
17

5
17

5
1
7 517

5
1
7

5
18

518

518

5
18

5
19

5
19

519

5
1
9

5
2
0

520

520

5
2
0

5
2
1

521

5
2
1

5
2
1

5
2
2

522

522

5
2
2

5
2
2

5
2
3

523

523

5
2
3

5
2
3

523

5
2
3

5
2
3

5
2
3

5
2
3

5
2
3

523

523

5
2
3

52
3

523

523

5
2
3

5
2
3

5
2
3

5
2
4

5
2
4

5
2
4

5
2
4

524

5
2
4

524

524

5
2
4

5
2
4

524
524

5
2
4

5
2
4

5
2
4

5
2
4

524 524

524

5
2
4

5
2
5

5
2
5

525

525

5
2
5

5
2
5

5
2
5

5
2
5

5
2
5

5
2
5

5
2
5

525

525

525

5
2
5

5
2
5

52
5

525

525

5
2
5

5
2
5

52
5

5
2
6

5
2
6

526

526

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

526

526

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

52
6

52
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
6

5
2
7

527

527

527

5
2
7

5
2
7

52
7

527

5
2
7

527

5
2
7

5
2

7

5
2
7

5
2
7

5
2
7

527

527

5
2
7

5
2
7

5
2
7

5
2
7

5
2
7

5
2
8

5
2
8

528

528

5
2
8

528

528

5
2
8

5
2

8

5
2
8

5
2
8

52
8

5
2
8

5
2
8

52
8

52
8

528

5
2
8

528

5
2
8

5
2
8

5
2
9

5
2
9

52
9

5
2
9

529

529

52
9

5
2
9

5
2
9

5
2
9

5
2
9

5
2
9

529

529

529

529

529

529

5
2
9

5
3
0

5
3
0

5
3
0

5
3
0

5
3
0

5
3

0

5
3
0

5
3
0

5
3
0

53
0

530

530

53
0

5
3
0

5
3
0

5
3
1

5
3
1

53
1

5
3
1

53
1

53
1

5
3
1

5
3
1

5
3
1

5
3
1

5
3
1

5
3
1

5
3

2

5
3
2

5
3
2

5
3
2

532

532

532

5
3
2

5
3
2

5
3
2

5
3
2

5
3
3

5
3
3

5
3
3

533

53
3

53
3

5
3
3

5
3
3

5
3
3

5
3
3

5
3
4

53
4

5
3
4

5
3
4

5
3
4

53
4

534

5
3
4

53
4

534

5
3
4

5
3
4

5
3
5

5
3
5

5
3
5

5
3
5

5
3
5

53
5

535

53
5

5
3
5 5

3
5

5
3
5

5
3
5

5
3
6

536

5
3
6

5
3
6

53
6

536
5
3
6

536

5
3
6

536

5
3
6

5
3
6

5
3
6

5
3
7

5
3

7
5
3
7

5
3
7

53
7

5
3
7

537

5
3
7

5
3
7

537

5
3
7

53
7

5
3
8

5
3
8

5
3
8

5
3
8

53
8

538

538

538

5
3
8

53
8

5
3
8

5
3
8

5
3
9

5
3
9

5
3
9

5
3
9

53
9

53
9

539

53
9

5
3
9

5
3
9

5
3
9

5
3
9

5
4

0

5
4
0

5
4

0

5
4

0

5
4
0

54
0

5
4

0

540

54
0

5
4

0

5
4
0

5
4
0

5
4
0

5
4
1

5
4
1

541

5
4

1
5
4
1

5
4
1

54
1

541

5
4

1

541

541

5
4

1

5
4
1

5
4

1

5
4
1

5
4
2

542

54
2

5
4
2

5
4
2

5
4
2

5
4

2

5
4

2

5
4
2

542

5
4
2

542

542

5
4
2

5
4

3

5
4

3

5
4
3

5
4
3

543

5
4

3

5
4

3

54
3

54
3

5
4

3

5
4
3

5
4
3

543

5
4

3

543

54
3

5
4
3

5
4

4

5
4

4

5
4

4

5
4

4

544

5
4

4

5
4

4

5
4

4

54
4

5
4
4

5
4

4

5
4
4

5
4
4

544

5
4
4

5
4

4

544

5
4
4

5
4

5

5
4
5

5
4
5

5
4

5

545

5
4
5

5
4
5

5
4

5
5
4
5

54
5

5
4
5

5
4
5

5
4
5

5
4
5

545

5
4

5

5
4
5

54
5

545

5
4

6

5
4
6

5
4

6

54
6

546

546

5
4
6

5
4

6

5
4
6

54
6

5
4
6

5
4
6

5
4
6

5
4
6

546

5
4

6

546

5
4
6

5
4

7

5
4
7

5
4

7

54
7

547

547

5
4
7

5
4

7

5
4
7

5
4
7

5
4

7

5
4
7

5
4
7

5
4
7

54
7

5
4

7

547

54
7

5
4

8

5
4
8

5
4

8

5
4
8

548

548 548

5
4

8

5
4
8

54
8

5
4

8

5
4
8

5
4
8

5
4

8

548

5
4

8

548

5
4
8

5
4

9

5
4

9

5
4
9

5
4
9

549

5
4
9

5
4

9

5
4
9

5
4
9

5
4

9

5
4

9

5
4
9

5
4

9

549

5
4

9

549

5
4

9

5
5
0

550

5
5
0

5
5
0

550

550

5
5
0

5
5
0

55
0

5
5
0

5
5

0
5
5
0

5
5
0

550

5
5
0

550

5
5
0

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

551

5
5
1

5
5
1

55
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
1

5
5
2

5
5
2

552

5
5
2

552

5
5
2

5
5
2

5
5
2

5
5
2

5
5
2

5
5
2

5
5
2

552

5
5
2

552

5
5
3

5
5
3

553

5
5
3

553

5
5
3

55
3

5
5
3

5
5
3

5
5
3

5
5
3

5
5
3

5
5
3

5
5
3

5
5
3

5
5
4

5
5
4

5
5
4

5
5
4

554

5
5
4

5
5
4

5
5
4

5
5
4

5
5
4

554

5
5
4

55
4

5
5
4

5
5
4

5
5
5

5
5
5

5
5
5

55
5

5
5
5

5
5
5

5
5
5

5
5
5

5
5
5

555

5
5
5

5
5
5

55
5

5
5
6

556

5
5
6

55
6

5
5
6

5
5
6

5
5
6

5
5
6

5
5
6

5
5
6

5
5
6

556

557

5
5
7

557

5
5
7

5
5
7

5
5
7

5
5
7

5
5
7

5
5
7

557

55
7

5
5
8

558

5
5
8

5
5
8

5
5
8

5
5
8

5
5
8

558

5
5
9

559

5
5
9

5
5
9

5
5
9

5
5
9

5
5
9

559

560

560

5
6
0

5
6
0

560

56
0

56
0

5
6
1

561

5
6
1

5
6
1

561

56
1

5
6
2

5
6
2

5
6
2

5
6
2

562

5
6
2

5
6
3

56
3

5
6
3

5
6
3

563

563

5
6
4

5
6
4

5
6
4

5
6
4

564

565

5
6
5

5
6
5

5
6
5

5
6
6

5
6
6

5
6
6

566

5
6
7

5
6
7

5
67

5
6
7

5
6
8

568

5
6
8

568

0  50 100 200

SCALE:  1" = 100'

OF

OUT OF THE

IN THE

CORWIN ENGINEERING, INC.

PREPARED BY

200 W. BELMONT, SUITE E

972-396-1200

ALLEN, TEXAS 75013

CITY OF ROCKWALL

ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

OWNER

CASE #P2021-XXX

F.M. 552

F
.M
. 

1
1
4

1
(
8

0
' 

R
.O
.W
.)

(80' R.O.W.)

NORTH COUNTY LANE

S
T

R
E

E
T
 

A

S
T

R
E

E
T
 

B

S
T

R
E

E
T
 

C

S
T

R
E

E
T
 

D

STREET E

S
T

R
E

E
T
 

F

STREET G

STREET H
S
T

R
E
E
T
 
I

STREET J

STREET K

S
T

R
E

E
T
 

L

S
T

R
E

E
T
 

M

STREET N

S
T

R
E

E
T
 

O

OPEN SPACE

0.699 AC

LOT 22 BLK F

1.312 AC.

AMENITY CENTER

LOT 39 BLK J
O
P
E

N
 
S
P

A
C
E

0
.3

6
3
 

A
C
.

L
O

T
 
11
 B

L
K
 
E

OPEN SPACE/DRAINAGE ESMT.

2.541 AC.

LOT 17 BLK A

OPEN SPACE/DRAINAGE ESMT.

45.698 AC.

LOT 43 BLK J

L
O

T
 
3
0
 

B
L

K
 

C
 
-
 

O
P

E
N
 

S
P

A
C

E
 
-
 
0
.1

3
8
 

A
C
.

L
O

T
 
2
8
 

B
L

K
 

D
 
-
 

O
P

E
N
 

S
P

A
C

E
 
-
 
0
.1

2
8
 

A
C
.

NELSON LAKE ESTATES

J.M. GLASS SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 88

214-522-4945

DALLAS, TEXAS 75225

8214 WESTCHESTER DRIVE., SUITE 710

APPLICANT

SKORBURG COMPANY, LTD.

UNISON INVESTMENT

TORRANCE, CA 90505

23545 CRENSHAW BLVD., STE. 201

LOTS 1-43, BLOCK J

LOTS 1-36, BLOCK I

LOTS 1-16, BLOCK H

LOTS 1-12, BLOCK G

LOTS 1-22, BLOCK F

LOTS 1-21, BLOCK E

LOTS 1-39, BLOCK D

LOTS 1-43, BLOCK C

LOTS 1-19, BLOCK B

LOTS 1-17, BLOCK A

TOTAL ACRES 120.883

TOTAL OPEN SPACE LOTS 6

TOTAL RESIDENTIAL LOTS 260 

MARCH 2021      SCALE 1" = 100'

& NCRS EASEMENT

FEMA FLOODPLAIN

APPROX. 100 YEAR

STREET P

WATER & SANITARY SEWER PLAN

PRELIMINARY

LEGEND

T

EXIST. WATER LINE

PROP. SANITARY SEWER

PROP. MANHOLE

PROP. CLEANOUT

EXIST. SANITARY SEWER

EXIST. MANHOLE

PROP. WATER LINE

PROP. FIRE HYDRANT AND VALVE

EXIST. FIRE HYDRANT AND VALVE

PROP. FLUSH VALVE

PROP. STORM SEWER

PROP. CURB INLETS

PROP. CONC. HEADWALL

PROP. GATE VALVE

OPEN SPACE
LOT 19 BLK B - 0.630 AC.

8" SS

8" SS
8" SS

8" SS

8" SS
8" SS

8
"
 
S

S 8
"
 
S

S

8
"
 
S

S

8
"
 
S

S

8
" 

S
S

8" SS 8" SS

8" SS 8" SS 8" SS

8" SS
8" SS

8" SS 8" SS 8" SS

8
"
 
S

S

8
"
 
S

S

8
"
 
S

S

8
"
 
S

S
8
"
 
S

S
8
"
 
S

S

8" WL 8" WL
8" WL

8
"
 

W
L

8" WL

8" WL

8
"
 

W
L

8
" 

W
L

8" WL

8
"
 

W
L

8
"
 

W
L

8
"
 

W
L

12" WL
12" WL

8
"
 

W
L

8
"
 

W
L

8
"
 

W
L

8" WL
8" WL

8" WL

8" WL
8" WL

8
"
 

W
L

8
"
 

W
L

8
"
 

W
L

8" WL 8" WL

8" WL

8
"
 

W
L

8" WL8" WL

8" WL

8
"
 

W
L

S.S.

EX.

1
2
"
 

W
L

FORCEMAIN

FORCEMAIN

FORCEMAIN

F
O

R
C

E
M

A
IN

LIFTSTATION

8" SS

8
"
 

W
L

8" WL

8" SS

8
"
 
S

S

8
"
 
S

S

8
"
 

W
L

EX. 16" WATERLINE

EX. 16" WATERLINE

E
X
. 

1
6
"
 

W
A

T
E

R
L
IN

E
E

X
. 

1
6
"
 

W
A

T
E

R
L
IN

E

8
"
 
S

S

8
"
 
S

S
8
"
 
S

S

FEMA FLOODPLAIN

APPROX.  100 YEAR

& NCRS EASEMENT

FEMA FLOODPLAIN

APPROX. 100 YEAR

FEMA FLOODPLAIN

APPROX. 50 YEAR

FEMA FLOODPLAIN

APPROX. 50 YEAR

1 1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1
1

2

3
4

5

6
7

8

9 10

11

12 13

14

15 16

172

3

4567
8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

222324252627282931323334353637383940414243

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

20212223242526272930313233343536373839

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

12
131415161718192021

2

3

4

5

6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15161718192021

2

3

4

5

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30

3132333435

36

37

38

41

42

2

3

4
5

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

910111213141516

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

192021222324252627282930313233343536

A

A

B
B B

C

C

D

D

E

E

F

F

F G

H

H

I

I

J

J

J

J

18

T T

T

TT

T

TT

T

T

T

T TT

T
T

T T

T T

TT

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T TTT

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T

T

T

T

T T

T

6 7 8 9

1011
12

T

39

81



1001

1001

75

83

84

90

174

175

208

215

359

386

426

500

597

600

606

662

1179

736
738

1186

1196

2012

2013

2014

2033

2056

2080

2081

2082

2108

2109

2118

2127

2144

2145

2147

2148

2149

2152

2158

2231

2331

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

76

77

78

79

80

81

82

85

86

87

88

89

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119120

121

122

123

124

125

126

127

128 129

130

131

132

133

134

135

136137

138

139

140

141

142

143

144

145

146

147

148

149

150

151

152

153

154

155

156

157

158

159

160

161

162

163

164

165

166

167

168

169

170

171

172

173

176

177

178

179

180

181

182

183

184

185

186

187

188

189

190

191

192

193

194

195

196

197

198

199

200 201
202

203

204

205

206

207

209

210

211

212

213

214

216

217

218

219

220

221

222

223

224

225

226

227

228

229

230

231

232

233

234

235

236

237

238

239

240

241

242

243

244

245

246

247

248

249

250

251

252

253

254

255

256

257

258

259

260

261

262

263

264

265

266

267

268

269

270

271

272

273

274

275

276

277

278

279

280

281

282

283

284

285

287

288

289

290

291

292

293

294

295

296

297

298

299

300

301

302

303

304

305

306

307

308

309

310

311

312

313

314315

316

317

318

319

320

321

322

323

324

325

326

327

328

329

330

331

332
333334

335

336

337

338

339

340

341

342

343344

345

346

347

348
349

350

351

352

353

354

355

356

357

358

360

361

362

363

364

365

366

367

368

369

370

371

372

373

374

375

376

377

378

379

380

381

382

383

384

385

387

388

389

390

391

392

393

394

395

396

397

398

399

400

401

402

403

404

405

406

407

408

409

410

411

412

413

414

415

416

417

418

419

420

421

422

423

424

425

427

428

429

430

431

432

433

434

435

436

437

438

439

440

441

442

443

444

445

446

447

448

449

450

451

452

453

454455 456

457

458

459

460

461

462

463

464

465

466

467

468

469

470

471

472

473

474

475

476

477

478

479

480

481

482

483

484

485

486

487

488

489

490

491

492

493

494

495

496

497

498

499

501

502

503

504

505

506

507

508

509

510

511

512

513

514

515

516

517

518

519

520

521

522

523

524

525

526

527

528

529

530

531

532

533

534

535

536

537

538

539

540

541

542

543
544

545

546

547

548

549

550

551

552

553

554

555

556

557

558

559

560

561

562

563

564

565

566

567

568
569

570

571

572

573

574

575

576

577

578

579

580

581

582

583

584

585

586

587

588

589

590

591

592

593

594

595

596

598

599

601

602

603

604

605

607
608

609

610

611

612
613

614

615

616

617

618

619

620

621

622

623

624

625

626
627

628

629

630

631

632

633

634

635

636

637

638

639

640

641

642

643

644

645

646

647

648

649

650

651

652

653

654

655

656

657

658

659

660

661

663

664

665

666

667

668

669

670

671

672

673

674

675

676

677

678

679

680

681

682

683

684

685

686

687

688

689

1000

1001

1002

1003

1004

1005

1006

1007

1008
1009

1010

1011

1012

1013

1014

1015

1016

1017

1018

1019

1020

1021

1022

1023

1024

1025

1026

1027

1028

1029

1030

1031

1032

1033

1034

1035

1036

1037

1038

1039

1040

1041

1042

1043

1044

1045

1046

1047

1048
1049

1050

1051

1052

1053

1054

1055

1056

1057 1058

1059

1060

1061

1062

1063

1064

1065

1066

1067

1068

10691070

1071

1072

1073

1074

1075

1076

1077

1078

1079

1080

1081

1082

1083

1084

1085

1086

1087

1088

1089

1090

1091

1092

1093

1094

1095

1096

1097

1098

1099

1100

1101

1102

1103

1104

1105

1106

1107

1108

1109

1110

1111

1112

1113

1114

1115

1116

1117

1118

1119

1120

1121

1122

1123

1124

1125

1126

11271128

1129

1130

1131

1132

1133

1134

1135

1136

1137

1138

1139

1140

1141

1142

1143

1144

1145

1146

1147

1148

1149

1150

1151

1152

1153

1154

1155
1156

1157

1158

1159

1160

1161

1162

1163

1164

1165

1166

1167

1168

1169

1170

11711172

1173

1174

1175

1176
1177

1178

1180

1181

1182

690

691

692

693

694

695

696

697

698

699

700

701

702

703

704

705

706

707

708

709

710

711

712
713

714

715

716

717

718

719

720

721

722

723

724

725

726

727

728

729

730

731

732

733

734

735

737

739

740

741

742

743

744

745

746

747

748

749

750

751

752

753

754

755

756

757

758

759

760

761

762

763

764

765

766

767

768

769

770

1183

1184

1185

1187

1188

1189

1190

1191

1192

1193

1194

1195

1197

1198

1199

1200

1201

1202

1203

1204

1205

1206

1207

1208

12091210

1211

1212

1213

1214

1215

1216

1217

1218

1219

1220

1221

1222

1223

1224

1225

1226

1227

1228

1229

1230

1231

1232

1233

1234

1235

1236

1237

1238

1239

1240

1241

1242

1243

1244

1245

1246

1247

1248

1249

1250

1251

1252

1253

2000

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

2029

2030

2031

2032 2034

2035

2036

2037

2038

2039

2040

2041

20422043

2044

2045

2046

2047

2048

2049

2050

2051

2052

2053

2054

2055

2057

2058

2059

2060

2061

2062

2063

2064

2065

2066
2067

2068

2069

2070

2071

2072

2073

2074

2075

2076

2077

2078

2079

2083

2084

2085

2086

2087

2088

2089

2090

2091

2092

2093

2094

2095

2096

2097

2098

20992100

2101

2102

2103

2104

2105

2106

2107

2110

2111

2112

2113

2114

2115

2116

2117

2119

2120

2121

2122

2123

2124

2125

2126

2128

2129

2130

21312132

2133

2134

21352136

2137
2138

2139

2140

2141

2142

2143

2146

2150

2151

2153

2154

2155

2156

2157

2159

2160

2161

2162

2163

2164

2165

2166

2167

2168

2169

2170

2171

2172

2173

2174

2175

21762177

2178

2179

2180

2181

2182

2183

2184

2185

2186

2187

2188

2189

2190

2191

2192

2193

2194

2195

2196

2197

2198

2199

2200

2201

2202

2203

2204

2205

2206

2207

2208

2209

2210

2211

2212

2213

2214

2215

2216

2217

2218

2219
2220

2221

2222

2223

2224

2225

2226

2227

2228

2229

2230

22322233

2234

2235

2236

2237

2238

2239

2240

2241

2242

2243

2244

2245

2246

2247

2248

2249

2250

2251

2252

2253

2254

2255

2256

2257
2258

2259

2260

2261

2262

2263

2264

2265

2266

2267

2268

2269

2270

22712272

2273

2274

2275

2276

2277

2278

2279

2280

2281

2282

2283

2284

2285

2286

2288

2289

2290

2291

2292

2293

2294

2295

2296

2297

2298

2299

2300

2301

2302

2303

2304

2305

2306

2307

2308

2309

2310

2311

2312

2313

2314

2315

2316

2317

2318

2319

2320

2321

2322

2323

2324

2325

2326

2327

2328

2329

2330

2332

2333

2334

2335

2336

2337

2338

2339

2340

2341

2342

2343

2344

2345

2346

2347

2348

2349

2350

2351

2352

2353

2354

2355

2356

2357

2358

2359

EROSION HAZARD

SETBACK EASEMENT

EROSION HAZARD

SETBACK EASEMENT

EROSION HAZARD

SETBACK EASEMENT

EROSION HAZARD

SETBACK EASEMENT

SHEET NUMBER

B
 A

 N
N

I S
 T

 E
 R

 
2

4
0

 
N

o
r
t
h

 
M

i
t
c
h

e
l
l
 
R

o
a

d
M

a
n

s
f
i
e

l
d

,
 
T

X
 
7

6
0

6
3

8
1

7
.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

4
8

1
7

.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

5
 
f
a

x

R
E

G
I
S

T
R

A
T

I
O

N
 
#

 
F

-
1

0
5

9
9

 
(
T

E
X

A
S

)

N
E

L
S

O
N

 
L

A
K

E
S

R
O

C
K

W
A

L
L

,
 
T

E
X

A
S

E
 
N

 
G

 
I
 
N

 
E

 
E

 
R

 
I
 
N

 
G

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N

L-1.0

TREE LEGEND

PRESERVED EXISTING TREE

REMOVED EXISTING TREE

L1.05

L1.08L1.07

L1.04

L1.10 L1.11 L1.12

L1.09

L1.06

L1.03L1.02L1.01

75

83

84

90

174

175

208

215

359

386

426

500

597

600

606

662

1179

736738

1186

1196

2012

2013

2014

2033

2056

2080

2081

2082

2108

2109

2118

2127

2144

2145

2147

2148

2149

2152

2158

2231

2331

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

5758

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

7677

78

79

80

81

82

85

86

87

88

89

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119120

121

122

123

124

125

126

127

128 129

130

131

132

133

134

135

136137

138

139

140

141

142

143

144

145

146

147

148

149

150

151

152

153

154

155 156

157

158

159

160

161

162

163

164

165

166

167

168

169

170

171

172

173

176

177

178

179

180

181

182

183

184

185

186 187

188

189

190

191

192

193

194

195

196

197198

199

200 201 202

203

204

205

206

207

209 210

211 212

213

214

216

217

218

219

220

221

222

223

224

225

226

227

228

229 230

231

232

233

234

235

236

237

238

239

240

241

242

243244

245

246

247

248

249

250

251

252

253

254

255

256

257

258

259

260

261

262

263

264

265

266

267

268

269

270

271

272

273

274

275

276

277

278

279

280

281

282

283

284

285

287

288

289

290

291

292

293

294

295

296

297

298

299

300

301

302

303

304

305

306

307

308

309

310

311

312313

314315

316

317

318

319

320

321

322

323324

325

326

327

328

329

330

331

332333334

335

336

337

338

339

340

341

342

343344

345

346

347

348349

350

351

352

353

354

355

356

357

358

360

361

362

363

364

365

366

367

368

369

370

371

372

373

374

375

376

377

378

379

380

381

382

383

384

385

387

388

389

390

391

392

393394

395

396

397

398

399

400

401

402

403

404

405

406

407

408

409

410

411

412

413

414

415

416

417

418

419

420

421

422

423

424

425

427

428

429

430431

432

433

434

435

436

437

438

439

440

441

442

443

444

445

446

447

448

449

450

451

452 453

454455456

457

458

459

460

461 462

463

464

465

466

467

468

469

470

471

472

473

474

475

476

477

478

479

480

481

482

483

484

485486

487

488

489

490

491

492

493

494

495

496

497

498

499

501

502

503

504

505

506

507

508

509

510

511

512

513

514

515

516

517

518

519

520

521

522

523

524

525 526

527

528

529

530

531

532533

534

535

536

537

538

539

540

541

542

543544545

546

547

548

549 550

551

552

553

554

555

556557

558

559

560

561

562

563

564

565

566

567

568569

570

571

572

573

574

575

576

577

578

579

580

581582

583

584

585

586

587

588

589

590

591

592

593

594

595

596

598

599

601

602

603

604

605

607608

609610

611

612613

614

615

616

617

618

619

620

621

622

623

624625

626 627

628

629

630

631

632 633

634

635

636

637

638

639

640

641

642

643

644

645

646

647

648

649

650

651

652653

654

655

656

657

658

659

660 661

663

664

665

666

667

668

669

670

671

672

673

674

675

676

677

678

679

680

681

682

683

684

685

686

687

688

689

1000

1001

1002

1003

1004

100510061007

10081009

1010

1011

1012

1013

1014

1015

1016

1017

1018

1019

1020

1021

1022

1023

1024

1025

1026

1027

1028

1029

1030

1031

1032

1033

1034

1035

1036

1037

1038

1039

1040

10411042

1043

1044

1045

1046

1047

10481049

1050

1051

1052

1053

1054

1055

1056

1057 1058

1059

1060

1061

1062

1063

1064

1065

1066

1067

1068

10691070

1071

1072

1073

1074

1075

1076

1077

1078

1079

1080

1081

1082

1083

1084

1085

1086

1087

1088

1089

1090

1091

10921093

1094

1095

1096

1097

1098

1099

1100

1101

1102

1103

1104

1105

1106

1107

1108

1109

1110

1111

1112

1113

1114

1115

1116

1117

1118

1119

1120

1121

1122

1123

1124

1125

1126

11271128

1129

1130

1131

1132

1133

1134

1135

1136

1137

1138

1139

1140

1141

1142

1143

1144

1145

1146

1147

1148

1149

1150

1151 1152

1153

1154

1155 1156

1157

1158

1159

11601161

1162

1163

1164

1165

1166

1167

1168

1169

1170

11711172

1173

1174

1175

11761177

1178

1180

1181

1182

690

691

692

693

694

695 696

697

698

699

700

701

702

703

704

705

706

707708709

710

711

712713

714

715

716717

718

719

720

721

722

723

724

725

726

727

728

729

730

731

732

733

734

735

737

739

740

741

742

743

744

745

746

747

748

749

750

751

752

753

754

755

756

757

758

759

760

761

762

763

764

765

766

767

768

769

770

1183

1184

1185

1187

1188

1189

1190

1191

1192

11931194

1195

1197

1198

1199

12001201

1202

1203

1204

1205

1206

1207

1208

12091210

1211

1212

1213

1214

1215

1216

1217

1218

1219

1220

1221

1222

1223

1224

1225

1226

1227

1228

1229

1230

1231

1232

1233

1234

1235

1236

1237

1238

1239

1240

1241

1242

1243

1244

1245

1246

1247

1248

1249

1250

1251

1252

1253

2000

200120022003

2004

20052006

2007

20082009

2010

2011

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

202920302031

2032 2034

2035

2036

2037

2038

2039

2040

2041

20422043 2044

20452046

2047

2048

2049

2050

2051

2052

2053

2054

2055

2057

2058

20592060

2061

2062

20632064

2065

20662067

2068

2069

2070

2071

2072

2073

2074

2075

2076

2077

2078

2079

2083

2084

20852086

2087

2088

20892090

2091

2092

2093

2094

2095

2096

2097

2098

20992100

2101 2102

2103

2104

2105

2106

2107

2110

21112112

2113

2114

2115

2116

2117

2119

2120

21212122

2123

2124

2125

2126

2128

2129

2130

21312132

2133

2134

21352136

2137 2138

2139

2140

2141

21422143

2146

2150

2151

2153

2154

2155

2156

2157

2159

2160

2161

2162

2163

21642165

2166

2167

2168

2169

2170

2171

2172

2173

2174 2175

21762177

2178

2179

2180

2181

2182

2183

2184

2185

2186

2187

2188

2189

2190

2191

2192

2193

2194

2195

2196

21972198

21992200

2201

2202

2203

2204

2205

2206

2207

2208

2209

2210

22112212

2213

2214

2215

2216

2217

2218

22192220

2221

22222223

2224

2225

2226

2227

2228

2229

2230

22322233

2234

2235

2236 2237

2238 2239 2240

2241

2242

2243

2244

2245

2246

2247

2248

2249

2250

2251

2252

2253

2254

2255 22562257 2258

2259

2260

2261

2262

2263 2264

2265

2266

2267

2268

2269

2270

22712272

2273

2274

22752276

2277

2278

2279

2280

2281

2282

2283

2284

2285

2286

2288

2289

2290

2291

2292

2293

22942295

2296

2297

2298

2299

2300

2301

2302 2303

2304

2305

2306

2307

2308

2309

23102311

2312

2313

2314

2315

2316

2317

2318

2319

2320

2321

2322

2323 2324

2325

2326

2327

2328

2329

2330

2332

2333

2334

2335

2336

2337

2338

2339

2340

2341

2342

2343

2344

2345

2346

2347

2348

2349

2350

2351

2352

2353

2354

2355

2356

2357

2358

2359

L-1.1 L-1.2 L-1.3

L-1.6L-1.5L-1.4

L-1.7

L-1.10 L-1.11

L-1.8 L-1.9

L-1.12

KEY

N COUNTRY LN

F
M

-
1

1
4

1

FM-552

. HIIEL W

ST
E

A

C
CT

TE

SA

H

ET

S
TA

I
RE

G

83

OF

0 6
ET

X

L
R

LD
RE

CAANDS

A
EP A

S
O

NCI
M

04/06/21

SEE SHEETS L-1.13 TO L-1.16 FOR TABLES AND CALCULATIONS

OWNER

UNISON INVESTMENT

23545 CRENSHAW BLVD., STE. 201

TORRANCE, CA 90505

APPLICANT

SKORBURG COMPANY, LTD.

8214 WESTCHESTER DRIVE, SUITE 710

DALLAS, TEXAS 75225

SITE DATA

ACREAGE: 120.883

LOT COUNT: 260

82



STREET E

F.M. 552

F
.
M

.
 
1
1
4
1

S
T

R
E

E
T

 
A

OPEN SPACE

SHEET NUMBER

B
 A

 N
N

I S
 T

 E
 R

 
2

4
0

 
N

o
r
t
h

 
M

i
t
c
h

e
l
l
 
R

o
a

d
M

a
n

s
f
i
e

l
d

,
 
T

X
 
7

6
0

6
3

8
1

7
.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

4
8

1
7

.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

5
 
f
a

x

R
E

G
I
S

T
R

A
T

I
O

N
 
#

 
F

-
1

0
5

9
9

 
(
T

E
X

A
S

)

N
E

L
S

O
N

 
L

A
K

E
S

R
O

C
K

W
A

L
L

,
 
T

E
X

A
S

E
 
N

 
G

 
I
 
N

 
E

 
E

 
R

 
I
 
N

 
G

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N
 
E

N
L
A

R
G

E
M

E
N

T
 
(
1
 
O

F
 
1
2
)

L-1.1

TREE LEGEND

PRESERVED EXISTING TREE

REMOVED EXISTING TREE

75

83

84

90

174

175

208

215

359

386

426

500

597

600

606

662

1179

736738

1186

1196

2012

2013

2014

2033

2056

2080

2081

2082

2108

2109

2118

2127

2144

2145

2147

2148

2149

2152

2158

2231

2331

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

5758

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

7677

78

79

80

81

82

85

86

87

88

89

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119120

121

122

123

124

125

126

127

128 129

130

131

132

133

134

135

136137

138

139

140

141

142

143

144

145

146

147

148

149

150

151

152

153

154

155 156

157

158

159

160

161

162

163

164

165

166

167

168

169

170

171

172

173

176

177

178

179

180

181

182

183

184

185

186 187

188

189

190

191

192

193

194

195

196

197198

199

200 201 202

203

204

205

206

207

209 210

211 212

213

214

216

217

218

219

220

221

222

223

224

225

226

227

228

229 230

231

232

233

234

235

236

237

238

239

240

241

242

243244

245

246

247

248

249

250

251

252

253

254

255

256

257

258

259

260

261

262

263

264

265

266

267

268

269

270

271

272

273

274

275

276

277

278

279

280

281

282

283

284

285

287

288

289

290

291

292

293

294

295

296

297

298

299

300

301

302

303

304

305

306

307

308

309

310

311

312313

314315

316

317

318

319

320

321

322

323324

325

326

327

328

329

330

331

332333334

335

336

337

338

339

340

341

342

343344

345

346

347

348349

350

351

352

353

354

355

356

357

358

360

361

362

363

364

365

366

367

368

369

370

371

372

373

374

375

376

377

378

379

380

381

382

383

384

385

387

388

389

390

391

392

393394

395

396

397

398

399

400

401

402

403

404

405

406

407

408

409

410

411

412

413

414

415

416

417

418

419

420

421

422

423

424

425

427

428

429

430431

432

433

434

435

436

437

438

439

440

441

442

443

444

445

446

447

448

449

450

451

452 453

454455456

457

458

459

460

461 462

463

464

465

466

467

468

469

470

471

472

473

474

475

476

477

478

479

480

481

482

483

484

485486

487

488

489

490

491

492

493

494

495

496

497

498

499

501

502

503

504

505

506

507

508

509

510

511

512

513

514

515

516

517

518

519

520

521

522

523

524

525 526

527

528

529

530

531

532533

534

535

536

537

538

539

540

541

542

543544545

546

547

548

549 550

551

552

553

554

555

556557

558

559

560

561

562

563

564

565

566

567

568569

570

571

572

573

574

575

576

577

578

579

580

581582

583

584

585

586

587

588

589

590

591

592

593

594

595

596

598

599

601

602

603

604

605

607608

609610

611

612613

614

615

616

617

618

619

620

621

622

623

624625

626 627

628

629

630

631

632 633

634

635

636

637

638

639

640

641

642

643

644

645

646

647

648

649

650

651

652653

654

655

656

657

658

659

660 661

663

664

665

666

667

668

669

670

671

672

673

674

675

676

677

678

679

680

681

682

683

684

685

686

687

688

689

1000

1001

1002

1003

1004

100510061007

10081009

1010

1011

1012

1013

1014

1015

1016

1017

1018

1019

1020

1021

1022

1023

1024

1025

1026

1027

1028

1029

1030

1031

1032

1033

1034

1035

1036

1037

1038

1039

1040

10411042

1043

1044

1045

1046

1047

10481049

1050

1051

1052

1053

1054

1055

1056

1057 1058

1059

1060

1061

1062

1063

1064

1065

1066

1067

1068

10691070

1071

1072

1073

1074

1075

1076

1077

1078

1079

1080

1081

1082

1083

1084

1085

1086

1087

1088

1089

1090

1091

10921093

1094

1095

1096

1097

1098

1099

1100

1101

1102

1103

1104

1105

1106

1107

1108

1109

1110

1111

1112

1113

1114

1115

1116

1117

1118

1119

1120

1121

1122

1123

1124

1125

1126

11271128

1129

1130

1131

1132

1133

1134

1135

1136

1137

1138

1139

1140

1141

1142

1143

1144

1145

1146

1147

1148

1149

1150

1151 1152

1153

1154

1155 1156

1157

1158

1159

11601161

1162

1163

1164

1165

1166

1167

1168

1169

1170

11711172

1173

1174

1175

11761177

1178

1180

1181

1182

690

691

692

693

694

695 696

697

698

699

700

701

702

703

704

705

706

707708709

710

711

712713

714

715

716717

718

719

720

721

722

723

724

725

726

727

728

729

730

731

732

733

734

735

737

739

740

741

742

743

744

745

746

747

748

749

750

751

752

753

754

755

756

757

758

759

760

761

762

763

764

765

766

767

768

769

770

1183

1184

1185

1187

1188

1189

1190

1191

1192

11931194

1195

1197

1198

1199

12001201

1202

1203

1204

1205

1206

1207

1208

12091210

1211

1212

1213

1214

1215

1216

1217

1218

1219

1220

1221

1222

1223

1224

1225

1226

1227

1228

1229

1230

1231

1232

1233

1234

1235

1236

1237

1238

1239

1240

1241

1242

1243

1244

1245

1246

1247

1248

1249

1250

1251

1252

1253

2000

200120022003

2004

20052006

2007

20082009

2010

2011

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

202920302031

2032 2034

2035

2036

2037

2038

2039

2040

2041

20422043 2044

20452046

2047

2048

2049

2050

2051

2052

2053

2054

2055

2057

2058

20592060

2061

2062

20632064

2065

20662067

2068

2069

2070

2071

2072

2073

2074

2075

2076

2077

2078

2079

2083

2084

20852086

2087

2088

20892090

2091

2092

2093

2094

2095

2096

2097

2098

20992100

2101 2102

2103

2104

2105

2106

2107

2110

21112112

2113

2114

2115

2116

2117

2119

2120

21212122

2123

2124

2125

2126

2128

2129

2130

21312132

2133

2134

21352136

2137 2138

2139

2140

2141

21422143

2146

2150

2151

2153

2154

2155

2156

2157

2159

2160

2161

2162

2163

21642165

2166

2167

2168

2169

2170

2171

2172

2173

2174 2175

21762177

2178

2179

2180

2181

2182

2183

2184

2185

2186

2187

2188

2189

2190

2191

2192

2193

2194

2195

2196

21972198

21992200

2201

2202

2203

2204

2205

2206

2207

2208

2209

2210

22112212

2213

2214

2215

2216

2217

2218

22192220

2221

22222223

2224

2225

2226

2227

2228

2229

2230

22322233

2234

2235

2236 2237

2238 2239 2240

2241

2242

2243

2244

2245

2246

2247

2248

2249

2250

2251

2252

2253

2254

2255 22562257 2258

2259

2260

2261

2262

2263 2264

2265

2266

2267

2268

2269

2270

22712272

2273

2274

22752276

2277

2278

2279

2280

2281

2282

2283

2284

2285

2286

2288

2289

2290

2291

2292

2293

22942295

2296

2297

2298

2299

2300

2301

2302 2303

2304

2305

2306

2307

2308

2309

23102311

2312

2313

2314

2315

2316

2317

2318

2319

2320

2321

2322

2323 2324

2325

2326

2327

2328

2329

2330

2332

2333

2334

2335

2336

2337

2338

2339

2340

2341

2342

2343

2344

2345

2346

2347

2348

2349

2350

2351

2352

2353

2354

2355

2356

2357

2358

2359

L-1.1 L-1.2 L-1.3

L-1.6L-1.5L-1.4

L-1.7

L-1.10 L-1.11

L-1.8 L-1.9

L-1.12

KEY

. HIIEL W

ST
E

A

C
CT

TE

SA

H

ET

S
TA

I
RE

G

83

OF

0 6
ET

X

L
R

LD
RE

CAANDS

A
EP A

S
O

NCI
M

04/06/21

83



767

768

770

STREET E

F.M. 552

S
T

R
E

E
T

 
B

S
T

R
E

E
T

 
C

O
P

E
N

 
S

P
A

C
E

SHEET NUMBER

B
 A

 N
N

I S
 T

 E
 R

 
2

4
0

 
N

o
r
t
h

 
M

i
t
c
h

e
l
l
 
R

o
a

d
M

a
n

s
f
i
e

l
d

,
 
T

X
 
7

6
0

6
3

8
1

7
.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

4
8

1
7

.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

5
 
f
a

x

R
E

G
I
S

T
R

A
T

I
O

N
 
#

 
F

-
1

0
5

9
9

 
(
T

E
X

A
S

)

N
E

L
S

O
N

 
L

A
K

E
S

R
O

C
K

W
A

L
L

,
 
T

E
X

A
S

E
 
N

 
G

 
I
 
N

 
E

 
E

 
R

 
I
 
N

 
G

L-1.2

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N
 
E

N
L
A

R
G

E
M

E
N

T
 
(
2
 
O

F
 
1
2
)

TREE LEGEND

PRESERVED EXISTING TREE

REMOVED EXISTING TREE

75

83

84

90

174

175

208

215

359

386

426

500

597

600

606

662

1179

736738

1186

1196

2012

2013

2014

2033

2056

2080

2081

2082

2108

2109

2118

2127

2144

2145

2147

2148

2149

2152

2158

2231

2331

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

5758

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

7677

78

79

80

81

82

85

86

87

88

89

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119120

121

122

123

124

125

126

127

128 129

130

131

132

133

134

135

136137

138

139

140

141

142

143

144

145

146

147

148

149

150

151

152

153

154

155 156

157

158

159

160

161

162

163

164

165

166

167

168

169

170

171

172

173

176

177

178

179

180

181

182

183

184

185

186 187

188

189

190

191

192

193

194

195

196

197198

199

200 201 202

203

204

205

206

207

209 210

211 212

213

214

216

217

218

219

220

221

222

223

224

225

226

227

228

229 230

231

232

233

234

235

236

237

238

239

240

241

242

243244

245

246

247

248

249

250

251

252

253

254

255

256

257

258

259

260

261

262

263

264

265

266

267

268

269

270

271

272

273

274

275

276

277

278

279

280

281

282

283

284

285

287

288

289

290

291

292

293

294

295

296

297

298

299

300

301

302

303

304

305

306

307

308

309

310

311

312313

314315

316

317

318

319

320

321

322

323324

325

326

327

328

329

330

331

332333334

335

336

337

338

339

340

341

342

343344

345

346

347

348349

350

351

352

353

354

355

356

357

358

360

361

362

363

364

365

366

367

368

369

370

371

372

373

374

375

376

377

378

379

380

381

382

383

384

385

387

388

389

390

391

392

393394

395

396

397

398

399

400

401

402

403

404

405

406

407

408

409

410

411

412

413

414

415

416

417

418

419

420

421

422

423

424

425

427

428

429

430431

432

433

434

435

436

437

438

439

440

441

442

443

444

445

446

447

448

449

450

451

452 453

454455456

457

458

459

460

461 462

463

464

465

466

467

468

469

470

471

472

473

474

475

476

477

478

479

480

481

482

483

484

485486

487

488

489

490

491

492

493

494

495

496

497

498

499

501

502

503

504

505

506

507

508

509

510

511

512

513

514

515

516

517

518

519

520

521

522

523

524

525 526

527

528

529

530

531

532533

534

535

536

537

538

539

540

541

542

543544545

546

547

548

549 550

551

552

553

554

555

556557

558

559

560

561

562

563

564

565

566

567

568569

570

571

572

573

574

575

576

577

578

579

580

581582

583

584

585

586

587

588

589

590

591

592

593

594

595

596

598

599

601

602

603

604

605

607608

609610

611

612613

614

615

616

617

618

619

620

621

622

623

624625

626 627

628

629

630

631

632 633

634

635

636

637

638

639

640

641

642

643

644

645

646

647

648

649

650

651

652653

654

655

656

657

658

659

660 661

663

664

665

666

667

668

669

670

671

672

673

674

675

676

677

678

679

680

681

682

683

684

685

686

687

688

689

1000

1001

1002

1003

1004

100510061007

10081009

1010

1011

1012

1013

1014

1015

1016

1017

1018

1019

1020

1021

1022

1023

1024

1025

1026

1027

1028

1029

1030

1031

1032

1033

1034

1035

1036

1037

1038

1039

1040

10411042

1043

1044

1045

1046

1047

10481049

1050

1051

1052

1053

1054

1055

1056

1057 1058

1059

1060

1061

1062

1063

1064

1065

1066

1067

1068

10691070

1071

1072

1073

1074

1075

1076

1077

1078

1079

1080

1081

1082

1083

1084

1085

1086

1087

1088

1089

1090

1091

10921093

1094

1095

1096

1097

1098

1099

1100

1101

1102

1103

1104

1105

1106

1107

1108

1109

1110

1111

1112

1113

1114

1115

1116

1117

1118

1119

1120

1121

1122

1123

1124

1125

1126

11271128

1129

1130

1131

1132

1133

1134

1135

1136

1137

1138

1139

1140

1141

1142

1143

1144

1145

1146

1147

1148

1149

1150

1151 1152

1153

1154

1155 1156

1157

1158

1159

11601161

1162

1163

1164

1165

1166

1167

1168

1169

1170

11711172

1173

1174

1175

11761177

1178

1180

1181

1182

690

691

692

693

694

695 696

697

698

699

700

701

702

703

704

705

706

707708709

710

711

712713

714

715

716717

718

719

720

721

722

723

724

725

726

727

728

729

730

731

732

733

734

735

737

739

740

741

742

743

744

745

746

747

748

749

750

751

752

753

754

755

756

757

758

759

760

761

762

763

764

765

766

767

768

769

770

1183

1184

1185

1187

1188

1189

1190

1191

1192

11931194

1195

1197

1198

1199

12001201

1202

1203

1204

1205

1206

1207

1208

12091210

1211

1212

1213

1214

1215

1216

1217

1218

1219

1220

1221

1222

1223

1224

1225

1226

1227

1228

1229

1230

1231

1232

1233

1234

1235

1236

1237

1238

1239

1240

1241

1242

1243

1244

1245

1246

1247

1248

1249

1250

1251

1252

1253

2000

200120022003

2004

20052006

2007

20082009

2010

2011

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

202920302031

2032 2034

2035

2036

2037

2038

2039

2040

2041

20422043 2044

20452046

2047

2048

2049

2050

2051

2052

2053

2054

2055

2057

2058

20592060

2061

2062

20632064

2065

20662067

2068

2069

2070

2071

2072

2073

2074

2075

2076

2077

2078

2079

2083

2084

20852086

2087

2088

20892090

2091

2092

2093

2094

2095

2096

2097

2098

20992100

2101 2102

2103

2104

2105

2106

2107

2110

21112112

2113

2114

2115

2116

2117

2119

2120

21212122

2123

2124

2125

2126

2128

2129

2130

21312132

2133

2134

21352136

2137 2138

2139

2140

2141

21422143

2146

2150

2151

2153

2154

2155

2156

2157

2159

2160

2161

2162

2163

21642165

2166

2167

2168

2169

2170

2171

2172

2173

2174 2175

21762177

2178

2179

2180

2181

2182

2183

2184

2185

2186

2187

2188

2189

2190

2191

2192

2193

2194

2195

2196

21972198

21992200

2201

2202

2203

2204

2205

2206

2207

2208

2209

2210

22112212

2213

2214

2215

2216

2217

2218

22192220

2221

22222223

2224

2225

2226

2227

2228

2229

2230

22322233

2234

2235

2236 2237

2238 2239 2240

2241

2242

2243

2244

2245

2246

2247

2248

2249

2250

2251

2252

2253

2254

2255 22562257 2258

2259

2260

2261

2262

2263 2264

2265

2266

2267

2268

2269

2270

22712272

2273

2274

22752276

2277

2278

2279

2280

2281

2282

2283

2284

2285

2286

2288

2289

2290

2291

2292

2293

22942295

2296

2297

2298

2299

2300

2301

2302 2303

2304

2305

2306

2307

2308

2309

23102311

2312

2313

2314

2315

2316

2317

2318

2319

2320

2321

2322

2323 2324

2325

2326

2327

2328

2329

2330

2332

2333

2334

2335

2336

2337

2338

2339

2340

2341

2342

2343

2344

2345

2346

2347

2348

2349

2350

2351

2352

2353

2354

2355

2356

2357

2358

2359

L-1.1 L-1.2 L-1.3

L-1.6L-1.5L-1.4

L-1.7

L-1.10 L-1.11

L-1.8 L-1.9

L-1.12

KEY

. HIIEL W

ST
E

A

C
CT

TE

SA

H

ET

S
TA

I
RE

G

83

OF

0 6
ET

X

L
R

LD
RE

CAANDS

A
EP A

S
O

NCI
M

04/06/21

84



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

769

STREET E

S
T

R
E

E
T

 
D

F.M. 552

OPEN SPACE

EROSION HAZARD

SETBACK EASEMENT

SHEET NUMBER

B
 A

 N
N

I S
 T

 E
 R

 
2

4
0

 
N

o
r
t
h

 
M

i
t
c
h

e
l
l
 
R

o
a

d
M

a
n

s
f
i
e

l
d

,
 
T

X
 
7

6
0

6
3

8
1

7
.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

4
8

1
7

.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

5
 
f
a

x

R
E

G
I
S

T
R

A
T

I
O

N
 
#

 
F

-
1

0
5

9
9

 
(
T

E
X

A
S

)

N
E

L
S

O
N

 
L

A
K

E
S

R
O

C
K

W
A

L
L

,
 
T

E
X

A
S

E
 
N

 
G

 
I
 
N

 
E

 
E

 
R

 
I
 
N

 
G

L-1.3

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N
 
E

N
L
A

R
G

E
M

E
N

T
 
(
3
 
O

F
 
1
2
)

TREE LEGEND

PRESERVED EXISTING TREE

REMOVED EXISTING TREE

75

83

84

90

174

175

208

215

359

386

426

500

597

600

606

662

1179

736738

1186

1196

2012

2013

2014

2033

2056

2080

2081

2082

2108

2109

2118

2127

2144

2145

2147

2148

2149

2152

2158

2231

2331

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

5758

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

7677

78

79

80

81

82

85

86

87

88

89

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119120

121

122

123

124

125

126

127

128 129

130

131

132

133

134

135

136137

138

139

140

141

142

143

144

145

146

147

148

149

150

151

152

153

154

155 156

157

158

159

160

161

162

163

164

165

166

167

168

169

170

171

172

173

176

177

178

179

180

181

182

183

184

185

186 187

188

189

190

191

192

193

194

195

196

197198

199

200 201 202

203

204

205

206

207

209 210

211 212

213

214

216

217

218

219

220

221

222

223

224

225

226

227

228

229 230

231

232

233

234

235

236

237

238

239

240

241

242

243244

245

246

247

248

249

250

251

252

253

254

255

256

257

258

259

260

261

262

263

264

265

266

267

268

269

270

271

272

273

274

275

276

277

278

279

280

281

282

283

284

285

287

288

289

290

291

292

293

294

295

296

297

298

299

300

301

302

303

304

305

306

307

308

309

310

311

312313

314315

316

317

318

319

320

321

322

323324

325

326

327

328

329

330

331

332333334

335

336

337

338

339

340

341

342

343344

345

346

347

348349

350

351

352

353

354

355

356

357

358

360

361

362

363

364

365

366

367

368

369

370

371

372

373

374

375

376

377

378

379

380

381

382

383

384

385

387

388

389

390

391

392

393394

395

396

397

398

399

400

401

402

403

404

405

406

407

408

409

410

411

412

413

414

415

416

417

418

419

420

421

422

423

424

425

427

428

429

430431

432

433

434

435

436

437

438

439

440

441

442

443

444

445

446

447

448

449

450

451

452 453

454455456

457

458

459

460

461 462

463

464

465

466

467

468

469

470

471

472

473

474

475

476

477

478

479

480

481

482

483

484

485486

487

488

489

490

491

492

493

494

495

496

497

498

499

501

502

503

504

505

506

507

508

509

510

511

512

513

514

515

516

517

518

519

520

521

522

523

524

525 526

527

528

529

530

531

532533

534

535

536

537

538

539

540

541

542

543544545

546

547

548

549 550

551

552

553

554

555

556557

558

559

560

561

562

563

564

565

566

567

568569

570

571

572

573

574

575

576

577

578

579

580

581582

583

584

585

586

587

588

589

590

591

592

593

594

595

596

598

599

601

602

603

604

605

607608

609610

611

612613

614

615

616

617

618

619

620

621

622

623

624625

626 627

628

629

630

631

632 633

634

635

636

637

638

639

640

641

642

643

644

645

646

647

648

649

650

651

652653

654

655

656

657

658

659

660 661

663

664

665

666

667

668

669

670

671

672

673

674

675

676

677

678

679

680

681

682

683

684

685

686

687

688

689

1000

1001

1002

1003

1004

100510061007

10081009

1010

1011

1012

1013

1014

1015

1016

1017

1018

1019

1020

1021

1022

1023

1024

1025

1026

1027

1028

1029

1030

1031

1032

1033

1034

1035

1036

1037

1038

1039

1040

10411042

1043

1044

1045

1046

1047

10481049

1050

1051

1052

1053

1054

1055

1056

1057 1058

1059

1060

1061

1062

1063

1064

1065

1066

1067

1068

10691070

1071

1072

1073

1074

1075

1076

1077

1078

1079

1080

1081

1082

1083

1084

1085

1086

1087

1088

1089

1090

1091

10921093

1094

1095

1096

1097

1098

1099

1100

1101

1102

1103

1104

1105

1106

1107

1108

1109

1110

1111

1112

1113

1114

1115

1116

1117

1118

1119

1120

1121

1122

1123

1124

1125

1126

11271128

1129

1130

1131

1132

1133

1134

1135

1136

1137

1138

1139

1140

1141

1142

1143

1144

1145

1146

1147

1148

1149

1150

1151 1152

1153

1154

1155 1156

1157

1158

1159

11601161

1162

1163

1164

1165

1166

1167

1168

1169

1170

11711172

1173

1174

1175

11761177

1178

1180

1181

1182

690

691

692

693

694

695 696

697

698

699

700

701

702

703

704

705

706

707708709

710

711

712713

714

715

716717

718

719

720

721

722

723

724

725

726

727

728

729

730

731

732

733

734

735

737

739

740

741

742

743

744

745

746

747

748

749

750

751

752

753

754

755

756

757

758

759

760

761

762

763

764

765

766

767

768

769

770

1183

1184

1185

1187

1188

1189

1190

1191

1192

11931194

1195

1197

1198

1199

12001201

1202

1203

1204

1205

1206

1207

1208

12091210

1211

1212

1213

1214

1215

1216

1217

1218

1219

1220

1221

1222

1223

1224

1225

1226

1227

1228

1229

1230

1231

1232

1233

1234

1235

1236

1237

1238

1239

1240

1241

1242

1243

1244

1245

1246

1247

1248

1249

1250

1251

1252

1253

2000

200120022003

2004

20052006

2007

20082009

2010

2011

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

202920302031

2032 2034

2035

2036

2037

2038

2039

2040

2041

20422043 2044

20452046

2047

2048

2049

2050

2051

2052

2053

2054

2055

2057

2058

20592060

2061

2062

20632064

2065

20662067

2068

2069

2070

2071

2072

2073

2074

2075

2076

2077

2078

2079

2083

2084

20852086

2087

2088

20892090

2091

2092

2093

2094

2095

2096

2097

2098

20992100

2101 2102

2103

2104

2105

2106

2107

2110

21112112

2113

2114

2115

2116

2117

2119

2120

21212122

2123

2124

2125

2126

2128

2129

2130

21312132

2133

2134

21352136

2137 2138

2139

2140

2141

21422143

2146

2150

2151

2153

2154

2155

2156

2157

2159

2160

2161

2162

2163

21642165

2166

2167

2168

2169

2170

2171

2172

2173

2174 2175

21762177

2178

2179

2180

2181

2182

2183

2184

2185

2186

2187

2188

2189

2190

2191

2192

2193

2194

2195

2196

21972198

21992200

2201

2202

2203

2204

2205

2206

2207

2208

2209

2210

22112212

2213

2214

2215

2216

2217

2218

22192220

2221

22222223

2224

2225

2226

2227

2228

2229

2230

22322233

2234

2235

2236 2237

2238 2239 2240

2241

2242

2243

2244

2245

2246

2247

2248

2249

2250

2251

2252

2253

2254

2255 22562257 2258

2259

2260

2261

2262

2263 2264

2265

2266

2267

2268

2269

2270

22712272

2273

2274

22752276

2277

2278

2279

2280

2281

2282

2283

2284

2285

2286

2288

2289

2290

2291

2292

2293

22942295

2296

2297

2298

2299

2300

2301

2302 2303

2304

2305

2306

2307

2308

2309

23102311

2312

2313

2314

2315

2316

2317

2318

2319

2320

2321

2322

2323 2324

2325

2326

2327

2328

2329

2330

2332

2333

2334

2335

2336

2337

2338

2339

2340

2341

2342

2343

2344

2345

2346

2347

2348

2349

2350

2351

2352

2353

2354

2355

2356

2357

2358

2359

L-1.1 L-1.2 L-1.3

L-1.6L-1.5L-1.4

L-1.7

L-1.10 L-1.11

L-1.8 L-1.9

L-1.12

KEY

. HIIEL W

ST
E

A

C
CT

TE

SA

H

ET

S
TA

I
RE

G

83

OF

0 6
ET

X

L
R

LD
RE

CAANDS

A
EP A

S
O

NCI
M

04/06/21

85



STREET G

STREET H

S
T

R
E

E
T

 
F

F
.
M

.
 
1
1
4
1

SHEET NUMBER

B
 A

 N
N

I S
 T

 E
 R

 
2

4
0

 
N

o
r
t
h

 
M

i
t
c
h

e
l
l
 
R

o
a

d
M

a
n

s
f
i
e

l
d

,
 
T

X
 
7

6
0

6
3

8
1

7
.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

4
8

1
7

.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

5
 
f
a

x

R
E

G
I
S

T
R

A
T

I
O

N
 
#

 
F

-
1

0
5

9
9

 
(
T

E
X

A
S

)

N
E

L
S

O
N

 
L

A
K

E
S

R
O

C
K

W
A

L
L

,
 
T

E
X

A
S

E
 
N

 
G

 
I
 
N

 
E

 
E

 
R

 
I
 
N

 
G

L-1.4

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N
 
E

N
L
A

R
G

E
M

E
N

T
 
(
4
 
O

F
 
1
2
)

TREE LEGEND

PRESERVED EXISTING TREE

REMOVED EXISTING TREE

75

83

84

90

174

175

208

215

359

386

426

500

597

600

606

662

1179

736738

1186

1196

2012

2013

2014

2033

2056

2080

2081

2082

2108

2109

2118

2127

2144

2145

2147

2148

2149

2152

2158

2231

2331

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

5758

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

7677

78

79

80

81

82

85

86

87

88

89

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119120

121

122

123

124

125

126

127

128 129

130

131

132

133

134

135

136137

138

139

140

141

142

143

144

145

146

147

148

149

150

151

152

153

154

155 156

157

158

159

160

161

162

163

164

165

166

167

168

169

170

171

172

173

176

177

178

179

180

181

182

183

184

185

186 187

188

189

190

191

192

193

194

195

196

197198

199

200 201 202

203

204

205

206

207

209 210

211 212

213

214

216

217

218

219

220

221

222

223

224

225

226

227

228

229 230

231

232

233

234

235

236

237

238

239

240

241

242

243244

245

246

247

248

249

250

251

252

253

254

255

256

257

258

259

260

261

262

263

264

265

266

267

268

269

270

271

272

273

274

275

276

277

278

279

280

281

282

283

284

285

287

288

289

290

291

292

293

294

295

296

297

298

299

300

301

302

303

304

305

306

307

308

309

310

311

312313

314315

316

317

318

319

320

321

322

323324

325

326

327

328

329

330

331

332333334

335

336

337

338

339

340

341

342

343344

345

346

347

348349

350

351

352

353

354

355

356

357

358

360

361

362

363

364

365

366

367

368

369

370

371

372

373

374

375

376

377

378

379

380

381

382

383

384

385

387

388

389

390

391

392

393394

395

396

397

398

399

400

401

402

403

404

405

406

407

408

409

410

411

412

413

414

415

416

417

418

419

420

421

422

423

424

425

427

428

429

430431

432

433

434

435

436

437

438

439

440

441

442

443

444

445

446

447

448

449

450

451

452 453

454455456

457

458

459

460

461 462

463

464

465

466

467

468

469

470

471

472

473

474

475

476

477

478

479

480

481

482

483

484

485486

487

488

489

490

491

492

493

494

495

496

497

498

499

501

502

503

504

505

506

507

508

509

510

511

512

513

514

515

516

517

518

519

520

521

522

523

524

525 526

527

528

529

530

531

532533

534

535

536

537

538

539

540

541

542

543544545

546

547

548

549 550

551

552

553

554

555

556557

558

559

560

561

562

563

564

565

566

567

568569

570

571

572

573

574

575

576

577

578

579

580

581582

583

584

585

586

587

588

589

590

591

592

593

594

595

596

598

599

601

602

603

604

605

607608

609610

611

612613

614

615

616

617

618

619

620

621

622

623

624625

626 627

628

629

630

631

632 633

634

635

636

637

638

639

640

641

642

643

644

645

646

647

648

649

650

651

652653

654

655

656

657

658

659

660 661

663

664

665

666

667

668

669

670

671

672

673

674

675

676

677

678

679

680

681

682

683

684

685

686

687

688

689

1000

1001

1002

1003

1004

100510061007

10081009

1010

1011

1012

1013

1014

1015

1016

1017

1018

1019

1020

1021

1022

1023

1024

1025

1026

1027

1028

1029

1030

1031

1032

1033

1034

1035

1036

1037

1038

1039

1040

10411042

1043

1044

1045

1046

1047

10481049

1050

1051

1052

1053

1054

1055

1056

1057 1058

1059

1060

1061

1062

1063

1064

1065

1066

1067

1068

10691070

1071

1072

1073

1074

1075

1076

1077

1078

1079

1080

1081

1082

1083

1084

1085

1086

1087

1088

1089

1090

1091

10921093

1094

1095

1096

1097

1098

1099

1100

1101

1102

1103

1104

1105

1106

1107

1108

1109

1110

1111

1112

1113

1114

1115

1116

1117

1118

1119

1120

1121

1122

1123

1124

1125

1126

11271128

1129

1130

1131

1132

1133

1134

1135

1136

1137

1138

1139

1140

1141

1142

1143

1144

1145

1146

1147

1148

1149

1150

1151 1152

1153

1154

1155 1156

1157

1158

1159

11601161

1162

1163

1164

1165

1166

1167

1168

1169

1170

11711172

1173

1174

1175

11761177

1178

1180

1181

1182

690

691

692

693

694

695 696

697

698

699

700

701

702

703

704

705

706

707708709

710

711

712713

714

715

716717

718

719

720

721

722

723

724

725

726

727

728

729

730

731

732

733

734

735

737

739

740

741

742

743

744

745

746

747

748

749

750

751

752

753

754

755

756

757

758

759

760

761

762

763

764

765

766

767

768

769

770

1183

1184

1185

1187

1188

1189

1190

1191

1192

11931194

1195

1197

1198

1199

12001201

1202

1203

1204

1205

1206

1207

1208

12091210

1211

1212

1213

1214

1215

1216

1217

1218

1219

1220

1221

1222

1223

1224

1225

1226

1227

1228

1229

1230

1231

1232

1233

1234

1235

1236

1237

1238

1239

1240

1241

1242

1243

1244

1245

1246

1247

1248

1249

1250

1251

1252

1253

2000

200120022003

2004

20052006

2007

20082009

2010

2011

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

202920302031

2032 2034

2035

2036

2037

2038

2039

2040

2041

20422043 2044

20452046

2047

2048

2049

2050

2051

2052

2053

2054

2055

2057

2058

20592060

2061

2062

20632064

2065

20662067

2068

2069

2070

2071

2072

2073

2074

2075

2076

2077

2078

2079

2083

2084

20852086

2087

2088

20892090

2091

2092

2093

2094

2095

2096

2097

2098

20992100

2101 2102

2103

2104

2105

2106

2107

2110

21112112

2113

2114

2115

2116

2117

2119

2120

21212122

2123

2124

2125

2126

2128

2129

2130

21312132

2133

2134

21352136

2137 2138

2139

2140

2141

21422143

2146

2150

2151

2153

2154

2155

2156

2157

2159

2160

2161

2162

2163

21642165

2166

2167

2168

2169

2170

2171

2172

2173

2174 2175

21762177

2178

2179

2180

2181

2182

2183

2184

2185

2186

2187

2188

2189

2190

2191

2192

2193

2194

2195

2196

21972198

21992200

2201

2202

2203

2204

2205

2206

2207

2208

2209

2210

22112212

2213

2214

2215

2216

2217

2218

22192220

2221

22222223

2224

2225

2226

2227

2228

2229

2230

22322233

2234

2235

2236 2237

2238 2239 2240

2241

2242

2243

2244

2245

2246

2247

2248

2249

2250

2251

2252

2253

2254

2255 22562257 2258

2259

2260

2261

2262

2263 2264

2265

2266

2267

2268

2269

2270

22712272

2273

2274

22752276

2277

2278

2279

2280

2281

2282

2283

2284

2285

2286

2288

2289

2290

2291

2292

2293

22942295

2296

2297

2298

2299

2300

2301

2302 2303

2304

2305

2306

2307

2308

2309

23102311

2312

2313

2314

2315

2316

2317

2318

2319

2320

2321

2322

2323 2324

2325

2326

2327

2328

2329

2330

2332

2333

2334

2335

2336

2337

2338

2339

2340

2341

2342

2343

2344

2345

2346

2347

2348

2349

2350

2351

2352

2353

2354

2355

2356

2357

2358

2359

L-1.1 L-1.2 L-1.3

L-1.6L-1.5L-1.4

L-1.7

L-1.10 L-1.11

L-1.8 L-1.9

L-1.12

KEY

. HIIEL W

ST
E

A

C
CT

TE

SA

H

ET

S
TA

I
RE

G

83

OF

0 6
ET

X

L
R

LD
RE

CAANDS

A
EP A

S
O

NCI
M

04/06/21

86



50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119
120

121

122

123

124

125

126

127

128 129

130

131

132

133

134

135

136137

138

139

140

141

142

143

144

146

163

164

165

166

167

168

169

170

195

218

219

220

258

259

260

261

280

281

282

284

285

751

752

753

2300

2301

2305

2306

2307

2308

2355

2356

2357

2358

2359

STREET G

STREET H

S

T

R

E

E

T

 

I

O
P

E
N

 
S

P
A

C
E

O
P

E
N

 
S

P
A

C
E

OPEN SPACE

SHEET NUMBER

B
 A

 N
N

I S
 T

 E
 R

 
2

4
0

 
N

o
r
t
h

 
M

i
t
c
h

e
l
l
 
R

o
a

d
M

a
n

s
f
i
e

l
d

,
 
T

X
 
7

6
0

6
3

8
1

7
.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

4
8

1
7

.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

5
 
f
a

x

R
E

G
I
S

T
R

A
T

I
O

N
 
#

 
F

-
1

0
5

9
9

 
(
T

E
X

A
S

)

N
E

L
S

O
N

 
L

A
K

E
S

R
O

C
K

W
A

L
L

,
 
T

E
X

A
S

E
 
N

 
G

 
I
 
N

 
E

 
E

 
R

 
I
 
N

 
G

L-1.5

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N
 
E

N
L
A

R
G

E
M

E
N

T
 
(
5
 
O

F
 
1
2
)

TREE LEGEND

PRESERVED EXISTING TREE

REMOVED EXISTING TREE

75

83

84

90

174

175

208

215

359

386

426

500

597

600

606

662

1179

736738

1186

1196

2012

2013

2014

2033

2056

2080

2081

2082

2108

2109

2118

2127

2144

2145

2147

2148

2149

2152

2158

2231

2331

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

5758

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

7677

78

79

80

81

82

85

86

87

88

89

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119120

121

122

123

124

125

126

127

128 129

130

131

132

133

134

135

136137

138

139

140

141

142

143

144

145

146

147

148

149

150

151

152

153

154

155 156

157

158

159

160

161

162

163

164

165

166

167

168

169

170

171

172

173

176

177

178

179

180

181

182

183

184

185

186 187

188

189

190

191

192

193

194

195

196

197198

199

200 201 202

203

204

205

206

207

209 210

211 212

213

214

216

217

218

219

220

221

222

223

224

225

226

227

228

229 230

231

232

233

234

235

236

237

238

239

240

241

242

243244

245

246

247

248

249

250

251

252

253

254

255

256

257

258

259

260

261

262

263

264

265

266

267

268

269

270

271

272

273

274

275

276

277

278

279

280

281

282

283

284

285

287

288

289

290

291

292

293

294

295

296

297

298

299

300

301

302

303

304

305

306

307

308

309

310

311

312313

314315

316

317

318

319

320

321

322

323324

325

326

327

328

329

330

331

332333334

335

336

337

338

339

340

341

342

343344

345

346

347

348349

350

351

352

353

354

355

356

357

358

360

361

362

363

364

365

366

367

368

369

370

371

372

373

374

375

376

377

378

379

380

381

382

383

384

385

387

388

389

390

391

392

393394

395

396

397

398

399

400

401

402

403

404

405

406

407

408

409

410

411

412

413

414

415

416

417

418

419

420

421

422

423

424

425

427

428

429

430431

432

433

434

435

436

437

438

439

440

441

442

443

444

445

446

447

448

449

450

451

452 453

454455456

457

458

459

460

461 462

463

464

465

466

467

468

469

470

471

472

473

474

475

476

477

478

479

480

481

482

483

484

485486

487

488

489

490

491

492

493

494

495

496

497

498

499

501

502

503

504

505

506

507

508

509

510

511

512

513

514

515

516

517

518

519

520

521

522

523

524

525 526

527

528

529

530

531

532533

534

535

536

537

538

539

540

541

542

543544545

546

547

548

549 550

551

552

553

554

555

556557

558

559

560

561

562

563

564

565

566

567

568569

570

571

572

573

574

575

576

577

578

579

580

581582

583

584

585

586

587

588

589

590

591

592

593

594

595

596

598

599

601

602

603

604

605

607608

609610

611

612613

614

615

616

617

618

619

620

621

622

623

624625

626 627

628

629

630

631

632 633

634

635

636

637

638

639

640

641

642

643

644

645

646

647

648

649

650

651

652653

654

655

656

657

658

659

660 661

663

664

665

666

667

668

669

670

671

672

673

674

675

676

677

678

679

680

681

682

683

684

685

686

687

688

689

1000

1001

1002

1003

1004

100510061007

10081009

1010

1011

1012

1013

1014

1015

1016

1017

1018

1019

1020

1021

1022

1023

1024

1025

1026

1027

1028

1029

1030

1031

1032

1033

1034

1035

1036

1037

1038

1039

1040

10411042

1043

1044

1045

1046

1047

10481049

1050

1051

1052

1053

1054

1055

1056

1057 1058

1059

1060

1061

1062

1063

1064

1065

1066

1067

1068

10691070

1071

1072

1073

1074

1075

1076

1077

1078

1079

1080

1081

1082

1083

1084

1085

1086

1087

1088

1089

1090

1091

10921093

1094

1095

1096

1097

1098

1099

1100

1101

1102

1103

1104

1105

1106

1107

1108

1109

1110

1111

1112

1113

1114

1115

1116

1117

1118

1119

1120

1121

1122

1123

1124

1125

1126

11271128

1129

1130

1131

1132

1133

1134

1135

1136

1137

1138

1139

1140

1141

1142

1143

1144

1145

1146

1147

1148

1149

1150

1151 1152

1153

1154

1155 1156

1157

1158

1159

11601161

1162

1163

1164

1165

1166

1167

1168

1169

1170

11711172

1173

1174

1175

11761177

1178

1180

1181

1182

690

691

692

693

694

695 696

697

698

699

700

701

702

703

704

705

706

707708709

710

711

712713

714

715

716717

718

719

720

721

722

723

724

725

726

727

728

729

730

731

732

733

734

735

737

739

740

741

742

743

744

745

746

747

748

749

750

751

752

753

754

755

756

757

758

759

760

761

762

763

764

765

766

767

768

769

770

1183

1184

1185

1187

1188

1189

1190

1191

1192

11931194

1195

1197

1198

1199

12001201

1202

1203

1204

1205

1206

1207

1208

12091210

1211

1212

1213

1214

1215

1216

1217

1218

1219

1220

1221

1222

1223

1224

1225

1226

1227

1228

1229

1230

1231

1232

1233

1234

1235

1236

1237

1238

1239

1240

1241

1242

1243

1244

1245

1246

1247

1248

1249

1250

1251

1252

1253

2000

200120022003

2004

20052006

2007

20082009

2010

2011

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

202920302031

2032 2034

2035

2036

2037

2038

2039

2040

2041

20422043 2044

20452046

2047

2048

2049

2050

2051

2052

2053

2054

2055

2057

2058

20592060

2061

2062

20632064

2065

20662067

2068

2069

2070

2071

2072

2073

2074

2075

2076

2077

2078

2079

2083

2084

20852086

2087

2088

20892090

2091

2092

2093

2094

2095

2096

2097

2098

20992100

2101 2102

2103

2104

2105

2106

2107

2110

21112112

2113

2114

2115

2116

2117

2119

2120

21212122

2123

2124

2125

2126

2128

2129

2130

21312132

2133

2134

21352136

2137 2138

2139

2140

2141

21422143

2146

2150

2151

2153

2154

2155

2156

2157

2159

2160

2161

2162

2163

21642165

2166

2167

2168

2169

2170

2171

2172

2173

2174 2175

21762177

2178

2179

2180

2181

2182

2183

2184

2185

2186

2187

2188

2189

2190

2191

2192

2193

2194

2195

2196

21972198

21992200

2201

2202

2203

2204

2205

2206

2207

2208

2209

2210

22112212

2213

2214

2215

2216

2217

2218

22192220

2221

22222223

2224

2225

2226

2227

2228

2229

2230

22322233

2234

2235

2236 2237

2238 2239 2240

2241

2242

2243

2244

2245

2246

2247

2248

2249

2250

2251

2252

2253

2254

2255 22562257 2258

2259

2260

2261

2262

2263 2264

2265

2266

2267

2268

2269

2270

22712272

2273

2274

22752276

2277

2278

2279

2280

2281

2282

2283

2284

2285

2286

2288

2289

2290

2291

2292

2293

22942295

2296

2297

2298

2299

2300

2301

2302 2303

2304

2305

2306

2307

2308

2309

23102311

2312

2313

2314

2315

2316

2317

2318

2319

2320

2321

2322

2323 2324

2325

2326

2327

2328

2329

2330

2332

2333

2334

2335

2336

2337

2338

2339

2340

2341

2342

2343

2344

2345

2346

2347

2348

2349

2350

2351

2352

2353

2354

2355

2356

2357

2358

2359

L-1.1 L-1.2 L-1.3

L-1.6L-1.5L-1.4

L-1.7

L-1.10 L-1.11

L-1.8 L-1.9

L-1.12

KEY

. HIIEL W

ST
E

A

C
CT

TE

SA

H

ET

S
TA

I
RE

G

83

OF

0 6
ET

X

L
R

LD
RE

CAANDS

A
EP A

S
O

NCI
M

04/06/21

87



2056

2118

2127

2144

2145

2147

2148

2149

2152

2158

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

2040

20422043

2044

2045
2046

2047

2049

2050

2051

2052

2053

2054

2055

2057

2058

2059

2060

2061

2062

2063

2064

2065

2066
2067

2069

2070

2071

2072

2104

2119

2120

2121

2122

2123

2124

2125

2126

2128

2129

2130

21312132

2133

2134

21352136

2137

2138

2139

2140

2141

2142

2143

2146

2150

2151

2153

2154

2155

2156

2157

2159

2160

2161

2179

2190

2355

2356

2357

STREET G

STREET H

S
T

R
E

E
T

 
D

OPEN SPACE

EROSION HAZARD

SETBACK EASEMENT

SHEET NUMBER

B
 A

 N
N

I S
 T

 E
 R

 
2

4
0

 
N

o
r
t
h

 
M

i
t
c
h

e
l
l
 
R

o
a

d
M

a
n

s
f
i
e

l
d

,
 
T

X
 
7

6
0

6
3

8
1

7
.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

4
8

1
7

.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

5
 
f
a

x

R
E

G
I
S

T
R

A
T

I
O

N
 
#

 
F

-
1

0
5

9
9

 
(
T

E
X

A
S

)

N
E

L
S

O
N

 
L

A
K

E
S

R
O

C
K

W
A

L
L

,
 
T

E
X

A
S

E
 
N

 
G

 
I
 
N

 
E

 
E

 
R

 
I
 
N

 
G

L-1.6

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N
 
E

N
L
A

R
G

E
M

E
N

T
 
(
6
 
O

F
 
1
2
)

TREE LEGEND

PRESERVED EXISTING TREE

REMOVED EXISTING TREE

75

83

84

90

174

175

208

215

359

386

426

500

597

600

606

662

1179

736738

1186

1196

2012

2013

2014

2033

2056

2080

2081

2082

2108

2109

2118

2127

2144

2145

2147

2148

2149

2152

2158

2231

2331

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

5758

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

7677

78

79

80

81

82

85

86

87

88

89

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119120

121

122

123

124

125

126

127

128 129

130

131

132

133

134

135

136137

138

139

140

141

142

143

144

145

146

147

148

149

150

151

152

153

154

155 156

157

158

159

160

161

162

163

164

165

166

167

168

169

170

171

172

173

176

177

178

179

180

181

182

183

184

185

186 187

188

189

190

191

192

193

194

195

196

197198

199

200 201 202

203

204

205

206

207

209 210

211 212

213

214

216

217

218

219

220

221

222

223

224

225

226

227

228

229 230

231

232

233

234

235

236

237

238

239

240

241

242

243244

245

246

247

248

249

250

251

252

253

254

255

256

257

258

259

260

261

262

263

264

265

266

267

268

269

270

271

272

273

274

275

276

277

278

279

280

281

282

283

284

285

287

288

289

290

291

292

293

294

295

296

297

298

299

300

301

302

303

304

305

306

307

308

309

310

311

312313

314315

316

317

318

319

320

321

322

323324

325

326

327

328

329

330

331

332333334

335

336

337

338

339

340

341

342

343344

345

346

347

348349

350

351

352

353

354

355

356

357

358

360

361

362

363

364

365

366

367

368

369

370

371

372

373

374

375

376

377

378

379

380

381

382

383

384

385

387

388

389

390

391

392

393394

395

396

397

398

399

400

401

402

403

404

405

406

407

408

409

410

411

412

413

414

415

416

417

418

419

420

421

422

423

424

425

427

428

429

430431

432

433

434

435

436

437

438

439

440

441

442

443

444

445

446

447

448

449

450

451

452 453

454455456

457

458

459

460

461 462

463

464

465

466

467

468

469

470

471

472

473

474

475

476

477

478

479

480

481

482

483

484

485486

487

488

489

490

491

492

493

494

495

496

497

498

499

501

502

503

504

505

506

507

508

509

510

511

512

513

514

515

516

517

518

519

520

521

522

523

524

525 526

527

528

529

530

531

532533

534

535

536

537

538

539

540

541

542

543544545

546

547

548

549 550

551

552

553

554

555

556557

558

559

560

561

562

563

564

565

566

567

568569

570

571

572

573

574

575

576

577

578

579

580

581582

583

584

585

586

587

588

589

590

591

592

593

594

595

596

598

599

601

602

603

604

605

607608

609610

611

612613

614

615

616

617

618

619

620

621

622

623

624625

626 627

628

629

630

631

632 633

634

635

636

637

638

639

640

641

642

643

644

645

646

647

648

649

650

651

652653

654

655

656

657

658

659

660 661

663

664

665

666

667

668

669

670

671

672

673

674

675

676

677

678

679

680

681

682

683

684

685

686

687

688

689

1000

1001

1002

1003

1004

100510061007

10081009

1010

1011

1012

1013

1014

1015

1016

1017

1018

1019

1020

1021

1022

1023

1024

1025

1026

1027

1028

1029

1030

1031

1032

1033

1034

1035

1036

1037

1038

1039

1040

10411042

1043

1044

1045

1046

1047

10481049

1050

1051

1052

1053

1054

1055

1056

1057 1058

1059

1060

1061

1062

1063

1064

1065

1066

1067

1068

10691070

1071

1072

1073

1074

1075

1076

1077

1078

1079

1080

1081

1082

1083

1084

1085

1086

1087

1088

1089

1090

1091

10921093

1094

1095

1096

1097

1098

1099

1100

1101

1102

1103

1104

1105

1106

1107

1108

1109

1110

1111

1112

1113

1114

1115

1116

1117

1118

1119

1120

1121

1122

1123

1124

1125

1126

11271128

1129

1130

1131

1132

1133

1134

1135

1136

1137

1138

1139

1140

1141

1142

1143

1144

1145

1146

1147

1148

1149

1150

1151 1152

1153

1154

1155 1156

1157

1158

1159

11601161

1162

1163

1164

1165

1166

1167

1168

1169

1170

11711172

1173

1174

1175

11761177

1178

1180

1181

1182

690

691

692

693

694

695 696

697

698

699

700

701

702

703

704

705

706

707708709

710

711

712713

714

715

716717

718

719

720

721

722

723

724

725

726

727

728

729

730

731

732

733

734

735

737

739

740

741

742

743

744

745

746

747

748

749

750

751

752

753

754

755

756

757

758

759

760

761

762

763

764

765

766

767

768

769

770

1183

1184

1185

1187

1188

1189

1190

1191

1192

11931194

1195

1197

1198

1199

12001201

1202

1203

1204

1205

1206

1207

1208

12091210

1211

1212

1213

1214

1215

1216

1217

1218

1219

1220

1221

1222

1223

1224

1225

1226

1227

1228

1229

1230

1231

1232

1233

1234

1235

1236

1237

1238

1239

1240

1241

1242

1243

1244

1245

1246

1247

1248

1249

1250

1251

1252

1253

2000

200120022003

2004

20052006

2007

20082009

2010

2011

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

202920302031

2032 2034

2035

2036

2037

2038

2039

2040

2041

20422043 2044

20452046

2047

2048

2049

2050

2051

2052

2053

2054

2055

2057

2058

20592060

2061

2062

20632064

2065

20662067

2068

2069

2070

2071

2072

2073

2074

2075

2076

2077

2078

2079

2083

2084

20852086

2087

2088

20892090

2091

2092

2093

2094

2095

2096

2097

2098

20992100

2101 2102

2103

2104

2105

2106

2107

2110

21112112

2113

2114

2115

2116

2117

2119

2120

21212122

2123

2124

2125

2126

2128

2129

2130

21312132

2133

2134

21352136

2137 2138

2139

2140

2141

21422143

2146

2150

2151

2153

2154

2155

2156

2157

2159

2160

2161

2162

2163

21642165

2166

2167

2168

2169

2170

2171

2172

2173

2174 2175

21762177

2178

2179

2180

2181

2182

2183

2184

2185

2186

2187

2188

2189

2190

2191

2192

2193

2194

2195

2196

21972198

21992200

2201

2202

2203

2204

2205

2206

2207

2208

2209

2210

22112212

2213

2214

2215

2216

2217

2218

22192220

2221

22222223

2224

2225

2226

2227

2228

2229

2230

22322233

2234

2235

2236 2237

2238 2239 2240

2241

2242

2243

2244

2245

2246

2247

2248

2249

2250

2251

2252

2253

2254

2255 22562257 2258

2259

2260

2261

2262

2263 2264

2265

2266

2267

2268

2269

2270

22712272

2273

2274

22752276

2277

2278

2279

2280

2281

2282

2283

2284

2285

2286

2288

2289

2290

2291

2292

2293

22942295

2296

2297

2298

2299

2300

2301

2302 2303

2304

2305

2306

2307

2308

2309

23102311

2312

2313

2314

2315

2316

2317

2318

2319

2320

2321

2322

2323 2324

2325

2326

2327

2328

2329

2330

2332

2333

2334

2335

2336

2337

2338

2339

2340

2341

2342

2343

2344

2345

2346

2347

2348

2349

2350

2351

2352

2353

2354

2355

2356

2357

2358

2359

L-1.1 L-1.2 L-1.3

L-1.6L-1.5L-1.4

L-1.7

L-1.10 L-1.11

L-1.8 L-1.9

L-1.12

KEY

. HIIEL W

ST
E

A

C
CT

TE

SA

H

ET

S
TA

I
RE

G

83

OF

0 6
ET

X

L
R

LD
RE

CAANDS

A
EP A

S
O

NCI
M

04/06/21

88



500

597

600

606

662

431

440

441

442

443

444

445

446

447

448

449

450

452

479

482

483

484

485

486

487

488

489

490

491

492

493

494

495

496

497

498

499

501

502

503

504

505

506

507

508

509

510

511

512

513

514

515

516

517

518

519

520

521

522

523

561

562

563

564

565

566

567

568

569

570

571

572

573

576

577

578

579

580

581

582

583

584

585

586

587

588

589

590

591

592

593

594

595

596

598

599

601

602

603

604

605

607
608

609

610

611

612
613

614

615

616

617

618

619

620

621

622

623

624

625

626
627

628

629

630

631

632

633

634

635

636

637

638

639

640

641

642

643

644

645

646

647

648

649

650

651

652

653

654

655

656

657

658

659

660

661

663

664

665

666

667

672

673

674

675

680

681

682

683

684

685

686

687

688

689

690

691

692

699

700

701

711

756

757

758

759

760

761

762

763

764

765

766

1242

1243

1244

1245

1246

1247

1248

1249

1253

STREET K

STREET J

F
.
M

.
 
1
1
4
1

OPEN SPACE

SHEET NUMBER

B
 A

 N
N

I S
 T

 E
 R

 
2

4
0

 
N

o
r
t
h

 
M

i
t
c
h

e
l
l
 
R

o
a

d
M

a
n

s
f
i
e

l
d

,
 
T

X
 
7

6
0

6
3

8
1

7
.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

4
8

1
7

.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

5
 
f
a

x

R
E

G
I
S

T
R

A
T

I
O

N
 
#

 
F

-
1

0
5

9
9

 
(
T

E
X

A
S

)

N
E

L
S

O
N

 
L

A
K

E
S

R
O

C
K

W
A

L
L

,
 
T

E
X

A
S

E
 
N

 
G

 
I
 
N

 
E

 
E

 
R

 
I
 
N

 
G

L-1.7

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N
 
E

N
L
A

R
G

E
M

E
N

T
 
(
7
 
O

F
 
1
2
)

TREE LEGEND

PRESERVED EXISTING TREE

REMOVED EXISTING TREE

75

83

84

90

174

175

208

215

359

386

426

500

597

600

606

662

1179

736738

1186

1196

2012

2013

2014

2033

2056

2080

2081

2082

2108

2109

2118

2127

2144

2145

2147

2148

2149

2152

2158

2231

2331

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

5758

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

7677

78

79

80

81

82

85

86

87

88

89

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119120

121

122

123

124

125

126

127

128 129

130

131

132

133

134

135

136137

138

139

140

141

142

143

144

145

146

147

148

149

150

151

152

153

154

155 156

157

158

159

160

161

162

163

164

165

166

167

168

169

170

171

172

173

176

177

178

179

180

181

182

183

184

185

186 187

188

189

190

191

192

193

194

195

196

197198

199

200 201 202

203

204

205

206

207

209 210

211 212

213

214

216

217

218

219

220

221

222

223

224

225

226

227

228

229 230

231

232

233

234

235

236

237

238

239

240

241

242

243244

245

246

247

248

249

250

251

252

253

254

255

256

257

258

259

260

261

262

263

264

265

266

267

268

269

270

271

272

273

274

275

276

277

278

279

280

281

282

283

284

285

287

288

289

290

291

292

293

294

295

296

297

298

299

300

301

302

303

304

305

306

307

308

309

310

311

312313

314315

316

317

318

319

320

321

322

323324

325

326

327

328

329

330

331

332333334

335

336

337

338

339

340

341

342

343344

345

346

347

348349

350

351

352

353

354

355

356

357

358

360

361

362

363

364

365

366

367

368

369

370

371

372

373

374

375

376

377

378

379

380

381

382

383

384

385

387

388

389

390

391

392

393394

395

396

397

398

399

400

401

402

403

404

405

406

407

408

409

410

411

412

413

414

415

416

417

418

419

420

421

422

423

424

425

427

428

429

430431

432

433

434

435

436

437

438

439

440

441

442

443

444

445

446

447

448

449

450

451

452 453

454455456

457

458

459

460

461 462

463

464

465

466

467

468

469

470

471

472

473

474

475

476

477

478

479

480

481

482

483

484

485486

487

488

489

490

491

492

493

494

495

496

497

498

499

501

502

503

504

505

506

507

508

509

510

511

512

513

514

515

516

517

518

519

520

521

522

523

524

525 526

527

528

529

530

531

532533

534

535

536

537

538

539

540

541

542

543544545

546

547

548

549 550

551

552

553

554

555

556557

558

559

560

561

562

563

564

565

566

567

568569

570

571

572

573

574

575

576

577

578

579

580

581582

583

584

585

586

587

588

589

590

591

592

593

594

595

596

598

599

601

602

603

604

605

607608

609610

611

612613

614

615

616

617

618

619

620

621

622

623

624625

626 627

628

629

630

631

632 633

634

635

636

637

638

639

640

641

642

643

644

645

646

647

648

649

650

651

652653

654

655

656

657

658

659

660 661

663

664

665

666

667

668

669

670

671

672

673

674

675

676

677

678

679

680

681

682

683

684

685

686

687

688

689

1000

1001

1002

1003

1004

100510061007

10081009

1010

1011

1012

1013

1014

1015

1016

1017

1018

1019

1020

1021

1022

1023

1024

1025

1026

1027

1028

1029

1030

1031

1032

1033

1034

1035

1036

1037

1038

1039

1040

10411042

1043

1044

1045

1046

1047

10481049

1050

1051

1052

1053

1054

1055

1056

1057 1058

1059

1060

1061

1062

1063

1064

1065

1066

1067

1068

10691070

1071

1072

1073

1074

1075

1076

1077

1078

1079

1080

1081

1082

1083

1084

1085

1086

1087

1088

1089

1090

1091

10921093

1094

1095

1096

1097

1098

1099

1100

1101

1102

1103

1104

1105

1106

1107

1108

1109

1110

1111

1112

1113

1114

1115

1116

1117

1118

1119

1120

1121

1122

1123

1124

1125

1126

11271128

1129

1130

1131

1132

1133

1134

1135

1136

1137

1138

1139

1140

1141

1142

1143

1144

1145

1146

1147

1148

1149

1150

1151 1152

1153

1154

1155 1156

1157

1158

1159

11601161

1162

1163

1164

1165

1166

1167

1168

1169

1170

11711172

1173

1174

1175

11761177

1178

1180

1181

1182

690

691

692

693

694

695 696

697

698

699

700

701

702

703

704

705

706

707708709

710

711

712713

714

715

716717

718

719

720

721

722

723

724

725

726

727

728

729

730

731

732

733

734

735

737

739

740

741

742

743

744

745

746

747

748

749

750

751

752

753

754

755

756

757

758

759

760

761

762

763

764

765

766

767

768

769

770

1183

1184

1185

1187

1188

1189

1190

1191

1192

11931194

1195

1197

1198

1199

12001201

1202

1203

1204

1205

1206

1207

1208

12091210

1211

1212

1213

1214

1215

1216

1217

1218

1219

1220

1221

1222

1223

1224

1225

1226

1227

1228

1229

1230

1231

1232

1233

1234

1235

1236

1237

1238

1239

1240

1241

1242

1243

1244

1245

1246

1247

1248

1249

1250

1251

1252

1253

2000

200120022003

2004

20052006

2007

20082009

2010

2011

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

202920302031

2032 2034

2035

2036

2037

2038

2039

2040

2041

20422043 2044

20452046

2047

2048

2049

2050

2051

2052

2053

2054

2055

2057

2058

20592060

2061

2062

20632064

2065

20662067

2068

2069

2070

2071

2072

2073

2074

2075

2076

2077

2078

2079

2083

2084

20852086

2087

2088

20892090

2091

2092

2093

2094

2095

2096

2097

2098

20992100

2101 2102

2103

2104

2105

2106

2107

2110

21112112

2113

2114

2115

2116

2117

2119

2120

21212122

2123

2124

2125

2126

2128

2129

2130

21312132

2133

2134

21352136

2137 2138

2139

2140

2141

21422143

2146

2150

2151

2153

2154

2155

2156

2157

2159

2160

2161

2162

2163

21642165

2166

2167

2168

2169

2170

2171

2172

2173

2174 2175

21762177

2178

2179

2180

2181

2182

2183

2184

2185

2186

2187

2188

2189

2190

2191

2192

2193

2194

2195

2196

21972198

21992200

2201

2202

2203

2204

2205

2206

2207

2208

2209

2210

22112212

2213

2214

2215

2216

2217

2218

22192220

2221

22222223

2224

2225

2226

2227

2228

2229

2230

22322233

2234

2235

2236 2237

2238 2239 2240

2241

2242

2243

2244

2245

2246

2247

2248

2249

2250

2251

2252

2253

2254

2255 22562257 2258

2259

2260

2261

2262

2263 2264

2265

2266

2267

2268

2269

2270

22712272

2273

2274

22752276

2277

2278

2279

2280

2281

2282

2283

2284

2285

2286

2288

2289

2290

2291

2292

2293

22942295

2296

2297

2298

2299

2300

2301

2302 2303

2304

2305

2306

2307

2308

2309

23102311

2312

2313

2314

2315

2316

2317

2318

2319

2320

2321

2322

2323 2324

2325

2326

2327

2328

2329

2330

2332

2333

2334

2335

2336

2337

2338

2339

2340

2341

2342

2343

2344

2345

2346

2347

2348

2349

2350

2351

2352

2353

2354

2355

2356

2357

2358

2359

L-1.1 L-1.2 L-1.3

L-1.6L-1.5L-1.4

L-1.7

L-1.10 L-1.11

L-1.8 L-1.9

L-1.12

KEY

. HIIEL W

ST
E

A

C
CT

TE

SA

H

ET

S
TA

I
RE

G

83

OF

0 6
ET

X

L
R

LD
RE

CAANDS

A
EP A

S
O

NCI
M

04/06/21

89



2012

2013

2014

2033

2056

2080

2081

2082

2108

2109

2118

2127

2231

46

49

50

51

53

68

69

1022

1023

1024

1025

1026

1027

1028

1029

1030

2000

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

2029

2030

2031

2032 2034

2035

2036

2037

2038

2039

2040

2041

20422043

2044

2045

2046

2047

2048

2054

2055

2057

2059

2060

2061

2062

2063

2064

2065

2066
2067

2068

2069

2070

2071

2072

2073

2074

2075

2076

2077

2078

2079

2083

2084

2085

2086

2087

2088

2089

2090

2091

2092

2093

2094

2095

2096

2097

2098

20992100

2101

2102

2103

2104

2105

2106

2107

2110

2111

2112

2113

2114

2115

2116

2117

2119

2120

2121

2122

2123

2124

2125

2126

2128

2129

2130

21312132

2133

2134

21352136

2137

2138

2160

2161

2162

2163

2164

2165

2166

2167

2168

2169

2170

2171

2172

2173

2174

2175

21762177

2178

2179

2180

2181

2182

2183

2184

2185

2186

2187

2188

2189

2191

2192

2193

2194

2195

2196

2197

2198

2199

2200

2201

2202

2203

2204

2205

2206

2207

2208

2209

2210

2211

2212

2213

2214

2215

2216

2217

2218

2219

2220

2221

2222

2223

2224

2225

2226

2227

2228

2229

2230

2232
2233

2234

2235

2236

2237

2238

2239

2240

2241

2242

2243

2244

2245

2246

2247

2248

2249

2250

2251

2252

2253

2254

2255

2256

2257
2258

2259

2260

2261

2262

2263

2264

2265

2266

2267

2268

2269

2270

22712272

2273

2274

2275

2276

2277

2278

2279

2280

2281

2282

2283

2284

2285

2286

2288

2289

2290

2291

2292

2293

2320

2321

2322

2323

2324

2325

2326

2327

2339

2340

2341

2342

2343

2344

2345

2346

2347

2348

2349

2350

2351

2352

2353

2354

2355

2356

2357

STREET K

OPEN SPACE

OPEN SPACE

EROSION HAZARD

SETBACK EASEMENT

SHEET NUMBER

B
 A

 N
N

I S
 T

 E
 R

 
2

4
0

 
N

o
r
t
h

 
M

i
t
c
h

e
l
l
 
R

o
a

d
M

a
n

s
f
i
e

l
d

,
 
T

X
 
7

6
0

6
3

8
1

7
.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

4
8

1
7

.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

5
 
f
a

x

R
E

G
I
S

T
R

A
T

I
O

N
 
#

 
F

-
1

0
5

9
9

 
(
T

E
X

A
S

)

N
E

L
S

O
N

 
L

A
K

E
S

R
O

C
K

W
A

L
L

,
 
T

E
X

A
S

E
 
N

 
G

 
I
 
N

 
E

 
E

 
R

 
I
 
N

 
G

L-1.8

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N
 
E

N
L
A

R
G

E
M

E
N

T
 
(
8
 
O

F
 
1
2
)

TREE LEGEND

PRESERVED EXISTING TREE

REMOVED EXISTING TREE

75

83

84

90

174

175

208

215

359

386

426

500

597

600

606

662

1179

736738

1186

1196

2012

2013

2014

2033

2056

2080

2081

2082

2108

2109

2118

2127

2144

2145

2147

2148

2149

2152

2158

2231

2331

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

5758

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

7677

78

79

80

81

82

85

86

87

88

89

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119120

121

122

123

124

125

126

127

128 129

130

131

132

133

134

135

136137

138

139

140

141

142

143

144

145

146

147

148

149

150

151

152

153

154

155 156

157

158

159

160

161

162

163

164

165

166

167

168

169

170

171

172

173

176

177

178

179

180

181

182

183

184

185

186 187

188

189

190

191

192

193

194

195

196

197198

199

200 201 202

203

204

205

206

207

209 210

211 212

213

214

216

217

218

219

220

221

222

223

224

225

226

227

228

229 230

231

232

233

234

235

236

237

238

239

240

241

242

243244

245

246

247

248

249

250

251

252

253

254

255

256

257

258

259

260

261

262

263

264

265

266

267

268

269

270

271

272

273

274

275

276

277

278

279

280

281

282

283

284

285

287

288

289

290

291

292

293

294

295

296

297

298

299

300

301

302

303

304

305

306

307

308

309

310

311

312313

314315

316

317

318

319

320

321

322

323324

325

326

327

328

329

330

331

332333334

335

336

337

338

339

340

341

342

343344

345

346

347

348349

350

351

352

353

354

355

356

357

358

360

361

362

363

364

365

366

367

368

369

370

371

372

373

374

375

376

377

378

379

380

381

382

383

384

385

387

388

389

390

391

392

393394

395

396

397

398

399

400

401

402

403

404

405

406

407

408

409

410

411

412

413

414

415

416

417

418

419

420

421

422

423

424

425

427

428

429

430431

432

433

434

435

436

437

438

439

440

441

442

443

444

445

446

447

448

449

450

451

452 453

454455456

457

458

459

460

461 462

463

464

465

466

467

468

469

470

471

472

473

474

475

476

477

478

479

480

481

482

483

484

485486

487

488

489

490

491

492

493

494

495

496

497

498

499

501

502

503

504

505

506

507

508

509

510

511

512

513

514

515

516

517

518

519

520

521

522

523

524

525 526

527

528

529

530

531

532533

534

535

536

537

538

539

540

541

542

543544545

546

547

548

549 550

551

552

553

554

555

556557

558

559

560

561

562

563

564

565

566

567

568569

570

571

572

573

574

575

576

577

578

579

580

581582

583

584

585

586

587

588

589

590

591

592

593

594

595

596

598

599

601

602

603

604

605

607608

609610

611

612613

614

615

616

617

618

619

620

621

622

623

624625

626 627

628

629

630

631

632 633

634

635

636

637

638

639

640

641

642

643

644

645

646

647

648

649

650

651

652653

654

655

656

657

658

659

660 661

663

664

665

666

667

668

669

670

671

672

673

674

675

676

677

678

679

680

681

682

683

684

685

686

687

688

689

1000

1001

1002

1003

1004

100510061007

10081009

1010

1011

1012

1013

1014

1015

1016

1017

1018

1019

1020

1021

1022

1023

1024

1025

1026

1027

1028

1029

1030

1031

1032

1033

1034

1035

1036

1037

1038

1039

1040

10411042

1043

1044

1045

1046

1047

10481049

1050

1051

1052

1053

1054

1055

1056

1057 1058

1059

1060

1061

1062

1063

1064

1065

1066

1067

1068

10691070

1071

1072

1073

1074

1075

1076

1077

1078

1079

1080

1081

1082

1083

1084

1085

1086

1087

1088

1089

1090

1091

10921093

1094

1095

1096

1097

1098

1099

1100

1101

1102

1103

1104

1105

1106

1107

1108

1109

1110

1111

1112

1113

1114

1115

1116

1117

1118

1119

1120

1121

1122

1123

1124

1125

1126

11271128

1129

1130

1131

1132

1133

1134

1135

1136

1137

1138

1139

1140

1141

1142

1143

1144

1145

1146

1147

1148

1149

1150

1151 1152

1153

1154

1155 1156

1157

1158

1159

11601161

1162

1163

1164

1165

1166

1167

1168

1169

1170

11711172

1173

1174

1175

11761177

1178

1180

1181

1182

690

691

692

693

694

695 696

697

698

699

700

701

702

703

704

705

706

707708709

710

711

712713

714

715

716717

718

719

720

721

722

723

724

725

726

727

728

729

730

731

732

733

734

735

737

739

740

741

742

743

744

745

746

747

748

749

750

751

752

753

754

755

756

757

758

759

760

761

762

763

764

765

766

767

768

769

770

1183

1184

1185

1187

1188

1189

1190

1191

1192

11931194

1195

1197

1198

1199

12001201

1202

1203

1204

1205

1206

1207

1208

12091210

1211

1212

1213

1214

1215

1216

1217

1218

1219

1220

1221

1222

1223

1224

1225

1226

1227

1228

1229

1230

1231

1232

1233

1234

1235

1236

1237

1238

1239

1240

1241

1242

1243

1244

1245

1246

1247

1248

1249

1250

1251

1252

1253

2000

200120022003

2004

20052006

2007

20082009

2010

2011

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

202920302031

2032 2034

2035

2036

2037

2038

2039

2040

2041

20422043 2044

20452046

2047

2048

2049

2050

2051

2052

2053

2054

2055

2057

2058

20592060

2061

2062

20632064

2065

20662067

2068

2069

2070

2071

2072

2073

2074

2075

2076

2077

2078

2079

2083

2084

20852086

2087

2088

20892090

2091

2092

2093

2094

2095

2096

2097

2098

20992100

2101 2102

2103

2104

2105

2106

2107

2110

21112112

2113

2114

2115

2116

2117

2119

2120

21212122

2123

2124

2125

2126

2128

2129

2130

21312132

2133

2134

21352136

2137 2138

2139

2140

2141

21422143

2146

2150

2151

2153

2154

2155

2156

2157

2159

2160

2161

2162

2163

21642165

2166

2167

2168

2169

2170

2171

2172

2173

2174 2175

21762177

2178

2179

2180

2181

2182

2183

2184

2185

2186

2187

2188

2189

2190

2191

2192

2193

2194

2195

2196

21972198

21992200

2201

2202

2203

2204

2205

2206

2207

2208

2209

2210

22112212

2213

2214

2215

2216

2217

2218

22192220

2221

22222223

2224

2225

2226

2227

2228

2229

2230

22322233

2234

2235

2236 2237

2238 2239 2240

2241

2242

2243

2244

2245

2246

2247

2248

2249

2250

2251

2252

2253

2254

2255 22562257 2258

2259

2260

2261

2262

2263 2264

2265

2266

2267

2268

2269

2270

22712272

2273

2274

22752276

2277

2278

2279

2280

2281

2282

2283

2284

2285

2286

2288

2289

2290

2291

2292

2293

22942295

2296

2297

2298

2299

2300

2301

2302 2303

2304

2305

2306

2307

2308

2309

23102311

2312

2313

2314

2315

2316

2317

2318

2319

2320

2321

2322

2323 2324

2325

2326

2327

2328

2329

2330

2332

2333

2334

2335

2336

2337

2338

2339

2340

2341

2342

2343

2344

2345

2346

2347

2348

2349

2350

2351

2352

2353

2354

2355

2356

2357

2358

2359

L-1.1 L-1.2 L-1.3

L-1.6L-1.5L-1.4

L-1.7

L-1.10 L-1.11

L-1.8 L-1.9

L-1.12

KEY

. HIIEL W

ST
E

A

C
CT

TE

SA

H

ET

S
TA

I
RE

G

83

OF

0 6
ET

X

L
R

LD
RE

CAANDS

A
EP A

S
O

NCI
M

04/06/21

90



75

83

84

90

174

175

208

215

359

386

426

2331

51

53

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

70

71

72

73

74

76

77

78

79

80

81

82

85

86

87

88

89

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

118

119
120

121

122

123

125

127

128 129

130

131

132

133

134

135

140

141

142

143

144

145

146

147

148

149

150

151

152

153

154

155

156

157

158

159

160

161

162

163

164

165

166

167

168

169

170

171

172

173

176

177

178

179

180

181

182

183

184

185

186

187

188

189

190

191

192

193

194

195

196

197

198

199

200
201

202

203

204

205

206

207

209

210

211

212

213

214

216

217

218

219

220

221

222

223

224

225

226

227

228

229

230

231

232

233

234

235

236

237

238

239

240

241

242

243

244

245

246

247

248

249

250

251

252

253

254

255

256

257

258

259

260

261

262

263

264

265

266

267

268

269

270

271

272

273

274

275

276

277

278

279

280

282

283

284

287

288

289

290

291

292

293

294

295

296

297

298

299

300

301

302

303

304

305

306

307

308

309

310

311

312

313

314315

316

317

318

319

320

321

322

323

324

325

326

327

328

329

330

331

332
333334

335

336

337

338

339

340

341

342

343
344

345

346

347

348

349

350

351

352

353

354

355

356

357

358

360

361

362

363

364

365

366

367

368

369

370

371

372

373

374

375

376

377

378

379

380

381

382

383

384

385

387

388

389

390

391

392

393

394

395

396

397

398

399

400

401

402

403

404

405

406

407

408

409

410

411

412

413

414

415

416

417

418

419

420

421

422

423

424

425

427

428

429

430

431

432

433

434

435

436

437

438

439

440

441

442

443

444

445

446

447

448

449

450

451

452

453

454
455 456

457

458

459

460

461

462

463

464

465

466

467

468

469

470

471

472

473

474

475

476

477

478

479

480

481

482

483

484

485

486

487

488

489

505

506

507

508

509

510

511

512

513

514

516

524

525

526

527

528

529

530

531

532

533

534

535

536

537

538

539

540

541

542

543
544

545

546

547

548

549

550

551

552

553

554

555

556

557

558

559

560

561

562

563

564

565

566

568

569

570

571

573

574

575

589

649

650

665

666

668

672

1022

1023

1024

1035

751

752

753

754

755

756

2224

2225

2294

2295

2296

2297

2298

2299

2300

2301

2302

2303

2304

2305

2306

2307

2308

2309

2310

2311

2312

2313

2314

2315

2316

2317

2318

2319

2320

2321

2322

2323

2324

2325

2326

2327

2328

2329

2330

2332

2333

2334

2335

2336

2337

2338

2339

2340

2341

2342

2343

2344

2345

2346

2347

2348

2349

2350

2355

2356

2357

2358

2359

STREET K

STREET P

S

T

R

E

E

T

 

I

AMENITY CENTER

SHEET NUMBER

B
 A

 N
N

I S
 T

 E
 R

 
2

4
0

 
N

o
r
t
h

 
M

i
t
c
h

e
l
l
 
R

o
a

d
M

a
n

s
f
i
e

l
d

,
 
T

X
 
7

6
0

6
3

8
1

7
.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

4
8

1
7

.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

5
 
f
a

x

R
E

G
I
S

T
R

A
T

I
O

N
 
#

 
F

-
1

0
5

9
9

 
(
T

E
X

A
S

)

N
E

L
S

O
N

 
L

A
K

E
S

R
O

C
K

W
A

L
L

,
 
T

E
X

A
S

E
 
N

 
G

 
I
 
N

 
E

 
E

 
R

 
I
 
N

 
G

L-1.9

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N
 
E

N
L
A

R
G

E
M

E
N

T
 
(
9
 
O

F
 
1
2
)

TREE LEGEND

PRESERVED EXISTING TREE

REMOVED EXISTING TREE

75

83

84

90

174

175

208

215

359

386

426

500

597

600

606

662

1179

736738

1186

1196

2012

2013

2014

2033

2056

2080

2081

2082

2108

2109

2118

2127

2144

2145

2147

2148

2149

2152

2158

2231

2331

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

5758

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

7677

78

79

80

81

82

85

86

87

88

89

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119120

121

122

123

124

125

126

127

128 129

130

131

132

133

134

135

136137

138

139

140

141

142

143

144

145

146

147

148

149

150

151

152

153

154

155 156

157

158

159

160

161

162

163

164

165

166

167

168

169

170

171

172

173

176

177

178

179

180

181

182

183

184

185

186 187

188

189

190

191

192

193

194

195

196

197198

199

200 201 202

203

204

205

206

207

209 210

211 212

213

214

216

217

218

219

220

221

222

223

224

225

226

227

228

229 230

231

232

233

234

235

236

237

238

239

240

241

242

243244

245

246

247

248

249

250

251

252

253

254

255

256

257

258

259

260

261

262

263

264

265

266

267

268

269

270

271

272

273

274

275

276

277

278

279

280

281

282

283

284

285

287

288

289

290

291

292

293

294

295

296

297

298

299

300

301

302

303

304

305

306

307

308

309

310

311

312313

314315

316

317

318

319

320

321

322

323324

325

326

327

328

329

330

331

332333334

335

336

337

338

339

340

341

342

343344

345

346

347

348349

350

351

352

353

354

355

356

357

358

360

361

362

363

364

365

366

367

368

369

370

371

372

373

374

375

376

377

378

379

380

381

382

383

384

385

387

388

389

390

391

392

393394

395

396

397

398

399

400

401

402

403

404

405

406

407

408

409

410

411

412

413

414

415

416

417

418

419

420

421

422

423

424

425

427

428

429

430431

432

433

434

435

436

437

438

439

440

441

442

443

444

445

446

447

448

449

450

451

452 453

454455456

457

458

459

460

461 462

463

464

465

466

467

468

469

470

471

472

473

474

475

476

477

478

479

480

481

482

483

484

485486

487

488

489

490

491

492

493

494

495

496

497

498

499

501

502

503

504

505

506

507

508

509

510

511

512

513

514

515

516

517

518

519

520

521

522

523

524

525 526

527

528

529

530

531

532533

534

535

536

537

538

539

540

541

542

543544545

546

547

548

549 550

551

552

553

554

555

556557

558

559

560

561

562

563

564

565

566

567

568569

570

571

572

573

574

575

576

577

578

579

580

581582

583

584

585

586

587

588

589

590

591

592

593

594

595

596

598

599

601

602

603

604

605

607608

609610

611

612613

614

615

616

617

618

619

620

621

622

623

624625

626 627

628

629

630

631

632 633

634

635

636

637

638

639

640

641

642

643

644

645

646

647

648

649

650

651

652653

654

655

656

657

658

659

660 661

663

664

665

666

667

668

669

670

671

672

673

674

675

676

677

678

679

680

681

682

683

684

685

686

687

688

689

1000

1001

1002

1003

1004

100510061007

10081009

1010

1011

1012

1013

1014

1015

1016

1017

1018

1019

1020

1021

1022

1023

1024

1025

1026

1027

1028

1029

1030

1031

1032

1033

1034

1035

1036

1037

1038

1039

1040

10411042

1043

1044

1045

1046

1047

10481049

1050

1051

1052

1053

1054

1055

1056

1057 1058

1059

1060

1061

1062

1063

1064

1065

1066

1067

1068

10691070

1071

1072

1073

1074

1075

1076

1077

1078

1079

1080

1081

1082

1083

1084

1085

1086

1087

1088

1089

1090

1091

10921093

1094

1095

1096

1097

1098

1099

1100

1101

1102

1103

1104

1105

1106

1107

1108

1109

1110

1111

1112

1113

1114

1115

1116

1117

1118

1119

1120

1121

1122

1123

1124

1125

1126

11271128

1129

1130

1131

1132

1133

1134

1135

1136

1137

1138

1139

1140

1141

1142

1143

1144

1145

1146

1147

1148

1149

1150

1151 1152

1153

1154

1155 1156

1157

1158

1159

11601161

1162

1163

1164

1165

1166

1167

1168

1169

1170

11711172

1173

1174

1175

11761177

1178

1180

1181

1182

690

691

692

693

694

695 696

697

698

699

700

701

702

703

704

705

706

707708709

710

711

712713

714

715

716717

718

719

720

721

722

723

724

725

726

727

728

729

730

731

732

733

734

735

737

739

740

741

742

743

744

745

746

747

748

749

750

751

752

753

754

755

756

757

758

759

760

761

762

763

764

765

766

767

768

769

770

1183

1184

1185

1187

1188

1189

1190

1191

1192

11931194

1195

1197

1198

1199

12001201

1202

1203

1204

1205

1206

1207

1208

12091210

1211

1212

1213

1214

1215

1216

1217

1218

1219

1220

1221

1222

1223

1224

1225

1226

1227

1228

1229

1230

1231

1232

1233

1234

1235

1236

1237

1238

1239

1240

1241

1242

1243

1244

1245

1246

1247

1248

1249

1250

1251

1252

1253

2000

200120022003

2004

20052006

2007

20082009

2010

2011

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

202920302031

2032 2034

2035

2036

2037

2038

2039

2040

2041

20422043 2044

20452046

2047

2048

2049

2050

2051

2052

2053

2054

2055

2057

2058

20592060

2061

2062

20632064

2065

20662067

2068

2069

2070

2071

2072

2073

2074

2075

2076

2077

2078

2079

2083

2084

20852086

2087

2088

20892090

2091

2092

2093

2094

2095

2096

2097

2098

20992100

2101 2102

2103

2104

2105

2106

2107

2110

21112112

2113

2114

2115

2116

2117

2119

2120

21212122

2123

2124

2125

2126

2128

2129

2130

21312132

2133

2134

21352136

2137 2138

2139

2140

2141

21422143

2146

2150

2151

2153

2154

2155

2156

2157

2159

2160

2161

2162

2163

21642165

2166

2167

2168

2169

2170

2171

2172

2173

2174 2175

21762177

2178

2179

2180

2181

2182

2183

2184

2185

2186

2187

2188

2189

2190

2191

2192

2193

2194

2195

2196

21972198

21992200

2201

2202

2203

2204

2205

2206

2207

2208

2209

2210

22112212

2213

2214

2215

2216

2217

2218

22192220

2221

22222223

2224

2225

2226

2227

2228

2229

2230

22322233

2234

2235

2236 2237

2238 2239 2240

2241

2242

2243

2244

2245

2246

2247

2248

2249

2250

2251

2252

2253

2254

2255 22562257 2258

2259

2260

2261

2262

2263 2264

2265

2266

2267

2268

2269

2270

22712272

2273

2274

22752276

2277

2278

2279

2280

2281

2282

2283

2284

2285

2286

2288

2289

2290

2291

2292

2293

22942295

2296

2297

2298

2299

2300

2301

2302 2303

2304

2305

2306

2307

2308

2309

23102311

2312

2313

2314

2315

2316

2317

2318

2319

2320

2321

2322

2323 2324

2325

2326

2327

2328

2329

2330

2332

2333

2334

2335

2336

2337

2338

2339

2340

2341

2342

2343

2344

2345

2346

2347

2348

2349

2350

2351

2352

2353

2354

2355

2356

2357

2358

2359

L-1.1 L-1.2 L-1.3

L-1.6L-1.5L-1.4

L-1.7

L-1.10 L-1.11

L-1.8 L-1.9

L-1.12

KEY

. HIIEL W

ST
E

A

C
CT

TE

SA

H

ET

S
TA

I
RE

G

83

OF

0 6
ET

X

L
R

LD
RE

CAANDS

A
EP A

S
O

NCI
M

04/06/21

91



1179

736
738

1186

1196

649

651

652

653

654

655

656

657

663

664

665

666

667

670

672

673

674

675

676

677

678

679

680

681

682

683

684

685

686

1032

1033

1034

1036

1037

1038

1039

1040

1041

1042

1043

1044

1045

1046

1047

1048

1049

1050

1051

1052

1053

1054

1055

1056

1057 1058

1059

1060

1061

1062

1063

1064

1065

1066

1067

1068

1069
1070

1071

1072

1073

1074

1075

1076

1077

1078

1079

1080

1081

1082

1083

1084

1085

1086

1087

1088

1089

1090

1091

1092

1093

1094

1095

1096

1097

1098

1099

1100

1101

1102

1103

1104

1105

1106

1107

1108

1109

1110

1111

1112

1113

1114

1115

1116

1117

1118

1119

1120

1121

1122

1123

1124

1125

1126

11271128

1129

1130

1131

1132

1133

1134

1135

1136

1137

1138

1139

1140

1141

1142

1143

1144

1145

1146

1147

1148

1149

1150

1151

1152

1153

1154

1155
1156

1157

1158

1159

1160

1161

1162

1163

1164

1165

1166

1167

1168

1169

1170

11711172

1173

1174

1175

1176

1177

1178

1180

1181

1182

690

691

692

693

694

695

696

697

698

699

700

701

702

703

704

705

706

707

708

709

710

711

712
713

714

715

716

717

718

719

720

727

729

730

731

732

733

734

735

737

739

740

741

742

743

744

745

746

747

748

749

750

1183

1184

1185

1187

1188

1189

1190

1191

1192

1193

1194

1195

1197

1198

1199

1200

1201

1202

1203

1204

1205

1206

1207

1208

12091210

1211

1212

1213

1214

1215

1216

1217

1218

1219

1220

1221

1222

1223

1224

1225

1226

1227

1228

1229

1230

1231

1232

1233

1234

1235

1236

1237

1238

1239

1240

1241

1243

1244

1250

1251

1252

STREET N

S
T

R
E

E
T

 
M

F
.
M

.
 
1
1
4
1

NORTH COUNTRY LANE

SHEET NUMBER

B
 A

 N
N

I S
 T

 E
 R

 
2

4
0

 
N

o
r
t
h

 
M

i
t
c
h

e
l
l
 
R

o
a

d
M

a
n

s
f
i
e

l
d

,
 
T

X
 
7

6
0

6
3

8
1

7
.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

4
8

1
7

.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

5
 
f
a

x

R
E

G
I
S

T
R

A
T

I
O

N
 
#

 
F

-
1

0
5

9
9

 
(
T

E
X

A
S

)

N
E

L
S

O
N

 
L

A
K

E
S

R
O

C
K

W
A

L
L

,
 
T

E
X

A
S

E
 
N

 
G

 
I
 
N

 
E

 
E

 
R

 
I
 
N

 
G

L-1.10

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N
 
E

N
L
A

R
G

E
M

E
N

T
 
(
1
0
 
O

F
 
1
2
)

TREE LEGEND

PRESERVED EXISTING TREE

REMOVED EXISTING TREE

75

83

84

90

174

175

208

215

359

386

426

500

597

600

606

662

1179

736738

1186

1196

2012

2013

2014

2033

2056

2080

2081

2082

2108

2109

2118

2127

2144

2145

2147

2148

2149

2152

2158

2231

2331

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

5758

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

7677

78

79

80

81

82

85

86

87

88

89

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119120

121

122

123

124

125

126

127

128 129

130

131

132

133

134

135

136137

138

139

140

141

142

143

144

145

146

147

148

149

150

151

152

153

154

155 156

157

158

159

160

161

162

163

164

165

166

167

168

169

170

171

172

173

176

177

178

179

180

181

182

183

184

185

186 187

188

189

190

191

192

193

194

195

196

197198

199

200 201 202

203

204

205

206

207

209 210

211 212

213

214

216

217

218

219

220

221

222

223

224

225

226

227

228

229 230

231

232

233

234

235

236

237

238

239

240

241

242

243244

245

246

247

248

249

250

251

252

253

254

255

256

257

258

259

260

261

262

263

264

265

266

267

268

269

270

271

272

273

274

275

276

277

278

279

280

281

282

283

284

285

287

288

289

290

291

292

293

294

295

296

297

298

299

300

301

302

303

304

305

306

307

308

309

310

311

312313

314315

316

317

318

319

320

321

322

323324

325

326

327

328

329

330

331

332333334

335

336

337

338

339

340

341

342

343344

345

346

347

348349

350

351

352

353

354

355

356

357

358

360

361

362

363

364

365

366

367

368

369

370

371

372

373

374

375

376

377

378

379

380

381

382

383

384

385

387

388

389

390

391

392

393394

395

396

397

398

399

400

401

402

403

404

405

406

407

408

409

410

411

412

413

414

415

416

417

418

419

420

421

422

423

424

425

427

428

429

430431

432

433

434

435

436

437

438

439

440

441

442

443

444

445

446

447

448

449

450

451

452 453

454455456

457

458

459

460

461 462

463

464

465

466

467

468

469

470

471

472

473

474

475

476

477

478

479

480

481

482

483

484

485486

487

488

489

490

491

492

493

494

495

496

497

498

499

501

502

503

504

505

506

507

508

509

510

511

512

513

514

515

516

517

518

519

520

521

522

523

524

525 526

527

528

529

530

531

532533

534

535

536

537

538

539

540

541

542

543544545

546

547

548

549 550

551

552

553

554

555

556557

558

559

560

561

562

563

564

565

566

567

568569

570

571

572

573

574

575

576

577

578

579

580

581582

583

584

585

586

587

588

589

590

591

592

593

594

595

596

598

599

601

602

603

604

605

607608

609610

611

612613

614

615

616

617

618

619

620

621

622

623

624625

626 627

628

629

630

631

632 633

634

635

636

637

638

639

640

641

642

643

644

645

646

647

648

649

650

651

652653

654

655

656

657

658

659

660 661

663

664

665

666

667

668

669

670

671

672

673

674

675

676

677

678

679

680

681

682

683

684

685

686

687

688

689

1000

1001

1002

1003

1004

100510061007

10081009

1010

1011

1012

1013

1014

1015

1016

1017

1018

1019

1020

1021

1022

1023

1024

1025

1026

1027

1028

1029

1030

1031

1032

1033

1034

1035

1036

1037

1038

1039

1040

10411042

1043

1044

1045

1046

1047

10481049

1050

1051

1052

1053

1054

1055

1056

1057 1058

1059

1060

1061

1062

1063

1064

1065

1066

1067

1068

10691070

1071

1072

1073

1074

1075

1076

1077

1078

1079

1080

1081

1082

1083

1084

1085

1086

1087

1088

1089

1090

1091

10921093

1094

1095

1096

1097

1098

1099

1100

1101

1102

1103

1104

1105

1106

1107

1108

1109

1110

1111

1112

1113

1114

1115

1116

1117

1118

1119

1120

1121

1122

1123

1124

1125

1126

11271128

1129

1130

1131

1132

1133

1134

1135

1136

1137

1138

1139

1140

1141

1142

1143

1144

1145

1146

1147

1148

1149

1150

1151 1152

1153

1154

1155 1156

1157

1158

1159

11601161

1162

1163

1164

1165

1166

1167

1168

1169

1170

11711172

1173

1174

1175

11761177

1178

1180

1181

1182

690

691

692

693

694

695 696

697

698

699

700

701

702

703

704

705

706

707708709

710

711

712713

714

715

716717

718

719

720

721

722

723

724

725

726

727

728

729

730

731

732

733

734

735

737

739

740

741

742

743

744

745

746

747

748

749

750

751

752

753

754

755

756

757

758

759

760

761

762

763

764

765

766

767

768

769

770

1183

1184

1185

1187

1188

1189

1190

1191

1192

11931194

1195

1197

1198

1199

12001201

1202

1203

1204

1205

1206

1207

1208

12091210

1211

1212

1213

1214

1215

1216

1217

1218

1219

1220

1221

1222

1223

1224

1225

1226

1227

1228

1229

1230

1231

1232

1233

1234

1235

1236

1237

1238

1239

1240

1241

1242

1243

1244

1245

1246

1247

1248

1249

1250

1251

1252

1253

2000

200120022003

2004

20052006

2007

20082009

2010

2011

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

202920302031

2032 2034

2035

2036

2037

2038

2039

2040

2041

20422043 2044

20452046

2047

2048

2049

2050

2051

2052

2053

2054

2055

2057

2058

20592060

2061

2062

20632064

2065

20662067

2068

2069

2070

2071

2072

2073

2074

2075

2076

2077

2078

2079

2083

2084

20852086

2087

2088

20892090

2091

2092

2093

2094

2095

2096

2097

2098

20992100

2101 2102

2103

2104

2105

2106

2107

2110

21112112

2113

2114

2115

2116

2117

2119

2120

21212122

2123

2124

2125

2126

2128

2129

2130

21312132

2133

2134

21352136

2137 2138

2139

2140

2141

21422143

2146

2150

2151

2153

2154

2155

2156

2157

2159

2160

2161

2162

2163

21642165

2166

2167

2168

2169

2170

2171

2172

2173

2174 2175

21762177

2178

2179

2180

2181

2182

2183

2184

2185

2186

2187

2188

2189

2190

2191

2192

2193

2194

2195

2196

21972198

21992200

2201

2202

2203

2204

2205

2206

2207

2208

2209

2210

22112212

2213

2214

2215

2216

2217

2218

22192220

2221

22222223

2224

2225

2226

2227

2228

2229

2230

22322233

2234

2235

2236 2237

2238 2239 2240

2241

2242

2243

2244

2245

2246

2247

2248

2249

2250

2251

2252

2253

2254

2255 22562257 2258

2259

2260

2261

2262

2263 2264

2265

2266

2267

2268

2269

2270

22712272

2273

2274

22752276

2277

2278

2279

2280

2281

2282

2283

2284

2285

2286

2288

2289

2290

2291

2292

2293

22942295

2296

2297

2298

2299

2300

2301

2302 2303

2304

2305

2306

2307

2308

2309

23102311

2312

2313

2314

2315

2316

2317

2318

2319

2320

2321

2322

2323 2324

2325

2326

2327

2328

2329

2330

2332

2333

2334

2335

2336

2337

2338

2339

2340

2341

2342

2343

2344

2345

2346

2347

2348

2349

2350

2351

2352

2353

2354

2355

2356

2357

2358

2359

L-1.1 L-1.2 L-1.3

L-1.6L-1.5L-1.4

L-1.7

L-1.10 L-1.11

L-1.8 L-1.9

L-1.12

KEY

. HIIEL W

ST
E

A

C
CT

TE

SA

H

ET

S
TA

I
RE

G

83

OF

0 6
ET

X

L
R

LD
RE

CAANDS

A
EP A

S
O

NCI
M

04/06/21

92



473

474

475

649

665

666

668

669

670

671

672

1005

1006

1007

1008
1009

1010

1012

1013

1014

1015

1016

1017

1018

1019

1020

1021

1022

1023

1024

1031

1032

1033

1034

1158

1159

1160

1174

1175

1176

1177

1181

1182

720

721

722

723

724

725

726

727

728

729

730

731

748

1183

1188

S
T

R
E

E
T

 
I

STREET N

NORTH COUNTRY LANE

SHEET NUMBER

B
 A

 N
N

I S
 T

 E
 R

 
2

4
0

 
N

o
r
t
h

 
M

i
t
c
h

e
l
l
 
R

o
a

d
M

a
n

s
f
i
e

l
d

,
 
T

X
 
7

6
0

6
3

8
1

7
.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

4
8

1
7

.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

5
 
f
a

x

R
E

G
I
S

T
R

A
T

I
O

N
 
#

 
F

-
1

0
5

9
9

 
(
T

E
X

A
S

)

N
E

L
S

O
N

 
L

A
K

E
S

R
O

C
K

W
A

L
L

,
 
T

E
X

A
S

E
 
N

 
G

 
I
 
N

 
E

 
E

 
R

 
I
 
N

 
G

L-1.11

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N
 
E

N
L
A

R
G

E
M

E
N

T
 
(
1
1
 
O

F
 
1
2
)

TREE LEGEND

PRESERVED EXISTING TREE

REMOVED EXISTING TREE

75

83

84

90

174

175

208

215

359

386

426

500

597

600

606

662

1179

736738

1186

1196

2012

2013

2014

2033

2056

2080

2081

2082

2108

2109

2118

2127

2144

2145

2147

2148

2149

2152

2158

2231

2331

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

5758

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

7677

78

79

80

81

82

85

86

87

88

89

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119120

121

122

123

124

125

126

127

128 129

130

131

132

133

134

135

136137

138

139

140

141

142

143

144

145

146

147

148

149

150

151

152

153

154

155 156

157

158

159

160

161

162

163

164

165

166

167

168

169

170

171

172

173

176

177

178

179

180

181

182

183

184

185

186 187

188

189

190

191

192

193

194

195

196

197198

199

200 201 202

203

204

205

206

207

209 210

211 212

213

214

216

217

218

219

220

221

222

223

224

225

226

227

228

229 230

231

232

233

234

235

236

237

238

239

240

241

242

243244

245

246

247

248

249

250

251

252

253

254

255

256

257

258

259

260

261

262

263

264

265

266

267

268

269

270

271

272

273

274

275

276

277

278

279

280

281

282

283

284

285

287

288

289

290

291

292

293

294

295

296

297

298

299

300

301

302

303

304

305

306

307

308

309

310

311

312313

314315

316

317

318

319

320

321

322

323324

325

326

327

328

329

330

331

332333334

335

336

337

338

339

340

341

342

343344

345

346

347

348349

350

351

352

353

354

355

356

357

358

360

361

362

363

364

365

366

367

368

369

370

371

372

373

374

375

376

377

378

379

380

381

382

383

384

385

387

388

389

390

391

392

393394

395

396

397

398

399

400

401

402

403

404

405

406

407

408

409

410

411

412

413

414

415

416

417

418

419

420

421

422

423

424

425

427

428

429

430431

432

433

434

435

436

437

438

439

440

441

442

443

444

445

446

447

448

449

450

451

452 453

454455456

457

458

459

460

461 462

463

464

465

466

467

468

469

470

471

472

473

474

475

476

477

478

479

480

481

482

483

484

485486

487

488

489

490

491

492

493

494

495

496

497

498

499

501

502

503

504

505

506

507

508

509

510

511

512

513

514

515

516

517

518

519

520

521

522

523

524

525 526

527

528

529

530

531

532533

534

535

536

537

538

539

540

541

542

543544545

546

547

548

549 550

551

552

553

554

555

556557

558

559

560

561

562

563

564

565

566

567

568569

570

571

572

573

574

575

576

577

578

579

580

581582

583

584

585

586

587

588

589

590

591

592

593

594

595

596

598

599

601

602

603

604

605

607608

609610

611

612613

614

615

616

617

618

619

620

621

622

623

624625

626 627

628

629

630

631

632 633

634

635

636

637

638

639

640

641

642

643

644

645

646

647

648

649

650

651

652653

654

655

656

657

658

659

660 661

663

664

665

666

667

668

669

670

671

672

673

674

675

676

677

678

679

680

681

682

683

684

685

686

687

688

689

1000

1001

1002

1003

1004

100510061007

10081009

1010

1011

1012

1013

1014

1015

1016

1017

1018

1019

1020

1021

1022

1023

1024

1025

1026

1027

1028

1029

1030

1031

1032

1033

1034

1035

1036

1037

1038

1039

1040

10411042

1043

1044

1045

1046

1047

10481049

1050

1051

1052

1053

1054

1055

1056

1057 1058

1059

1060

1061

1062

1063

1064

1065

1066

1067

1068

10691070

1071

1072

1073

1074

1075

1076

1077

1078

1079

1080

1081

1082

1083

1084

1085

1086

1087

1088

1089

1090

1091

10921093

1094

1095

1096

1097

1098

1099

1100

1101

1102

1103

1104

1105

1106

1107

1108

1109

1110

1111

1112

1113

1114

1115

1116

1117

1118

1119

1120

1121

1122

1123

1124

1125

1126

11271128

1129

1130

1131

1132

1133

1134

1135

1136

1137

1138

1139

1140

1141

1142

1143

1144

1145

1146

1147

1148

1149

1150

1151 1152

1153

1154

1155 1156

1157

1158

1159

11601161

1162

1163

1164

1165

1166

1167

1168

1169

1170

11711172

1173

1174

1175

11761177

1178

1180

1181

1182

690

691

692

693

694

695 696

697

698

699

700

701

702

703

704

705

706

707708709

710

711

712713

714

715

716717

718

719

720

721

722

723

724

725

726

727

728

729

730

731

732

733

734

735

737

739

740

741

742

743

744

745

746

747

748

749

750

751

752

753

754

755

756

757

758

759

760

761

762

763

764

765

766

767

768

769

770

1183

1184

1185

1187

1188

1189

1190

1191

1192

11931194

1195

1197

1198

1199

12001201

1202

1203

1204

1205

1206

1207

1208

12091210

1211

1212

1213

1214

1215

1216

1217

1218

1219

1220

1221

1222

1223

1224

1225

1226

1227

1228

1229

1230

1231

1232

1233

1234

1235

1236

1237

1238

1239

1240

1241

1242

1243

1244

1245

1246

1247

1248

1249

1250

1251

1252

1253

2000

200120022003

2004

20052006

2007

20082009

2010

2011

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

202920302031

2032 2034

2035

2036

2037

2038

2039

2040

2041

20422043 2044

20452046

2047

2048

2049

2050

2051

2052

2053

2054

2055

2057

2058

20592060

2061

2062

20632064

2065

20662067

2068

2069

2070

2071

2072

2073

2074

2075

2076

2077

2078

2079

2083

2084

20852086

2087

2088

20892090

2091

2092

2093

2094

2095

2096

2097

2098

20992100

2101 2102

2103

2104

2105

2106

2107

2110

21112112

2113

2114

2115

2116

2117

2119

2120

21212122

2123

2124

2125

2126

2128

2129

2130

21312132

2133

2134

21352136

2137 2138

2139

2140

2141

21422143

2146

2150

2151

2153

2154

2155

2156

2157

2159

2160

2161

2162

2163

21642165

2166

2167

2168

2169

2170

2171

2172

2173

2174 2175

21762177

2178

2179

2180

2181

2182

2183

2184

2185

2186

2187

2188

2189

2190

2191

2192

2193

2194

2195

2196

21972198

21992200

2201

2202

2203

2204

2205

2206

2207

2208

2209

2210

22112212

2213

2214

2215

2216

2217

2218

22192220

2221

22222223

2224

2225

2226

2227

2228

2229

2230

22322233

2234

2235

2236 2237

2238 2239 2240

2241

2242

2243

2244

2245

2246

2247

2248

2249

2250

2251

2252

2253

2254

2255 22562257 2258

2259

2260

2261

2262

2263 2264

2265

2266

2267

2268

2269

2270

22712272

2273

2274

22752276

2277

2278

2279

2280

2281

2282

2283

2284

2285

2286

2288

2289

2290

2291

2292

2293

22942295

2296

2297

2298

2299

2300

2301

2302 2303

2304

2305

2306

2307

2308

2309

23102311

2312

2313

2314

2315

2316

2317

2318

2319

2320

2321

2322

2323 2324

2325

2326

2327

2328

2329

2330

2332

2333

2334

2335

2336

2337

2338

2339

2340

2341

2342

2343

2344

2345

2346

2347

2348

2349

2350

2351

2352

2353

2354

2355

2356

2357

2358

2359

L-1.1 L-1.2 L-1.3

L-1.6L-1.5L-1.4

L-1.7

L-1.10 L-1.11

L-1.8 L-1.9

L-1.12

KEY

. HIIEL W

ST
E

A

C
CT

TE

SA

H

ET

S
TA

I
RE

G

83

OF

0 6
ET

X

L
R

LD
RE

CAANDS

A
EP A

S
O

NCI
M

04/06/21

93



1001

1001

1000

1001

1002

1003

1004

1005

1011

1017

1018

1020

1021

1022

1023

1024

2293

STREET N

S
T

R
E

E
T

 
O

NORTH COUNTRY LANE

OPEN SPACE

EROSION HAZARD

SETBACK EASEMENT

SHEET NUMBER

B
 A

 N
N

I S
 T

 E
 R

 
2

4
0

 
N

o
r
t
h

 
M

i
t
c
h

e
l
l
 
R

o
a

d
M

a
n

s
f
i
e

l
d

,
 
T

X
 
7

6
0

6
3

8
1

7
.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

4
8

1
7

.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

5
 
f
a

x

R
E

G
I
S

T
R

A
T

I
O

N
 
#

 
F

-
1

0
5

9
9

 
(
T

E
X

A
S

)

N
E

L
S

O
N

 
L

A
K

E
S

R
O

C
K

W
A

L
L

,
 
T

E
X

A
S

E
 
N

 
G

 
I
 
N

 
E

 
E

 
R

 
I
 
N

 
G

L-1.12

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N
 
E

N
L
A

R
G

E
M

E
N

T
 
(
1
2
 
O

F
 
1
2
)

TREE LEGEND

PRESERVED EXISTING TREE

REMOVED EXISTING TREE

75

83

84

90

174

175

208

215

359

386

426

500

597

600

606

662

1179

736738

1186

1196

2012

2013

2014

2033

2056

2080

2081

2082

2108

2109

2118

2127

2144

2145

2147

2148

2149

2152

2158

2231

2331

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

5758

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

7677

78

79

80

81

82

85

86

87

88

89

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119120

121

122

123

124

125

126

127

128 129

130

131

132

133

134

135

136137

138

139

140

141

142

143

144

145

146

147

148

149

150

151

152

153

154

155 156

157

158

159

160

161

162

163

164

165

166

167

168

169

170

171

172

173

176

177

178

179

180

181

182

183

184

185

186 187

188

189

190

191

192

193

194

195

196

197198

199

200 201 202

203

204

205

206

207

209 210

211 212

213

214

216

217

218

219

220

221

222

223

224

225

226

227

228

229 230

231

232

233

234

235

236

237

238

239

240

241

242

243244

245

246

247

248

249

250

251

252

253

254

255

256

257

258

259

260

261

262

263

264

265

266

267

268

269

270

271

272

273

274

275

276

277

278

279

280

281

282

283

284

285

287

288

289

290

291

292

293

294

295

296

297

298

299

300

301

302

303

304

305

306

307

308

309

310

311

312313

314315

316

317

318

319

320

321

322

323324

325

326

327

328

329

330

331

332333334

335

336

337

338

339

340

341

342

343344

345

346

347

348349

350

351

352

353

354

355

356

357

358

360

361

362

363

364

365

366

367

368

369

370

371

372

373

374

375

376

377

378

379

380

381

382

383

384

385

387

388

389

390

391

392

393394

395

396

397

398

399

400

401

402

403

404

405

406

407

408

409

410

411

412

413

414

415

416

417

418

419

420

421

422

423

424

425

427

428

429

430431

432

433

434

435

436

437

438

439

440

441

442

443

444

445

446

447

448

449

450

451

452 453

454455456

457

458

459

460

461 462

463

464

465

466

467

468

469

470

471

472

473

474

475

476

477

478

479

480

481

482

483

484

485486

487

488

489

490

491

492

493

494

495

496

497

498

499

501

502

503

504

505

506

507

508

509

510

511

512

513

514

515

516

517

518

519

520

521

522

523

524

525 526

527

528

529

530

531

532533

534

535

536

537

538

539

540

541

542

543544545

546

547

548

549 550

551

552

553

554

555

556557

558

559

560

561

562

563

564

565

566

567

568569

570

571

572

573

574

575

576

577

578

579

580

581582

583

584

585

586

587

588

589

590

591

592

593

594

595

596

598

599

601

602

603

604

605

607608

609610

611

612613

614

615

616

617

618

619

620

621

622

623

624625

626 627

628

629

630

631

632 633

634

635

636

637

638

639

640

641

642

643

644

645

646

647

648

649

650

651

652653

654

655

656

657

658

659

660 661

663

664

665

666

667

668

669

670

671

672

673

674

675

676

677

678

679

680

681

682

683

684

685

686

687

688

689

1000

1001

1002

1003

1004

100510061007

10081009

1010

1011

1012

1013

1014

1015

1016

1017

1018

1019

1020

1021

1022

1023

1024

1025

1026

1027

1028

1029

1030

1031

1032

1033

1034

1035

1036

1037

1038

1039

1040

10411042

1043

1044

1045

1046

1047

10481049

1050

1051

1052

1053

1054

1055

1056

1057 1058

1059

1060

1061

1062

1063

1064

1065

1066

1067

1068

10691070

1071

1072

1073

1074

1075

1076

1077

1078

1079

1080

1081

1082

1083

1084

1085

1086

1087

1088

1089

1090

1091

10921093

1094

1095

1096

1097

1098

1099

1100

1101

1102

1103

1104

1105

1106

1107

1108

1109

1110

1111

1112

1113

1114

1115

1116

1117

1118

1119

1120

1121

1122

1123

1124

1125

1126

11271128

1129

1130

1131

1132

1133

1134

1135

1136

1137

1138

1139

1140

1141

1142

1143

1144

1145

1146

1147

1148

1149

1150

1151 1152

1153

1154

1155 1156

1157

1158

1159

11601161

1162

1163

1164

1165

1166

1167

1168

1169

1170

11711172

1173

1174

1175

11761177

1178

1180

1181

1182

690

691

692

693

694

695 696

697

698

699

700

701

702

703

704

705

706

707708709

710

711

712713

714

715

716717

718

719

720

721

722

723

724

725

726

727

728

729

730

731

732

733

734

735

737

739

740

741

742

743

744

745

746

747

748

749

750

751

752

753

754

755

756

757

758

759

760

761

762

763

764

765

766

767

768

769

770

1183

1184

1185

1187

1188

1189

1190

1191

1192

11931194

1195

1197

1198

1199

12001201

1202

1203

1204

1205

1206

1207

1208

12091210

1211

1212

1213

1214

1215

1216

1217

1218

1219

1220

1221

1222

1223

1224

1225

1226

1227

1228

1229

1230

1231

1232

1233

1234

1235

1236

1237

1238

1239

1240

1241

1242

1243

1244

1245

1246

1247

1248

1249

1250

1251

1252

1253

2000

200120022003

2004

20052006

2007

20082009

2010

2011

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

202920302031

2032 2034

2035

2036

2037

2038

2039

2040

2041

20422043 2044

20452046

2047

2048

2049

2050

2051

2052

2053

2054

2055

2057

2058

20592060

2061

2062

20632064

2065

20662067

2068

2069

2070

2071

2072

2073

2074

2075

2076

2077

2078

2079

2083

2084

20852086

2087

2088

20892090

2091

2092

2093

2094

2095

2096

2097

2098

20992100

2101 2102

2103

2104

2105

2106

2107

2110

21112112

2113

2114

2115

2116

2117

2119

2120

21212122

2123

2124

2125

2126

2128

2129

2130

21312132

2133

2134

21352136

2137 2138

2139

2140

2141

21422143

2146

2150

2151

2153

2154

2155

2156

2157

2159

2160

2161

2162

2163

21642165

2166

2167

2168

2169

2170

2171

2172

2173

2174 2175

21762177

2178

2179

2180

2181

2182

2183

2184

2185

2186

2187

2188

2189

2190

2191

2192

2193

2194

2195

2196

21972198

21992200

2201

2202

2203

2204

2205

2206

2207

2208

2209

2210

22112212

2213

2214

2215

2216

2217

2218

22192220

2221

22222223

2224

2225

2226

2227

2228

2229

2230

22322233

2234

2235

2236 2237

2238 2239 2240

2241

2242

2243

2244

2245

2246

2247

2248

2249

2250

2251

2252

2253

2254

2255 22562257 2258

2259

2260

2261

2262

2263 2264

2265

2266

2267

2268

2269

2270

22712272

2273

2274

22752276

2277

2278

2279

2280

2281

2282

2283

2284

2285

2286

2288

2289

2290

2291

2292

2293

22942295

2296

2297

2298

2299

2300

2301

2302 2303

2304

2305

2306

2307

2308

2309

23102311

2312

2313

2314

2315

2316

2317

2318

2319

2320

2321

2322

2323 2324

2325

2326

2327

2328

2329

2330

2332

2333

2334

2335

2336

2337

2338

2339

2340

2341

2342

2343

2344

2345

2346

2347

2348

2349

2350

2351

2352

2353

2354

2355

2356

2357

2358

2359

L-1.1 L-1.2 L-1.3

L-1.6L-1.5L-1.4

L-1.7

L-1.10 L-1.11

L-1.8 L-1.9

L-1.12

KEY

. HIIEL W

ST
E

A

C
CT

TE

SA

H

ET

S
TA

I
RE

G

83

OF

0 6
ET

X

L
R

LD
RE

CAANDS

A
EP A

S
O

NCI
M

04/06/21

94



SHEET NUMBER

B
 A

 N
N

I S
 T

 E
 R

 
2

4
0

 
N

o
r
t
h

 
M

i
t
c
h

e
l
l
 
R

o
a

d
M

a
n

s
f
i
e

l
d

,
 
T

X
 
7

6
0

6
3

8
1

7
.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

4
8

1
7

.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

5
 
f
a

x

R
E

G
I
S

T
R

A
T

I
O

N
 
#

 
F

-
1

0
5

9
9

 
(
T

E
X

A
S

)

N
E

L
S

O
N

 
L

A
K

E
S

R
O

C
K

W
A

L
L

,
 
T

E
X

A
S

E
 
N

 
G

 
I
 
N

 
E

 
E

 
R

 
I
 
N

 
G

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N
 
T

A
B

L
E

S
 
(
1
 
O

F
 
3
)

L-1.13

. HIIEL W

ST
E

A

C
CT

TE

SA

H

ET

S
TA

I
RE

G

83

OF

0 6
ET

X

L
R

LD
RE

CAANDS

A
EP A

S
O

NCI
M

04/06/21

95



SHEET NUMBER

B
 A

 N
N

I S
 T

 E
 R

 
2

4
0

 
N

o
r
t
h

 
M

i
t
c
h

e
l
l
 
R

o
a

d
M

a
n

s
f
i
e

l
d

,
 
T

X
 
7

6
0

6
3

8
1

7
.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

4
8

1
7

.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

5
 
f
a

x

R
E

G
I
S

T
R

A
T

I
O

N
 
#

 
F

-
1

0
5

9
9

 
(
T

E
X

A
S

)

N
E

L
S

O
N

 
L

A
K

E
S

R
O

C
K

W
A

L
L

,
 
T

E
X

A
S

E
 
N

 
G

 
I
 
N

 
E

 
E

 
R

 
I
 
N

 
G

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N
 
T

A
B

L
E

S
 
(
1
 
O

F
 
3
)

L-1.14

. HIIEL W

ST
E

A

C
CT

TE

SA

H

ET

S
TA

I
RE

G

83

OF

0 6
ET

X

L
R

LD
RE

CAANDS

A
EP A

S
O

NCI
M

04/06/21

96



SHEET NUMBER

B
 A

 N
N

I S
 T

 E
 R

 
2

4
0

 
N

o
r
t
h

 
M

i
t
c
h

e
l
l
 
R

o
a

d
M

a
n

s
f
i
e

l
d

,
 
T

X
 
7

6
0

6
3

8
1

7
.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

4
8

1
7

.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

5
 
f
a

x

R
E

G
I
S

T
R

A
T

I
O

N
 
#

 
F

-
1

0
5

9
9

 
(
T

E
X

A
S

)

N
E

L
S

O
N

 
L

A
K

E
S

R
O

C
K

W
A

L
L

,
 
T

E
X

A
S

E
 
N

 
G

 
I
 
N

 
E

 
E

 
R

 
I
 
N

 
G

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N
 
T

A
B

L
E

S
 
(
1
 
O

F
 
3
)

L-1.15

. HIIEL W

ST
E

A

C
CT

TE

SA

H

ET

S
TA

I
RE

G

83

OF

0 6
ET

X

L
R

LD
RE

CAANDS

A
EP A

S
O

NCI
M

04/06/21

97



SHEET NUMBER

B
 A

 N
N

I S
 T

 E
 R

 
2

4
0

 
N

o
r
t
h

 
M

i
t
c
h

e
l
l
 
R

o
a

d
M

a
n

s
f
i
e

l
d

,
 
T

X
 
7

6
0

6
3

8
1

7
.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

4
8

1
7

.
8

4
2

.
2

0
9

5
 
f
a

x

R
E

G
I
S

T
R

A
T

I
O

N
 
#

 
F

-
1

0
5

9
9

 
(
T

E
X

A
S

)

N
E

L
S

O
N

 
L

A
K

E
S

R
O

C
K

W
A

L
L

,
 
T

E
X

A
S

E
 
N

 
G

 
I
 
N

 
E

 
E

 
R

 
I
 
N

 
G

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N
 
T

A
B

L
E

S
 
(
1
 
O

F
 
3
)

. HIIEL W

ST
E

A

C
CT

TE

SA

H

ET

S
TA

I
RE

G

83

OF

0 6
ET

X

L
R

LD
RE

CAANDS

A
EP A

S
O

NCI
M

04/06/21

L-1.16

*

98



TOTAL RESIDENTIAL LOTS 260

OF

CORWIN ENGINEERING, INC.

PREPARED BY

200 W. BELMONT, SUITE E

972-396-1200

ALLEN, TEXAS 75013

ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

OWNER

SITUATED IN THE

IN THE

CONCEPT PLAN

JANUARY 2021  SCALE 1" = 100'

0  50 100 200

SCALE:  1" = 100'

LOCATION

PROJECT

LOCATION MAP

N.T.S.

LEGEND

TYPICAL LOT SIZES

NELSON LAKE ESTATES

F.M. 552

F
.M
. 

1
1
4

1

NORTH COUNTY LANE

J.M. GLASS SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 88

(80' R.O.W.)

(
8

0
' 

R
.O
.W
.)

2.146

F
.M
. 

1
1
4

1

JOHN KING

F.M. 552

OPEN SPACEOPEN SPACE

O
P

E
N
 

S
P

A
C

E

1
0
' 

R
.O
.W
. 

D
E

D
IC

A
T
IO

N

20' R.O.W. DEDICATION

LAKE

CITY OF ROCKWALL

UNISON INVESTMENT

TORRANCE, CA 90505

23545 CRENSHAW BLVD., STE. 201

35' R.O.W. DEDICATION

- AMENITY CENTER - 1.145 Ac.

- 60' X 120' - 134 LOTS

50' R.O.W. (TYP.)

50' R.O.W. (TYP.)

50' R.O.W. (TYP.)

50' R.O.W. (TYP.)

5
0
' 

R
.O
.W
. 
(
T

Y
P
.)

5
0
' 

R
.O
.W
. 
(
T

Y
P
.)

5
0
' 

R
.O
.W
. 
(
T

Y
P
.)

5
0
' 

R
.O
.W
. 
(
T

Y
P
.)

5
0
' 

R
.O
.W
. 
(
T

Y
P
.)

- 70' X 120' - 68 LOTS

O
P

E
N
 

S
P

A
C

E
O

P
E

N
 

S
P

A
C

E

TOTAL ACRES 121.158

35.67

FEMA FLOODPLAIN

APPROX. LOCATION

& NCRS EASEMENT

FEMA FLOODPLAIN

APPROX. LOCATION

NCRS EASEMENT

& NCRS EASEMENT

FEMA FLOODPLAIN

APPROX. LOCATION

FEMA FLOODPLAIN

APPROX. LOCATION

(AFTER RECLAMTION)

PROPOSED FLOODPLAIN ACRES 33.15

CURRENT FLOODPLAIN ACRES

0.46 AC

OPEN SPACE

0.62 AC

OPEN SPACE

2.50 AC.

OPEN SPACE/DRAINAGE EASEMENT

0.88 AC.

OPEN SPACE/DRAINAGE EASEMENT

  LANDSCAPE BUFFER - 50.44 AC.

- PUBLIC OPEN SPACE/

11.71 AC. (NET)

45.70 AC. (GROSS)

OPEN SPACE

OPEN SPACE

AMENITY CENTER

OPEN SPACE/

O
P

E
N
 

S
P

A
C

E
O

P
E

N
 

S
P

A
C

E

5' SIDEWALK
5' SIDEWALK

5' SIDEWALK
5
' 
S
ID

E
W

A
L

K
5
' 
S
ID

E
W

A
L

K
5
' 
S
ID

E
W

A
L

K
5
' 
S
ID

E
W

A
L

K

(BY BUILDER)

5' SIDEWALK
(BY BUILDER)

5' SIDEWALK

6
' 
S
ID

E
W

A
L

K

6' SIDEWALK

6' SIDEWALK

6
' 
S
ID

E
W

A
L

K
6
' 
S
ID

E
W

A
L

K
5
' 
S
ID

E
W

A
L

K

(BY BUILDER)

5' SIDEWALK

MONUMENT SIGN

PRIMARY MONUMENT SIGN

SECONDARY

MONUMENT SIGN

SECONDARY

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P
IN

G

3
 

T
IE

R
E

D

RESIDENTIAL DENSITY

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P
IN

G

3
 

T
IE

R
E

D

(
T

Y
P
.)

5
0
' 

R
.O
.W
.

M
O

N
U

M
E

N
T
 

S
IG

N

S
E

C
O

N
D

A
R

Y

MONUMENT SIGN

PRIMARY

6' SIDEWALK

6
' 
S
ID

E
W

A
L

K

6
' 
S
ID

E
W

A
L

K

(
B

Y
 

B
U
IL

D
E

R
)

5
' 
S
ID

E
W

A
L

K

6
' 
S
ID

E
W

A
L

K

- 72' X 120' - 58 LOTS

CASE NO. Z2020-056

THE PROPERTY OWNER/HOA.

All OPEN SPACE LOTS TO BE MAINTAINED BY

SHALL NOT EXCEED 260 LOTS.

THE MAXIMUM NUMBER OF RESIDENTIAL LOTS

NOTE:

FLOODPLAIN

OPEN SPACE OUTSIDE

FLOODPLAIN

OPEN SPACE INSIDE

17.62 AC.

32.72 AC.

99



100



 

 
CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 

MEMORANDUM  
  
 
TO:              Honorable Mayor and City Council         
 
CC:              Mary Smith, Interim City Manager 

        Joey Boyd, Assistant City Manager 
                            
 
FROM:        Travis Sales, Director of Parks, Recreation and Animal Services  
 
DATE:         April 19, 2021   
       
SUBJECT:  SWIM LESSON AGREEMENT AT GLORIA WILLIAM POOL 2021  
  
 
 

J.E.R. Chilton YMCA of Rockwall has approached the City of Rockwall about a partnership to utilize 
Gloria Williams Pool this summer. They would like to provide swim lessons to members of the local 
Boys and Girls Club at no cost.  This partnership would provide access to the pool during week day 
mornings prior to the pool’s public swim times.  YMCA would provide all of their own life guards, swim 
instructors and team leader during the program at their own expense.  This program has no impact on 
City costs or operations. 
 
There would be no additional costs to the City and the program is scheduled during times that the 
pool is available.  The facility use agreement draft is attached and has been reviewed by the City 
Attorney.   
 

101



 

 
CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 

MEMORANDUM  
  
 
TO:              Honorable Mayor and City Council         
 
CC:              Mary Smith, Interim City Manager 

        Joey Boyd, Assistant City Manager 
                            
 
FROM:        Travis Sales, Director of Parks, Recreation and Animal Services  
 
DATE:         April 19, 2021   
       
SUBJECT:  SWIM LESSON AGREEMENT AT GLORIA WILLIAM POOL 2021  
  
 
 

J.E.R. Chilton YMCA of Rockwall has approached the City of Rockwall about a partnership to utilize 
Gloria Williams Pool this summer. They would like to provide swim lessons to members of the local 
Boys and Girls Club at no cost.  This partnership would provide access to the pool during week day 
mornings prior to the pool’s public swim times.  YMCA would provide all of their own life guards, swim 
instructors and team leader during the program at their own expense.  This program has no impact on 
City costs or operations. 
 
There would be no additional costs to the City and the program is scheduled during times that the 
pool is available.  The facility use agreement draft is attached and has been reviewed by the City 
Attorney.   
 

102



 

 
CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 

MEMORANDUM  
  
 
TO:              Honorable Mayor and City Council         
 
CC:              Mary Smith, Interim City Manager 

        Joey Boyd, Assistant City Manager 
          
FROM:        Travis E. Sales, Director of Parks and Recreation 
 
DATE:         April 19, 2021   
       
SUBJECT:  Leon Tuttle Athletic Complex Canopy Damage   
  
 
 
On the morning of Wednesday, March 17, 2021 between 4:00am and 6:00am a storm complex caused severe 
canopy damage to old fabric sections and canopy structural damage at Leon Tuttle Athletic Complex. 
 
Park Staff received a quote from SunShade Awning of Texas in the amount of $55,000.00 to replace the 
canopy structures and the canopy fabric.  SunShade Awnings of Texas has been performing our canopy 
replacements, as the original installations have failed with a superior product that has been holding up to 
storms including this storm.  The majority of the damage is original frame work and original canopies.  The 
canopies are being replaced with a thicker fabric and the aluminum frame structure is being replaced with 
galvanized frame structure.   Park Staff and SunShade Staff performed the cleanup and removal of the 
damage components on March 17th as the RBSL baseball season started on March 15, 2021 and the complex 
needed to be made safe for league play.  
 
This project has been filed with TML and I met with Taylor Adjustment on March 25, 2021 and has been 
approved for replacement under insurance which requires our $2,500.00 deductible to be met.  This will result 
in the City of Rockwall being responsible for $2,500.00 of the repairs which would be available through the Rec 
Development Fund.  The Recreational Developmetn Fund has a balance of 1.1 million dollars. 
 
Pictures are attached to show the extent of the damage. 
 
Parks and Recreation Staff request that the City Council review and consider this request for the replacement. 
Staff will be available to answer any questions.   

 
 
 

103



 
 

104



Est# 31821 SUNSHADE AWNING OF TEXAS

2388 Lakeview Lane

Wylie, Tx 75098

(214)714-2951

michelle.ssawning@gmail.com
Submitted to Travis Sales Job Name Leon Tuttle Athletic Complex

Address 108 E. Washington Job  Location 1600 Airport Road, Rockwall, Tx 75087

city, state, zip Rockwall, Tx 75087 Proposal Date 3/17/2021

Email TSales@rockwall.com Contact Travis @ 972-880-4234

Phone 972-772-6498 Ssawning

Representative
Michelle Duronio

Where did you here about SunShade Awning of Texas INTERNET PHONEBOOK CUSTOMER REFERRAL CANVAS OTHER

X

Proposed list of material and work to be performed:

Awning fabric & style no

$33,000.00

$12,000.00

$7,000.00

$3,500.00

We propose to furnish the above specified materials and labor for the sum of  $55,500.00

Tax Exempt # 1-756000652-4 Tax Exempt

Total $55,500.00

Payments to be as follows:

25 % Deposited Requested $13,875.00

Total Balance Due Upon Completion $41,625.00

(proposal is good for 30 days) NO REFUNDS AFTER 3 DAYS OF SIGNED PROPOSAL

Acceptance Signature

SSA of TX     Signature 

Polytex - Green

Frame material

Approx. Size: 

(1) - 24' x 36' x 11'

Fabicate and Install 1 section of Frame Work on Entrance Canopy

Approx. Size: 33' x 36'

(2) - 23' x 24' x 15'

Recover 3 Sections on Hexagon Shade Structure:

Recover 3 Sections on Entrance Canopy

Approx. Size: 33' x 36'

The above prices, terms, and specifications are accepted. You are 

authorized to do the work specified. I agree that, payments will be made 

as outlined above. 

Notes: Customer is responsible for any permits required

W
O

R
K

 T
O

 B
E 

P
ER

FO
R

M
ED

105

mailto:michelle.ssawning@gmail.com
mailto:TSales@rockwall.com


106



107



108



109



110



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, Interim City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: April 19, 2021

SUBJECT: APPOINTMENT WITH EVA CANNON OF SIREN ROCK BREWING CO.

Attachments
Memorandum
Applicant's Letter
Proposed Signage
Siren Rock Brewing Co. Brand Guidelines
Applicant's Signage Examples

Summary/Background Information

111



On April 14, 2021, Eva Cannon of Siren Rock Brewing Co. requested an appointment with the
City Council for the purpose of asking the City Council’s approval of hand painted signage that
is associated with their corporate identity on their building at 310 S. Goliad Street.  Variances
for hand painted corporate identity signage have been approved by the City Council in the IH-30
Overlay (IH OV) District in the past (i.e. Texas Roadhouse and Raising Caine’s) and examples
of hand painted signs that relate to corporate identity -- that pre-date the current requirements -
- currently exist in the Downtown (DT) District (i.e. Zanatas and the Mercantile Building).  The
variances for signs in the overlay districts were facilitated under the Corporate Identity section
of Subsection 06.02, General Overlay District Requirements, of the Unified Development Code
(UDC), which allows the City Council to approve these types of signs.  Currently, there is no
consideration for these types of signage in the Downtown (DT) District; however, if the City
Council were to choose to facilitate the applicant’s request the following change could be made
-- at the City Council’s discretion -- to Subsection 04.07, Downtown (DT) District, of Article 05,
District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC):

Corporate Identity Signage.  A company’s corporate identity signage that conflicts with the
requirements Chapter 32, Signs, of the Municipal Code of Ordinances may be considered
through a minor waiver on a case-by-case basis where the company can demonstrate that the
proposed signage is associated with the company’s corporate identity (e.g. the company shall
provide corporate documentation, a corporate branding manual, company letter head, etc.);
however, all signage shall adhere to the size requirements stipulated by Chapter 32, Signs, of
the Municipal Code of Ordinances for the proposed sign type.

By approving this through a minor waiver in the Downtown (DT) District, the Planning and
Zoning Commission could review these on a case-by-case basis to ensure that the signage
conforms or is complimentary to surrounding businesses in the district.  For the City Council
consideration, the applicant has included the corporate branding manual for the Siren Rock
Brewing Co. as well as other examples of corporate identity signage in the City.  Staff should
note that the Siren Rock Brewing Co. could request the two (2) proposed signs under the sign
ordinance if they were printed on an approved material and adhered to the building; however,
the sign code does not allow the signs to be painted directly on the building.  Currently, they
have an active permit (i.e. COM2021-1154) for a projection sign, which meets the requirements
of the sign code and does not count against the wall signage requirements. These signs are the
only signage being requested by the applicant.  Should the City Council have any questions
staff and the applicant will be available at the City Council meeting on April 19, 2021.

Action Needed
Staff is asking for direction from the City Council; however, no action is necessary.

112



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 
 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

CC: Mary Smith, Interim City Manager 
 Joey Boyd, Assistant City Manager 
 

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning 
 

DATE: April 19, 2021 
 

SUBJECT: Appointment with Eva Cannon of Siren Rock Brewery 
 
 

On April 14, 2021, Eva Cannon of Siren Rock Brewery requested an appointment with the City Council for the purpose of 
asking the City Council’s approval of hand painted signage that is associated with their corporate identity on their building at 
310 S. Goliad Street.  Variances for hand painted corporate identity signage have been approved in the IH-30 Overlay (IH OV) 
District in the past (i.e. Texas Roadhouse and Raising Caine’s) and examples of hand painted signs that relate to corporate 
identity -- that pre-date the current requirements -- currently exist in the Downtown (DT) District (i.e. Zanatas and the 
Mercantile Building).  The variances for signs in the overlay districts were facilitated under the Corporate Identity section of 
Subsection 06.02, General Overlay District Requirements, of the Unified Development Code (UDC), which allows the City 
Council to approve these types of signs.  Currently, there is no consideration for these types of signage in the Downtown (DT) 
District; however, if the City Council were to choose to facilitate the applicant’s request the following change could be made -- 
at the City Council’s discretion -- to Subsection 04.07, Downtown (DT) District, of Article 05, District Development Standards, 
of the Unified Development Code (UDC): 
 
Corporate Identity Signage.  A company’s corporate identity signage that conflicts with the requirements Chapter 32, Signs, of 
the Municipal Code of Ordinances may be considered through a minor waiver on a case-by-case basis where the company 
can demonstrate that the proposed signage is associated with the company’s corporate identity (e.g. the company shall 
provide corporate documentation, a corporate branding manual, company letter head, etc.); however, all signage shall adhere 
to the size requirements stipulated by Chapter 32, Signs, of the Municipal Code of Ordinances for the proposed sign type. 
 
By approving this through a minor waiver in the Downtown (DT) District, the Planning and Zoning Commission could review 
these on a case-by-case basis to ensure that the signage conforms or is complimentary to surrounding businesses in the 
district.  For the City Council consideration, the applicant has included the corporate branding manual for the Siren Rock 
Brewery as well as other examples of corporate identity signage in the City.  Should the City Council have any questions staff 
and the applicant will be available at the City Council meeting on April 19, 2021. 

113



Siren Rock Brewing Co.
310 South Goliad Street, Rockwall, 75087, Texas, USA       |       www.SirenRock.com       |       @SirenRock

April 12, 2021

Ryan Miller
City of Rockwall

Re: Siren Rock Brewing Company Building Mural/ Signage

I would like to request an appointment for the upcoming City Council meeting on April 19, 2021 for the purpose of 
requesting approval for outdoor signage/mural to be painted on our building located at 310 S. Goliad St., Rockwall, 
as part of our corporate identity standards. 

The request includes our logo on the north brick face of the building, and our branded tentacles on the south hardi-
siding facing the parking lot. 

I have attached renderings of these designs, as well as our corporate brand guidelines and examples of other painted 
murals/signs from other businesses throughout Rockwall. 

I look forward to meeting with you on April 19th. 

Sincerely,

Eva Cannon
Founder/ VP, Marketing

114



115



116



B R A N D  G U I D E L I N E S

H A N D C R A F T E D  B E E R .  I R R E S I S T I B L E  C H A R A C T E R . 

117



2

BRAND  GU IDEL INES  20 18 HANDCRAF TED  BEER .  I RRES IST IBLE  CHARACTER ®S IREN  ROCK ®

Siren Rock Logos White Background

1_Primary

2_Primary_Plus_Rockwall 3_Typography

4_Crest 5_Crest_Type 6_Crest_Cross

118



3

BRAND  GU IDEL INES  20 18 HANDCRAF TED  BEER .  I RRES IST IBLE  CHARACTER ®S IREN  ROCK ®

Siren Rock Logos Black Background

1_Primary

2_Primary_Plus_Rockwall 3_Typography

4_Crest 5_Crest_Type 6_Crest_Cross

119



4

BRAND  GU IDEL INES  20 18 HANDCRAF TED  BEER .  I RRES IST IBLE  CHARACTER ®S IREN  ROCK ®

Siren Rock Logo Placement

This page shows examples of multiple collateral items of where the Siren Rock logo should be placed and what logos are appropriate to 
use dependent on the collateral in question. Predominantly the logo should be placed slightly above the center, however, note it depends 
on what medium the logo is being used as positioning will then be altered accordingly. But the logo should remain centrally aligned at the 
top of items when possible. As illustrated below. 

Different Logos work better with different collateral. Below is a  
list of what logos can be used with which items. Please note you  
will need to reference page 2-3 as the logo numbers correspond 
with numbering on these pages.

The following logo number can be used with these items. 

- Letterhead: Logos 1

- Web Ad: Logos 1, 2, 3, 5 

- Website: Logos 1, 5 

- Flyer: Logos 1, 2, 3, 5

- Print Ad: Logos 1,2, 5

- Video: Logos 1, 2, 4, 5, 6 

- Roller Banner: Logos 1, 2, 5 

Positioning & Placement

Printed Cover Letter

Flyer Video 1280 x 720px 

Web Ad 728 x 90px

Website

Print Ad 1/3

Roller Banner 33 x 80inchRoller Banner 33 x 80inch

120



5

BRAND  GU IDEL INES  20 18 HANDCRAF TED  BEER .  I RRES IST IBLE  CHARACTER ®S IREN  ROCK ®

Siren Rock Taglines

Tag Lines

Our Fixed Slogans

What Do We Write For New Tag Lines?

Examples Of New Tag Lines?

Slogan

Short Slogan

HANDCRAFTED BEER. IRRESISTIBLE CHARACTER. 

BEER WITH CHARACTER. 

Headlines like our slogans need to convey strong character & attitude. Speak simply. No-nonsense. 
You need to remember to have fun with your headlines. Don’t be to serious, we’re not conservative. 
Take the approach of being heard and having something worthwhile to shout about. Careful, there’s a 
thin line to tread, we don’t want to sound arrogant or obnoxious.

OPENING SOON! YOU IN? 

BIG BEER COMES WITH BIG CHARACTER!

MORE BEER. LESS BULLS***.

NOT ALL MIND EXPANDING SUBSTANCES ARE ILLEGAL.  
NOTE: This headline is on the border of what we can say.

ANNOUNCING YOUR WEEKEND PLANS: SIREN ROCK BEER TASTING.

121



6

BRAND  GU IDEL INES  20 18 HANDCRAF TED  BEER .  I RRES IST IBLE  CHARACTER ®S IREN  ROCK ®

Siren Rock Colors

Colors can be separated into two categories; Primary & Character. Primary colors are to be used for anything directly associated with 
Siren Rock as a brand. Primary color-scheme should always be used on all company-branded documents and anything showing all core-
beers together at the same time. Dark-grey should be used sparingly 

Character Colors are the colors used for when Siren Rock’s range of specific beers and characters are on display. This color-scheme 
should only be used when making collateral targeted at (1) specific beer brand, then the collateral can be used in that color
Note please turn to page 9 to see an example of these in use.

Color Palette 

Primary Colors

Character Colors

Siren Rock  
Primary Teal

CMYK 72 / 0 / 28 / 0 
RGB 71 / 151 / 168 
#4797a8

Brand Color

PANTONE® 
2220 C

Siren Rock  
The Prima Diva

CMYK  66 / 0 / 39 / 0 
RGB 0 / 199 / 177 
# 00c7b1

PANTONE® 
3265 C

Siren Rock  
The Fiery Rebel

CMYK  0 / 45 / 100 / 0 
RGB 239 / 150 / 0 
#ef9600

PANTONE® 
2012 C

Siren Rock  
The Noble Crusader

CMYK  76 / 76 / 0 / 0 
RGB  104 / 91 / 199 
#685bc7

PANTONE® 
2725 C

Siren Rock  
The Tender Troubadour

CMYK  40 / 71 / 0 / 0 
RGB  177 / 78 / 181 
#b14eb5

PANTONE® 
2068 C

Siren Rock  
The Fearless Contender

CMYK  89 / 0 / 100 / 10 
RGB  0 / 140 / 21 
#008C15

PANTONE® 
3265 C

Siren Rock  
The Devine Monk 

CMYK  0 / 61 / 97 / 0 
RGB 255 / 106 / 19 
#ff7a13

PANTONE® 
1585 C

Siren Rock  
The Magnetic Muse 

CMYK  0 / 87 / 85 / 0 
RGB  224 / 60 / 49 
#e03c31

PANTONE® 
179 C

Siren Rock  
The Tender Troubadour

CMYK  83 / 54 / 0 / 0 
RGB  45 / 104 / 196 
#2d68c4

PANTONE® 
2386 C

Siren Rock 
Secondary Yellow

CMYK 0 / 32 / 87 / 0 
RGB 241 / 180 / 72 
#f7ba3f

Secondary Color

PANTONE® 
143 C

Siren Rock 
Black

CMYK 0 / 0 / 0 / 94 
RGB 47 / 47 / 45 
#2f2f2d

BLACK  
94% Tint

Siren Rock 
Dark Grey

CMYK 0 / 0 / 0 / 88 
RGB 66 / 66 / 66 
#424241

GREY  
90% Tint

Siren Rock 
Light Grey

CMYK 40 / 31 / 32 / 10 
RGB 157 / 157 / 156 
#9d9d9c

GREY  
50% Tint

122



7

BRAND  GU IDEL INES  20 18 HANDCRAF TED  BEER .  I RRES IST IBLE  CHARACTER ®S IREN  ROCK ®

Siren Rock Fonts

The two different fonts listed below were chosen for different uses. Alternate Gothic No 2 was chosen for 
its semi bold, high & eye catching dominance for titles & headers. Note this font is also used in the Siren 
Rock logs. 

DIN was selected has for its contrast in appearance being a lighter, softer and more rounded for body text.

ALTERNATE GOTHIC NO 2 BT
AaBbCcDdEeFfGgHhIiJjKkLlMmNnOoPpQqRrSsTtUuVvWwXxYyZz
0123456789 ?!.,:;”()*&

THE QUICK BROWN FOX JUMPS OVER THE LAZY DOG.

DIN
AaBbCcDdEeFfGgHhIiJjKkLlMmNnOoPpQqRrSsTtUuVvWwXxYyZz

0123456789 ?!.,:;”()*&

The quick brown fox jumps over the lazy dog.

Typefaces To Use

Titles & Headers

Main Body Text

Alternative Gothic No 2 BT is used for a lot of front 
cover printed collateral and as main title for web. This 
font is always shown in CAPITALS and tracking is done 
by what looks visually appealing. This font only comes 
in one weight option. 

DIN is the typeface that a 90% of Siren Rock material 
will use for the main content of text. Tracking for this 
type should be set to -20 however this will be affected 
by sentence construction. The typeface come in many 
different weights, the ones used by Siren Rock are: 

- Regular

- Medium

- Bold

Color This font when presented on a white background 
is displayed in Siren Rock Teal, light grey or Siren 
Rock yellow.

This font when presented on a dark background can 
be displayed in the same colors as listed above and in 
white. 

Color This font when presented on a white background 
is displayed in Siren Rock Teal, Light Grey (50% Black), 
Black or in Siren Rock Yellow as a highlight color. 

This font when presented on a dark background is 
displayed in white or in a light grey (50% Black). Siren 
Rock yellow can also be used as a highlight color.

123



8

BRAND  GU IDEL INES  20 18 HANDCRAF TED  BEER .  I RRES IST IBLE  CHARACTER ®S IREN  ROCK ®

Siren Rock Headers 

How Headers Are Treated In Collateral

For all company branded collateral headers should be placed slightly below the Siren Rock logo. Note again it depends 
on what medium the logo is being used as positioning will then be altered accordingly. But the logo should remain 
centrally aligned at the top of items when possible.

Depending on what background color is used will inform the colors of headers for print and web as explained below. 

Print White Background Print Black Background

E X A M P L E  H E A D E R

Colors for headers can be all Teal or 
Yellow (legibility maybe tricky if entire 
header is yellow) OR a mixture of 
both. Discretion is advised. 

Colors for headers can be all White 
OR Yellow or Teal or a mixture of 
the two. Discretion is advised.  

E X A M P L E  H E A D E R

Website White Background Website Black Background

E X A M P L E  H E A D E R E X A M P L E  H E A D E R

Again for web discretion is advised.  

124



9

BRAND  GU IDEL INES  20 18 HANDCRAF TED  BEER .  I RRES IST IBLE  CHARACTER ®S IREN  ROCK ®

Siren Rock Footers 

Range Of Footers Used 

For all company branded collateral footers should be present. Dependent on what the collateral item is will inform 
where the footer is placed. This could be at the back of a large paged booklet or at the front of a flyer. Below shows the 
different footers and where they can be used. 

All public-facing print collateral needs to have a footer that includes (at minimum): company name, location, website, 
hashtag, social media.

Front 

Double Sided  Single Sided - can either be set up 
with the footer on or without

BackFront

Footer 4 Vertical 
Should be used when the content takes up too much  
vertical space, but footer info is still required.

Siren Rock Brewing Co.
Address To Go Here, Rockwall, Texas, TX 75201 USA       |       www.SirenRock.com       |       #SirenRock

Siren Rock Brewing Co.
Address To Go Here, Rockwall, Texas, TX 75201 USA       |       www.SirenRock.com       |       #SirenRock

Footer 3 Added Info 
Thicker grey box with footer 
info to the left and a text box 
to the right (used when more 
information is needed like 
the individual beer product-
branded sales sheets)

Siren Rock Brewing Co.

Address To Go Here, Rockwall, Texas, TX 75201 USA
www.SirenRock.com
#SirenRock

Additional Information Title

Porum quasima ximinverae. Nus expelenecti alic to eos pore 
eicaborro blam, nulparum volor aut omnihicto tes intis es aut es 
sum dolut velessum et aut vidempore laccusdae dolorio. Ovid qui 
idis seque pratur, sequas auta sam eost excerroremo cusant

Siren Rock Brewing Co.

Address To Go Here, 
Rockwall, 

Texas, TX 75201 
USA

—

www.SirenRock.com 

—

#SirenRock

Footer 2 Thin 
Thin grey box with white text 
(used on most print collateral 
like the beer calendar, sku 
sheets, reseller posters, etc) 
This footer is used when there 
is a less free space available.

Siren Rock Brewing Co.
Address To Go Here, Rockwall, Texas, TX 75201 USA       |       www.SirenRock.com       |       #SirenRock

Footer 1 Standard 
Grey box with white text 
(used on most print collateral 
like the beer calendar, sku 
sheets, reseller posters, etc) 
This footer is used when there 
is a lot of free space available.

Siren Rock Brewing Co.
Address To Go Here, Rockwall, Texas, TX 75201 USA       |       www.SirenRock.com       |       #SirenRock

125



10

BRAND  GU IDEL INES  20 18 HANDCRAF TED  BEER .  I RRES IST IBLE  CHARACTER ®S IREN  ROCK ®

Siren Rock Collateral

How The Siren Rock Cans Affect Collateral

The Siren Rock cans when displayed on any Siren Rock branded collateral will always still maintain the Primary Color 
scheme. However if the collateral is specifically about one of our beers then the color scheme will be heavily influenced by 
that specific characters main color scheme. 

Examples Siren Rock Branded Collateral

These examples here are to demonstrate that 
although this material shows the range of Siren 
Rock character cans it still maintains a strong 
connection back to the Siren Rock brand itself. 

Anything company/brand related in primary color-
scheme, if the beers are shown, then all 7-core 
beers should always be shown together.

Having a minimum amount of tentacles for both 
dark & white background items is suggested. The 
key is not to overkill the design with tentacles. 
NOTE It is also down to the discretion of the design 
whether it requires tentacles as it may in some 
instances not be appropriate.   

Example Siren Rock Character Collateral

Demonstrated here is how the character color 
scheme & layout is changed dramatically. This 
is in order to hit home the personality, variety & 
individuality of Siren Rocks characters, so it owns 
its place in the Siren Rock brand umbrella.   

If the document is targeted at 1 beer brand, then 
it can show the single beer by itself but must be in 
that beer’s color-scheme  

T I T L E  /  H E A D E R

H A N D C R A F T E D  B E E R .  I R R E S I S T I B L E  C H A R A C T E R .

NOBLE
CRUSADER

THE

AMERICAN RUSTICALLY
IPABITTER

H A N D C R A F T E D  B E E R .  I R R E S I S T I B L E  C H A R A C T E R .

NOBLE
CRUSADER

THE

AMERICAN RUSTICALLY
IPABITTER

T I T L E  /  H E A D E R

126



11

BRAND  GU IDEL INES  20 18 HANDCRAF TED  BEER .  I RRES IST IBLE  CHARACTER ®S IREN  ROCK ®

Siren Rock Tone Of Voice

The Basics

Who Are We? What Makes Siren Rock, Siren Rock?

Give Me The Key Selling Points?

We Feel A Disclaimer Coming On?

What’s The Plan?

Siren Rock is based on “Irresistible Character”, 
which reflects perfectly our beers who all have 
strong personalties. That’s who Siren Rock 
is, packed with uncompromising, fully loaded 
charisma with a good-time attitude.

Siren Rock is bringing beer with character to 
everyone, everywhere. 

H A N D C R A F T E D  B E E R .  I R R E S I S T I B L E  C H A R A C T E R . 

Siren Rock would be described as:

- Having an attitude 

- We like to be loud

- We like to have fun

- Community focused 

- Easy going and engaged

- We’re non-conformist

- Don’t take ourselves too seriously  

- Confident and bold

Siren Rock is NOT:

- Too loud it can’t hear others

- Always trying be center of attention

- Blissful to how we affect our community  
  & the world around us

- A company that takes nothing seriously

- Too shy to stand up for what feels right

- Arrogant & obnoxious or rude 

We’re based in Rockwall, Texas and proud of it, that’s where the “Rock” in “Siren 
Rock” is from. We already have a range of 7 beers ready to go, each of which is 
distinctively different from the other. You won’t miss them, they’re bold, brave and 
full of character. 

The Siren Rock logo shows a mythological female creature & graphics used for the 
brand are primarily nautical based. However this does not mean the copy includes a 
feminine or sea voyage vocabulary. 

The copy is all about showing Siren Rock’s personality traits, which are mentioned 
above. Our personality is what makes us us. Not gender or ocean based 
iconography. Personality revolves around people and we’re all about bringing 
everyone into the Siren Rock community through our undeniable charm.   

127



12

BRAND  GU IDEL INES  20 18 HANDCRAF TED  BEER .  I RRES IST IBLE  CHARACTER ®S IREN  ROCK ®

Siren Rock Tone Of Voice

Tone

What Do We Write For Wordy Stuff?

Example Copy?

Tone of voice is important as much as headlines. Copy needs to get across a straight 
talking, assertive attitude. We want to also have a conversational style in how we 
write so we come across as a casual friend.

Fun Time Fred At Siren Rock Boring Bob At Bland Time Brewery

• I went to the store today. Saw a lot of cars parked. Many cars 
were parked at the store. Maybe its a busy day. Some of the cars 
were blue. Some were tan. Think there was some old muscle car 
there, don’t remember too well. 

• I think trees are maybe one of the most important resources. 
Think they’re made of wood, wood can make a few products. 
Things like furniture, houses, and toothpicks. Wood I guess 
makes paper. When I first heard this I was young and sceptical. 
Paper is pretty important to our society.

• Thanksgiving is a boring tradition of preparing large amounts 
of food for a large gathering of people, mainly people you 
may know. This meal usually has a turkey or ham as the main 
course. The meal usually also consists of dressing and a wide 
assortment of vegetables, nothing special. 

• I’m heading to the store downtown and there’s loads of sweet cars 
parked up; but there was one that stood out; a thunderbolt blue 
1967 GT Mustang.... What a car, best kind of V8 purity that can 
grace the tarmac.       

• Trees are awesome aren’t they? They make chairs to kick back 
on, that sleepy Netflix cave you call bed , toothpicks to get that 
annoying bit of candy out ect ect. Paper though is right up there, 
Artists, Poets, Writers, Philosophisers, Historians, Scientists, 
Mathematicians have done some (I’ll say it again) awesome stuff 
with this white wonder.   

• Thanksgiving is a great excuse to have tones of food & get fat with all 
your friends and folks. Complimented with a freshly crisp cold one, 
and the main event. A golden cooked Turkey or some cured salted 
Ham. No to mention Grandma’s stuffing.... So bueno. Topped off with 
the Veg fest..... What’s there not to like. 

Things To Consider When Writing For Web

The points explained on the previous pages apply when writing copy for web. Just a few bullet points listed to consider. 

1. Less is more
2. Use relevant keywords
3. Headings & titles are essential to brand and SEO
4. Keep it short
5. Use descriptive words and easy-to-scan writing style 

128



13

BRAND  GU IDEL INES  20 18 HANDCRAF TED  BEER .  I RRES IST IBLE  CHARACTER ®S IREN  ROCK ®

Siren Rock Bringing It All Together

Let’s Put Everything We Know To The Test – Primary usage = Light version

Below is a demonstration of putting everything Siren Rock as a brand stands for. Below is one of Siren Rocks styles that Siren Rock has 
available. Note as mentioned previously dependent on what medium the collateral positioning & content can be altered accordingly, with 
the below as close reference to follow.

Siren Rock Brewing Co.
Address To Go Here, Rockwall, Texas, USA       |       www.SirenRock.com       |       #SirenRock

H A N D C R A F T E D  B E E R .  I R R E S I S T I B L E  C H A R A C T E R . 

Tur, sequi audi ulparum et ipsae si denecture consent laccabor ad ut quam, od magnatusciis 
ratio eos ulparum faccatempor moluptiam dia delest fugiti nos et et et quamust, sande que 
nem. Harions equatur solut poria none niti corem earchil ma veles moluptatiunt landita turepr.

H E A D E R  G O E S  H E R E 

Logo is aligned centrally and in an elevated position.

Slogan for Siren Rock placed below copy.  
This can be placed lower however this is 
affected by the imagery / graphic.

Header is placed below the logo again 
centrally aligned as well as copy being 
treated in a similar way below

Footer Standard is used at the bottom of 
the page. Note dependent on the size of 
the collateral and what is required will 
inform which footer should be used. 

Dependent on what is required on the 
back content will help inform layout. 

Cans are used however because this is a 
Siren Rock branded collateral it maintains 
the primary colors and rules

Copy should be in teal 
and any highlighted text 
should be yellow.

Light Background

Normally have a minimum 
of amount of tentacles (2-3) 
but not to overkill the design 
with them. Design may 
at times benefit from not 
having tentacles, discretion 
is advised.  

129



14

BRAND  GU IDEL INES  20 18 HANDCRAF TED  BEER .  I RRES IST IBLE  CHARACTER ®S IREN  ROCK ®

Siren Rock Bringing It All Together

Let’s Put Everything We Know To The Test – Secondary usage = Dark version

Below is a demonstration of putting everything Siren Rock as a brand stands for. Below is one of Siren Rocks styles that Siren Rock has 
available. Note as mentioned previously dependent on what medium the collateral positioning & content can be altered accordingly, with 
the below as close reference to follow.

Siren Rock Brewing Co.
Address To Go Here, Rockwall, Texas, USA       |       www.SirenRock.com       |       #SirenRock

H A N D C R A F T E D  B E E R .  I R R E S I S T I B L E  C H A R A C T E R . 

Tur, sequi audi ulparum et ipsae si denecture consent laccabor ad ut quam, od magnatusciis 
ratio eos ulparum faccatempor moluptiam dia delest fugiti nos et et et quamust, sande que 
nem. Harions equatur solut poria none niti corem earchil ma veles moluptatiunt landita turepr.

H E A D E R  G O E S  H E R E 

Logo is aligned centrally and in an elevated position.

Slogan for Siren Rock placed below copy.  
This can be placed lower however this is 
affected by the imagery / graphic.

Normally have a minimum 
of amount of tentacles (2-3) 
but not to overkill the design 
with them. Design may 
at times benefit from not 
having tentacles, discretion 
is advised.  

Header is placed below the logo again 
centrally aligned as well as copy being 
treated in a similar way below

Footer Standard is used at the bottom of 
the page. Note dependent on the size of 
the collateral and what is required will 
inform which footer should be used. 

Dependent on what is required on the 
back content will help inform layout. 

Cans are used however because this is a 
Siren Rock branded collateral it maintains 
the primary colors and rules

Copy should be in white 
and any highlighted text 
should be yellow.

94% Black Background

130



15

BRAND  GU IDEL INES  20 18 HANDCRAF TED  BEER .  I RRES IST IBLE  CHARACTER ®S IREN  ROCK ®

Siren Rock Overview Examples

Here’s Some Examples

Page to be expanded as we have more items. 

D E S T I N A T I O N  B R E W E R Y , 
T A S T I N G  R O O M ,  A N D  B E E R  G A R D E N .

Siren Rock Brewing Company is a 13k sqft custom-designed destination 
brewery & tasting room being planned on 1.16 acres in the Historic 

Downtown District of Rockwall, Texas. This will be a brewery version of a 
Napa Valley winery, offering tastings, tours, and special events.

H A N D C R A F T E D  B E E R .  I R R E S I S T I B L E  C H A R A C T E R . 

BEER MENU

FOOD MENUOUR STORY

Siren Rock Brewing Company will be a custom 
designed ~13,000 square foot destination 

brewery in Rockwall. Siren Rock was 
designed to enhance the local environment of 

Rockwall’s downtown district, to be an inviting 
community brewery, and refl ect a message 
of unwavering commitment to quality both in 

product and life.

“

“

FRESH THYME & YOGURT CHICKEN KEBAB                $8

Grilled chicken breast marinated with garlic, cumin, fresh 
oregano, black pepper, Greek yogurt, fresh thyme, paprika 
and lemon juice.

SUCCULENT MARINATED LAMB KEBAB                     $10

Grilled lamb rump marinated with garlic, cumin, ground 
coriander, smoked paprika, olive oil, fresh oregano and 
lemon juice

FALAFEL & HALLOUMI KEBAB (V) (VGN)                      $8

Homemade falafel made with chickpeas, fresh coriander, 
gram fl our, cumin, smoked paprika, cayenne pepper, 
turmeric, olive oil and lime juice and marinated halloumi.

CLASSIC 8OZ ANGUS BURGER                                          $7

Served with lettuce, tomato, red onion relish & pickles.

LAMB & HALLOUMI BURGER                                              $8

Lamb burger with smoked garlic and rosemary served with 
grilled marinated halloumi and tzatziki.

H A N D C R A F T E D  B E E R .  I R R E S I S T I B L E  C H A R A C T E R . 

SALMON FISHCAKES                                                             $6

Salmon fi sh cakes with salsa verde, hand-cut chips and roast 
summer veg salad.

BAKED AUBERGINE (V)(VGN)                                            $8

Marinated aubergine baked in the oven with vine cherry 
tomatoes, olive tofu and mozzarella served with roast veg 
couscous and dressed rocket.

BEER RELEASE CALENDER 2019

Th
e T

ap
ro

om
 S

er
ies

Im
pe

ria
l S

er
ies

Lim
ite

d R
ele

as
e C

ha
ra

ct
er

s
Th

e C
or

e C
ha

ra
ct

er
s

* Draft available on limited basis —  for full beer details, please visit SIRENROCK.COM — Calender schedule subject to change. 

Siren Rock Brewing Co.
Address To Go Here, Rockwall, Texas, TX 75201 USA       |       www.SirenRock.com       |       #SirenRock

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
AMERICAN BLOND ALE
The Prima Diva

Cans: 12oz - 6pack
Kegs: 1/6 BBL & 1/2 BBL

SCOTTISH ALE
The Fiery Rebel

Cans: 12oz - 6pack
Kegs: 1/6 BBL & 1/2 BBL

AMERICAN IPA
The Noble Crusader

Cans: 12oz - 6pack
Kegs: 1/6 BBL & 1/2 BBL

HAZY IPA
The Tender Troubadour

Cans: 12oz - 6pack
Kegs: 1/6 BBL & 1/2 BBL

FARMHOUSE SAISON
The Magnetic Muse

Cans: 12oz - 6pack
Kegs: 1/6 BBL & 1/2 BBL

BELGIAN WIT
The Divine Monk

Cans: 12oz - 6pack
Kegs: 1/6 BBL & 1/2 BBL

AMERICAN STOUT
The Lone Castaway

Cans: 12oz - 6pack
Kegs: 1/6 BBL & 1/2 BBL

AMERICAN BROWN ALE
The Cunning Rogue

Cans: 12oz - 6pack
Kegs: 1/6 BBL & 1/2 BBL

BELGIAN-STYLE PALE ALE
TBD

Cans: 12oz - 6pack
Kegs: 1/6 BBL & 1/2 BBL

TEXAS HONEY KÖLSCH
TBD

Cans: 12oz - 6pack
Kegs: 1/6 BBL & 1/2 BBL

PEACH DOUBLE IPA
The Gentle Jokester

Cans: 12oz - 6pack
Kegs: 1/6 BBL & 1/2 BBL

BLOOD-ORANGE SAISON
The Fearless Contender

Cans: 12oz - 6pack
Kegs: 1/6 BBL & 1/2 BBL

SPICED WINTER ALE
The Blind Prophet

Cans: 12oz - 6pack
Kegs: 1/6 BBL & 1/2 BBL

IMPERIAL MILK STOUT 
Le Fay’s Lullaby Taproom Only

IMPERIAL RED ALE
Headless Henry Taproom Only

IMPERIAL IPA
Audacious Arthur Taproom Only

IMPERIAL RYE
Wailing William Wallace Taproom Only

TBD
TBD Taproom Only

TBD
TBD Taproom Only

TBD
TBD Taproom Only

TBD
TBD Taproom Only

Ta
pr

oo
m 

Se
rie

s
Im

pe
ria

l S
er

ies
Lim

ite
d R

ele
as

e C
ha

ra
ct

er
s

Ou
r C

or
e C

ha
ra

ct
er

s

Year Round

Year Round

Year Round

Year Round

Year Round

Year Round

Year Round

H A N D C R A F T E D  B E E R .  I R R E S I S T I B L E  C H A R A C T E R . 

131



16

BRAND  GU IDEL INES  20 18 HANDCRAF TED  BEER .  I RRES IST IBLE  CHARACTER ®S IREN  ROCK ®

Siren Rock Overview Examples

Here’s Some Examples

Page to be expanded as we have more items. 132



H A N D C R A F T E D  B E E R .  I R R E S I S T I B L E  C H A R A C T E R . 

Siren Rock Brewing Co.
Address To Go Here, Rockwall, Texas, TX 75201 USA       |       www.SirenRock.com       |       #SirenRock 133



134



135



136



137



138



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, Interim City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: April 19, 2021

SUBJECT: Z2021-006; ZONING AMENDMENT TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT 79 (PD-79)

Attachments
Case Memo
Development Application
Owner Acknowledgements
Location Map
HOA Notification Map
Neighborhood Notification Email
Property Owner Notification Map
Property Owner Notification List
Public Notice
Applicant's Request
Ordinance Changes
Ordinance No. 20-35
Proposed Floor Plans
Draft Ordinance

Summary/Background Information
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Pat Atkins of KPA Consulting, Inc.
on behalf of the owners C. D. T. Rockwall 2017, LLC; Saddle Star Holdings, LLC; and
Gwendolyn Reed for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Amendment to Planned
Development District 79 (PD-79) [Ordinance No. 20-35] for the purpose of amending the
development standards contained in Ordinance No. 20-35 for a 70.408-acre tract of land
identified as Tracts 1, 1-03, 1-5 & 2-03 of the P. B. Harrison Survey, Abstract No. 97, City of
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 79 (PD-79) for Single-
Family 8.4 (SF-8.4) District land uses, situated within the SH-205 By-Pass Overlay (SH-205 BY-
OV) District, located on the north side of John King Boulevard east of the intersection of John
King Boulevard and Featherstone Drive, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

Action Needed

139



The City Council is being asked to approve, approve with condition, or deny the Zoning
Amendment to Planned Development District 79 (PD-79)

140



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 
 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

CC: Rick Crowley, City Manager 
 Mary Smith, Assistant City Manager 
 Joey Boyd, Assistant City Manager 
 

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning  
 

DATE: April 19, 2021 
 

SUBJECT: Z2021-006; Amendment to Planned Development District 79 (PD-79) [the Saddle Star South 
Subdivision] 

 
 

On January 4, 2016, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 16-07 establishing Planned Development District 79 (PD-79), 
which is also known as the Saddle Star South Subdivision [Case No. Z2016-015].  This subdivision is generally located east of 
the intersection of Hays Lane and John King Boulevard.  At the time of approval, the Saddle Star South Subdivision allowed 
113, 70’ x 125’ lots.  The garage orientation for these lots was to be either a traditional swing (or ‘j’ swing) or recessed front 
entry (i.e. 20-feet behind the front façade of the primary structure).  Both of these garage configurations adhered to the 
requirements of the Unified Development Code (UDC). 
 
On October 14, 2016, the applicant -- Pat Atkins of KPA Consulting, Inc. -- submitted a request to amend Planned 
Development District 79 (PD-79) [Ordinance No. 16-07] to add an additional 25, 70’ x 125’ lots, increasing the total number of 
lots to 138 lots [Case No. Z2016-036].  In addition, the applicant also requested to allow 80% of the lots to have a flat front 
entry (i.e. where the front of the garage is flush with the front of the house) garage orientation, with the remaining 20% of the 
lots retaining the traditional swing or ‘j’ swing garage orientation.  On June 6, 2016, the City Council approved Ordinance No. 
16-39, which granted the additional lots; however, only allowed 50% of the lots the flat front entry garage orientation in lieu of 
the 80% that was requested.  Staff should note that at the time this was approved (and currently), no other developments 
north of IH-30 have received approval for more than 20% flat front entry garage orientation. 
 
On September 13, 2019, the applicant submitted a subsequent request to amend Planned Development District 79 (PD-79) to 
add an additional 38 lots (i.e. 33, 80’ x 125’ and five [5], 70’ x 125’), increasing the total number of lots to 176 lots [Case No. 
Z2019-021].  All of the proposed 80’ x 125’ lots (i.e. the Type ‘B’) were to have a traditional swing or ‘j’ swing garage 
orientation.  This request was approved by the City Council on November 4, 2019 by Ordinance No. 19-40.  On July 17, 2020, 
the applicant again requested to amend Planned Development District 79 (PD-79) to change the garage orientation of the 
Type’ B’ lots to allow 30% flat front entry garages with the remaining 70% to be in either a traditional swing or modified swing 
(i.e. where a one [1] car garage is situated in a traditional swing format and a two [2] car garage is setback behind the one [1] 
car garage).  In addition, the applicant consented to changing the building setback for flat front entry garages from 20-feet to 
25-feet on all the lot products (i.e. Lot Types ‘A’ & ‘B’).  This was adopted by the City Council via Ordinance No. 20-35 on 
September 8, 2020. 
 
On April 16, 2021, Pat Atkins submitted another request to amend Planned Development District 79 (PD-79) for the purpose 
of changing the garage orientation of the Type ‘A’ lots to the same requirements as the Type ‘B’ lots approved with Ordinance 
No. 20-35.  Specifically, the proposed amendment would allow 50% of the Type ‘A’ lots to have a flat front entry garage 
orientation and the remaining 50% to be in either a traditional swing or modified swing (i.e. where a one [1] car garage is 
situated in a traditional swing format and a two [2] car garage is setback behind the one [1] car garage).  If this amendment is 
approved, the subdivision would have between 50% - 100% lots with garages that do not conform to the Unified Development 
Code (UDC).  Staff should note that the flat front entry garage orientation building setback would remain 25-feet, which is in 
compliance with the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan; however, the number lots with flat front entry garage 
orientations already exceeds the recommend 20% for residential subdivisions suggested by the Comprehensive Plan.  
 

141



With this proposal, the applicant has submitted a letter outlining the request, and provided examples of the modified swing 
building elevations and floorplans showing the proposed garage orientations.  In addition, staff has prepared an amendment to 
the Planned Development District ordinance facilitating the applicant’s request.  On March 19, 2021, staff sent 142 notices to 
property owners and residents within 500-feet of the subject property (note: staff should note that all but one [1] of the property 
owners within 500-feet are either builders, the City of Rockwall, or people associated with this request).  In addition, staff sent 
a notice to the Stone Creek Homeowner’s Association, which is the only Homeowner’s Association (HOA)/Neighborhood 
Organization within 1,500-feet of the subject property participating in the Neighborhood Notification Program.  At this time this 
memorandum was drafted, staff had not received any notices concerning this case.  As with all zoning cases, this request is a 
discretionary decision for the City Council pending a recommendation from the Planning and Zoning Commission.   
 
On April 13, 2021, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend approval of the zoning amendment 
to Planned development District 79 (PD-79) by a vote of 6-1, with Commissioner Welch dissenting.  Should the City Council 
have any questions, staff will be available at the meeting on April 19, 2021. 
 

142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



FM 552

JOHN KING

HA
YS

TO
PA

Z

WI
ND

Y

NA
UTILU

S

RANDAS

FAIR

PA
RK

 CE
NT

RA
L

NAKOMA

MONTROSE

MIRANDA

GIDEON

EMILY

GR
OV

ER

CR
EST

BR
OO

K

FEATHERSTONE

PETREL

GRANITE FIELDS

IRIS

MIDDLETON

WA
NE

TA

ROCKING H

MELODY MEADOW

JAN
ET

EV
ER

T

ME
MO

RIA
L

KIRKWOOD

GOOSE LAKE

QUAIL RUN

SARAH

BRIDLE RANCH

NORTH RIDGE

HA
YS

JOHN KING

Z2021-006 - PD AMENDMENT TO SADDLE STAR SOUTH
ZONING - LOCATION MAP =        

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user.

City of Rockwall

0 320 640 960 1,280160
Feet

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com I154



BA
RT

ON
 SP

RI
NG

S

MIRANDA

CL
EA

R
BL

UF
F

JOHN KING

WO
OD

ED
COBBLESTONE

PARK CENTRAL

BR
EE

ZY
 H

ILL

HA
YS

RANDAS

GR
OV

ER

HA
YS

FE
AT

HE
RS

TO
NE

ME
MO

RI
AL

FAWN

SA
DD

LE
HO

RN

TO
PA

Z

TANNERSON

TOPAZ

CRESTBROOK

MONTROSE

BA
ILE

Y

SA
RA

H

NORTH
RIDGE

ST
ON

EY
 H

OL
LO

W

SOUTH
RIDGE

SA
ND

ST
ON

E

NA
UT

ILU
S

FM 552

JA
NE

T

EMILY

SHADYBRANCH EV
ER

T

THE
ROCK

BUCKNER

GR
EE

NW
AY

HY
ER

IRIS

WA
NE

TA

BRIDLE
RANCH

GOOSE
LAKE

QUAIL RUN

CHATFIELD

QUAIL RUN

DEVERSON

MIRAMAR

YO
RK

RO
YA

L
RI

DG
E

RI
DG

EC
RO

SS

PETREL

LONGHORN
HA

NO
VE

R

BORDEAUX

MIDDLETON

KIRKWOOD

HARVARD

EMERSON

NAKOMA

ROCKING H

FAIR

SK
YV

IEW

MELODY MEADOW

GIDEON

MOUNTCASTLE

GRANITE FIELDS

JOHN KING

OL
D 

QU
AI

L R
UN

WINDY

Dalton
Ranch

Stone Creek

Stoney Hollow

STONE
CREEK PH 6

0 530 1,060 1,590 2,120265
Feet

I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       

FM 552

GOLIAD

JOHN KING

FM
 11

41

949536

STO
DG

HIL
L

CLEM

SM
ITH

HOLIDAY

950

COUNTRY
DALTON

STH
Y2

05

HEATH

HA
YS

BREEZY HILL

C D
 BO

RE
N

EAST FORK

FARM

SH
OR

ES

CO
X

POTTER

COASTAL

KET
TEN

LYDIA

WINDHAM
ANNA CADE

RANDASFAIR

BA
XT

ER

Case Number:

Case Address:

Case Type:
Case Name:
Zoning:

Vicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created:

Legend
Subject Property 

1500' Buffer

Rockwall HOAs

Z2021-006

John King South of FM 552

Specific Use Permit
Zoning
Planned Development District 79
(PD-79)

3/18/2021 155



1

Miller, Ryan

From: Gamez, Angelica
Sent: Friday, March 26, 2021 10:27 AM
Cc: Miller, Ryan; Gonzales, David; Lee, Henry
Subject: Neighborhood Notification Program [Z2021-006]
Attachments: HOA Map (03.18.2021).pdf; Public Notice (03.26.2021).pdf

HOA/Neighborhood Association Representative: 
 
Per your participation in the Neighborhood Notification Program, you are receiving this notice to inform your organization 
that a zoning case has been filed with the City of Rockwall that is located within 1,500‐feet of the boundaries of your 
neighborhood.  As the contact listed for your organization, you are encouraged to share this information with the 
residents of your subdivision.  Please find the attached map detailing the property requesting to be rezoned in relation to 
your subdivision boundaries.  Additionally, below is the summary of the zoning case that will be published in the Rockwall 
Herald Banner on March 26, 2021.  The Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, April 13, 
2021 at 6:00 PM, and the City Council will hold a public hearing on Monday, April 19, 2021 at 6:00 PM.  Both hearings will 
take place at 6:00 PM at City Hall, 385 S. Goliad, Rockwall, TX 75087.  
 
All interested parties are encouraged to submit public comments via email to Planning@rockwall.com  at least 30 minutes 
in advance of the meeting.  Please include your name, address, and the case number your comments are referring 
to.  These comments will be read into the record during each of the public hearings. Additional information on all current 
development cases can be found on the City’s website: 
https://sites.google.com/site/rockwallplanning/development/development‐cases. 
 
Z2021‐006 Zoning Amendment to PD‐79 
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Pat Atkins of KPA Consulting, Inc. on behalf of the owners C. D. 
T. Rockwall 2017, LLC; Saddle Star Holdings, LLC; and Gwendolyn Reed for the approval of a Zoning Amendment to Planned 
Development District 79 (PD‐79) [Ordinance No. 20‐35] for the purpose of amending the development standards contained 
in Ordinance No. 20‐35 for a 70.408‐acre tract of land identified as Tracts 1, 1‐03, 1‐5 & 2‐03 of the P. B. Harrison Survey, 
Abstract No. 97, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 79 (PD‐79) for Single‐
Family 8.4 (SF‐8.4) District land uses, situated within the SH‐205 By‐Pass Overlay (SH‐205 BY‐OV) District, located on the 
north side of John King Boulevard east of the intersection of John King Boulevard and Featherstone Drive, and take any 
action necessary. 
 

Thank you,  

 
Angelica Gamez  
Planning & Zoning Coordinator 
City of Rockwall 
972.771.7745 Office  
972.772.6438 Direct 
http://www.rockwall.com/planning/  
 
 

This email was scanned by Bitdefender 

156



625

2911

3076

1313

1800

1415

2105

1425

1751

1815

3076

1202

2811

3125

2821

2801

2781

2791

2743

2377

2116

2401

102

2731

1328

3140

2753

3141

2136

502

509

3057
3047

2202

2002

3067

3087

3114

1325

3077

415

3037

3117

1207

131

2841
3027

582

3102
3097

2831

3126

2771

3107

2761

21121211

224

590

1206

2104

2108
513

13211305 1313
13171309

1215

1320
1324

13161210 1214
1304

1312

1308

512

124
2204

2104

2106

542

225

2002

3090

129
127
125

121

2113

548

3302

2201

545

2208

2840

588

2109

2105

2202

110

2744

2830

123

112

517

2820

313 301

655

2810

202

110

2132

117

2800

227
2203

1037

3066

217

704

201

584

2770

2790
586

504

311

108
106

221

310

2780
309

531

202

222

2006

210

560

2010
2014

204
206

208

524

3054

2760

523 551

521 553

524

419 525

2108

506

601

501

307
303

305

212

503

541105

1311

3042

111

1303

1330

13272012

1328

2013
1204

1304

525

1324

2341

2011

2204

421

1323

403

1308
1312 1316

13191307 1315

585

512

113
116

118

114

525

2007

112

402

519

211

529

667

583

2333

411

526

2504

665

2112

2340

554

302

527

522

602

197

555

552

634

637

536528

101

423 2206

109

563

533

122

2207

218

208 206
212

214
210

204

537

510

207

547543

419
425

506

2135
2201

518

445
439

2131

501

559

1208 1302

507

526

433

516 528
520

510

2325

527

2125

1309 1317 1321
1325

1313

417

2238

1033

662

2321

408

526

2329

522

414

2121

1901

117
119

211

20092008

2304

115

420

2242

426 500
506

1721

530

2004511

2301

113

2332 2328
2324

306

2005

2507

2220

2516

125

532

518

582

203
205

213
207

127

121

217

605

129
518

2515

671

2116

518

604

2317

534

600

523 527507

426
432

420414

2210

550
548

2339

669

2128

536

173

663
661

659

657

2335

536 540

620612
616

540

539
531
538

542

2327

552
556

548

609

2234

606

2331

517

624

535

610

2309

2308
2316

532

2325

612

700

541
529 537

618

2323

613

2218

535
505

2214
2218

2226

2222

617
621

549

537

622

625

629

544536

632

531

551

545
541

630

103

2311 2211

591

541

105

589

592
596 594

603
605

2315 2303

2410

2308

2316
2406

2312

3307

601

3306

2304

2508

435

597

637

2402

2214

593

2006

1820

590

2019
2018

2001

2013

2116
2112

1905

1923

2023
2108
2024

2120
2124

3306
3303

1812

1722
1718621529 601 1691

1445

PD-70

AG

PD-79

SF-16

PD-74

PD-84

PD-80 GR
FM 552

JOHN KING
WI

ND
Y

HAYS

NA
UT

ILU
S

PA
RK

 C
EN

TR
AL

GR
EE

NW
AY

OL
D 

QU
AI

L R
UN

WO
OD

ED

NORTH RIDGE

JO
HN

 K
IN

G
HA

YS

0 425 850 1,275 1,700212.5
Feet

I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       

E FM 552

483

E IN
TERSTATE 30

536N GOLIAD ST

FM
 11

41

949

STO
DG

HIL
L R

D

FM2755

TR
OY

 RD

STATE HIGHWAY 66

FM
 11

38

JUSTIN RD

N K
ING

 RDSTH
Y2

05

N COUNTRY LN

WILLIAMS ST

535

FARM LN

Case Number:

Case Address:

Z2021-006

John King & South of FM 552

Case Type: Zoning
Case Name: PD Amendment to Saddle Star Estates
Zoning: Planned Development District 79

(PD-79)

Vicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created:  3/18/2021

Legend
Parcels
Subject Property
500' Buffer
Notified Properties

157



WINDSOR HOMES CUMBERLAND LLC 
1202 GIDEON WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
1204 MIDDLETON DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
1206 GIDEON WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

WINDSOR HOMES CUMBERLAND LLC 
1207 GIDEON WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
1208 MIDDLETON DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

WINDSOR HOMES CUMBERLAND LLC 
1210 GIDEON WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
1211 GIDEON WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
1212 MIDDLETON DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
1214 GIDEON WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
1215 GIDEON WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
1302 MIDDLETON DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
1303 MIDDLETON DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
1304 GIDEON WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
1304 KIRKWOOD ROAD  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
14400 THE LAKES BLVD BUILDING C, SUITE 200 

AUSTIN, TX 0 
 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
2004 GROVER LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
2005 EVERT WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
2007 GROVER LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
2008 GROVER LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
2009 EVERT WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
2011 GROVER LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
2012 GROVER LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
2013 EVERT WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
2015 GROVER LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
205 W RUSK ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 0 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2104 RANDAS WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
2105 GROVER LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2106 JANET DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2108 RANDAS WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
2109 GROVER LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

158



SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2112 RANDAS WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
2112 TOPAZ DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
2113 GROVER LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2116 RANDAS WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
2116 TOPAZ DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2120 RANDAS WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
2120 TOPAZ DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2121 RANDAS WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2124 RANDAS WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
2124 TOPAZ DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2125 RANDAS WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2128 RANDAS WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2131 RANDAS WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2132 RANDAS WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2135 RANDAS WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2136 RANDAS WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2200 ROSS AVE SUITE 4200W 

DALLAS, TX 0 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2201 MIRANDAL N  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2201 RANDAS WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2202 MIRANDA LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2202 RANDAS WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
2202 TOPAZ DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2203 MIRANDA LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2204 MIRANDA LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2204 SARAH DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2206 RANDAS WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
2206 TOPAZ DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2207 MIRANDA LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2207 RANDAS WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2208 MIRANDA LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

159



SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2210 RANDAS WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
2210 TOPAZ DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2211 MIRANDA LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2214 RANDAS WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
2214 TOPAZ DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2218 RANDAS WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
2218 TOPAZ DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
2220 TOPAZ DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2222 RANDAS WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2226 RANDAS WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2230 RANDAS WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2234 RANDAS WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2238 RANDAS WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2242 RANDAS WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2301 ROCKING HTRL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2303 MIRANDA LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2304 MIRANDA LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
2304 TOPAZ DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2305 ROCKING HTRL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2307 MIRANDA LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2308 MIRANDA LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
2308 TOPAZ DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2309 ROCKING HTRL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2311 MIRANDA LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2312 MIRANDA LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
2312 TOPAZ DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2313 ROCKING HTRL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2315 MIRANDA LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2316 MIRANDA LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
2316 TOPAZ DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

160



SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2317 ROCKING HTRL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2319 MIRANDA LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2321 ROCKING HTRL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
23220 MIRANDA LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2323 MIRANDA LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2324 MIRANDA LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2325 MIRANDA LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2325 ROCKING HTRL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2327 MIRANDA LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2328 MIRANDA LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2329 ROCKING HTRL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2331 MIRANDA LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2332 MIRANDA LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2333 ROCKING HTRL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2335 MIRANDA LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2336 MIRANDA LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2339 MIRANDA LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2340 MIRANDA LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS LLC 
2341 MIRANDA LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
2402 TOPAZ DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
2406 TOPAZ DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
2410 TOPAZ DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
2414 TOPAZ DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
2504 TOPAZ DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
2507 TOPAZ DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
2508 TOPAZ DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
2511 TOPAZ DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
2512 TOPAZ DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
2515 TOPAZ DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
2516 TOPAZ DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

161



REED GWENDOLYN 
3076 HAYS LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 0 
 

 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
537 GOOSE LAKE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
538 GOOSE LAKE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
539 BRIDAL RANCH DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
540 PETREL DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
541 BRIDAL RANCH DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
541 GOOSE LAKE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
542 GOOSE LAKE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
544 PETREL DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
545 GOOSE LAKE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
545 PETREL DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
546 ALBATROSS DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
548 PETREL DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
549 PETREL DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
551 PETREL DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
552 ALBATROSS DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

ROCKWALL I S D 
625 FM 552  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

CDT ROCKWALL/2017 LLC 
6925 FM 2515  

KAUFMAN, TX 0 
 

R & R HANCE INVESTMENTS LP 
6946 SPERRY ST  

DALLAS, TX 0 
 

 

GIDEON GROVE ADDITION 2 LTD 
8214 WESTCHESTER DR SUITE 710 

DALLAS, TX 0 
 

 

WINDSOR HOMES CUMBERLAND LLC 
8214 WESTCHESTER DR STE 710 

DALLAS, TX 0 
 

STONE CREEK PH 10 LTD 
8214 WESTCHESTER DR SUITE 710 

DALLAS, TX 0 
 

    

     

     

162



PUBLIC NOTICE  
 

 

CITY OF ROCKWALL ● PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT ● 385 S. GOLIAD STREET ● ROCKWALL, TEXAS 75087 ● P: (972) 771 -7745 ● E: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 
EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 

 

Property Owner and/or Resident of the City of Rockwall: 
 

You are hereby notified that the City of Rockwall Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will consider the following application: 
 

Case No. Z2021-006: Zoning Amendment to PD-79 
 

Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Pat Atkins of KPA Consulting, Inc. on behalf of the owners C. D. T. Rockwall 2017, LLC; Saddle Star 
Holdings, LLC; and Gwendolyn Reed for the approval of a Zoning Amendment to Planned Development District 79 (PD-79) [Ordinance No. 20-35] for the purpose of 
amending the development standards contained in Ordinance No. 20-35 for a 70.408-acre tract of land identified as Tracts 1, 1-03, 1-5 & 2-03 of the P. B. Harrison 
Survey, Abstract No. 97, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 79 (PD-79) for Single-Family 8.4 (SF-8.4) District land uses, 
situated within the SH-205 By-Pass Overlay (SH-205 BY-OV) District, located on the north side of John King Boulevard east of the intersection of John King 
Boulevard and Featherstone Drive, and take any action necessary. 
 

For the purpose of considering the effects of such a request, the Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, April 13, 
2021 at 6:00 PM, and the City Council will hold a public hearing on Monday, April 19, 2021 at 6:00 PM.  These hearings will be held in the City 
Council Chambers at City Hall, 385 S. Goliad Street. 
 

As an interested property owner, you are invited to attend these meetings.  If you prefer to express your thoughts in writing please return the form to: 
 

Ryan Miller 
Rockwall Planning and Zoning Dept. 

385 S. Goliad Street 
Rockwall, TX 75087 

 

You may also email your comments to the Planning Department at planning@rockwall.com.  If you choose to email the Planning Department please 
include your name and address for identification purposes.   
 

Your comments must be received by Monday, April 19, 2021 at 4:00 PM to ensure they are included in the information provided to the City Council. 
 

Sincerely, 
 
Ryan Miller, AICP 
Director of Planning & Zoning 

 

MORE INFORMATION ON THIS CASE CAN BE FOUND AT: https://sites.google.com/site/rockwallplanning/development/development-cases 
 

PLEASE RETURN THE BELOW FORM 
 

Case No. Z2021-006: Zoning Amendment to PD-79 
 

Please place a check mark on the appropriate line below:  
 

 I am in favor of the request for the reasons listed below.         
 

 I am opposed to the request for the reasons listed below. 
 

 

 

 

 

Name:  

Address:  

 

Tex. Loc. Gov. Code, Sec. 211.006 (d) If a proposed change to a regulation or boundary is protested in accordance with this subsection, the proposed change must receive, in 
order to take effect, the affirmative vote of at least three-fourths of all members of the governing body.  The protest must be written and signed by the owners of at least 20 
percent of either: (1) the area of the lots or land covered by the proposed change; or (2) the area of the lots or land immediately adjoining the area covered by the proposed 
change and extending 200 feet from that area. 

 
PLEASE SEE LOCATION MAP OF SUBJECT PROPERTY ON THE BACK OF THIS NOTICE 

163

mailto:planning@rockwall.com


164



4. Building Standards. All development shall adhere to the following building standards: 
 
a. Masonry Requirement. The minimum masonry requirement for the exterior façades 

of all buildings shall be 90%.  For the purposes of this ordinance, the masonry 
requirement shall be limited to full width brick, natural stone, and cast stone.  
Cementaceous fiberboard horizontal lap-siding (e.g. HardiBoard or Hardy Plank) 
and, stucco (i.e. three [3] part stucco or a comparable -- to be determined by staff) 
may be used for up to 50% of the masonry requirement; however, stucco (i.e. three 
[3] part stucco or a comparable -- to be determined by staff) shall be permitted 
through a Specific Use Permit (SUP) only. 
 

b. Roof Pitch. A minimum of an 8:12 roof pitch is required on all structures with the 
exception of sunrooms and porches, which shall have a minimum of a 4:12 roof 
pitch.  
 

c. Garage Orientation. This development shall adhere to the following garage 
orientation requirements:      
 
1. Type A Lots. The Type A lots (i.e. the blue and red lots depicted in Exhibit ‘B’) 

shall adhere to the following garage configurations:50% of the Type A lots shall 
be oriented in a traditional swing or j-swing garage orientation (i.e. where the two 
[2] car garage is situated facing the side property line and the driveway swings 
into the garage in a ‘j’ configuration).  These garages will be permitted to have a 
one (1) car garage facing the street if it is setback a minimum of 20-feet from the 
front façade of the single-family home.  The remaining 50% of the Type A lots 
may be configured in a flat front entry configuration with a minimum setback of 
25-feet (i.e. allowing the garage to be flush with the front façade of the primary 
structure).  In this case the front façade of the primary structure does not include 
the permitted encroachments outline in Table 2 above. 
 
a. 50% of the Type A lots may be oriented in a flat front entry configuration with 

a minimum setback of 25-feet (i.e. allowing the garage to be flush with the 
front façade of the primary structure).  
 

b. 50% of the Type A lots may be configured in a traditional swing or modified 
swing (i.e. where a one [1] or two [2] car garage is situated facing the side 
property line and the driveway swings into the garage in a ‘j’ configuration).  
On lots with a one (1) car garage configured in the modified swing a two (2) 
car garage will be required to be setback behind the one (1) car garage.  
Garages with a traditional swing will be permitted to have a one (1) car 
garage facing the street if it is setback a minimum of 20-feet from the front 
façade of the single-family home.   

 
2. Type B Lots. The Type B lots (i.e. the yellow lots depicted in Exhibit ‘B’) shall 

adhere to the following garage configurations: 
 

a. 30% of the Type B lots may be oriented in a flat front entry configuration with 
a minimum setback of 25-feet (i.e. allowing the garage to be flush with the 
front façade of the primary structure).  
 

165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



 CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 21-XX 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 79 (PD-79) [ORDINANCE NO. 20-35] THE UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, FOR THE PURPOSE 
OF AMENDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 79 (PD-79) 
FOR THE PURPOSE OF AMENDING THE DEVELOPMENT 
STANDARDS ON A 70.408-ACRE TRACT OF LAND, ZONED 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 79 (PD-79) FOR SINGLE 
FAMILY 8.4 (SF-8.4) DISTRICT LAND USES, BEING IDENTIFIED AS 
TRACTS 1, 1-03, 1-5 &  2-03 OF THE P. B. HARRISON SURVEY, 
ABSTRACT NO. 97, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, 
TEXAS AND MORE FULLY DESCRIBED HEREIN BY EXHIBIT ‘A’; 
PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A 
PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the City has received a request by Pat Atkins of KPA Consulting, Inc. on behalf of 
the owners CDT Rockwall/2017, LLC for the purpose of amending Planned Development 
District 79 (PD-79) [Ordinance No. 20-35] in order to change the development standards for a 
70.408-acre tract of land identified as Tracts 1, 1-03, 1-5 & 2-03 of the P. B. Harrison Survey, 
Abstract No. 97, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development 
District 79 (PD-79) for Single Family 8.4 (SF-8.4) District land uses, situated within the SH-205 
By-Pass Overlay (SH-205 BY OV) District, generally located east of the intersection of 
Featherstone Drive and John King Boulevard, and more fully described in Exhibit ‘A’ of this 
ordinance, which hereinafter shall be referred to as the Subject Property and incorporated by 
reference herein; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing 
body of the City of Rockwall in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the 
ordinances of the City of Rockwall have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, 
and have held public hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners 
generally and to all persons interested in and situated in the affected area, and in the vicinity 
thereof, and the governing body in the exercise of its legislative discretion, has concluded that 
Planned Development District 79 [Ordinance No. 20-35] and the Unified Development Code 
[Ordinance No. 20-02] should be amended as follows: 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS: 
 

SECTION 1. That the approval of this ordinance shall supersede all requirements stipulated in 
Ordinance No. 20-35; 
 
SECTION 2. That the Subject Property shall be used only in the manner and for the purposes 
authorized by this Planned Development District Ordinance and the Unified Development Code 
[Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall as heretofore amended, as amended herein by 
granting this zoning change, and as maybe amended in the future; 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

04
.1

9.
20

21

187



 

SECTION 3. That development of the Subject Property shall generally be in accordance with 
the Planned Development Concept Plan, described in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance, attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit ‘B’, which is deemed hereby to be a 
condition of approval of the amended zoning classification for the Subject Property;  
 
SECTION 4. That development of the Subject Property shall generally be in accordance with 
the Development Standards, described in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit ‘C’, which is deemed hereby to be a condition of 
approval of the amended zoning classification for the Subject Property; 
 
SECTION 5. That development of the Subject Property shall be in conformance with the 
schedule listed below (except as set forth below with regard to simultaneous processing and 
approvals). 

 
(a) The procedures set forth in the City’s subdivision regulations on the date this 

ordinance is approved by the City, as amended by this ordinance (including 
Subsections 5(b) through 5(g) below), shall be the exclusive procedures applicable to 
the subdivision and platting of the Subject Property.  

 
(b) The following plans and plats shall be required in the order listed below (except as set 

forth below with regard to simultaneous processing and approvals). The City Council 
shall act on an application for an Open Space Master Plan in accordance with the time 
period specified in Section 212.009 of the Texas Local Government Code. 

 
(1) Open Space Master Plan 
(2) Master Plat 
(3) PD Site Plan 
(4) Preliminary Plat 
(5) Final Plat 

 
(c) Open Space Master Plan.  An Open Space Master Plan for the Subject Property, 

prepared in accordance with this ordinance and consistent with the Planned 
Development Concept Plan, and shall be considered for approval by the City Council 
following recommendation of the Parks and Recreation Board. 

 
(d) Master Plat. A Master Plat for the Subject Property shall be submitted and shall 

identify the proposed timing of each phase of the proposed development. A Master 
Plat application may be processed by the City concurrently with a Open Space Master 
Plan for the development. 

 
(e) PD Site Plan.  A PD Site Plan covering all of the Subject Property shall be submitted 

and shall identify all site/landscape/hardscape plan(s) for all open space, 
neighborhood parks, trail systems, street buffers and entry features.  A PD Site Plan 
application may be processed by the City concurrently with a Preliminary Plat 
application for the development. 

 
(f) Preliminary Plat. A Preliminary Plat covering all of the Subject Property shall be 

submitted and shall include a Treescape Plan. A Preliminary Plat application may be 
processed by the City concurrently with a PD Site Plan application for the 
development. 

 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

04
.1

9.
20

21

188



(g) Final Plat. Prior to the issuance of any building permits, a Final Plat, conforming to the 
Preliminary Plat, for all of the Subject Property shall be submitted for approval. 

 

SECTION 6.   That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this 
ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a 
penalty of fine not to exceed the sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense and 
each and every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate 
offense; 
 

SECTION 7.   That if any section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance or the application of 
that section, paragraph, or provision to any person, firm, corporation or situation is for any 
reason judged invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section, paragraph, or provision 
of this ordinance or the application of any other section, paragraph or provision to any other 
person, firm, corporation or situation, nor shall adjudication affect any other section, paragraph, 
or provision of the Unified Development Code, and the City Council declares that it would have 
adopted the valid portions and applications of the ordinance without the invalid parts and to this 
end the provisions for this ordinance are declared to be severable; 
 

SECTION 8.  The standards in this ordinance shall control in the event of a conflict between 
this ordinance and any provision of the Unified Development Code or any provision of the City 
Code, ordinance, resolution, rule, regulation, or procedure that provides a specific standard that 
is different from and inconsistent with this ordinance. References to zoning district regulations or 
other standards in the Unified Development Code (including references to the Unified 
Development Code), and references to overlay districts, in this ordinance or any of the Exhibits 
hereto are those in effect on the date this ordinance was passed and approved by the City 
Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas; 
 

SECTION 9.   That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage; 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 3RD DAY OF MAY, 2021. 

 

      
 Jim Pruitt, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

    
Kristy Cole, City Secretary 

 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 

 
 
 

1st Reading:  April 19, 2021 
 
2nd Reading: May 3, 2021 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

04
.1

9.
20

21

189



TRACT 1: 
  
BEING 44.292 acres of land situated in the P. B. Harrison Survey, Abstract No. 97, Rockwall County, 
Texas, and being part of two tracts of land, the “First Tract” being a called 32.5 acres and the “Second 
Tract” being a called 32 acres, described in a Special Warranty Deed to R & R Hance Investments, LP., 
recorded as Instrument No. 2008-00396963 and in Volume 5433, Page 49 of the Deed Records of 
Rockwall County, Texas (DRRCT), SAVE AND EXCEPT the called “Parcel 16 (Parts 1 and 2)” conveyed 
to the City of Rockwall, recorded as Instrument No. 2007-00380919 and in Vol u me 5124, Page 210 
(DRRCT), and being more particularly described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a 1/2” capped iron rod stamped, “6081,” found for corner in the northeasterly right-of-way 
line of John King Boulevard (120' right-of-way) at the com mon north corner of said “Part 1” of Parcel 16 
and called “Parcel 15” conveyed to the City of Rockwall, recorded as Instrument No. 2009-00424601 and 
in Volume 5951, Page 84 (DRRCT), said point also being in the common line of said “First Tract” and a 
called 29.185 acre tract of land conveyed to Gideon Grove Ltd., recorded as Instrument No. 
20150000014609 of the Official Public Records of Rockwall County, Texas; 
 
THENCE North 72°06'44” West along the common northeasterly line of said John King Boulevard and 
said Part 1, a distance of 1,126.56 feet to a point for corner at the beginning of a tangent curve to the 
right, having a radius of 1,140.00 feet and a chord which bears North 44° 02' 06” West, a distance of 
1,073.12-feet; 
 
THENCE in the northwesterly direction along said curve to the right, and last mentioned common line, 
through a central angle of 56°09'19”, an arc distance of 1,117.31-feet to a 1/2” iron rod with a yellow cap 
stamped, “RPLS 3963,” set for corner at the end of said curve and at the most northerly corner of said 
Part 1; 
 
THENCE North 00°38'27” West continuing along the east right-of-way line of said John King Boulevard, a 
distance of 261.96 feet to a “PK” nail set for corner at the southwest corner of said Part 2; 
 
THENCE North 89°38'44” East along the south line of said Part 2, a distance of 50.00 feet to a 1/2” iron 
rod with a yellow cap found for the southeast corner thereof; 
 
THENCE North 00°38'27” West along the east line of said Part 2, a distance of 40.00 feet to a 1/2” iron 
rod with a yellow cap found for the northeast corner thereof in the north line of said Second Tract and 
being in the south line of a tract of land conveyed to Randy and Gwen Reed, recorded in Volume 260, 
Page 1 (DRRCT); 
 
THENCE North 89°38'05” East along the common line of last mentioned tracts, at 1,051.89 feet passing a 
1/2” iron rod found for the southeast corner of said Reed tract com mon to the southwest corner of Park 
Ridge Estates, an addition to the City of Rockwall, according to the Plat thereof recorded in Cabinet A, 
Page 390 of the Plat Records of Rockwall County, Texas (PRRCT), and continuing along the north line of 
said Second Tract and the south line of said Park Ridge Estates, a total distance of 1,736.25 feet to a 3/8” 
iron rod found for the com mon east corner thereof, and being in the west line of Block A of Windmill 
Valley Subdivision, an addition to the City of Rockwall, according to the Plat thereof recorded in Cabinet 
A, Page 157 (PRRCT); 
 
THENCE South 01°17'27” East along the common line of said Second Tract and said Block A, a distance 
of 669.75 feet to a 1/2” iron rod found for the southwest corner of said Block A, and being the northwest 
corner of said 29.185 acre tract; 
 
THENCE South 01°30'45” East along the west line of said 29.185-acre tract and partially along the east 
lines of said First Tract and said Second Tract, a distance of 761.52 feet to the PLACE OF BEGINNING 
and Containing 44.292 acres, or 1,929,345 square feet, of land. 
 
 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

04
.1

9.
20

21

190



TRACT 2: 
  
BEING 11.121 acres of land situated in the P. B. Harrison Survey, Abstract No. 97, Rockwall County, 
Texas, and being all of a called 11.126 acre tract of land described in a Warranty Deed with Vendor's Lien 
to Randy Reed and wife, Gwen Reed, recorded in Volume 260, Page 1 of the Deed Records of Rockwall 
County, Texas (DRRCT), and being more particularly described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a 1/2” iron rod found for corner near the edge of an asphalt surface in the east margin of 
Hays Road, said point being the common west corner of said Reed tract and a tract of land conveyed to 
Stephen L. Branch and Judy C. Branch, recorded in Volume 234, Page 527 (DRRCT); 
 
THENCE North 89°26'12” East along the common line of last mentioned tracts, a distance of 1,092.52-
feet to a 1/2” iron rod found for the common east corner thereof, and being in the west line of Park Ridge 
Estates, an addition to the City of Rockwall, according to the Plat thereof recorded in Cabinet A, Page 
390 of the Plat Records of Rockwall County, Texas (PRRCT); 
 
THENCE South 00°30'07” East along the common line of said Reed tract and said Park Ridge Estates, a 
distance of 446.60 feet to a 1/2” iron rod found for the common south corner thereof, and being in the 
north line of a called 32 acre tract described, in a Special Warranty Deed to R & R Hance Investments, 
L.P., as “Second Tract,” recorded as Instrument No. 2008-00396963 and in Volume 5433, Page 49 
(DRRCT); 
 
THENCE South 89°38'05” West along the common line of said Second Tract and said Reed tract, a 
distance of 1,086.19-feet to a 1/2” iron rod found at the southwest corner of said Reed tract and being in 
the east margin of said Hays Road; 
 
THENCE North 01°19'17” West along the west line of said Reed tract and the east line of said Hays 
Road, a distance of 442.88-feet to the PLACE OF BEGINNING and Containing 11.121-acres, or 484,450 
square feet, of land. 
 
 
TRACT 3: 
 
BEING 14.955 acres of land situated in the P.B. Harrison Survey, Abstract No. 97, Rockwall County, 

Texas, and all of a called 15.00 acre tract of land described in a Warranty Deed to Steve L. Branch and 

wife Judy C. Branch, recorded in Volume 234, Page 527 of the Deed Records of Rockwall County, Texas 

(DRRCT), and being more particularly described as follows: 

BEGINNING at a 1/2" iron rod found for corner in the original Hays Road at the common west corner of 

said 15.00 acre tract and a tract of land described in a deed to Randy and Gwen Reed, recorded in 

Volume 260, Page 1 (DRRCT); 

THENCE North 01°10'15" West, continuing along and within Hays Road and with the west line of said 

15.00 acre Branch tract, a distance of 596.15 feet, to a 1/2” iron rod found for corner at the northwest 

corner thereof, common to the southwest corner of a called 15.00 acre tract of land described in a deed to 

Gerald Glen Cox and wife Rosalba Cox, recorded in Volume 3295 Page 9, (DRRCT);  

THENCE North 89°26'26" East, along the common line of last mentioned tracts, a distance of 1,099.11 

feet, to a point for corner at the common east corner thereof, and also being in the west line of Park Ridge 

Estates, an addition to the City of Rockwall, according to the Plat thereof recorded in Cabinet A, Page 

390 of the Plat Records of Rockwall County, Texas (PRRCT), from which a 1/2” iron rod with a yellow cap 

stamped “5034” bears South 68°26'26" West, a distance of 0.18 feet; 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

04
.1

9.
20

21

191



THENCE South 00°32'13" East, along the common line of said Branch tract and said Park Ridge Estates, 

a distance of 596.04 feet, to a 1/2" iron rod found for corner at the southeast corner thereof, common to 

the northeast corner of said Reed tract; 

THENCE South 89°26'12" West, along the common line of last-mentioned tracts, a distance of 1,092.52 

feet to PLACE OF BEGINNING and Containing 653,191 square feet, or 14.995 acres of land. 

  

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

04
.1

9.
20

21

192



 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

04
.1

9.
20

21

193



  

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

04
.1

9.
20

21

194



Development Standards. 
 

1. Permitted Uses. Unless specifically provided by this Planned Development ordinance, 
only those uses permitted within the Single Family 8.4 (SF-8.4) District, as stipulated by 
the Permissible Use Charts contained in Article 04, Permissible Uses, of the Unified 
Development Code (UDC), are allowed on the Subject Property. 
 

2. Lot Composition and Layout. The lot layout and composition shall generally conform to 
the Concept Plan depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ and stated in Table 1, which is as follows: 
 
Table 1: Lot Composition 

     

Lot Type Minimum Lot Size 
(FT) 

Minimum Lot Size 
(SF) Dwelling Units (#) Dwelling Units (%) 

A 70’ x 125’ 8,750 SF 143 78.41% 
B 80’ x 125’ 10,000 SF 33 21.59% 

     

Maximum Permitted Units: 176 100.00% 
 

3. Density and Dimensional Requirements. Unless specifically provided by this Planned 
Development ordinance, the development standards stipulated by the Single Family 8.4 
(SF-8.4) District, as specified by Article 05, District Development Standards, of the 
Unified Development Code (UDC) are applicable to all development on the Subject 
Property.  The maximum permissible density for the Subject Property shall not exceed 
2.50 dwelling units per gross acre of land; however, in no case should the proposed 
development exceed 176 units.  All lots shall conform to the standards depicted in Table 
2, which is as follows: 
 

Table 2: Lot Dimensional Requirements 
 

Lot Type > A B 
Minimum Lot Width (1) 70’ 80’ 

Minimum Lot Depth 125’ 125’ 

Minimum Lot Area 8,750 SF 10,000 SF 

Minimum Front Yard Setback (2) & (5) 20’ 20’ 

Minimum Side Yard Setback 5’ 5’ 

Minimum Side Yard Setback (Adjacent to a Street) (2) & (5) 10’ 10’ 

Minimum Length of Driveway Pavement 25’ 25’ 

Maximum Height (3) 30’ 30’ 

Minimum Rear Yard Setback (4) 20’ 20’ 

Minimum Area/Dwelling Unit (SF) 2,700 SF 2,700 SF 

Maximum Lot Coverage 65% 65% 

Permitted Encroachment into Required Setbacks (5) Allowed Allowed 
 

General Notes: 
1:  The minimum lot width shall be measured at the Front Yard Building Setback. 
2:  The location of the Front Yard Building Setback as measured from the front property line. 
3:  The Maximum Height shall be measured to the eave or top plate (whichever is greater) of the single-

family home. 
4: As measured from the rear yard property line. 
5: Sunrooms, porches, stoops, bay windows, balconies, masonry clad chimneys, eaves and similar 

architectural features may encroach beyond the Front Yard Building Setback by up to ten (10) feet for 
any property; however, the encroachment shall not exceed five (5) feet on Side Yard Setbacks (Adjacent 
to a Street) and shall not encroach into public right-of-way [a Sunroom is an enclosed room no more than 
15-feet in width that has glass on at least 50% of each of the encroaching faces].  

 
 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

04
.1

9.
20

21

195



4. Building Standards. All development shall adhere to the following building standards: 
 
a. Masonry Requirement. The minimum masonry requirement for the exterior façades 

of all buildings shall be 90%.  For the purposes of this ordinance, the masonry 
requirement shall be limited to full width brick, natural stone, and cast stone.  
Cementaceous fiberboard horizontal lap-siding (e.g. HardiBoard or Hardy Plank) 
and, stucco (i.e. three [3] part stucco or a comparable -- to be determined by staff) 
may be used for up to 50% of the masonry requirement; however, stucco (i.e. three 
[3] part stucco or a comparable -- to be determined by staff) shall be permitted 
through a Specific Use Permit (SUP) only. 
 

b. Roof Pitch. A minimum of an 8:12 roof pitch is required on all structures with the 
exception of sunrooms and porches, which shall have a minimum of a 4:12 roof 
pitch.  
 

c. Garage Orientation. This development shall adhere to the following garage 
orientation requirements:      
 
1. Type A Lots. The Type A lots (i.e. the blue and red lots depicted in Exhibit ‘B’) 

shall adhere to the following garage configurations: 
 
a. 50% of the Type A lots may be oriented in a flat front entry configuration with 

a minimum setback of 25-feet (i.e. allowing the garage to be flush with the 
front façade of the primary structure).  
 

b. 50% of the Type A lots may be configured in a traditional swing or modified 
swing (i.e. where a one [1] or two [2] car garage is situated facing the side 
property line and the driveway swings into the garage in a ‘j’ configuration).  
On lots with a one (1) car garage configured in the modified swing a two (2) 
car garage will be required to be setback behind the one (1) car garage.  
Garages with a traditional swing will be permitted to have a one (1) car 
garage facing the street if it is setback a minimum of 20-feet from the front 
façade of the single-family home.   

 
2. Type B Lots. The Type B lots (i.e. the yellow lots depicted in Exhibit ‘B’) shall 

adhere to the following garage configurations: 
 

a. 30% of the Type B lots may be oriented in a flat front entry configuration with 
a minimum setback of 25-feet (i.e. allowing the garage to be flush with the 
front façade of the primary structure).  
 

b. 70% of the Type B lots may be configured in a traditional swing or modified 
swing (i.e. where a one [1] or two [2] car garage is situated facing the side 
property line and the driveway swings into the garage in a ‘j’ configuration).  
On lots with a one (1) car garage configured in the modified swing a two (2) 
car garage will be required to be setback behind the one (1) car garage.  
Garages with a traditional swing will be permitted to have a one (1) car 
garage facing the street if it is setback a minimum of 20-feet from the front 
façade of the single-family home.   

 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

04
.1

9.
20

21

196



5. Anti-Monotony Restrictions. The development shall adhere to the Anti-Monotony Matrix 
depicted in Table 3 below (for spacing requirements see the illustration below). 

 
Table 3: Anti-Monotony Matrix 

Lot Type Minimum Lot Size Elevation Features 
A 70’ x 125’ (1), (2), (3), (4) 
B 80’ x 125’ (1), (2), (3), (4) 

 
1. Identical brick blends or paint colors may not occur on adjacent (side-by-side) 

properties along any block face without at least five (5) intervening homes of differing 
materials on the same side of the street beginning with the adjacent property and six 
(6) intervening homes of differing materials on the opposite side of the street. 
 

2. Front building elevations shall not repeat along any block face without at least five (5) 
intervening homes of differing appearance on the same side of the street and six (6) 
intervening homes of differing appearance on the opposite side of the street.  The 
rear elevation of homes backing to open spaces or on John King Boulevard shall not 
repeat without at least five (5) intervening homes of differing appearance. Homes are 
considered to have a differing appearance if any of the following two (2) items 
deviate: 
 
(a) Number of Stories 
(b) Permitted Encroachment Type and Layout 
(c) Roof Type and Layout 
(d) Articulation of the Front Façade  
  

3. Permitted encroachments (i.e. porch and sunroom) elevations shall not repeat or be 
the same along any block face without at least five (5) intervening homes of sufficient 
dissimilarity on the same side of the street beginning with the home adjacent to the 
subject property and six (6) intervening homes beginning with the home on the 
opposite side of the street. 

4. Each phase of the subdivision will allow for a maximum of four (4) compatible roof 
colors, and all roof shingles shall be an architectural or dimensional shingle (3-Tab 
Roofing Shingles are prohibited). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Continued on Next Page … 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

04
.1

9.
20

21

197



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
6. Fencing Standards. All individual residential fencing and walls shall be architecturally 

compatible with the design, materials and colors of the primary structure on the same lot, 
and meet the following standards: 
 
1. Wood Fences.  All wood fences shall be constructed of a standard fencing material 

(minimum of ½” thickness or better; spruce fencing will not be allowed), and use 
fasteners that are hot dipped galvanized or stainless steel.  Wood fences facing onto 
a street shall be painted and/or stained and sealed with all pickets being placed on 
the public side facing the street.  All wood fences shall be smooth-finished, free of 
burs and splinters, and be a maximum of six (6) feet in height. 

2. Wrought Iron/Tubular Steel. Lots located along the perimeter of roadways, abutting 
open spaces, greenbelts and parks shall be required to install a wrought iron or 
tubular steel fence.  Wrought iron/tubular steel fences can be a maximum of six (6) 
feet in height. 

3. Corner Lots. Corner lots fences (i.e. adjacent to the street) shall provide masonry 
columns at 45-feet off center spacing that begins at the rear of the property line.  A 
maximum of six (6) foot solid board-on-board panel fence constructed utilizing cedar 
fencing shall be allowed between the masonry columns along the side and/or rear lot 
adjacent to a street.  In addition, the fencing shall be setback from the side property 
line adjacent to a street a minimum of five (5) feet.  The property owner shall be 
required to maintain both sides of the fence. 

Illustration 1: Properties line up on the opposite side of the street.  Where RED is the subject property. 

Illustration 2: Properties do not line up on opposite side of the street. Where RED is the subject property. 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

04
.1

9.
20

21

198



4. Solid Fences (including Wood Fences). All solid fences shall incorporate a 
decorative top rail or cap detailing into the design of the fence. 

 
7. Landscape and Hardscape Standards.  

 
a. Landscape. Landscaping shall be reviewed and approved with the PD Site Plan.  All 

Canopy/Shade Trees planted within this development shall be a minimum of four (4) 
caliper inches in size and all Accent/Ornamental/Under-Story Trees shall be a 
minimum of four (4) feet in total height. The following tree species are approved for 
planting within this subdivision: 
 
1. Canopy/Shade Trees. Bald Cyprus, Cedar Elm, Texas Red Oak, Homestead 

Elm, Lace Bark Elm, Chinese Pistachio, Shumard Oak, Sycamore, and Burr Oak. 
 

2. Accent/Ornamental/Under-Story Trees. Texas Redbud, Eve’s Necklace, Mexican 
Plum, Downy Hawthorn, Crepe Myrtle, Texas Mountain Laurel, Vitex, and Desert 
Willow. 

 
b. Landscape Buffers. All landscape buffers and plantings located within the buffers 

shall be maintained by the Homeowner’s Association (HOA). 
 

1. Landscape Buffer and Sidewalks (John King Boulevard). A minimum of a 50-foot 
landscape buffer shall be provided along the frontage of John King Boulevard 
(outside of and beyond any required right-of-way dedication), and shall 
incorporate ground cover, a built-up berm and shrubbery along the entire length 
of the frontage.  Berms and shrubbery shall have a minimum height of 30-inches 
and a maximum height of 48-inches.  In addition, three (3) canopy trees and four 
(4) accent trees shall be planted per 100-feet of linear frontage.  The developer 
shall also be responsible for the construction of a ten (10) foot curvilinear 
sidewalk situated within the 50-foot landscape buffer adjacent to John King 
Boulevard. 
 

c. Streetscape Landscaping.  Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy (CO), 
all residential, single family lots situated within the proposed subdivision shall be 
landscaped with canopy trees from the list stipulated by Section 7(1) of this 
ordinance in the following sizes and proportions: 
 
1. Two (2), three (3) inch trees measured six (6) inches above the root ball shall be 

planted in the front yard of an interior lot. 
 

2. Two (2), three (3) inch trees measured six (6) inches above the root ball shall be 
planted in the front yard of a corner lot and two (2), three (3) inch caliper trees 
shall be planted in the side yard facing the street. 
 

Note: For the purposes of this section only [i.e. Section 7(3)], the term “front yard” 
includes the area within the dedicated right-of-way for a parkway immediately 
adjoining the front yard of the lot. 
 

d. Irrigation Requirements. Irrigation shall be installed for all required landscaping 
located within common areas, landscape buffers and/or open space.  Irrigation 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

04
.1

9.
20

21

199



installed in these areas shall be designed by a Texas licensed irrigator or landscape 
architect and shall be maintained by the Homeowner’s Association. 
 

e. Hardscape. Hardscape plans indicating the location of all sidewalks and trails shall 
be reviewed and approved with the PD Site Plan. 
 

8. Street. All streets (excluding drives, fire lanes and private parking areas) shall be built 
according to City street standards. 
 

9. Lighting. Light poles shall not exceed 20-feet in total height (i.e. base and lighting 
standard).  All fixtures shall be directed downward and be positioned to contain all light 
within the development area. 
 

10. Sidewalks. At a maximum, all sidewalks adjacent to a street shall begin two (2) feet 
behind the right-of-way line and be five (5) feet in overall width. 
 

11. Buried Utilities. New distribution power-lines required to serve the Subject Property shall 
be placed underground, whether such lines are located internally or along the perimeter 
of the Subject Property, unless otherwise authorized by the City Council. Temporary 
power-lines constructed across undeveloped portions of the Subject Property to facilitate 
development phasing and looping may be allowed above ground, but shall not be 
considered existing lines at the time the area is developed, and if they are to become 
permanent facilities, such lines shall be placed underground pursuant to this paragraph.  
Franchise utilities shall be placed within a ten (10) foot public utility easement behind the 
sidewalk, between the home and the property line. 
 

12. Open Space. The development shall consist of a minimum of 20% open space (or 
14.082-acres), and generally conform to the Concept Plan contained in Exhibit ‘B’ of this 
ordinance.  All open space areas shall be maintained by the Homeowner’s Association 
(HOA). 
 

13. Trail Rest Area.  The developer shall be responsible for the construction of a Trail Rest 
Area that generally conforms to the rest area depicted in Figure 1 (below).  
 
 
Figure 1: Trail Rest Area Concept 

 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

04
.1

9.
20

21

200



 
 

14. Neighborhood Signage. Permanent subdivision identification signage shall be permitted 
at all major entry points for the proposed subdivision.  Final design and location of any 
entry features shall be reviewed and approved with the PD Site Plan. 
 

15. Homeowner’s Association (HOA). A Homeowner’s Association shall be created to 
enforce the restrictions established in accordance with the requirements of Section 38-
15 of the Subdivision Regulations contained within the Municipal Code of Ordinances of 
the City of Rockwall.  The HOA shall also maintain all neighborhood parks, trails, open 
space and common areas, irrigation, landscaping, screening fences associated with this 
development. 
 

16. Variances. The variance procedures and standards for approval that are set forth in the 
Unified Development Code shall apply to any application for variances to this ordinance. 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

04
.1

9.
20

21

201



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, Interim City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: April 19, 2021

SUBJECT: Z2021-007; ZONING CHANGE (AG TO PD) FOR THE KLUTTS FARM

Attachments
Case Memo
Development Application
Location Map
HOA Notification Map
Property Owner Notification Map
Property Owner Notification List
Public Notice
Property Owner Notifications
For and Against Map
Survey
Concept Plan
South Central Residential District
Harry Myers Park Exhibit
Draft Ordinance

Summary/Background Information
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Kevin Harrell of the Skorburg
Company on behalf of Ben Klutts, Jr. of the Klutts Farm, LLC for the approval of
an ordinance for a Zoning Change from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Planned Development
District for Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District land uses on a 196.009-acre tract of land identified as
Tract 6 of the J. A. Ramsey Survey, Abstract No. 186, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County,
Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, generally located at the northeast corner of the
intersection of FM-549 and FM-1139, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

Action Needed
The City Council is being asked to approve, approve with condition, or deny the Zoning
Change.

202



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL CASE MEMO 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 
 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

DATE: April 19, 2021 
 

APPLICANT: Kevin Harrell; Skorburg Company 
 

CASE NUMBER: Z2021-007; Zoning Change (AG to PD) for the Klutts Farm  
 

 
ORANGE: Changes proposed by the applicant based on the recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Kevin Harrell of the Skorburg Company on behalf of Ben Klutts, Jr. 
of the Klutts Farm, LLC for the approval of a Zoning Change from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Planned Development District 
for Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District land uses on a 196.009-acre tract of land identified as Tract 6 of the J. A. Ramsey Survey, 
Abstract No. 186, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, generally located at the northeast 
corner of the intersection of FM-549 and FM-1139, and take any action necessary. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
A 103.142-acre portion of the subject property was annexed on June 
15, 1998 by Ordinance No. 98-20.  The remainder of the subject 
property was annexed on October 4, 2010 by Ordinance No. 10-27.  At 
the time of annexation both of these portions of the subject property 
were zoned Agricultural (AG) District.  Currently situated on the subject 
property is an old farmhouse, which is 1,860 SF in size and was 
constructed in 1889 by William Lawson Lawhorn (known as the Lawhorn 
Farm House).  In addition, -- based on current aerial images -- there 
appears to be two (2) agricultural accessory buildings (of an 
undetermined size) on the property.  No additional changes or 
improvements have been made to the subject property since its 
annexation, and the property has remained zoned Agricultural (AG) 
District. 
 
PURPOSE 
 
On March 19, 2021, the applicant -- Kevin Harrell of the Skorburg Company -- submitted an application requesting to change 
the zoning of the subject property from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Planned Development District for Single-Family 7 (SF-
7) District land uses.  Specifically, the applicant is proposing to entitle the subject property for a 526-lot single-family, residential 
subdivision that will consists of four (4) lot sizes (i.e. [A] 408, 62’ x 120’; [B] 95, 72’ x 120’; [C] 13, 82’ x 120’; and [D] 10, 100’ x 
120’).  NOTE: Based on the changes requested/recommended by the Planning and Zoning Commission the revised lot count is 
as follows: [A] 396, 62’ x 120’; [B] 109, 72’ x 120’; [C] 11, 82’ x 120’; and [D] 10, 100’ x 120’. 
 
ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS 
 
The subject property is located northeast of the intersection of FM-549 and FM-1139.  The land uses adjacent to the subject 
property are as follows: 

 
North: Directly north of the subject property are the corporate limits of the City of Rockwall followed by residential properties 

situated within the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) of the City of Rockwall.  This area includes the Woolridge 

FIGURE 1: LAWHORN FARM HOUSE. 

203



Estates and Willow Ridge Subdivisions.  Beyond this is the corporate limits of the City of Rockwall followed by 
Phase 3 of the Fontanna Ranch Subdivision, which is zoned Planned Development District 67 (PD-67) for Single-
Family 16 (SF-16) District land uses.   

 
South: Directly south of the subject property is FM-1139, which is identified as a M4U (i.e. major collector, four [4] lane, 

divided roadway) on the City’s Master Thoroughfare Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 
Comprehensive Plan.  Beyond this are the corporate limits of the City of Rockwall followed by residential properties 
situated within the City of McLendon-Chisolm’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ). 

 
East: Directly east of the subject property are the corporate limits of the City of Rockwall.  Beyond this are the corporate 

limits of the City of Rockwall followed by residential properties situated within the City of McLendon-Chisolm’s 
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ). 

 
West: Directly west of the subject property is FM-549, which is identified as a TXDOT4D (i.e. a Texas Department of 

Transportation [TXDOT], four [4] lane, divided roadway) on the City’s Master Thoroughfare Plan contained in the 
OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan.  Beyond this are eight (8) single-family residential homes zoned 
Single-Family Estate 2.0 (SFE-2.0) District, and eight (8) single-family residential homes zoned Single-Family 
Estate 4.0 (SFE-4.0) District.  East of these properties is Phase 1 of the Somerset Park Subdivision, which consists 
of 152 single-family residential homes on 56.43-acres.  This subdivision is zoned Planned Development District 63 
(PD-63) for Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District land uses. 

 
 

 

CHARACTERISTICS OF THE REQUEST 
 
The applicant has submitted a concept plan and development standards for the proposed residential subdivision.  The concept 
plan shows that the 196.009-acre subject property will be broken down into 526 single-family residential lots that will consist of 
four (4) lot types (i.e. 62’ x 120’, 72’ x 120’, 82’ x 120’, and 100’ x 120’).  More specifically, the development will incorporate 408, 
62’ x 120’ lots (i.e. a minimum of 7,440 SF); 95, 72’ x 120’ lots (i.e. a minimum of 8,640 SF); 13, 82’ x 120’ lots (i.e. a minimum 
of 9,840 SF); and 10, 100’ x 120’ lots (i.e. minimum of 12,000 SF), which equates to an average lot size of 7,802.74 SF.  More 
specifically, the development will incorporate 396, 62’ x 120’ lots (i.e. a minimum of 7,440 SF); 109, 72’ x 120’ lots (i.e. a minimum 
of 8,640 SF); 11, 82’ x 120’ lots (i.e. a minimum of 9,840 SF); and 10, 100’ x 120’ lots (i.e. minimum of 12,000 SF), which equates 
to an average lot size of 7,825.55 SF.  This would translate to a density of 2.68 dwelling units per acre for the total development.  

FIGURE 2: LOCATION MAP. 

ROCKWALL ETJ) 

MCLENDON-CHISOLM ETJ 

MCLENDON-CHISOLM ETJ 

SUBJECT PROPERTY 

204



The minimum dwelling unit size (i.e. air-condition space) will range from 2,200 SF to 2,800 SF.  According to the applicant, the 
proposed housing product will be of the same quality as the Breezy Hill and Stone Creek Subdivisions, but will incorporate 
updated floor plans.  Staff has incorporated anti-monotony and masonry standards into the proposed Planned Development 
District ordinance.  Specifically, the ordinance will require a minimum of 90% masonry (with a minimum of 85% masonry on 
each façade), and be subject to the City’s upgraded anti-monotony standards; however, the Planned Development District 
ordinance will also incorporate provisions that allow up to 50% cementitous fiberboard utilized in a horizontal lap-siding, board-
and-batten siding, or decorative pattern to allow a more Traditional Neighborhood Design product (also referred to as 
Gingerbread).  The proposed subdivision will be subject to the land uses and density and dimensional requirements stipulated 
for properties within a Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District.  The following is a summary of the lot composition and density and 
dimensional standards contained in the proposed Planned Development District ordinance: 
 

TABLE 1: LOT COMPOSITION 
     

Lot Type Minimum Lot Size (FT) Minimum Lot Size (SF) Dwelling Units (#) Dwelling Units (%) 
A 62’ x 120’ 7,440 SF 408 396 77.57 75.29% 

B 72’ x 120’ 8,640 SF 95 109 18.06 20.72% 

C 82’ x 120’ 9,840 SF 13 11 02.47 02.09% 

D 100’ x 120’ 12,000 SF 10 01.90% 
     

Maximum Permitted Units: 526 100.00% 
     

 
TABLE 2: LOT DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS 

 

Lot Type (see Concept Plan) ►  A B C D 
Minimum Lot Width (1) 62’ 72’ 82’ 100’ 

Minimum Lot Depth 120’ 120’ 120’ 120’ 

Minimum Lot Area 7,440 SF 8,640 SF 9,840 SF 12,000 SF 

Minimum Front Yard Setback (2), (5) & (6) 20’ 20’ 20’ 20’ 

Minimum Side Yard Setback 6’ 6’ 6’ 6’ 

Minimum Side Yard Setback (Adjacent to a Street) (2) & (5) 20’ 20’ 20’ 20’ 

Minimum Length of Driveway Pavement 25’ 25’ 25’ 25’ 

Maximum Height (3) 36’ 36’ 36’ 36’ 

Minimum Rear Yard Setback (4) 10’ 10’ 10’ 10’ 

Minimum Area/Dwelling Unit (SF) [Air-Conditioned Space] (7) 2,200 SF 2,600 SF 2,800 SF 2,800 SF 

Maximum Lot Coverage 65% 65% 65% 65% 
 

General Notes: 
1:  Lots fronting onto curvilinear streets, cul-de-sacs and eyebrows may have the front lot width reduced by 20% 

as measured at the front property line provided that the lot width will be met at the Front Yard Building Setback.  
Additionally, the lot depth on lots fronting onto curvilinear streets, cul-de-sacs and eyebrows may be reduced 
by up to ten (10) percent, but shall meet the minimum lot size for each lot type referenced in Table 1. 

2:  The location of the Front Yard Building Setback as measured from the front property line. 
3:  The Maximum Height shall be measured to the eave or top plate (whichever is greater) of the single-family 

home. 
4: The location of the Rear Yard Building Setback as measured from the rear property line. 
5: Sunrooms, porches, stoops, bay windows, balconies, masonry clad chimneys, eaves and similar architectural 

features may encroach beyond the Front Yard Building Setback by up to ten (10) feet for any property; however, 
the encroachment shall not exceed five (5) feet on Side Yard Setbacks.  A sunroom is an enclosed room no 
more than 15-feet in width that has glass on at least 50% of each of the encroaching faces. 

6: Type ‘A’ Lots that incorporate a flat-front entry garage configuration shall be required to have a minimum 

setback of 25-feet. 
7: All lots that have a rear yard that faces onto FM-549 shall be permitted to have a minimum area/dwelling unit 

(air-conditioned space) of 2,800 SF. 

 
The proposed concept plan shows that the development will consist of 10.01-acres of open space (which includes a dog park), 
a 1.517-acre amenity center, and a 51.8-acre public park.  This represents a total of 63.327-acre (or 32.31%) of the site being 
dedicated to open space/amenity.  This exceeds the total required open space of 20.00% (or 39.20-acres) by 12.31% (or 24.127-
acres).  In addition, the applicant has indicated that the proposed development will provide a six (6) foot meandering trail along 
the frontage of FM-549 and from the amenity center to the proposed public park.  The applicant has also indicated that the 
building materials for the amenity center will incorporate materials from the old farmhouse currently on the subject property.  All 

205



of these items have been included into the proposed Planned Development District ordinance and will be requirements of the 
proposed subdivision. 
 
INFRASTRUCTURE 
 
Based on the applicant’s concept plan and the proposed density, the following infrastructure is required to be constructed to 
provide adequate public services for the proposed development: 
 
(1) Roadways. All of the residential streets will need to have a minimum of 50-feet of right-of-way with a 29-foot back-to-back 

concrete street; however, any roadway adjacent to the proposed public park will need to have a minimum of 60-feet of right-
of-way with a 41-foot back-to-back concrete street.  Since the Texas Department of Transportation (TXDOT) will be 
widening and improving FM-549 in July of 2021, no improvements are necessary for this roadway. 
 

(2) Water.  The applicant shall be required to provide a letter from Blackland Water Supply Corporation -- the holder of the 
Certificate of Convenience and Necessity (CCN) for a portion of the subject property -- stating that they can serve domestic 
and fire protection meeting the City’s minimum standards for the portion of the property that is located within their CCN.  As 
an alternative, the applicant can pursue opting out of the Blackland Water Supply Corporation’s CCN.  Any water system 
utilized to provide water to the site will be required to utilize a minimum of an eight (8) inch line that is to be looped through 
the subject property. 

 
(3) Wastewater.  The applicant will need to connect the subdivision to the City’s existing sanitary sewer system.  This includes 

extending a minimum of an eight (8) inch wastewater line connecting the subject property to the existing Long Branch Lift 
Station.  Existing pro-rata agreements will also need to be paid for the Long Branch and both FM-3097 Lift Stations in the 
amount of $545.38/acre and $432.74/acre.  In addition, both of the FM-3097 Lift Stations will need to be upgraded to 
ultimate capacity (i.e. pumps, electrical equipment, generators, and any other appurtenances) if more than 242 lots are 
constructed.  Since the applicant is proposing to increase the densities that are called for on the Future Land Use Map 
contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan, an infrastructure study will need to be performed to 
determine the impact to the existing system, and the capacity and necessary improvements to all lift stations needed to 
sufficiently serve the development. 

 
(4) Drainage.  The applicant shall be required to perform a flood study to delineate the fully developed 100-year localized 

floodplain for all ponds, creeks or streams, and draws on the subject property.  Detention will be required and sized per the 
required detention study.  The applicant will also be required to perform a Wetlands and Waters of the United States 
(WOTUS) study for the existing ponds on the subject property. 

 
CONFORMANCE TO THE CITY’S CODES 
 
The proposed Planned Development District conforms to the majority of the City’s code requirements; however, it should be 
noted that the development standards contained within the Planned Development District ordinance deviate from the 
requirements of the Unified Development Code (UDC), the Municipal Code of Ordinances, and the Engineering Department’s 
Standards of Design and Construction Manual in the following ways: 
 
(1) Alleyways. The Engineering Department’s Standards of Design and Construction Manual stipulates that “(a)lleys shall be 

provided in all residential areas and shall be paved with steel reinforced concrete…”  The code does grant the City Council 
the ability to “… waive the residential alley requirement, if it is in the best interest of the City.” [Page 14; Section 2.11 of the 
Standards of Design and Construction Manual]  
 

(2) Garage Configuration.  The Unified Development Code (UDC) requires that, “(i)n single-family or duplex districts, parking 
garages must be located at least 20-feet behind the front building façade for front entry garages unless it is a J-Swing [or 
traditional swing] garage where the garage door is perpendicular to the street.”  

 
Applicant’s Response to (1) & (2): In lieu of providing the required alleyways, the applicant is proposing to provide 75 80% 
J-Swing or Traditional Swing garages and 25 20% Flat Front Entry garages (i.e. where the garage is even with the front 
façade).  This translates to 32.11 25.74% (i.e. 131 105) of the Type ‘A’ Lots (i.e. 62’ x 120’ lots) being Flat Front Entry with 
all of the Type ‘B’, ‘C’, & ‘D’ Lots (i.e. Type ‘B’: 72’ x 120’ lots; Type ‘C’: 82’ x 120’ lots; and Type ‘D’: 100’ x 120’ lots) being 

206



in a J-Swing or Traditional Swing garage configuration.  As a compensatory measure the applicant is proposing to increase 
the front yard building setback from 20-feet to 25-feet for homes that have a Flat Front Entry garage configuration.  The 
applicant is also proposing to provide decorative wood garage doors or garage doors that incorporate a wood overlay on 
an insulated metal door.  All garage doors will also incorporate carriage style hardware.  In addition, the applicant will still 
have the ability to provide Recessed Front Entry garages (i.e. where the front of the garage is setback a minimum of 20-
feet from the front façade of the house) on all lots.   

 
(3) Fencing.  According to Subsection 02.02, Minimum Standards for Residential Planned Development Districts, of Article 10, 

Planned Development Regulations, of the Unified Development Code (UDC), “(t)he fence standards contained in a Planned 
Development (PD) District ordinance shall -- at a minimum -- conform to the requirements contained in Section 08, Fence 
Standards, of Article 08, Landscape and Fence Standards.”  This section of the code stipulates that “(t)ransparent fencing 
is required adjacent to all perimeter roadways (i.e. along the perimeter of the subdivision), abutting open spaces, greenbelts 
and parks … [and that] (p)erimeter subdivision fencing shall be constructed of six (6) foot tall tubular steel or wrought-iron 
type fencing with masonry columns …” 
 
Applicant’s Response to (3): In this case, the northern most lots are directly adjacent to a ten (10) foot drainage and utility 
easement that will run contiguous with the northern property line of the subject property.  Per the Unified Development 
Code (UDC), the applicant would be required to construct a wrought-iron fence with masonry columns adjacent to this area 
and plant landscaping adjacent to the fence.  The applicant is requesting to allow these property owners to construct a six 
(6) foot wood fence (to the same standards as listed in the Planned Development District ordinance) to better screen the 
areas north of the proposed ten (10) foot drainage easement. 
 

(4) Dog Park.  According to Section 6-325, Site Selection Criteria, of Article X, Dog Parks, of Chapter 6, Animals, of the 
Municipal Code of Ordinances, “(s)ite selections shall be reviewed and approved by the City Council …” and “(o)ff leash 
areas in parks shall be located a minimum of 500-feet from a residential dwelling unit.” 
 
Applicant’s Response to (4): In this case, the proposed dog park will be directly adjacent to residential properties within the 
subdivision; however, the dog park will be privately owned and maintained by the Homeowner’s Association (HOA).  If this 
Planned Development District ordinance is approved as requested, the City Council would be approving the location of the 
dog park allowing it to be closer than the required 500-feet from residential dwelling units.  The applicant has stated that 
this is a highly desirable amenity for residents. 

 
CONFORMANCE WITH OURHOMETOWN VISION 2040 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
 
According to the Land Use Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan, the subject property is 
located within the South Central Residential District and is designated for Low Density Residential land uses on the Future Land 
Use Plan.  According to the Comprehensive Plan, Low Density Residential land uses are defined as “… residential subdivisions 
that are two (2) units per gross acre or less; however, a density of up to two and one-half (2½) units per gross acre may be 
permitted for developments that incorporate increased amenity and a mix of land uses …”  In this case, the applicant is proposing 
an overall density of 2.68 dwelling units per acre, which exceeds the density stipulated for Low Density Residential land uses.  
According to the Comprehensive Plan, Medium Density Residential land uses are defined as “…residential subdivisions that 
are greater than two and one-half (2½) units per gross acre, but not higher than three (3) units per gross acre…”  Therefore, the 
applicant’s request will necessitate that the subject property be changed from a Low Density Residential land use designation 
to a Medium Density Residential land use designation on the Future Land Use Plan; however, staff should point out that the 
plan does appear to conform to the District Strategies outlined for the establishment of suburban residential in the South Central 
Residential District.  This change is discretionary to the City Council and if approved would not change the desired land use 
ratio of residential to commercial, which is targeted at providing a ratio of 80% residential/ 20% commercial land uses per the 
Comprehensive Plan [Goal 01, Policy 1; Section 02.01 of Chapter 1]. 
 
With regard to the policies for residential development contained in the Comprehensive Plan the applicant has incorporated 
many of the policies and goals (e.g. housing tree model, minimum of six [6] side yard setbacks on all lot types, fronting of homes 
on to a park/open space, etc.); however, staff has identified the following non-conformities and provided the following 
recommendations to the applicant: 
 
RED: NOT INCORPORATED INTO THE PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ORDINANCE. 

207



BLUE: INCORPORATED INTO THE PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ORDINANCE. 
 
(1) CH. 08 | Sec. 02.02 | Goal 1; Policy 4: Developments should be encouraged to provide a mixture of lot sizes throughout 

each phase to ensure that maximum value accrues for all properties. This is particularly important in developments that 
propose clusters of smaller lots. 

 
Staff Response: Staff has asked the applicant to provide a mixture of lot sizes through each phase of the development and 
not create pods of one (1) type of lot product.  This was echoed by the Planning and Zoning Commission at the Planning 
and Zoning Commission Work Session Meeting on March 30, 2021.  Based on the Planning and Zoning Commission’s 
recommendation and the April 13, 2021 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, the applicant has taken the 
homogenous pods of 72’ x 120’ lots and dispersed them within the 62’ x 120’ lot product.  
 

(2) CH. 08 | Sec. 02.02 | Goal 1; Policy 5: Residential developments should be designed so that smaller residential lots/units 
are located in the closest proximity to a park and/or open space. This will maximize the value of these lots/units, and allow 
the open spaces to off-set smaller lot/unit sizes. 

 
Staff Response: Staff has requested that the applicant consider switching the 72’ x 120’ lots that front on to the proposed 
parkland with the 62’ x 120’ lots to better conform to this requirement (i.e. flip the orientation of the block so that the smaller 
lot product fronts onto the park and the larger lot product fronts towards the subdivision).  The applicant has changed the 
concept plan in accordance with staff’s request. 

 
(3) CH. 08 | Sec. 02.02 | Goal 3; Policy 4: All parks and open space should provide an integrated trail system that serves the 

adjacent neighborhood areas. 
 

Staff Response: Staff has recommended to the applicant that a trail system should be incorporated along FM-549 and 
extending from the amenity center to the proposed public park.  The applicant has incorporated this recommendation into 
the proposed concept plan and shows that a six (6) foot trail will be constructed along FM-549 and extending from the 
amenities center to the proposed public park. 

 
(4) CH. 08 | Sec. 02.03 | Goal 1; Policy 4: Identify and preserve existing neighborhood landmarks (e.g. historic or unique 

buildings and prominent natural features) to foster distinctiveness, neighborhood pride, and sense of ownership. 
 
Staff Response: The old farmhouse on the subject property could be preserved as or incorporated into the amenities center, 
which would preserve a unique and historic building within the community.  The applicant has incorporated language into 
the Planned Development District ordinance that would allow the materials from the old farmhouse to be used in the design 
of the amenities center.  

 
(5) CH. 08 | Sec. 02.03 | Goal 3; Policy 2: Require rear-entry garages and alleyways on all lots that have a lot width of 55-feet 

or less; however, alleyways should be prohibited on all lots greater than 55-feet. These lots should incorporate J-Swing or 
Recessed Front Entry garages. 

 
Staff Response: The applicant was originally proposing a 52’ x 120’ lot product that was to incorporate a Flat Front Entry 
garage configuration.  Staff recommended to the applicant replacing the 52’ x 120’ lot product with the 62’ x 120’ lot product, 
and only incorporating garage configurations that meet the City’s Planned Development District standards as stipulated by 
the Unified Development Code (UDC).  The applicant has removed the 52’ x 120’ product and is requesting garage 
configurations that are in conformance with the Unified Development Code (UDC). 
 

(6) CH. 08 | Sec. 02.03 | Goal 3; Policy 3: In cases where Flat Front Entry garages (i.e. even with the front façade of the primary 
structure) are requested as part of a development no greater than 20% should be incorporated into the development. In 
addition, Flat Front Entry garages should have a minimum of a 25-foot front yard building setback to allow vehicles to be 
parked in the driveway without overhanging public right-of-way. This type of garage may not be appropriate for all 
developments and should be generally discouraged. 

 
Staff Response: If a Flat Front Entry garage configuration is being requested it should be limited to 20% and the front 
building setback of these properties should be increased to 25-feet. Based on the Planning and Zoning Commission’s 

208



recommendation at the April 13, 2021 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, the applicant has reduced the Flat Front 
Entry garages from 25% to 20%.  In addition, the applicant has consented to upgraded garage door requirements and has 
provided a minimum of a 25-foot front yard building setbacks on all Flat Front Entry garages. 

 
Taking all of this into account, the concept plan does incorporate many of the residential policies and guidelines contained in 
the Comprehensive Plan into the Planned Development District ordinance and appears to conform to Chapter 08, Residential, 
of the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan; however, due to the increase in density, the approval of the applicant’s 
request remains a discretionary decision for the City Council pending a recommendation from the Planning and Zoning 
Commission. 
 
PARKS AND RECREATION BOARD 
 
Per the Planning and Zoning Commission’s request at the Work Session Meeting on March 30, 2021, staff sent the proposed 
concept plan to the Parks and Recreation Board for their review and recommendation.  On April 6, 2021, the Parks and 
Recreation Board approved a motion to recommend approval of the proposed public park as a regional park by a vote of 6-0, 
with Board Member Dodd absent.  In addition, staff has provided an exhibit of Harry Myers Park for the Planning and Zoning 
Commission’s review.  Harry Myers Park is a regional park that consists of a total of 66.29-acres of land (consisting of 22.76-
acres of floodplain and 43.53-acres of land outside of the floodplain).  
 
NOTIFICATIONS 
 
On March 26, 2021, staff mailed 23 notices to property owners and occupants within 500-feet of the subject property.  There 
were no Homeowner’s Associations (HOAs) or Neighborhood Organizations within 1,500-feet of the subject property 
participating in the Neighborhood Notification Program.  Additionally, staff posted a sign on the subject property, and advertised 
the public hearings in the Rockwall Herald Banner as required by the Unified Development Code (UDC).  At the time this report 
was drafted, staff had received the following: 
 
(1) Two (2) emails from two (2) property owners within the 500-foot notification buffer in favor of the applicant’s request. 
(2) A petition signed by thirteen (13) property owners representing nine (9) properties within the 500-foot notification buffer in 

opposition to the applicant’s request. 
(3) Two (2) emails from two (2) property owners outside of the 500-foot notification buffer in opposition to the applicant’s 

request. 
(4) One (1) email from a non-participating Homeowner’s Association (HOA) [i.e. Fontanna Ranch HOA] within the 1,500-foot 

notification buffer in opposition to the applicant’s request. 
 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
If the City Council chooses to approve of the applicant’s request to rezone the subject property from an Agricultural (AG) District 
to a Planned Development District for Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District land uses, then staff would propose the following conditions 
of approval: 
 
(1) The applicant shall be responsible for maintaining compliance with the conditions contained in the Planned Development 

District ordinance; 
 

(2) By approving this zoning change, the City Council will effectively be approving changes to the Comprehensive Plan and 
Future Land Use Map.  Specifically, this will change the designation of the subject property from a Low Density Residential 
designation to a Medium Density Residential designation; and, 
 

(3) Any construction resulting from the approval of this Zoning Change shall conform to the requirements set forth by the Unified 
Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted 
engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state 
and federal government. 

 
 
 

209



 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 
On April 13, 2021 the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend approval of the applicant’s request 
to rezone the subject property from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Planned Development District for Single-Family 7 (SF-7) 
District land uses by a vote of 5-2, with Commissioners Chodun and Moeller dissenting.  As part of the motion the Planning and 
Zoning Commission stipulated that the Planned Development District ordinance be changed to [1] reduce the Flat Front Entry 
Garages from 25% to 20%, and [2] that the 72’ x 120’ lots be mixed throughout the development instead of being in homogenous 
pods.  The applicant has agreed to these changes and staff has changed the case memo and Planned Development District 
ordinance accordingly.  
 

210



211



FM
 54

9

FM 1139

GOLIAD

RO
CH

ELL

WYLIE

CH
ISH

OL
M

WIMBERLEY

FONTANNA

SOMERSET

KENTWOOD

SAN MARCOS

BLYTHE

FAIRFIEL
D

KENSINGTON
PEC

OS

STABLEGLEN

AUSTIN CORNERS

SAINT MICHAELS

WINDING RIDGE

RIDGELAKE

WIND
SOR

QUINCY
WALES

ABINGTON

EM
PIR

E

ROCKI DELL

KINGSBRIDGE

GUADALUPE

WILLOW RIDGE

OLMSTED

STATE HIGHWAY 205

LOFLAND

MESA VERDE

HAMILTON

TRAVIS

BEAR CLAW
SYLVAN PARK

JAMS

HARVEST
 RIDGE

LOUDON

MARBLE FALLS

MC
LEN

DO
N

SELBORNE

BOERNE

PEOPLES

CAMBRIDGE

YORK HOUSE

LONG COMMON

FIE
LD

WI
LLO

WC
RE

EK

HEBRON

BASTR
OP

OXFORD

LUCKENBACH

CAM
PTO

N

FM 549

GU
AD

ALU
PE

Z2021-007- ZONING CHANGE FROM AG TO PD
KLUTTS FAMILY FARM 
ZONING - LOCATION MAP =       

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user.

City of Rockwall

0 800 1,600 2,400 3,200400
Feet

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com I212



WILLOW RIDGE

JAMS

CHISHOLM

WINDSOR

FM 1139

STABLEGLEN

SH
IN

ER

LONG COMMON

SYLVAN PARK

SELBORNE

HARVE
ST

RIDGE

BL
YT

HE

OLMSTED

GOLIAD

WI
LL

OW
HI

LL
GAGE

BL
YT

HE

FAIRFIELD

FM
 54

9

LOUDON

QU
IN

CY

WI
LL

OW
CR

EE
K

LOUDON

LONG COMMON

EM
PIR

E

MC
LE

ND
ON

SAN MARCOS

FM 549

SAINT MICHAELS

WILLOW RIDGE

HARVEST R
IDGE

WINDSO
R

WI
ND

IN
G 

RI
DG

E

Oaks of
Buffalo

Way

0 600 1,200 1,800 2,400300
Feet

I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       

FM 550
FM

 54
8

RID
GE

FM 549

HORIZON

GOLIAD
JOHN KING

FM 1139

JONES

EDWARDSSMIRL PULLEN

POETRY

KUBAN

WALLACE
STATE HIGHWAY 205

FM 551

KLUTTS

MUNSON
JUSTIN

WH
ITE

STE
VENS

RO
CH

ELL
CONNIE

RUSK

WYLIE

SIDS SU
N

BUD

MYER
S

PINON

LEE

ALA
MO

SCE
NIC

Case Number:

Case Address:
Case Type:
Case Name:
Zoning:

Vicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created:

Legend
Subject Property

1500' Buffer

Rockwall HOAs

Z2021-007

Klutts Family Farm 
Specific Use Permit
Zoning
Agricultural (AG) District

3/19/2021 213



2994

2380

5205

5128

5297

2994

2592

2424

2516

2638

2480

3401

5133

2676

2548

2744

2716

211

2816

2778

2844

2914

2884

5170

4768

2600

5155
5165

5140
5160

4509

5120

5135

193

2500

4225

3005

3006

3813

3315

3302
3305

31093105
31013021

3905
3901

3120

2621

3909

3221

3301

322532173013

3116

3113

4201

4043

4209
4215

4205

3213

4202

3913 4010

3112

4405

4301

3014

4302

4310

3210 3230

4318

3209 3233

2622

3249

4109

3234

2617

4101

4210
4214

3224

4501

5075

3242

2518

2502

4207

3311

4027

4047

3902

2504

4105

2601

4050

4314

4002

3309

4401

4013

4306

3023

2406

4001

4317

2405

4014

4102

2423

4028

5090

2419

2505

4042

4206

2618

2606

4102

2625
2623

4206

4210
4222

4108

2513

4017

2605

3213

5459

3017

FM
 54

9

FM 1139

GOLIAD

RO
CH

EL
L

CH
ISH

OL
M

WINDING RIDGE

SAINT MICHAELS

WIND
SO

R

EM
PIR

E

WILLOW RIDGE

ABINGTON

FAIRFIELD

JAMS

SYLVAN PARK
HARVEST R

IDGE

MC
LE

ND
ON

PEOPLES

FIE
LD

WI
LL

OW
CR

EE
K

HEBRON

FM 549

ROCHELL

0 650 1,300 1,950 2,600325
Feet

I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       

S F
M 

548

W FM 550

E FM
 550

S FM
 549

RID
GE

 RD

E INTERSTATE 30

FM 1139
HORIZON RD

DA
LRO

CK
 RD

EDWARDS RD

S FM 551

S FM 740

JONES RD

SM
IRL

 DR

KLUTTS RD

MIMS RD

HIGHPOINT RD

SINKS RD

W RUSK STCase Number:

Case Address:

Z2021-007

FM 549 and FM 1139
Case Type: Zoning
Case Name: Zoning Change from AG to PD
Zoning: Agricultural (AG) District

Vicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created:  3/23/2021

Legend
Parcels
Subject Property
500' Buffer
Notified Properties

214



ROCKWALL 205 INVESTORS LLC 
1 CANDLELITE TRAIL  

HEATH, TX 75032 

LOFLAND N L EST 
1 CARMARTHEN CT 
DALLAS, TX 75225 

CHERRY BRUCE 
1111 CAMBRIDGE CT  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

NELLER GARY K & HELEN COMEAU 
148 HARVEST HILL DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

KLUTTS FARM LLC 
1604 NORTH HILLS DR 
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

NELLER GARY K & HELEN COMEAU 
2380 FM 549  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

HENSON RICHARD W & SHARON ES 
2424 FM5 49  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

ACOSTA ANTHONY 
2480 S FM 549  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

DUGGAN CHRISTOPHER W & SHERRI L 
2516 S FM 549  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

DUGGAN CHRISTOPHER W & SHERRI L 
2548 FM 549  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

CHERRY BRUCE 
2592 FM 549  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

LEE RICHARD V & GLORIA J 
2638 S FM 549  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

MCCANN KEVIN J AND ERIN M 
2676 FM 549  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

POWERS FAMILY TRUST 
JAMES DWAINE & PATRICIA ANNETTE POWERS 

CO TRUSTEES 
2716 FM549  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

OHMANN THOMAS J & CAROL J 
2744 S FM 549  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

HOLLON GREGORY D 
2778 S FM 549  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

HERRERA AARON J AND JENNIFER R AND 
FOREHAND DALE A AND AMELIA A 

2816 FM 549  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

WELCH CASEY K AND CATHARINE 
2844 S FM 549  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

PETTIFORD SEAN AND BRANDI 
2884 FM 549  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

SOLIS CARLOS HERIBERTO AND CRYSTAL GARZA-
SOLIS 

2914 FM 549  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

JONES DOUGLAS A 
2994 FM 549  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

HENSON RICHARD W & SHARON ES 
PO BOX 1091  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

POWERS FAMILY TRUST 
JAMES DWAINE & PATRICIA ANNETTE POWERS 

CO TRUSTEES 
PO BOX 850  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

215



PUBLIC NOTICE 

CITY OF ROCKWALL ● PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT ● 385 S. GOLIAD STREET ● ROCKWALL, TEXAS 75087 ● P: (972) 771 -7745 ● E: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 
EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

Property Owner and/or Resident of the City of Rockwall: 

You are hereby notified that the City of Rockwall Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will consider the following application: 

Case No. Z2021-007: Zoning Change from AG to PD 

Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Kevin Harrell of the Skorburg Company on behalf of Ben Klutts, Jr. of the Klutts Farm, 
LLC for the approval of a Zoning Change from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Planned Development District for Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District land 
uses on a 196.009-acre tract of land identified as Tract 6 of the J. A. Ramsey Survey, Abstract No. 186, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, 
zoned Agricultural (AG) District, generally located at the northwest corner of the intersection of FM-549 and FM-1139, and take any action 
necessary. 

For the purpose of considering the effects of such a request, the Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, April 13, 
2021 at 6:00 PM, and the City Council will hold a public hearing on Monday, April 19, 2021 at 6:00 PM.  These hearings will be held in the City 
Council Chambers at City Hall, 385 S. Goliad Street. 

As an interested property owner, you are invited to attend these meetings.  If you prefer to express your thoughts in writing please return the form to: 

Ryan Miller 
Rockwall Planning and Zoning Dept. 

385 S. Goliad Street 
Rockwall, TX 75087 

You may also email your comments to the Planning Department at planning@rockwall.com.  If you choose to email the Planning Department please 
include your name and address for identification purposes.   

Your comments must be received by Monday, April 19, 2021 at 4:00 PM to ensure they are included in the information provided to the City Council. 

Sincerely, 

Ryan Miller, AICP 
Director of Planning & Zoning 

MORE INFORMATION ON THIS CASE CAN BE FOUND AT: https://sites.google.com/site/rockwallplanning/development/development-cases 

PLEASE RETURN THE BELOW FORM 

Case No. Z2021-007: Zoning Change from AG to PD 

Please place a check mark on the appropriate line below: 

 I am in favor of the request for the reasons listed below.  

 I am opposed to the request for the reasons listed below. 

Name: 

Address: 

Tex. Loc. Gov. Code, Sec. 211.006 (d) If a proposed change to a regulation or boundary is protested in accordance with this subsection, the proposed change must receive, in 
order to take effect, the affirmative vote of at least three-fourths of all members of the governing body.  The protest must be written and signed by the owners of at least 20 
percent of either: (1) the area of the lots or land covered by the proposed change; or (2) the area of the lots or land immediately adjoining the area covered by the proposed 
change and extending 200 feet from that area. 

PLEASE SEE LOCATION MAP OF SUBJECT PROPERTY ON THE BACK OF THIS NOTICE 

216

mailto:planning@rockwall.com


1

Miller, Ryan

From: Jennifer Herrera <aandj_forever@hotmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, April 13, 2021 4:56 PM
To: Miller, Ryan
Subject: Homestead Klutts Farm

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Hello Ryan!  Please accept the following in regards to this evening’s meeting. 

My name is Jennifer Herrera. My husband and I live at 2816 FM 549. I am writing to support the Skorburg company's proposed 
development at the Klutts Farm. I believe that this developer is bringing in quality homes and a regional park, both of which should 
have a positive impact on my property value. Given the large number of homes coming to the area, I expect that the city will now be 
running a city sewer line and gas line to my property and the other existing properties on FM549 that will face this housing 
development. We have been waiting patiently for city infrastructure to finally reach us.  I find it only fair for us to have what the new 
developments are getting in Rockwall. 

Thank you for your time, 
Aaron and Jennifer Herrera 

Sent from my iPhone 
________________________ 
This email was scanned by Bitdefender 
  CAUTION:   This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the 
sender and know the content is safe. 

2816 FM-549: INSIDE OF 500' BUFFER

217



1

Miller, Ryan

From: Katie Welch <katie@welcheducation.com>
Sent: Tuesday, April 13, 2021 2:08 PM
To: Miller, Ryan
Subject: Planning & Zoning written comments - Welch

Hi Ryan, 

Attached are my written comments that I would like to submit to the Planning & Zoning Commission. Would you be able 
to assist me in getting these added to the written record for Case#Z2021‐007? 

Many thanks! 

Katie 

‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 
April 13, 2021 

To the Commissioners of the City of Rockwall Planning & Zoning Board: 

My name is Catharine Welch. My husband Casey and I are homeowners at one of the impacted properties for Case 
#Z2021‐007, the proposed Homestead development at the Klutts Farm. 

While we are certainly sad to see the Klutts Farm sold, we acknowledge that as landowners, the Klutts family is well 
within their rights to sell. We are pleased that the proposed design includes a 50‐acre regional park, which will help 
preserve the integrity of this beautiful piece of land. While we would certainly expect a voice in future discussions 
involving the development and amenitization of this park, we encourage the City to accept this gift and move forward 
with the park. We hope that the City will consider incorporating the Klutts name into the plans as a way to honor the 
history of this piece of land as well as the contributions of this significant Rockwall family. 

I have spent quite a bit of time the past couple of weeks speaking with Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning, as 
well as Adam Buczek from the Skorburg company. They have been very willing to dialogue about this project, and Mr. 
Buczek not only agreed to meet with a group of neighbors to discuss the proposal, he also has made concessions based 
on our concerns, where possible. We were very pleased to see the FM549 streetscape being revised to include 100’ lots 
as well as the elimination of the 52’ lots. 

While I recognize that this proposal does conflict with the existing 2040 comprehensive plan for low‐density housing at 
the Klutts property, I believe the 30 or so additional homes being requested that raise the density slightly above the 2.5 
threshold are negligible in light of the regional park and high‐quality homes that are being offered. In all likelihood, this 
proposal will raise nearby property values and contribute to making south Rockwall a destination district. I therefore 
encourage the board to move forward with the Skorburg company’s revised proposal. 

However, as part of this planned development, the city needs to do its part in providing needed infrastructure to the 
area. When the City of Rockwall unilaterally annexed our neighborhood in 1997, we began paying Rockwall taxes but 
were not given full access to City services, specifically City sewer. We were in essence given an implicit “IOU” that 
someday, when the City developed around us, these services would be provided. That day has arrived. It is unreasonable 
for the City to continue to deny us taxpayers access to sewer services when all of the neighborhoods in our area will 
have this service. 

Over the 25 years since we were involuntarily annexed, the 16 homes from 2380 to 2994 FM 549 collectively have 
provided millions of dollars in revenue for the City. Without sewer, our homes require septic systems that 

2844 FM-549: INSIDE OF 500' BUFFER

218



2

indiscriminately spray gray water onto large portions of our properties, making this land incapable of being improved. 
This means that for almost three decades we have actually been asked to pay taxes on land that is rendered unusable, 
something easily remedied if the City would provide full services.  
 
The developer for Case #Z2021‐007 has indicated that they plan to provide City sewer to the 526 houses that will now 
be directly across from our front doors. They will be upgrading two lift stations in the area and installing a third on the 
property. Unfortunately, the City has indicated that even with all of these impending upgrades, they are still unable to 
provide us sewer services. They have suggested we could pay for the lines ourselves, but at a roughly 1 million‐dollar 
price tag, this is a non‐starter. 
 
Many Texas cities have found themselves in similar situations over the past 20 years, and these types of scenarios have 
been the impetus for much litigation and legislation regarding homeowner rights in annexation cases. Rockwall is a 
highly complex situation because we have such a large quantity of homes in this same situation. A quick glance through 
the GIS Utilities map reveals many other neighborhoods without sewer. It does not appear that the City has any long‐
term plan to remedy this situation; they only seem to be planning sewer services for new development. That’s why this 
issue is extremely relevant to Case #Z2021‐007 and not simply a tertiary concern. 
 
Without a plan to address its sewer infrastructure issues on existing homes, the City of Rockwall must be creative when 
new developments such as the one at the Klutts property are proposed. For example, has the City considered making a 
Tax Increment Financing District (TIF) for southern Rockwall? These types of districts are available for situations where 
infrastructure needs to be upgraded. It allows the City to borrow against future property tax earnings to fund the effort. 
Or, could the City obligate developers such as the Skorburg company who are building in areas with existing 
infrastructure issues to cost‐share in these efforts? These are the types of conversations and creative solutions that we 
need to be discussing now to ensure that all taxpayers, not just those in new developments, are being treated equitably.
 
Sincerely, 
 
Catharine (Katie) Welch, Ph.D.  
2844 FM 549 
Rockwall, TX 75032 
 
  
 

This email was scanned by Bitdefender  

  CAUTION:   This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 
recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 
 

219



220



221



222



1

Miller, Ryan

From: David Schoen <david.l.schoen@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, April 13, 2021 9:36 PM
To: Miller, Ryan; Pruitt, Jim; Hohenshelt, John; Campbell, Anna; Macalik, Dana; Daniels, Bennie; 

Johannesen, Trace; Fowler, Kevin
Cc: Smith, Mary; Boyd, Joey
Subject: Klutts farm: Z2021-007

Hi Mr. Miller, 

I David Schoen of 3006 San Marcos Drive, Rockwall 75032 am writing in opposition to the plans as proposed in Z2021-007. The 
density is just too much. The plans as submitted will overload Shannon elementary, not meet the 2040 density plan, and overload 549 
that will only be started to be widened in 2021. 

Not only that, it will make Fontanna BLVD more of a NASCAR racetrack than it currently is. 

Ask yourself ( All P&Z members should as well) would you want this for your neighborhood? Going out on a limb here and going to 
assume no... 

I sincerely hope that the developer has made staff recommendation changes, and concessions to conform to density plans. If not, and 
the plans as filed are approved by P&Z, I’ll be forced to take my objections directly to the city council. 

Why even have a 2040 plan if it won’t be followed? Even further here, why has this been a consistent issue in Rockwall for the 6+ years 
that I’ve lived in this fine city. (Two addresses) 

Hoping to resolve this without having to rally the neighbors, and take this directly to the city council (copied) 

Thanks, 

David Schoen 
3006 San Marcos Drive 
Rockwall, Tx 75032 
817-913-0036 
________________________ 
This email was scanned by Bitdefender 
  CAUTION:   This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the 
sender and know the content is safe. 

3006 SAN MARCOS DRIVE (FONTANNA RANCH SUBDIVISION): OUTSIDE OF 500' NOTIFICATION BUFFER

223



1

Miller, Ryan

From: Erica G <ericaa110588@yahoo.com>
Sent: Monday, March 29, 2021 8:21 PM
To: Miller, Ryan
Subject: New purposed subdivision 

Follow Up Flag: FollowUp
Flag Status: Flagged

I live in Fontanna Ranch and have recently heard about the purposed subdivision where kluts farm was. I am against this idea for many 
reasons . It’s seems as though this is the city’s way to pay for a city park yet not realizing what comes with it. We moved to this 
neighborhood because it was in Rockwall yet away from all the main traffic. 30 is already a nightmare and now you are planning on 
adding about 1500-2000 people. Decisions like this are causing good people to move out. Also, I am concerned for the traffic this will 
cause in my neighborhood because we house one of the closest schools to this area. Please think about all the issues this will cause 
rather than the reward of a park the city doesn’t have to pay as much for because of this deal. 
Sent from my iPhone 

________________________ 
This email was scanned by Bitdefender 
  CAUTION:   This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the 
sender and know the content is safe. 

UNKNOWN ADDRESS (FONTANNA RANCH SUBDIVISION): OUTSIDE OF 500' NOTIFICATION BUFFER

224



NON PARTICIPATING HOA: WITHIN 1,500' NOTIFICATION BUFFER

225



ï
Lawhorn
Cemetery

LEE RICHARD

V & GLORIA J

2638

CHERRY

BRUCE

2592

DUGGAN CHRISTOPHER

W & SHERRI L

2548

DUGGAN CHRIS

AND SHERRI

2516

ACOSTA

ANTHONY

2480

HENSON RICHARD

W & SHARON ES

2424

NELLER GARY K

& HELEN COMEAU

2380

HOLLON

GREGORY D

2778

MCCANN KEVIN

J AND ERIN M

2676

HERRERA AARON J

AND JENNIFER R AND

2816

WELCH CASEY K

AND CATHARINE

2844

PETTIFORD SEAN
AND BRANDI

2884
SOLIS CARLOS HERIBERTO

AND CRYSTAL GARZA-SOLIS
2914

A
R

C
A

D
IA

 L
A

K
E

S
O

F
 S

O
M

E
R

S
E

T

H
O

L
D

IN
G

S
 L

L
C

POWERS

FAMILY TRUST

2716

OHMANN THOMAS

J & CAROL J

2744

J
O

N
E

S
D

O
U

G
L
A

S
 A

2
9

9
4

K
L

U
T

T
S

F
A

R
M

 L
L
C

ROCKWALL 205
INVESTORS LLC

LOFLAND
N L EST

M
A

R
T

IN
E

Z
 J

O
S

E
D

E
 J

E
S

U
S

 L
O

P
E

Z

3
4

0
1

A
R

C
A

D
IA

 L
A

K
E

S
 O

F
S

O
M

E
R

S
E

T
 H

O
L

D
IN

G
S

 L
L
C

2
9

9
4

ROCKW
ALL 2

05

IN
VESTORS L

LC

K
L

U
T

T
S

F
A

R
M

 L
L
C

CH
ISH

OL
M 

TR
L

SYLVAN
PARKDR

S F
M 

549

FM 1139

MCLENDON DR

WINDSOR DR
WI

ND
ING

 RI
DG

E L
N

WILLOW RIDGE CIR
0 200 400 600 800 1,000

Feet

I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       

"1139

"54
9

")205

WILLOW RIDGE CIR

JAMS LN

CHIS H OLM TR
L

S GOLIAD ST

COOLWOOD LN

STA
BL

EG
LEN

DR

S J
OH

N
KIN

G
BL

VD

MISTY R IDGE LN

FM 1139

QUINCYST

AUSTIN CORNERSWIMBERLEY LN

S F
M 

54
9

PO
ST

OA
K D

R

RO
CH

ELL
 RD

BLYTHEST

KENTWOOD
CIRHEBRON CIR

BEAR CL AW

LN

SILVER HAWK
CT

DUSTY RIDGE
DR SAN M ARCOS DR

PEOPLES LN

FAIRFIELD DR

PHEASANTHILL DR

DOWELL
CIR

LOUDON STLO
FLA

ND
 C

IR

MCLENDONDR

KENTWOOD DR

RISE 
DR ROCKI DELL LN

BR
OK

EN

LANCE LN

SAINT MICHAELS WAY

H W
AL

LA
CE

 LN

RIDGELAKE LN

HARVE
ST

RIDGE D R

WINDSORDR

WI
ND

IN
GR

IDGE LN

WILLOW RIDGE
CIR

Vicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created:
Legend

Legend
City Limits

Parcels

Z2021-007 - PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

**PROPERTIES OUT OF THE 200' BUFFER BUT WITHIN THE NOTIFICATION AREA ARE SHOWN FOR
REFERENCE ONLY. THEY ARE NOT INCLUDED IN THE PERCENTAGE CALCULATIONS**

4/14/2021

SUBJECT PROPERTY
195.83 AC

MCLENDON CHISHOLM ETJ - NOT INCLUDED IN CALCULATIONS

ETJ PROPERTIES ARE NOT

INCLUDED IN CALCULATIONS

CITY OF
ROCKWALL

ROCKWALL ETJ

M
C

L
E

N
D

O
N

 C
H

IS
H

O
L
M

 E
T

J
 -

 N
O

T
 I

N
C

L
U

D
E

D
 I

N
 C

A
L

C
U

L
A

T
IO

N
S

MCLENDON-CHISHOLM ETJ
MC

LE
ND

ON
-C

HI
SH

OL
M 

ET
J

AGAINST (3.47 ac)  16%

FOR (0.58 ac)  2.68%

NO RESPONSE (2.55 ac)  11.76%

ROW  (15.09 ac)   69.56%

ETJ (0.0 ac not counted)

226



ABSTRACT NO. 186

J.A. RAMSEY SURVEY

ABSTRACT NO. 80

W.W. FORD SURVEY

ABSTRACT NO. 186

J.A. RAMSEY SURVEY

ABSTRACT NO. 80

W.W. FORD SURVEY

A
B

S
T

R
A

C
T
 

N
O
. 

1
8
6

J
.A
. 

R
A

M
S

E
Y
 

S
U

R
V

E
Y

A
B

S
T

R
A

C
T
 

N
O
. 

1
2
3

A
B

N
E

R
 
J

O
H

N
S

O
N
 

S
U

R
V

E
Y

ABST
RACT N

O. 1
23

A. J
OHNSON

ABST
RACT N

O. 8
0

W.W
. FORD

ABST
RACT N

O. 1
86

J.A.
 RAMSEY

N

0' 200' 400'

Scale: 1" = 200'

MARCH 2021

BOUNDARY SURVEY

972-649-6669
ALLEN, TEXAS 75013

200 W. BELMONT, SUITE D

OF A

OUT OF THE

IN THE

A. JOHNSON, ABST. NO. 123

ROCKWALL  COUNTY, TEXAS
CITY OF ROCKWALL

PRELIMINARY - FOR REVIEW PURPOSES ONLY

LEGEND

(C.M.)

OE

E

3
0
9
.7

6
'

S
0
1
°

0
1
'3

4
"
E

4
9
4
.6

4
'

S
0
0
°

1
6
'4

5
"
E

CH

CB

L

R

D

1/2"IRF

1/2"IRF

1/2"IRF

1/2" IRF

1/2"IRF1/2"IRF1/2"IRF5/8"IRF

5/8"IRF
3/4"IRF

CH

CB

L

R

D

VOL. F, PG. 1
HILLVIEW ACRES

VOL. 1381, PG. 266
SARAH J BUTLER

BOBBY H. BUTLER AND

11

LOT

12

LOT

13

LOT

14

LOT

15

LOT

16

LOT

20

LOT

19

LOT

18

LOT

17

LOT

21

LOT

22

LOT

7
9
2
.2

9
'

S
0
0
°

1
0
'0

7
"
E

D

R

L

CB

CH

CULVERT

CONC.

BOX

ELEC.

PP(3)

CONC. PAD

CONC. PAD

POND

POND

P
O

N
D

TEST STA.

NAT. GAS

POST

WOOD

POST

WOOD

POST

WOOD

POND

DRIVE

GRAVEL

SHED

STRUCTURE

COVERED

FEED TROUGH

ELEV.

18" CMP

18" CMP

ELEC. BOX

PP W/

W
IN

D
IN

G
 

R
ID

G
E
 

L
A

N
E

HEADWALL

CONC.

FENCE

BARBED-WIRE
FENCE
BARBED-WIRE

F
E
N
C
E

B
A
R
B
E
D
-W
IR

E
F

E
N

C
E

B
A

R
B

E
D
-

W
IR

E

FENCE

BARBED-WIRE

FENCE

BARBED-WIRE

FENCE

BARBED-WIRE

FENCE

BARBED-WIRE

F
E

N
C

E

B
A

R
B

E
D
-

W
IR

E

FENCEBARBED-WIR
E

FENCE

WIRE

F
E

N
C

E

W
IR

E

F
E

N
C

E

W
IR

E
F

E
N

C
E

W
IR

E

FENCE

BARBED-WIRE

F
E

N
C

E
B

A
R

B
E

D
-

W
IR

E

F
E

N
C

E
B

A
R

B
E

D
-

W
IR

E

FENCE

BARBED-WIRE

F
E

N
C

E

W
IR

E

CEMETERY
LAWHORN

W/ WV

WATER MH

SGN

SGN

W/ WV

WATER MH

1/2"IRF

1/2"IRF

1/2" IRF
1/2" IRF1/2" IRF

1/2" IRF1/2" IRF

1/2" IRF

1/2" IRF

1/2" IRF

1/2" IRF

1/2" IRF

DISTURBED

1/2" IRF

3/8" IRF
AMP

1/2" IRFC

SGN

DISTURBED

1/2"IRF

SGN

RSCI RPLS 5034

1/2"IRFC

FENCE

CHAIN-LINK

FENCE

CHAIN-LINK

FENCE

WIRE
COOP

CHICKEN

WOOD FENCE

FENCE

WROUGHT IRON

FENCE

BARBED-WIRE

FENCE

WIRE

FENCE

WIRE

FENCE

WIRE

PP

DEAD

PP

DETAIL "A"

P
O

N
D

SHED

GRAVEL

FENCE

BARBED-WIRE

F
E

N
C

E
B

A
R

B
E

D
-

W
IR

E

FENCE

BARBED-WIRE

F
E

N
C

E

W
IR

E

WOOD FENCE
EEV

1-S-METAL

SHED

SHED

STRUCTURE

COVERED

WOOD FENCE

CONC. STEP

FENCE

HOGWIRE

F
E

N
C

E

H
O

G
W
IR

E

F
E

N
C

E
B

A
R

B
E

D
-

W
IR

E

SEE DETAIL "B"

FENCE

HOGWIRE

F
E

N
C

E

H
O

G
W
IR

E

MON

W/ NAIL

MOW MARKER

TXDOT MON

TYPE 2

SEE DETAIL "C"

VOL. 1471, PG. 70

AND WIFE, LANA D. FUXA

JAMES J. FUXA

1/2"IRF

1/2"IRF

1/2"IRF

5/8"IRF

DISTURBED

1/2"IRF

1/2"IRF

BGT

5/"8IRFC

CALLED 2.3336 ACRES

D.R.R.C.T.

VOL. 42, PG. 322

STATE OF TEXAS

CALLED ONE ACRE

D.R.C.C.T.

VOL. L, PG. 15

THE STATE OF TEXAS

GENERAL PUBLIC OF

EV

W
A

T
E

R
 

M
A
IN

F
E

N
C

E
B

A
R

B
E

D
-

W
IR

E

4" PVC

4" PVC

METER

ELEC.

BOX

ELEC.

FENCE
WIRE

SEE DETAIL "A"

CONC. PAD

CONC. PAD

PP

PP GUY

TRANSFORMER

W/ VALVE
WATER MH

CONC. PAD

CHAINLINK FENCE

CULVERT
CONC.

CONC, HDWL.

GRAVEL DRIVE

CULVERT
CONC.

NTS

W/ WV
WATER MH

WATER MH

TEST STA.
NAT. GAS

HEADWALL
CONC.

D
R
IV

E

G
R

A
V

E
L

F
M
 
5
4
9

FENCE
BARBED-WIRE

FENC
E

BARBED-
W
IR

E

F
E

N
C

E
C

H
A
IN
-

L
IN

K

F
E

N
C

E
B

A
R

B
E

D
-

W
IR

EFENCE

WIRE

F
E

N
C

E
B

A
R

B
E

D
-

W
IR

E

FENCE
BARBED-WIRE

PST

PST

TP

FENCE
BARBED-WIRE

FENCE
BARBED-WIRE

CONC. PAD

POST

FENCE
CHAIN-LINK

RIP RAP
CONC.

CULVERT
CONC. 

CONC. PAD

POST

DRIVE
GRAVEL

CULVERT
CONC.

FM 1139

DETAIL "C"

NTS

1,098.65'

N00°56'00"W

908.25'

N00°56'00"W

214.30'

S00°22'48"E

112.36'

N00°56'06"W

125.09'

S89°11'43"W

= 15°44'31"

= 1,310.00'

= 359.92'

= N24°24'53"E

= 358.79'

N21°39'06"W

23.19'

= 151.03'

= N70°30'42"W

= 152.75'

= 293.00'

= 29°52'15"
2.76'

N00°22'42"W

710.99'

S88°42'10"W

TP

117.73'

N00°54'51"W

29.97'

N89°05'09"E

FM 1139
(80' RIGHT-OF-WAY)

TP

TP

TPTPTP

TP

E

TP

TP

(
6
0
' 

R
IG

H
T
-

O
F
-

W
A

Y
)

N52°46'08W

50.86'

N00°45'51"W

50.21'

N55°22'09"E

48.05'

(
V

A
R
IA

B
L

E
 

W
ID

T
H
 

R
IG

H
T
-

O
F
-

W
A

Y
)

F
M
 

5
4

9

WATER VALVE

WATER MANHOLE

TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

SIGN

W/ RED "PJB SURVEYING" CAP
1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET 

IRON PIPE FOUND

IRON ROD FOUND

5/8" IRON ROD W/ TXDOT CAP FOUND

TXDOT TYPE II MON. FOUND

CONTROLLING MONUMENT

FENCE LINE

ELECTRIC BOX

ELECTRIC METER

GUY WIRE

OVERHEAD ELECTRIC

POWER POLE

WILLOW RIDGE CIRCLE

(60' ROADWAY ESMT.)

IPF

IRF

DOC. NO. 20160000019784

TRACT I

(UNDIVIDED INTEREST 50%)

DOC. NO. 20160000019783

TRACT I

(UNDIVIDED INTEREST 50%)

KLUTTS FARM LLC

DOC. NO. 20160000019784

TRACT II

(UNDIVIDED INTEREST 50%)

DOC. NO. 20160000019783

TRACT II

(UNDIVIDED INTEREST 50%)

KLUTTS FARM LLC

267.69'

N00°49'16"W

167.01'

N89°11'43"E

196.008 ACRE TRACT

Registered Professional Land Surveyor 5504
Patrick J. Baldasaro

Category 1A, Condition II Survey.
a for Specifications and Standandards Surveyors Professional of Society Texas 

current the with complies substantially survey This 2021. 9, March on supervision my 
under survey ground the on an from prepared was survey this that certify hereby do I 

CERTIFICATION

VOL. 1075, PG. 160
FRANCES S BRYAN
WILLIAM JAMES &

A B C D E F G H I

A

O.P.R.R.C.T.

DOC. NO. 2017000021846

TOMAS JIMENEZ

B

D.R.R.C.T.

VOL. 7390, PG. 128

DONNIE PEOPLES

C

D.R.R.C.T.

VOL. 2673, PG. 62

ANDRADE MARTIN

D

D.R.R.C.T.

VOL. 329, PG. 287

JOEL SOLIS

E

F

D.R.R.C.T.

VOL. 1200, PG. 140

DON & CINDY LAREY

O.P.R.R.C.T.

DOC. NO. 20140000018513

HECTOR T. CHAVEZ

G

H

D.R.R.C.T.

VOL. 6754, PG. 127

SAUL G PACHECO

O.P.R.R.C.T.

DOC. NO. 20170000002690

LAUREN N HULLETT

JONATHAN H &

J K L M

I

J

D.R.R.C.T.

VOL. 6737, PG. 21

JONATHAN H HULLET

D.R.R.C.T.

VOL. 3105, PG. 319

HARRY CRUMP

K

L

D.R.R.C.T.

VOL. 7061, PG. 106

JAMES & ELVIRA MATTEWS

D.R.R.C.T.

VOL. 120, PG. 767

WILLIE CLARK

M

N

N O P Q R

NO DEED FOUND

O.P.R.R.C.T.

DOCUMENT NO. 20180000003867

ANNETTE MARY WEYH-MASS

O

P

O.P.R.R.C.T.

DOC. NO. 20190000000270

FLOR ALELY SECUNDINO

D.R.R.C.T.

VOL. 6140, PG. 279

SHARON A. GROVES

Q

R

O.P.R.R.C.T.

DOC. NO. 201700000009503

RAUL MEDINA

O.P.R.R.C.T.

DOC. NO. 20200000006146

ARAMANDO & ANTONIA MARQUEZ

S T

S

T

O.P.R.R.C.T.

DOC. NO. 20200000022842

CLARITA B ZAMARRIPA

D.R.R.C.T.

VOL. 1123, PG. 31

ROBSEL R REYNA

U V

U

V

O.P.R.R.C.T.

DOC. NO. 20170000019604

JORGE ACOSTA

D.R.R.C.T.

VOL. 6017, PG. 203

DOMINGO GRIMALDI

VOL. 64, PG. 238

RCH WATER SUPPLY CORP.

WATER PIPELINE ESMT.

VOL. 64, PG. 238

RCH WATER SUPPLY CORP.

WATER PIPELINE ESMT.

2.

1. 

Notes:

10 h.

10 g.

10 f.

December 27, 2020. Schedule B Items are as follows:
Chicago Title Insurance Company, GF No. PL20-28395, effective date 
Survey was prepared with the benefit of a Title Commitment issued by 

North Central Zone, North American Datum of 1983.
Bearing are based on the Texas State Plane Coordinate System, 

Page 238 - shown on survey
Easement to RCH Water Supply Corporation, recorded in Volume 64, 

Page 202 - shown on survey, referred to as Doc. No. 2007 0377475
Easement granted to North Texas Municipal Water District, Vol. 5054, 

Page 148 - cannot be located, no desciption
Easement granted to North Texas Municipal Water District, Vol. 4825, 

FOUND

MAGNAIL

R
O

C
H

E
L

L
E
 

R
O

A
D

C
IT

Y
 

L
IM
IT

S

A
P

P
R

O
X
. 

R
O

C
K

W
A

L
L

N88°26'14"E 2,790.07'

(C.M.)

(C.M.)
(C.M.)

FOUND

MAGNAIL

(C.M.)

1"IP

J.A. RAMSEY, ABST. NO. 186

AND THE

TBPELS NO. 10194303
PJB SURVEYING, LLC

PREPARED BY

= 228.64'

= N04°04'22"E

= 228.93'

= 1,310.00'

= 10°00'46"

S
0
0
°

3
1
'0

5
"
E
 
1
,4

4
6
.4

9
'

WOOD POST

CONC. PAD

CONC. PAD

WIRE FENCE

FENCE

CHAIN-lINK
FENCE

WIRE

FENCE

CHAIN-LINK

FENCE

METAL
FENCE

CHAIN-LINK

CITY LIMITS

APPROX. ROCKWALL

CITY LIMITS

APPROX. ROCKWALL

C
IT

Y
 

L
IM
IT

S

A
P

P
R

O
X
. 

R
O

C
K

W
A

L
L

1/2"IRF

1/2"IRF 1/2"IRF
1/2"IRF

1/2"IRF

FOUND

MAGNAIL

FOUND

MAGNAIL

2"IP 2"IP

BENT

1"IP

5/8"IRF

5/8"IRF
5/8"IRF

METAL POST

1/2"IRF RSCI RPLS 5034
1/2"IRFC

RSCI RPLS 5034
1/2"IRFC

CONC. PAD

CONC. PAD

PIER AND BEAM

DILAPIDATED

2-S-WOOD

DETAIL "B"

NTS

2,147.11'

S88°46'40"W

BEGINNING

POINT OF

1/2" IRF

1"IP

ABSTRACT LINE

APPROX. LOCATION

D.R.R.C.T.

VOLUME 64, PG. 238

RCH WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION

WATER PIPE LINE EASEENT

A
B

S
T

R
A

C
T
 

L
IN

E

A
P

P
R

O
X
. 

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

1/2" IRF

1/2" IRF

FOUND

CONC. MON.

O.P.R.C.C.T.

VOL. 5054, PG. 202

WATER DISTRICT

NORTH TEXAS MUNICIPAL

PERMANENT WATER LINE EASEMENT

O.P.R.C.C.T.

VOL. 5054, PG. 202

WATER DISTRICT

NORTH TEXAS MUNICIPAL

PERMANENT WATER LINE EASEMENT

POST

WOOD

corner of said one acre tract;
southwest the at set SURVEYING” “PJB stamped cap red with rod iron 1/2-inch a 

to feet 214.30 of distance a tract, acre one said of line west the with and 549 FM said 
of line east the departing East, seconds 48 minutes 22 degrees 00 South THENCE 

Texas, as recorded in Volume L, Page 15, D.R.R.C.T.;
of State the of Public General to deed a in described tract acre one called a of line 

west the in found cap TxDOT with rord iron 5/8-inch a to feet),  358.79 East seconds 
53 minutes 24 degrees 24 North Bearing (Chord feet 359.92 of distance arc an 

left, the to curve said with and 549 FM said of line east the with continuing THENCE 

of 15 degrees 44 minutes 31 seconds;
angle central a and feet 1,310.00 of radius a having left, the to curve non-tangent a on 
found cap TxDOT with rod iron 5/8-inch a to feet 23.19 of distance a 549, FM said of 

line east the with continuing West, seconds 06 minutes 39 degrees 21 North THENCE 

with TxDOT cap found at the point of tangency;
rod iron 5/8-inch a to feet),  151.03 West seconds 42 minutes 30 degrees 70 North 

Bearing (Chord feet 152.75 of distance arc an right, the to curve said with THENCE 

radius of 293.00 feet and a central angle of 29 degrees 52 minutes 15 seconds;
a having right, the to curve a on found post wood a to feet 2.76 of distance a 549, FM 

said of line east the with West, seconds 42 minutes 22 degrees 00 North THENCE 

"PJB SURVEYING" set;
stamped cap red with rod 1/2-inch a to feet 710.99 of distance a 1139, FM said of line 

north the with continuing West, seconds 10 minutes 42 degrees 88 South THENCE 

SURVEYING” set;
“PJB stamped cap red with rod iron 1/2-inch a to feet 2,147.11 of distance a 1139, FM 
said of line north the with West, seconds 40 minutes 46 degrees 88 South THENCE 

north line of FM 1139 (80-foot right-fo-way);
the in being tract, Fuxa said of corner southwest the at found rod iron 1/2-inch a to 
feet 792.29 of distance a tract, Fuxa said of line west the with and Farm Klutts said of 
line east the with continuing East, seconds 07 minutes 10 degrees 00 South THENCE 

Fuxa and Deborah A. Fuxa, as recorded in Volume 1471, Page 70, D.R.R.CT.;
J. James for trust of deed a in described tract acre 15.00 called a of corner northwest 

the being Acres, Hillview said of corner southwest the at found pipe iron 1-inch a 
to feet 494.64 of distance a Acres, Hillview said of line west and Farm Klutts said of 

line east the with continuing East, seconds 45 minutes 16 degrees 00 South THENCE 

1,446.49 feet to a 1-inch iron pipe found;
of distance a Acres, Hillview said of line west the with and Farm Klutts said of 

line east the with continuing East, seconds 05 minutes 31 degrees 00 South THENCE 

Page 1, of the Plat Records of Rockwall County, Texas;
F, Volume in recorded as County, Rockwall to addition an Acres, Hillview of corner 

northwest the and tract Butler said of corner southwest the at found rod iron 1/2-inch 
 a to feet 309.76 of distance a (D.R.R.C.T.), Texas County, Rockwall of Records 

Deed the in 266, Page 1381, Volume in recorded as Butler, J. Sarah and Butler 
H. Bobby to deed a in described tract acre 17.07 called a of line west the and Farm 

Klutts said of line east the with East, seconds 34 minute 01 degree 01 South THENCE 

“PJB SURVEYING” set the northeast corner of said Klutts Farm;
stamped cap red with rod iron 1/2-inch a to feet 2,790.07 of distance a Farm, Klutts 

said of line north the with East, seconds 14 minutes 26 degrees 88 North THENCE 

right-of-way) and in the north line of said Klutts Farm;
width (variable 549 FM of line east the in being O.P.R.R.C.T., 20200000013574, 

No. Document in recorded as Texas, of State the to conveyed land of tract a 
of corner northeast the at found cap TxDOT with rod iron 5/8-inch a at BEGINNING 

described as follows:
particularly more being tract said O.P.R.R.C.T., 20160000019784, No. Document 

in recorded as interest), undivided (50% LLC, Farm, Klutts to deed a in 2, Tract 
as described tract acre 1.417 called a of part and 1 Tract as described tract acre 200 

called a of part being and (O.P.R.R.C.T.), Texas County, Rockwall of Records Public 
Official the of 20160000019783, No. Document in recorded as interest), undivided 

(50% LLC, Farm, Klutts to deed a in 2, Tract as described tract acre 1.417 called 
a of part and 1 Tract as described tract acre 200 called a of part being Texas, County, 

Rockwall Rockwall, of City the in 123, No. Abstract Survey, Johnson Abner the 
in and 186 No. Abstract Survey, Ramsey A. John the in situated land of tract a Being 

Legal Description

containing 196.008 acres of land.
and BEGINNING OF POINT the to feet 117.73 of distance a 549, FM said of 
line east the with continuing West, seconds 51 minutes 54 degrees 00 North THENCE 

found;
cap TxDOT with rod iron 5/8-inch a to feet 29.97 of distance a 549, FM said of 
line east the with continuing East, seconds 09 minutes 05 degrees 89 North THENCE 

stamped "PJB SURVEYING" set;
cap red with rod iron 1/2-inch a to feet 1,098.65 of distance a 549, FM said of 
line east the with continuing West, seconds 00 minutes 56 degrees 00 North THENCE 

found;
cap TxDOT with rod iron 5/8-inch a to feet 50.86 of distance a 549, FM said of 
line east the with continuing West, seconds 08 minutes 46 degrees 52 North THENCE 

found;
cap TxDOT with rod iron 5/8-inch a to feet 50.21 of distance a 549, FM said of 
line east the with continuing West, seconds 51 minutes 45 degrees 00 North THENCE 

found;
cap TxDOT with rod iron 5/8-inch a to feet 48.05 of distance a 549, FM said of 
line east the with continuing East, seconds 09 minutes 22 degrees 55 North THENCE 

found;
cap TxDOT with rod iron 5/8-inch a to feet 908.25 of distance a 549, FM said of 
line east the with continuing West, seconds 00 minutes 56 degrees 00 North THENCE 

feet), to a 5/8-inch iron rod with TxDOT cap found at the point of tangency;
 228.64 East seconds 22 minutes 04 degrees 04 (North feet 228.93 of distance arc an 

left, the to curve said with and 549 FM said of line east the with continuing THENCE 

minutes 46 seconds;
00 degrees 10 of angle central a and feet 1,310.00 of radius a having left, the to curve 
a on found cap TxDOT with rod iron 5/8-inch a to feet 112.36 of distance a 549, FM 

said of line east the with West, seconds 06 minutes 56 degrees 00 North THENCE 

rod with TxDOT cap found in the east line of said FM 549;
iron 5/8-inch a to feet 125.09 of distance a tract, acre one said of line north the with 
and line west said departing West, seconds 43 minutes 11 degrees 89 South THENCE 

point at the base of a tree (unable to set) at the northeast corner of said one acre tract;
a to feet 267.69 of distance a Easement, foot 50 said of line west and tract acre one 

said of line east the with West, seconds 16 minutes 49 degrees 00 North THENCE 

District, as recorded in Volume 5054, Page 202, O.P.R.R.C.T.;
Water Municipal Texas North to Right-Of-Way For Easement foot 50 a of line west 

the in being tract, acre one said of corner southeast the at set SURVEYING” “PJB 
stamped cap red with rod iron 1/2-inch a to feet 167.01 of distance a tract, acre one 

said of line south the with East, seconds 43 minutes 11 degrees 89 North THENCE 

Cooperative, recorded in Volume 5070, Page 320 - shown on survey
Utility Easement and Covenant of Access granted to Farmers Electric 

Cooperative, recorded in Volume 5070, Page 317 - shown on survey
Utility Easement and Covenant of Access granted to Farmers Electric 

recorded in Volume 57, Page 431 - shown on survey
Easement granted to Kaufman Van Zandt Soil Conservation District, 

227



TOTAL RESIDENTIAL LOTS 526

OF

CORWIN ENGINEERING, INC.

PREPARED BY

200 W. BELMONT, SUITE E

972-396-1200

ALLEN, TEXAS 75013

ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

OWNER

SITUATED IN THE

IN THE

CONCEPT PLAN

0 100 200 400

SCALE:  1" = 200'

LOCATION

PROJECT

LOCATION MAP

N.T.S.

LEGEND

TYPICAL LOT SIZES

CITY OF ROCKWALL

KLUTTS FARM, LLC.

TOTAL ACRES 196.009

RESIDENTIAL DENSITY

- AMENITY CENTER - 1.517 Ac.

- OPEN SPACE - 10.01 Ac.

1.573 AC.

AMENITY CENTER

C
E

M
E

T
A

R
Y

CASE NO. XXXX

APRIL 2021  SCALE 1" = 200'

ROCKWALL, TX 75087

1604 NORTH HILLS DR.

J.A. RAMSEY SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 186

F
.M
. 

5
4

9

WILLOW RIDGE CIRCLE

F.M. 1139

CAB. F, PG. 1

HILLVIEW ACRES

S
. 
J

O
H

N
 

K
IN

G
 

B
L

V
D
.

F.M. 1139

F
.M
. 

5
4

9

  62' X 120' - 396 LOTS

- TYPE A LOTS

  82' X 120' - 11 LOTS

- TYPE C LOTS

HOMESTEAD

51.8 AC.

(REGIONAL PARK)

PARKLAND

 (REGIONAL PARK) - 51.8 Ac.

- PARKLAND

DETERMINED AT ENGINEERING)

(FINAL SIZE TO BE

DETENTION ESMT.

DRAINAGE &

D
E
T
E
R

M
IN

E
D
 

A
T
 
E
N

G
IN

E
E
R
IN

G
)

(F
IN

A
L
 
S
IZ

E
 
T

O
 

B
E

D
E
T
E
N
T
IO

N
 
E
S

M
T
.

D
R

A
IN

A
G
E
 

&

6' TRAIL

6
' 

T
R

A
IL

6
' 

T
R

A
IL

6
' 

T
R

A
IL

6
' 

T
R

A
IL

6
' T

R
A
IL

6
' T

R
A
IL

DRAINAGE EASEMENT

OPEN SPACE/

D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

O
P

E
N
 

S
P

A
C

E
/

D
O

G
 

P
A

R
K
/

LANDSCAPE AREA

62'X120' HEAVY

  100' X 120' - 10 LOTS

- TYPE D LOTS

2.68

6' TRAIL

6
' T

R
A
IL

6
' 

T
R

A
IL

  72' X 120' - 109 LOTS

- TYPE B LOTS

228



16 SOUTH CENTRAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

CU
RR

EN
T 2,153 

5 
6,911 %

 O
F 

RO
CK

W
AL

L 10.77% 
0.28% 
11.61% BU

ILD
 O

UT
 

3,757 
12,060 

CEMETERY (CEM) 0.99-ACRES 

COMMERCIAL/RETAIL (CR) 144.84-ACRES 

LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (LDR) 1,102.26-ACRES 

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (MDR) 200.85-ACRES 

PARKS AND OPEN SPACE (OS) 283.44-ACRES 

PUBLIC (P) 40.36-ACRES 

QUASI-PUBLIC (QP) 161.33-ACRES 

DISTRICT STRATEGIES 
The South Central Residential District is anticipated to add additional suburban 
developments in the western and southern areas of the district.  Taking this 
into consideration the following are the strategies for this district:  
❶ Suburban Residential.  This district has several large tracts of land that 

can support highly amenitized master planned communities.  These 
developments should look to incorporate Traditional Neighborhood 
Design (TND) design principles to create unique developments from the 
more traditional suburban design prevalent in the northern districts. 
These developments should include a mix of larger to mid-sized lots. 

❷  Commercial Land Uses.  Commercial in the northern areas of this district 
are intended to support the existing and proposed residential 
developments and should be compatible in scale with the adjacent 
residential structures.  Commercial areas along SH-205 can include 
supportive and larger commercial developments.  Larger commercial 
developments and cluster development is anticipated at the intersection 
of S. Goliad Street [SH-205] and SH-276 and S. Goliad Street [SH-205] 
and John King Boulevard.  All commercial development should use 
berms, landscaping and large buffers to transition to residential land 
uses. 

❸ John King Boulevard Trail Plan.  A ten (10) foot hike/bike trail should be 
incorporated along John King Boulevard with rest stops and signage as 
indicated in Appendix ‘A’ of this Comprehensive Plan. 

 

DISTRICT DESCRIPTION 
The South Central Residential District contains a mixture of established medium 
and low density residential subdivisions along with several large vacant tracts of 
land designated for low density residential land uses.  At the center of the district, 
the Rockwall Independent School District (RISD) acquired a large tract of land 
that is the home of the new Career Academy School, with potential plans to add 
a stadium, high school, and middle school to the property in the future.  In 
addition, the realignment of SH-276 will create a major intersection at the corner 
of SH-205 and SH-276 that is anticipated to be a major commercial corner after 
the completion of the realignment.  Having some of the largest tracts of undivided 
land, the South Central Residential District is an ideal place for low-density 
master planned communities that are highly amenitized.  

POINTS OF REFERENCE 
A. Meadow Creek Estates Subdivision 
B. Hickory Ridge Subdivision 
C. Lofland Farms Subdivision  
D. RISD’s Career Academy 
E. Somerset Park Subdivision 
F. Sterling Farms Subdivision 
G. Fontanna Ranch Subdivision 
H. Timber Creek Subdivision 

MINOR COLLECTOR 
M4D 
M4U 
TXDOT 4D 
 

TXDOT 6D 

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

07.49% 
 

08.34% 
 02.09% 

 

53.99% 
 

14.66% 
 

10.38% 
 

00.05% 
 

90.00% 
 

10.00% 
 

LAND USE PALETTES 
 Current Land Use  
 Future Land Use  

John King Boulevard Trail 
Plan Rest Stop/Trailblazer 
Pylon 

 TECHNOLOGY DISTRICT (PAGE 1-31) 


 SOUTH CENTRAL ESTATES 

 DISTRICT (PAGE 1-29) 

 CITY OF McLENDON-CHISHOLM 

❶ Future Suburban Residential 
 

❶ Future Suburban Residential 
 

COMMERCIAL 10.00% 

RESIDENTIAL 90.00% 

MIXED USE 0.00% 

229

rmiller
Oval

rmiller
Oval

rmiller
Typewritten Text
= SUBJECT PROPERTY



E WASHINGTON ST

HARTMAN ST

E RUSK ST

WILLIA
MS ST

RE
NF

RO
 ST

PA
RK

 PL
AC

E B
LV

D

NA
SH

 ST

ALUMINUM PLANT RD

HAMMACK LN

W
ADEDR

SQUABBLE CREEK LN

DIAL LN

The data represented on this map was obtained with the
best methods available. Data is supplied from various sources
and accuracy may be out of the City of Rockwall’s control.
The verification of accuracy and / or content lies entirely with
the end user. The City of Rockwall does not guarantee the
accuracy of contained information. All Information is provided
‘As Is’ with no warranty being made, either expressed or implied.I 0 200100

Feet

Date: 4/1/2021 HARRY MYERS PARK
City of
Rockwall

Harry Myers Park
Floodplain

Floodplain

Floodplain
High and Dry

High and Dry

LEGEND
IN FLOODPLAIN
HIGH/ DRY AREAS
TOTAL PARK

22.76 AC    (34.33%)
43.53 AC    (65.67%)
66.29 AC

230



 CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 21-XX 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 
CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS 
HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO CHANGE THE ZONING FROM 
AN AGRICULTURAL (AG) DISTRICT TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT XX (PD-XX) FOR SINGLE-FAMILY 7 (SF-7) DISTRICT 
LAND USES ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, BEING A 196.009-
ACRE TRACT OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS TRACT 6 OF THE J. A. 
RAMSEY SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 186, CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS AND MORE FULLY DESCRIBED 
HEREIN BY EXHIBIT ‘A’ AND DEPICTED HEREIN BY EXHIBIT ‘B’; 
PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A 
PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the City has received a request by Kevin Harrell of the Skorburg Co. on behalf of 
Ben Klutts, Jr. of the Klutts Farm, LLC for the approval of a zoning change from an Agricultural 
(AG) District to a Planned Development District for Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District land uses, on 
a 196.009-acre tract of land identified as Tract 6 of the J. A. Ramsey Survey, Abstract No. 186, 
City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and more fully described in Exhibit ‘A’ and depicted in 
Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance, which hereinafter shall be referred to as the Subject Property and 
incorporated by reference herein; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing 
body of the City of Rockwall in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the 
ordinances of the City of Rockwall have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, 
and have held public hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners 
generally and to all persons interested in and situated in the affected area, and in the vicinity 
thereof, and the governing body in the exercise of its legislative discretion, has concluded that 
the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 20-02] should be amended as follows: 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS: 
 

SECTION 1. That the Subject Property shall be used only in the manner and for the purposes 
authorized by this Planned Development District Ordinance and the Unified Development Code 
[Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall as heretofore amended, as amended herein by 
granting this zoning change, and as maybe amended in the future; 
 

SECTION 2. That development of the Subject Property shall generally be in accordance with 
the Concept Plan, depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance, attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by reference as Exhibit ‘C’, which is deemed hereby to be a condition of approval of the 
amended zoning classification for the Subject Property;  
 
SECTION 3. That development of the Subject Property shall generally be in accordance with 
the Density and Development Standards, outlined in Exhibit ‘D’ of this ordinance, attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit ‘D’, which is deemed hereby to be a 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

04
.1

9.
20

21

231



condition of approval of the amended zoning classification for the Subject Property; 
 

SECTION 4. That a Master Parks and Open Space Plan for the Subject Property, prepared in 
accordance with this ordinance and consistent with the Planned Development Concept Plan 
described in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance, shall be considered for approval by the City Council 
following recommendation of the Parks and Recreation Board. 
 
SECTION 5. That development of the Subject Property shall be in conformance with the 
schedule listed below (except as set forth below with regard to simultaneous processing and 
approvals). 

 
(a) The procedures set forth in the City’s subdivision regulations on the date this 

ordinance is approved by the City, as amended by this ordinance [including 
Subsections 5(b) through 5(g) below], shall be the exclusive procedures applicable 
to the subdivision and platting of the Subject Property.  
 

(b) The following plans and plats shall be required in the order listed below (except as 
set forth below with regard to simultaneous processing and approvals). The City 
Council shall act on an application for a Master Parks and Open Space Plan in 
accordance with the time period specified in Section 212.009 of the Texas Local 
Government Code. 

 
(1) Master Parks and Open Space Plan  
(2) Master Plat  
(3) Preliminary Plat 
(4) PD Site Plan 
(5) Final Plat 

 
(c) Master Parks and Open Space Plan.  A Master Parks and Open Space Plan for the 

Subject Property, as depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance, prepared in 
accordance with this ordinance, shall be considered for approval by the City Council 
following recommendation of the Parks and Recreation Board. 
 

(d) Master Plat. A Master Plat for the Subject Property, as depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this 
ordinance, shall be submitted and shall identify the proposed timing of each phase 
of the proposed development. A Master Plat application may be processed by the 
City concurrently with a Master Parks and Open Space Plan application for the 
development. 
 

(e) Preliminary Plat. A Preliminary Plat for each phase of the Subject Property, as 
depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance, shall be submitted in accordance with the 
phasing plan established by the Master Plat and shall include a Treescape Plan for 
the phase being Preliminary Platted. A Preliminary Plat application may be 
processed by the City concurrently with a Master Plat and a Master Parks and Open 
Space Plan application for the development. 
 

(f) PD Site Plan.  A PD Site Plan for each phase of the development of the Subject 
Property, as depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance, shall be submitted and shall 
identify all site/landscape/hardscape plan(s) for all open space, neighborhood parks, 
trail systems, street buffers and entry features.  A PD Site Plan application may be 
processed by the City concurrently with a Final Plat application for the development. 

(g) Final Plat. Prior to the issuance of any building permits, a Final Plat, conforming to 
the Preliminary Plat, shall be submitted for approval. 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

04
.1

9.
20

21

232



 
SECTION 6.   That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this 
ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a 
penalty of fine not to exceed the sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense and 
each and every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate 
offense; 
 

SECTION 7.   That if any section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance or the application of 
that section, paragraph, or provision to any person, firm, corporation or situation is for any 
reason judged invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section, paragraph, or provision 
of this ordinance or the application of any other section, paragraph or provision to any other 
person, firm, corporation or situation, nor shall adjudication affect any other section, paragraph, 
or provision of the Unified Development Code, and the City Council declares that it would have 
adopted the valid portions and applications of the ordinance without the invalid parts and to this 
end the provisions for this ordinance are declared to be severable; 
 

SECTION 8.  The standards in this ordinance shall control in the event of a conflict between 
this ordinance and any provision of the Unified Development Code or any provision of the City 
Code, ordinance, resolution, rule, regulation, or procedure that provides a specific standard that 
is different from and inconsistent with this ordinance. References to zoning district regulations or 
other standards in the Unified Development Code (including references to the Unified 
Development Code), and references to overlay districts, in this ordinance or any of the Exhibits 
hereto are those in effect on the date this ordinance was passed and approved by the City 
Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas; 
 

SECTION 9.  That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage; 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 3RD DAY OF MAY, 2021. 

 
 

      
 Jim Pruitt, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

    
Kristy Cole, City Secretary 

 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 

 

 

1st Reading:  April 19, 2021 
 
2nd Reading: May 3, 2021 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

04
.1

9.
20

21

233



Being a tract of land situated in the John A. Ramsey Survey, Abstract No. 186 and in the Abner Johnson Survey, 
Abstract No. 123, in the City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, being part of a called 200 acre tract described as 
Tract 1 and part of a called 1.417 acre tract described as Tract 2, in a deed to Klutts Farm, LLC, (50% undivided 
interest), as recorded in Document No. 20160000019783, of the Official Public Records of Rockwall County, Texas 
(O.P.R.R.C.T.), and being part of a called 200 acre tract described as Tract 1 and part of a called 1.417 acre tract 
described as Tract 2, in a deed to Klutts Farm, LLC, (50% undivided interest), as recorded in Document No. 
20160000019784, O.P.R.R.C.T., said tract being more particularly described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a 1/2-inch iron rod with red cap stamped “PJB SURVEYING” set at the northeast corner of a tract of 
land conveyed to the State of Texas, as recorded in Document No. 20200000013574, O.P.R.R.C.T., being in the 
east line of FM-549 (variable width right-of-way) and in the north line of said Klutts Farm; 
 
THENCE North 88 degrees 26 minutes 14 seconds East, with the north line of said Klutts Farm, a distance of 
2,790.07-feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with red cap stamped “PJB SURVEYING” set the northeast corner of said Klutts 
Farm; 
 
THENCE South 01 degree 01 minute 34 seconds East, with the east line of said Klutts Farm and the west line of a 
called 17.07 acre tract described in a deed to Bobby H Butler and Sarah J. Butler, as recorded in Volume 1381, Page 
266, in the Deed Records of Rockwall County, Texas (D,R,R,C,T,), a distance of 309.76-feet to  a 1/2-inch iron rod 
with red cap stamped “PJB SURVEYING” set the southwest corner of said Butler tract and the northwest corner of 
Hillview Acres, an addition to Rockwall County, as recorded in Volume F, Page 1, of the Plat Records of Rockwall 
County, Texas; 
 
THENCE South 00 degrees 31 minutes 05 seconds East, continuing with the east line of said Klutts Farm and with 
the west line of said Hillview Acres, a distance of 1,446.49-feet to a 1-inch iron pipe found at the southwest corner of 
said Hillview Acres, being the northwest corner of a called 15.00 acre tract described in a deed of trust for James J. 
Fuxa and Deborah A. Fuxa, as recorded in Volume 1741, Page 70, D.R.R.CT.; 
 
THENCE South 00 degrees 10 minutes 07 seconds East, continuing with the east line of said Klutts Farm and with 
the west line of said Fuxa tract, a distance of 792.29-feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod found at the southwest corner of said 
Fuxa tract, being in the north line of FM-1139 (80-foot right-fo-way); 
 
THENCE South 88 degrees 46 minutes 40 seconds West, with the north line of said FM-1139, a distance of 
2,230.29-feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with red cap stamped “PJB SURVEYING” set; 
 
THENCE South 88 degrees 42 minutes10 seconds West, continuing with the north line of said FM-1139, a distance 
of 710.99-feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with red cap stamped “PJB SURVEYING” set in the east line of said FM-549; 
 
THENCE North 00 degrees 22 minutes 42 seconds West, with the east line of said FM-549, a distance of 2.77-feet to 
a 1/2-inch iron rod with red cap stamped “PJB SURVEYING” set on a curve to the right, having a radius of 293.00-
feet and a central angle of 29 degrees 52 minutes 15 seconds; 
 
THENCE with said curve to the right, an arc distance of 152.75-feet (Chord Bearing North 70 degrees 30 minutes 42 
seconds West – 151.03 feet), to a 5/8-inch iron rod with TXDOT cap found at the point of tangency; 
 
THENCE North 55 degrees 34 minutes 29 seconds West, continuing with the east line of said FM-549, a distance of 
6.30-feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod with TXDOT cap found; 
 
THENCE North 10 degrees 34 minutes 29 seconds West, continuing with the east line of said FM-549, a distance of 
18.30-feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod with TXDOT cap found on a non-tangent curve to the left, having a radius of 
1,310.00-feet and a central angle of 15 degrees 44 minutes 31 seconds; 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

04
.1

9.
20

21

234



 
THENCE continuing with the east line of said FM-549 and with said curve to the left, an arc distance of 359.92-feet 
(Chord Bearing North 24 degrees 24 minutes 53 seconds East – 358.79 feet), to a 1/2-inch iron rod with red cap 
stamped “PJB SURVEYING” set in the west line of a called one acre tract described in a deed to General Public of 
the State of Texas, as recorded in Volume L, Page 15, D.R.R.C.T.; 
 
THENCE South 00 degrees 22 minutes 48 seconds East, departing the east line of said FM-549 and with the west 
line of said one (1) acre tract, a distance of 214.30-feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with red cap stamped “PJB 
SURVEYING” set at the southwest corner of said one (1) acre tract; 
 
THENCE North 89 degrees 11 minutes 43 seconds East, with the south line of said one (1) acre tract, a distance of 
167.02-feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with red cap stamped “PJB SURVEYING” set at the southeast corner of said one 
(1) acre tract, being in the west line of a 50-foot Easement for Right-Of-Way to North Texas Municipal Water District, 
as recorded in Volume 5054, Page 202, O.P.R.R.C.T.; 
 
THENCE North 00 degrees 49 minutes 16 seconds West, with the east line of said one (1) acre tract and west line of 
said 50-foot Easement, a distance of 267.69-feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with red cap stamped “PJB SURVEYING” set 
at the northeast corner of said one (1) acre tract; 
 
THENCE South 89 degrees 11 minutes 43 seconds West, departing said west line and with the north line of said one 
(1) acre tract, a distance of 125.09-feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with red cap stamped “PJB SURVEYING” set in the 
east line of said FM-549; 
 
THENCE North 00 degrees 56 minutes 06 seconds West, with the east line of said FM-549, a distance of 112.36-feet 
to a 5/8-inch iron rod with TXDOT cap found on a curve to the left, having a radius of 1,310.00-feet and a central 
angle of 10 degrees 00 minutes 46 seconds; 
 
THENCE continuing with the east line of said FM-549 and with said curve to the left, an arc distance of 228.93-feet 
(North 04 degrees 04 minutes 22 seconds East – 228.64 feet), to a 5/8-inch iron rod with TXDOT cap found at the 
point of tangency; 
 
THENCE North 00 degrees 56 minutes 00 seconds East, continuing with the east line of said FM-549, a distance of 
908.25-feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod with TXDOT cap found; 
 
THENCE North 55 degrees 22 minutes 09 seconds East, continuing with the east line of said FM-549, a distance of 
48.05-feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod with TXDOT cap found; 
 
THENCE North 00 degrees 45 minutes 51 seconds East, continuing with the east line of said FM-549, a distance of 
50.21-feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod with TXDOT cap found; 
 
THENCE North 52 degrees 46 minutes 08 seconds West, continuing with the east line of said FM-549, a distance of 
50.86-feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod with TXDOT cap found; 
 
THENCE North 00 degrees 56 minutes 00 seconds West, continuing with the east line of said FM-549, a distance of 
1,098.56-feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod with TXDOT cap found; 
 
THENCE North 89 degrees 05 minutes 09 seconds East, continuing with the east line of said FM-549, a distance of 
29.97-feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod with TXDOT cap found; 
 
THENCE North 00 degrees 54 minutes 51 seconds West, continuing with the east line of said FM-549, a distance of 
48.05-feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 196.008 acres of land. 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

04
.1

9.
20

21

235



 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

04
.1

9.
20

21

236



  

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

04
.1

9.
20

21

237



Density and Development Standards. 
 

(1) Permitted Uses. Unless specifically provided by this Planned Development District 
ordinance, only those uses permitted within the Single Family 7 (SF-7) District, as 
stipulated by the Permissible Use Charts contained in Article 04, Permissible Uses, of 
the Unified Development Code (UDC), are allowed on the Subject Property. 

 
(2) Lot Composition and Layout. The lot layout and composition shall generally conform to 

the Concept Plan depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ and stated in Table 1, which is as follows: 
 

Table 1: Lot Composition 
     

Lot Type Minimum Lot Size (FT) Minimum Lot Size (SF) Dwelling Units (#) Dwelling Units (%) 
A 62’ x 120’ 7,440 SF 396 75.29% 

B 72’ x 120’ 8,640 SF 109 20.72% 

C 82’ x 120’ 9,840 SF 11 02.09% 

D 100’ x 120’ 12,000 SF 10 01.90% 
     

Maximum Permitted Units: 526 100.00% 
     

 
(3) Density and Dimensional Requirements. Unless specifically provided by this Planned 

Development District ordinance, the development standards stipulated by the Single 
Family 7 (SF-7) District, as specified by Article 05, District Development Standards, of 
the Unified Development Code (UDC) are applicable to all development on the Subject 
Property.  The maximum permissible density for the Subject Property shall not exceed 
2.68 dwelling units per gross acre of land; however, in no case should the proposed 
development exceed 526 units.  All lots shall conform to the standards depicted in 
Table 2, which are as follows: 

 

Table 2: Lot Dimensional Requirements 
 

Lot Type (see Concept Plan) ►  A B C D 
Minimum Lot Width (1) 62’ 72’ 82’ 100’ 

Minimum Lot Depth 120’ 120’ 120’ 120’ 

Minimum Lot Area 7,440 SF 8,640 SF 9,840 SF 12,000 SF 

Minimum Front Yard Setback (2), (5) & (6) 20’ 20’ 20’ 20’ 

Minimum Side Yard Setback 6’ 6’ 6’ 6’ 

Minimum Side Yard Setback (Adjacent to a Street) (2) & (5) 20’ 20’ 20’ 20’ 

Minimum Length of Driveway Pavement 25’ 25’ 25’ 25’ 

Maximum Height (3) 36’ 36’ 36’ 36’ 

Minimum Rear Yard Setback (4) 10’ 10’ 10’ 10’ 

Minimum Area/Dwelling Unit (SF) [Air-Conditioned Space] (7) 2,200 SF 2,600 SF 2,800 SF 2,800 SF 

Maximum Lot Coverage 65% 65% 65% 65% 
 

General Notes: 
1:  Lots fronting onto curvilinear streets, cul-de-sacs and eyebrows may have the front lot width reduced 

by 20% as measured at the front property line provided that the lot width will be met at the Front Yard 
Building Setback.  Additionally, the lot depth on lots fronting onto curvilinear streets, cul-de-sacs and 
eyebrows may be reduced by up to ten (10) percent, but shall meet the minimum lot size for each lot 
type referenced in Table 1. 

2:  The location of the Front Yard Building Setback as measured from the front property line. 
3:  The Maximum Height shall be measured to the eave or top plate (whichever is greater) of the single-

family home. 
4: The location of the Rear Yard Building Setback as measured from the rear property line. 
5: Sunrooms, porches, stoops, bay windows, balconies, masonry clad chimneys, eaves and similar 

architectural features may encroach beyond the Front Yard Building Setback by up to ten (10) feet for 
any property; however, the encroachment shall not exceed five (5) feet on Side Yard Setbacks.  A 
sunroom is an enclosed room no more than 15-feet in width that has glass on at least 50% of each of 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

04
.1

9.
20

21

238



the encroaching faces. 
6: Type ‘A’ Lots that incorporate a flat-front entry garage configuration shall be required to have a 

minimum setback of 25-feet. 
7: All lots that have a rear yard that faces onto FM-549 shall be permitted to have a minimum 

area/dwelling unit (air-conditioned space) of 2,800 SF. 

 
(4) Building Standards. All development shall adhere to the following building standards: 

 
(a) Masonry Requirement. The minimum masonry requirement for the exterior façade 

of all buildings shall be 90% (excluding dormers and walls over roof areas); 
however, no individual façade shall be less than 85% masonry.  For the purposes 
of this ordinance, the masonry requirement shall be limited to full width brick, 
natural stone, and cast stone.  Cementitious fiberboard (e.g. HardiBoard or Hardy 
Plank) in a horizontal lap-siding, board-and-batten siding, or a decorative pattern 
(see examples below) may be used for up to 50% of the masonry requirement; 
however, a Specific Use Permit (SUP) may be requested for housing plans that 
utilize cementitous fiberboard in excess of 50% of the masonry requirement. 

 
Examples of Cementitious Fiberboard 

 
 

(b) Roof Pitch. A minimum of an 8:12 roof pitch is required on all structures with the 
exception of dormers, sunrooms and porches, which shall have a minimum of a 
4:12 roof pitch. 

 
(c) Garage Orientation and Garage Doors. This development shall adhere to the 

following garage design and orientation requirements 
 

(1) Type ‘A’ Lots. The Type ‘A’ Lots (i.e. the orange lots depicted in Exhibit ‘C’) 
may be oriented in a traditional swing (or j-swing) garage configuration -- where 
the two (2) car garage is stated facing the side property line and the driveway 
swings into the garage in a ‘J’ configuration.  In a traditional swing (or j-swing) 
garage configuration, a second (single or double) garage door facing the street 
is permitted if it is behind the width of the double garage door in the traditional 
swing (or j-swing) configuration.  A maximum of 25.74% of these lots (i.e. 105 
Lots or 20.00% of the total lots) shall be permitted to be oriented in a flat-front 
entry configuration -- allowing the garage to be flush with the front façade of the 
primary structure -- pending the front yard setback is increased to a minimum 
setback of 25-feet. 
 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

04
.1

9.
20

21

239



(2) Type ‘B’, ‘C’, & ‘D’ Lots. The Type ‘B’, ‘C’, & ‘D’ Lots (i.e. yellow, blue, and tan 
lots depicted in Exhibit ‘C’) may be oriented in a traditional swing (or j-swing) 
garage configuration -- where the two (2) car garage is stated facing the side 
property line and the driveway swings into the garage in a ‘J’ configuration.  In 
a traditional swing (or j-swing) garage configuration, a second (single or 
double) garage door facing the street is permitted if it is behind the width of the 
double garage door in the traditional swing (or j-swing) configuration. 

 
All garage configurations not conforming to the aforementioned garage 
configurations shall meet the requirements stipulated by Article 09, Parking and 
Loading, of the Unified Development Code (UDC). In addition, all garage doors 
shall be required to have decorative wood doors or wood overlays on insulated 
metal doors.  The design between the garage door and home shall use the same 
or complementary colors and materials.  All garages shall include carriage style 
hardware.  An example of carriage style hardware is depicted in Figure 1.   

 
Figure 1. Examples of Enhanced Wood Garage Door 

 
  

(5) Anti-Monotony Restrictions. The development shall adhere to the Anti-Monotony 
Matrix depicted in Table 3 below (for spacing requirements see Figures 3 & 4 below). 
 
Table 3: Anti-Monotony Matrix 

Lot Type Minimum Lot Size Elevation Features 
A 62’ x 120’ (1), (2), (3), (4) 

B 72’ x 120’ (1), (2), (3), (4) 

C 82’ x 120’ (1), (2), (3), (4) 

D 100’ x 120’ (1), (2), (3), (4) 

 
(a) Identical brick blends or paint colors may not occur on adjacent (side-by-side) 

properties along any block face without at least five (5) intervening homes of 
differing materials on the same side of the street beginning with the adjacent 
property and six (6) intervening homes of differing materials on the opposite side of 
the street. 

 
(b) Front building elevations shall not repeat along any block face without at least five 

(5) intervening homes of differing appearance on the same side of the street and 
six (6) intervening homes of differing appearance on the opposite side of the street.  

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

04
.1

9.
20

21

240



Figure 4: Properties do not line up on opposite side of the street. Where RED is the subject property. 

The rear elevation of homes backing to open spaces or FM-549 shall not repeat 
without at least five (5) intervening homes of differing appearance. Homes are 
considered to have a differing appearance if any of the following two (2) items 
deviate: 

 
(1) Number of Stories 
(2) Permitted Encroachment Type and Layout 
(3) Roof Type and Layout 
(4) Articulation of the Front Façade  

  
(c) Permitted encroachment (i.e. porches and sunroom) elevations shall not repeat or 

be the same along any block face without at least five (5) intervening homes of 
sufficient dissimilarity on the same side of the street beginning with the home 
adjacent to the subject property and six (6) intervening homes beginning with the 
home on the opposite side of the street. 

 
(d) Each phase of the subdivision will allow for a maximum of four (4) compatible roof 

colors, and all roof shingles shall be an architectural or dimensional shingle (3-Tab 
Roofing Shingles are prohibited). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(6) Fencing Standards. All individual residential fencing and walls shall be architecturally 
compatible with the design, materials and colors of the primary structure on the same 
lot, and meet the following standards: 

 
(a) Front Yard Fences.  Front yard fences shall be prohibited. 

Figure 3: Properties line up on the opposite side of the street.  Where RED is the subject property. 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

04
.1

9.
20

21

241



 
(b) Wood Fences.  All solid fencing shall be constructed utilizing standard cedar 

fencing materials (spruce fencing is prohibited) that are a minimum of ½-inch or 
greater in thickness. Fences shall be board-on-board panel fence that is 
constructed a minimum of six (6) feet in height and a maximum of eight (8) feet in 
height. Posts, fasteners, and bolts shall be formed from hot dipped galvanized or 
stainless steel. All cedar pickets shall be placed on the public side (i.e. facing 
streets, alleys, open space, parks, and/or neighboring properties). All posts and/or 
framing shall be placed on the private side (i.e. facing towards the home) of the 
fence. All wood fences shall be smooth finished, free of burs and splinters, and be 
stained and sealed on both sides of the fence. Painting a fence with oil or latex 
based paint shall be prohibited. 
 

(c) Wrought Iron/Tubular Steel. Lots located along the perimeter of roadways (i.e. FM-
549), abutting open spaces, greenbelts and parks shall be required to install a 
wrought iron or tubular steel fence; however, the properties adjacent to the 
northern property line (i.e. running parallel to Willow Ridge Circle and abutting the 
ten [10] foot wide drainage easement) shall be permitted to have a wood fence 
conforming to the requirements for Wood Fences outline in Section (6)(b) of this 
ordinance.   Wrought iron/tubular steel fences can be a maximum of six (6) feet in 
height. 
 

(d) Corner Lots. Corner lots fences (i.e. adjacent to the street) shall provide masonry 
columns at 45-feet off center spacing that begins at the rear of the property line.  A 
maximum of six (6) foot solid board-on-board panel fence constructed utilizing 
cedar fencing shall be allowed between the masonry columns along the side 
and/or rear lot adjacent to a street.  In addition, the fencing shall be setback from 
the side property line adjacent to a street a minimum of five (5) feet.  The property 
owner shall be required to maintain both sides of the fence. 
 

(e) Solid Fences (including Wood Fences). All solid fences shall incorporate a 
decorative top rail or cap detailing into the design of the fence. 

 
(7) Landscape and Hardscape Standards.  

 
(a) Landscape. Landscaping shall be reviewed and approved with the PD Site Plan.  

All Canopy/Shade Trees planted within this development shall be a minimum of 
four (4) caliper inches in size and all Accent/Ornamental/Under-Story Trees shall 
be a minimum of four (4) feet in total height.  Any residential lot that sides or backs 
to a major roadway where wrought iron/tubular steel fencing is required, shall also 
be required to plant a row of shrubs adjacent to the wrought iron/tubular fence 
within the required 30-foot landscape buffer (i.e. on the Homeowner’s Associations’ 
[HOAs’] property).  These shrubs shall be maintained by the Homeowner’s 
Association (HOA). 
 

(b) Landscape Buffers. All landscape buffers and plantings located within the buffers 
shall be maintained by the Homeowner’s Association (HOA). 

 
(1) Landscape Buffer and Sidewalks (FM-549). A minimum of a 30-foot landscape 

buffer shall be provided along FM-549 (outside of and beyond any required 
right-of-way dedication), and shall incorporate ground cover, a built-up berm 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

04
.1

9.
20

21

242



and shrubbery along the entire length of the frontage.  Berms and/or shrubbery 
shall have a minimum height of 30-inches and a maximum height of 48-inches.  
In addition, three (3) canopy trees and four (4) accent trees shall be planted per 
100-feet of linear frontage.  A meandering six (6) foot trail shall be constructed 
within the 30-foot landscape buffer. 

 
(2) Landscape Buffers (Northern Property Line). A minimum of a ten (10) foot 

landscape buffer shall be provided along the northern property boundary. This 
landscape buffer shall incorporate a solid living screen utilizing evergreen trees 
-- either Eastern Red Cedar or Leland Cypress unless approved otherwise 
approved by the Director of Planning and Zoning --, a minimum of four (4) 
caliper inches in size, that will be planted on 15-foot centers along the entire 
northern property boundary.  An alternative screening plan proposing the use 
of existing trees, for the area directly adjacent to northern property line, may be 
submitted by the developer with the PD Site Plan.  This alternative plan can be 
approved at the discretion of the Planning and Zoning Commission upon a 
finding that the proposed plan will provide adequate screening that is equal to 
or exceeds the standards stated in this section. 

 
(3) Landscape Buffer (Adjacent to the Properties Along the Northern Boundary).  A 

heavy landscape area (i.e. indicated in dark pink in Exhibit ‘C’ and labeled as a 
“62’ x 120’ Heavy Landscape Area”) shall be provided adjacent to the northern 
properties.  This landscape area shall consist of a minimum of canopy trees, 
accent trees, and shrubs and shall be reviewed for conformance with the PD 
Site Plan. 

 
(c) Street Trees. The Homeowner’s Association (HOA) shall be responsible for the 

maintenance of all street trees and will be required to maintain a minimum of 14-
feet vertical clearance height for any trees overhanging a public right-of-way.  
Street trees shall be planted a minimum of five (5) feet from public water, sanitary 
sewer and storm lines.  All street trees shall be reviewed with the PD Site Plan. 
 

(d) Irrigation Requirements. Irrigation shall be installed for all required landscaping 
located within common areas, landscape buffers and/or open space.  Irrigation 
installed in these areas shall be designed by a Texas licensed irrigator or 
landscape architect and shall be maintained by the Homeowner’s Association 
(HOA). 
 

(e) Hardscape. Hardscape plans indicating the location of all sidewalks and trails shall 
be reviewed and approved with the PD Site Plan. 

 
(8) Street. All streets (excluding drives, fire lanes and private parking areas) shall be built 

according to City street standards. 
 

(9) Lighting. Light poles shall not exceed 20-feet in total height (i.e. base and lighting 
standard).  All fixtures shall be directed downward and be positioned to contain all light 
within the development area. 
 

(10) Sidewalks. All sidewalks adjacent to a street shall be a maximum of two (2) feet inside 
the right-of-way line and be five (5) feet in overall width. 
 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

04
.1

9.
20

21

243



(11) Buried Utilities. New distribution power-lines required to serve the Subject Property 
shall be placed underground, whether such lines are located internally or along the 
perimeter of the Subject Property, unless otherwise authorized by the City Council.  
Temporary power-lines constructed across undeveloped portions of the Subject 
Property to facilitate development phasing and looping may be allowed above ground, 
but shall not be considered existing lines at the time the area is developed, and if they 
are to become permanent facilities, such lines shall be placed underground pursuant 
to this paragraph.  Franchise utilities shall be placed within a ten (10) foot public utility 
easement behind the sidewalk, between the home and the property line. 
 

(12) Open Space/Public Park. The development shall consist of a minimum of 20% open 
space (or a minimum of 39.2018-acres -- as calculated by the formula stipulated in the 
Comprehensive Plan), and generally conform to the Concept Plan contained in Exhibit 
‘C’ of this ordinance.  In addition, the following shall apply to the proposed open space 
and public park areas: 
 
(a) Public Park. The development shall incorporate a minimum of a 50-acre 

contiguous tract of land to the City of Rockwall -- identified as “Regional Park” in 
Exhibit ‘C’ -- for the provision of a public park.  The proposed dedication of land 
shall be in lieu of the required cash-in-lieu of land fees required by Article II, 
Parkland Dedication, of Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the Municipal Code of 
Ordinances; however, the developer shall be required to pay the pro-rata 
equipment fees as required by the ordinance, which shall be used to amenitized 
the proposed public park.  To accommodate the development, the City shall grant 
temporary grading and permanent drainage and detention easements as 
necessary to develop the residential portions of the property in accordance with 
City requirements.  The City shall have the right to relocate said easements 
granted in connection with the residential development -- at no cost to the 
residential developer -- such that the City may develop the public park in 
accordance with the City’s desired use.  Performance of the obligations under this 
subparagraph shall be deemed fully to satisfy the City’s open space requirements 
stipulated by the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan. 
 

(b) Open Space. All open space areas not dedicated as part of the public park 
(including landscape buffers) shall be included in the open space calculation, and 
maintained by the Homeowner’s Association (HOA). 

 
(13) Amenity Center.  An amenity center shall be constructed in generally the same area as 

depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance, and shall be maintained by the Homeowner’s 
Association (HOA).  The design and layout of the amenity center shall be approved 
with the PD Site Plan and may incorporate materials from the historic farmhouse -- 
which currently situated on the property -- without requiring variances to the material 
requirements contained in this ordinance or the Unified Development Code (UDC). 
 

(14) Dog Park. The proposed dog park shall provide two (2) separate areas for large dogs 
and small dogs.  A six (6) foot, vinyl coated chain link fence shall be required around 
the perimeter of the dog park and separating the two (2) areas.  A double gate system 
shall be installed to reduce the chance of dogs escaping owners when leaving or 
entering the off-leash area.  Self-closing gates shall be used to aid in keeping dogs 
from escaping owners.  Waste disposal stations shall be provided for the two (2) 
separate areas.  All areas of the dog park including restocking the waste disposal 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

04
.1

9.
20

21

244



stations shall be the responsibility of the Homeowner’s Association (HOA).  In addition, 
all activities in the proposed dog park shall be subject to Article X, Dog Parks, of 
Chapter 6, Animals, of the Municipal Code of Ordinances. 

 
(15) Trails.  A concrete trail system shall be constructed generally in the same location as 

the trail system depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance, and shall provide connectivity 
to the proposed park.  
 

(16) Neighborhood Signage and Enhancements. Permanent subdivision identification 
signage shall be required at all major entry points for the proposed subdivision.  Final 
design and location of any entry features shall be reviewed and approved with the PD 
Site Plan.  The developer shall provide enhanced landscaping areas at all entry points 
to the Subject Property.  The final design of these areas shall be provided on the PD 
Site Plan. 
 

(17) Homeowner’s Association (HOA). A Homeowner’s Association (HOA) shall be created 
to enforce the restrictions established in accordance with the requirements of Section 
38-15 of the Subdivision Regulations contained within the Municipal Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Rockwall.  The HOA shall also maintain all private 
neighborhood parks, trails, open space and common areas (including drainage 
facilities), floodplain areas, irrigation, landscaping, screening fences and neighborhood 
signage associated with this development.  In addition, the HOA shall be responsible 
for maintaining any drainage areas on the public park that are necessary to provide 
sufficient stormwater detention for the residential lots.  These areas are required to be 
delineated on the PD Site Plan. 
 

(18) Variances. The variance procedures and standards for approval that are set forth in 
the Unified Development Code (UDC) shall apply to any application for variances to 
this ordinance. 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

04
.1

9.
20

21

245



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, Interim City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: April 19, 2021

SUBJECT: REGULATORY ACTIONS FOR IMPROVEMENTS AND STORAGE ON
UNLEASED LAND WITHIN THE TAKELINE

Attachments
Memorandum
Draft Ordinance

Summary/Background Information
Discuss and consider an ordinance amending Chapter 22, Miscellaneous Offenses, of the
Municipal Code of Ordinances to adopt changes that would address regulatory actions for
improvements and storage on unleased land within the takeline, and take any action necessary.

Action Needed
The City Council is being asked to approve or deny the proposed ordinance.

246



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 
 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

CC: Mary Smith, Interim City Manager 
 Joey Boyd, Assistant City Manager 
 Frank Garza, City Attorney 
 Jeffrey Widmer, Chief Building Official 
 

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning 
 

DATE: April 19, 2021 
 

SUBJECT: Regulatory Actions for Improvements and Storage on Unleased Land within the Takeline 
 
 

Per the City Council’s direction at the April 5, 2021 City Council meeting, staff has prepared an ordinance amending Chapter 
22, Miscellaneous Offenses, of the Municipal Code of Ordinances.  This amendment is intended to provide regulatory action 
for the unlawful use of the takeline.  The proposed amendment is as follows: 
 

Section 22-139 – 22-150. RESERVED 
 
Article III. Offenses Regarding the Use of the Lake Ray Hubbard Takeline 
 
Section 22-51. Unlawful Use of Unleased Land within the Lake Ray Hubbard Takeline 
 
(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to construct, store, or place any permanent or temporary improvement (e.g. 

raised garden beds, gardens, landscaping, patios, decks, lighting [decorative or otherwise], boat whips, and etc.) 
or object (e.g. patio furniture, chairs, decorative landscape pots, trampolines, hammocks, and etc.) on any 
portion of the unleased land within the Lake Ray Hubbard Takeline that remains in place for a period of 24 
consecutive hours.   
 

(b) It shall be unlawful for any person to alter the unleased land within the Lake Ray Hubbard Takeline in anyway so 
as to change the grade of the property, remove vegetation, alter or remove trees, change the natural coast line 
of the lake, alter drainage patterns, or any other change that effects the natural environment of the property. 
 

(c) It is an exception to an offense under Subsection (a) and (b) for a person that holds a valid takeline lease; 
however, these properties shall be subject to the regulations contained within Subsection 06.15, Lake Ray 
Hubbard Takeline Overlay (TL OV) District, of Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified 
Development Code (UDC). 

 
Section 22-52. Enforcement within the Lake Ray Hubbard Takeline 
 
(a) The City shall have the authority to administer and enforce the provisions of this article as may be permitted by 

the City’s Interlocal Agreement with the City of Dallas and as allowed by this Municipal Code of Ordinances.  Any 
person who violates a provision of this article, or fails to comply therewith, or with any of the requirements 
thereof, is subject to suit for injunctive relief as well as in Municipal Court.  Any violation of this article is declared 
to be a nuisance. 
 

(b) In the event of a violation of this article, the City shall first issue a notice of violation and allow the property owner 
five (5) business days to remove the violation and return the property to its natural state.  Thereafter, any person 
violating any provision of this article shall -- upon conviction -- be fined a sum not exceeding $500.00.  Each day 
that a provision of this article is violated shall constitute a separate offence.  An offense under this article is a 
Class C Misdemeanor, punishable by a fine not to exceed $500.00. 

247



 
(c) Nothing in this article shall be construed as a waiver of the City’s right to bring a civil action to enforce the 

provisions of this article and to seek remedies as allowed by law, including but not limited to the following: [1] 
injunctive relief to prevent specific conduct that violates this article or to require specific conduct that is 
necessary for compliance with this article; and [2] other available relief. 

 
Should the City Council have any questions, staff and the City Attorney will be available at the April 19, 2021 City Council 
meeting. 

248



 CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 21-XX 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 

THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, BY 

AMENDING CHAPTER 22, MISCELLANEOUS OFFENSES, FOR THE 

PURPOSE OF INCORPORATING A NEW ARTICLE THAT PROVIDES 

REGULATIONS AND ENFORCEMENT FOR THE UNLAWFUL USE OF 

UNLEASED LAND WITHIN THE LAKE RAY HUBBARD TAKELINE; 

PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF 

FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($500.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; 

PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A 

REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Rockwall, Texas (City) is a Home-Rule City in accordance with Chapter 9, 
Home-Rule Municipality, of Subtitle A, Types of Municipalities, of Title 2, Organization of Municipal 
Government, of the Texas Local Government Code, and by State law and City Charter is permitted 
to establish ordinances for the purpose of protecting the health, safety, and general welfare of its 
residents; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has the authority and the power to administer and enforce rules and regulations 
provisions within the Lake Ray Hubbard Takeline as permitted by the City’s Interlocal Agreement 
with the City of Dallas; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council seeks to provide regulations and enforcement for the unlawful use of 
unleased land within the Lake Ray Hubbard Takeline. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 

TEXAS: 
 

SECTION 1. That Chapter 22, Miscellaneous Offenses, of the Municipal Code of Ordinances of 
the City of Rockwall be amended for the purpose of incorporating a new article that provides 
regulations and enforcement for the unlawful use of unleased land within the Lake Ray Hubbard 
Takeline, and that these sections shall be as specifically described in Exhibit ‘A’ of this ordinance; 
 

SECTION 2.   That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance 
shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of fine 
not to exceed the sum of Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) for each offense and each and every day 
such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense; 

 

SECTION 3.   That if any section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance or the application of that 
section, paragraph, or provision to any person, firm, corporation or situation is for any reason judged 
invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance 
or the application of any other section, paragraph or provision to any other person, firm, corporation 
or situation, nor shall adjudication affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of the Unified 
Development Code, and the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and 
applications of the ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions for this 
ordinance are declared to be severable; 
 

SECTION 4.   That the Code of the City of Rockwall, Texas, as amended, shall remain in full force 
and effect, save and except as amended by this ordinance; 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

04
.1

9.
20

21

249



 

SECTION 5.   That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict; 
 

SECTION 6.   That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its publication of the 
caption of said ordinance as the law in such cases provides. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 

THIS THE 3RD DAY OF MAY, 2021. 
 

 

      
 Jim Pruitt, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 
    
Kristy Cole, City Secretary 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 

 

 
 

1st Reading:  April 19, 2021 
 
2nd Reading: May 3, 2021 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

04
.1

9.
20

21

250



Section 22-139 – 22-150. RESERVED 
 
Article III. Offenses Regarding the Use of the Lake Ray Hubbard Takeline 
 
Section 22-51. Unlawful Use of Unleased Land within the Lake Ray Hubbard Takeline 
 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to construct, store, or place any permanent or temporary 
improvement (e.g. raised garden beds, gardens, landscaping, patios, decks, lighting 
[decorative or otherwise], boat whips, and etc.) or object (e.g. patio furniture, chairs, decorative 
landscape pots, trampolines, hammocks, and etc.) on any portion of unleased land within the 
Lake Ray Hubbard Takeline that remains in place for a period of 24 consecutive hours.   

 
(b) It shall be unlawful for any person to alter unleased land within the Lake Ray Hubbard 

Takeline in anyway so as to change the grade of the property, remove vegetation, alter or 
remove trees, change the natural coast line of the lake, alter drainage patterns, or any other 
change that effects the natural environment of the property. 

 
(c) It is an exception to an offense under Subsection (a) and (b) for a person that holds a valid 

takeline lease; however, these properties shall be subject to the regulations contained within 
Subsection 06.15, Lake Ray Hubbard Takeline Overlay (TL OV) District, of Article 05, District 
Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC). 

 
Section 22-52. Enforcement within the Lake Ray Hubbard Takeline 

 
(a) The City shall have the authority to administer and enforce the provisions of this article as may 

be permitted by the City’s Interlocal Agreement with the City of Dallas and as allowed by this 
Municipal Code of Ordinances.  Any person who violates a provision of this article, or fails to 
comply therewith, or with any of the requirements thereof, is subject to suit for injunctive relief 
as well as prosecution in Municipal Court.  Any violation of this article is declared to be a 
nuisance. 
 

(b) In the event of a violation of this article, the City shall first issue a notice of violation and allow 
the property owner five (5) business days to remove the violation and return the property to its 
natural state.  Thereafter, any person violating any provision of this article shall -- upon 
conviction -- be fined a sum not exceeding $500.00.  Each day that a provision of this article is 
violated shall constitute a separate offence.  An offense under this article is a Class C 
Misdemeanor, punishable by a fine not to exceed $500.00. 
 

(c) Nothing in this article shall be constructed as a waiver of the City’s right to bring a civil action 
to enforce the provisions of this article and to seek remedies as allowed by law, including but 
not limited to the following: [1] injunctive relief to prevent specific conduct that violates this 
article or to require specific conduct that is necessary for compliance with this article; and [2] 
other available relief. 

 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

04
.1

9.
20

21

251



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, Interim City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: April 19, 2021

SUBJECT: SP2021-007; AMENDED SITE PLAN FOR BONAFIDE BETTIES PIE

Attachments
Memorandum
Development Application
Location Map
Site Plan

Summary/Background Information
Discuss and consider a request by Nicholas Gamez of DFDVB Homes, LLC on behalf of Zach
Shipley for the approval of a Major Waiver to the Downtown (DT) District parking requirements
for a Restaurant with Less Than 2,000 SF without Drive-Through or Drive-In on a 0.018-acre
tract of land identified as a portion of Lot 7, Block M, Rockwall OT Addition, City of Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Downtown (DT) District, addressed as 109 E. Washington
Street, and take any action necessary.

Action Needed
The City Council is being asked to approve, approve with condition, or deny the major waiver to
the parking requirements.

252



 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 

385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

CC: Mary Smith, Interim City Manager 
 Joey Boyd, Assistant City Manager 
 

FROM: Ryan Miller, AICP, Director of Planning and Zoning 
 

DATE: April 19, 2021 
 

SUBJECT: SP2021-007; Amended Site Plan for Bonafide Betties Pie 
 

 

The subject property is a 0.018-acre tract of land situated on the southwest side of San Jacinto Plaza, fronting onto 
Washington Street.  According to the Rockwall Central Appraisal District (RCAD), this property has an existing 720 SF garage 
that was constructed in 1960.  The existing garage nearly extends to the property lines of the subject property on all sides of 
the tract of land.  On April 13, 2021, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a site plan proposing to convert the 
building into a limited service restaurant (i.e. a restaurant that is similar in nature to a retail operation -- e.g. donut shop, 
bakery, etc.).  As part of this site plan case -- and due to the constraints of the subject property -- the applicant is also 
requesting a major waiver to the parking requirements.  According to Subsection 04.07, Downtown (DT) District, of Article 05, 
District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC), “(o)ff-street and on-street [parking] facilities shall be 
provided as required by Article 06, Parking and Loading, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) …”, which in this case 
would be calculated at one (1) parking space per 250 SF of floor area.  This would equate to three (3) required parking 
spaces; however, since the Downtown (DT) District has unique development challenges, the code grants the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and City Council the ability to waive requirements -- like parking requirements -- through major and minor 
waivers (with the Planning and Zoning Commission able to grant minor waivers and the City Council able to grant major 
waivers).  According to this subsection of the code, changes to the parking requirements requires a major waiver from the City 
Council.  Staff should point out that currently none of the businesses along the San Jacinto Plaza have dedicated on-site 
parking, and that there is a precedent for what the applicant is requesting; however, all major waivers are discretionary 
decisions for the City Council pending a recommendation from the Planning and Zoning Commission.  On April 13, 2021, the 
Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed the applicant’s request and approved a motion to recommend approval of the 
major waiver by a vote of 7-0.  Should the City Council have any questions staff will be available at the April 19, 2021 City 
Council meeting. 

253



254



SA
N J

AC
INT

O

WASHINGTON

SP2021-007- AMENDED SITE PLAN FOR 
BONAFIDE BETTIES PIE
AMENDED SITE PLAN - LOCATION MAP = 

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user.

City of Rockwall

0 20 40 60 8010
Feet

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com I255



256



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, Interim City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: April 19, 2021

SUBJECT: VARIANCE TO THE PARKING REQUIREMENTS IN PLANNED
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 32 (PD-32)

Attachments
Memorandum
Development Application
Location Map
Applicant's Letter
Building Elevations
Site Plan

Summary/Background Information
Discuss and consider a request by Cameron Slown of Teague, Nall and Perkins, Inc. on behalf
of Elias Pope of 8020 Hospitality, LLC for the approval of a Variance to the parking
requirements for a Restaurant with 2,000 SF or More without a Drive-Through or Drive-In on a
0.90-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 5, Block A, Harbor District Addition, City of Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 32 (PD-32) [Ordinance No. 17-
22], situated within the IH-30 Overlay (IH-30 OV) District, generally located at the southeast
corner of the intersection of the IH-30 Frontage Road and Sunset Ridge Drive, and take any
action necessary.

Action Needed
The City Council is being asked to approve or deny the requested parking variance for a
restaurant with 2,000 SF or more without a drive-through or drive-in.

257



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEMORANDUM 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 
 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

CC: Mary Smith, Interim City Manager 
 Joey Boyd, Assistant City Manager 
 

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning 
 

DATE: April 19, 2021 
 

SUBJECT: SP2021-005; Parking Variance for an Approved Site Plan for HG Supply Co. 
 
 

On September 8, 2015, the City Council approved a variance to allow a reduction of 15 parking spaces for a proposed 6,800 
SF restaurant [i.e. MIS2015-006] located on a 0.90-acre parcel of land situated directly north of Trend Tower and located 
within the Summit Office Subdistrict of Planned Development District 32 (PD-32).  Specifically, the City Council determined 
that the existing public parking around the subject property (i.e. 37 on-street/surface parking spaces and the public portion of 
the 441 parking spaces in the Trend Tower parking garage) provided sufficient parking to absorb the requested variance; 
however, despite this approval the restaurant was never constructed and the site plan [Case No. SP2015-015] and approved 
variance expired on December 13, 2018.  Recently, the applicant of this case resubmitted the expired site plan seeking 
approval to revive the project.  The only changes to the project involved increasing the requested parking variance from 15 
parking spaces to 18 parking spaces.  The Planning and Zoning Commission reapproved the site plan on April 13, 2021 and 
voted to recommended approval of the requested reduction in parking by a vote of 7-0.  Since this variance request deals with 
public parking within Planned Development District 32 (PD-32), the City Council will need to consider the request.  Staff 
should note that this request only requires a simple majority vote of the City Council.  Should the City Council have any 
questions, staff will be available at the April 19, 2021 City Council meeting. 
 
 

258



259



SUNSET RIDGE

INTERSTATE 30

HORIZON

PINNACLE
HARBOR HEIGHTS

INTERSTATE 30

INTERSTATE 30

INTERSTATE 30

SP2021-005- SITE PLAN FOR HG SUPPLY 
SITE PLAN - LOCATION MAP =        

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user.

City of Rockwall

0 60 120 180 24030
Feet

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com I260



261



262



HG SPLY CO.
RESTAURANT

6,800 S.F.

L O C A T I O N  M A P

Harbor
District

Existing

Project
Site

revisionno. dateby

tnp project

sheet

--------
City of RockWall, Texas

Improvements for

HG SPLY, CO. RESTAURANT

teague nall and perkins, inc
825 Watters Creek Blvd., Suite M300

Allen, Texas 75013

214.461.9867 ph  214.461.9864 fx

www.tnpinc.com

TBPE: F-230; TBPLS: 10011600, 10011601, 10194381
MAR 2021

scale

horiz

vert

when bar is
1 inch long

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

8020 HOSPITALITY, LLC.
2008 GREENVILLE AVE.

DALLAS, TX 75206 SITE PLAN
C1.04

N/A

1'=20"

263



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  
 
TO: Mary Smith,  Interim City Manager 
 Joey Boyd, Assistant City Manager 
 
FROM: Travis Sales, Parks, Recreation and Animal Services Director 
 
DATE: April 19, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: 2021 Founders Day Festival  

  
 
The 2021 City of Rockwall Founders Day will be held at Harry Myers Park on Saturday, May 15th 
beginning at 10:00am and concluding around 9:00pm.  
 
This will be our first festival since 2018 (2019 was cancelled due to severe storms and 2020 was 
canceled due to Covid), This year the bands playing will be Wade Bowen and Jack Ingram. Both 
bands have had songs with top hits and wide national radio play. 
 
In 2014, the City Council amended sec. 30-2, Regulated Activities in Parks which permitted the 
possession and consumption of alcohol in Harry Myers Park for City-sponsored events as designated 
by the City Council.  Since the Founders Day Festival was held on the Square for eight years prior to 
the 2014 festival, patrons have been permitted to bring their own alcoholic beverages to the festival.  
When the venue location changed in 2014, the City Council has considered this matter each year as 
to allow alcohol in Myers Park on the day of the festival. 
 
With the 2021 festival just a few weeks away, the City Council has the discretion to designate the 
event as a City-sponsored event where the possession and consumption of alcohol would be 
permitted.  The designation must be granted annually and expires at the conclusion of the event and 
can be limited to all or a portion of Harry Myers Park. As with all previous Founders Day Festivals, 
coordination and planning has already begun with the police and fire departments. 
 
     

264



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, Interim City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Kristy Cole, City Secretary/Assistant to the City Manager

DATE: April 19, 2021

SUBJECT: BOND PROGRAM STREET APPURTENANCES

Attachments

Summary/Background Information
The Mayor has requested this item to discuss finishing appurtenances associated with
residential street reconstruction projects, to include street lighting, signage, striping,
landscaping, etc.

Action Needed
 

265



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, Interim City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Kristy Cole, City Secretary/Assistant to the City Manager

DATE: April 19, 2021

SUBJECT: UPDATE FROM ROCKWALL POLICE CHIEF

Attachments

Summary/Background Information
Chief Max Geron will be providing an update to the City Council regarding attrition, recruiting,
and retention relative to the Police Department.

Action Needed
 

266



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, Interim City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Kristy Cole, City Secretary/Assistant to the City Mgr.

DATE: April 19, 2021

SUBJECT: VACANCIES ON CPAC AND ART COMMISSION

Attachments

Summary/Background Information
A vacancy exists on the City's Comprehensive Plan Advisory Committee (CPAC). Whomever is
appointed to this vacancy will serve an initial (partial term) thru Oct. of 2024 (Note: full terms are
for a period of five years).

Two vacancies currently exist on the City's ART Commission. One of the two terms expires this
Aug. (2021), and the other expires in Aug. of 2022.

Action Needed
 

267


	04/19/21 Regular CC Mtg
	 Public Safety Telecommunicators Week
	 Proclamation

	 Consider approval of the minutes from the April 5, 2021 regular City Council meeting, and take any action necessary.
	 04/05 Mins

	 Consider awarding a bid to Urban Infraconstruction and authorizing the Interim City Manager to execute a contract in the amount of $500,000 for Concrete Pavement Repair Services (per unit price) to be funded out of the General Fund, Streets and Drainage Operations Budget, and take any action necessary.
	 Bid Tabulation

	 Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a two-year contract with Evoqua Water Technologies for chemical injection at the Fontana, Timber Creek, and Mims Lift Stations to eliminate effluent odors for $90,000 annually to be funded by the Wastewater Operations Budget, and take any action necessary.
	 Memo (Bioxide)
	 Agreement

	 Consider approval of Hotel Occupancy Tax (HOT) Subcommittee recommendation to award $12,715 to the South Central Nautique Regatta and authorize the Interim City Manager to execute associated contract, and take any action necessary.
	 Memo_HOT
	 HOT Application
	 Regatta Schedule

	 P2021-009 - Consider a request by Brenda Kennedy for the approval of a Replat for Lot 1, Block A, Kennedy Addition being a 0.2342-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 1, Block A, Richard Harris Subdivision No. 5 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District, addressed as 701 N. T. L. Townsend Drive, and take any action necessary.
	 Case Memo
	 Development Application
	 Location Map
	 Replat

	 P2021-010 - Consider a request by Doug Stewart on behalf of Bryan Wreyford for the approval of a Replat for Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Wreyford Addition being a 2.97-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 1 of the Crowell's Hidden Valley Estates Addition, Collin County, Texas, situated within the City of Rockwall's Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ), generally located at the southeast corner of the intersection of County Road 949 and County Road 536, and take any action necessary.
	 Case Memo
	 Development Application
	 Location Map
	 Replat

	 P2021-011 - Consider a request by Mike and Cheryl Birdwell for the approval of a Final Plat for Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Birds Nest Addition being a 4.02-acre tract of land identified as Tract 15 of the J. Smith Survey, Abstract No. 191, Rockwall County, Texas, situated within the City of Rockwall's Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ), addressed as 171 Birds Nest Lane, and take any action necessary.
	 Case Memo
	 Development Application
	 Location Map
	 Replat

	 P2021-012 - Consider a request by Jose Campos of Hines on behalf of CDT Rockwall/2017 LLC for the approval of a Preliminary Plat for Phase 2 of the Saddle Star Subdivision being a 29.002-acre tract of land identified as Tracts 1, 1-05, 2-03, & 2-07 of the P. B. Harrison Survey, Abstract No. 97, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 79 (Ordinance No. 20-35), situated within the SH-205 By-Pass (SH-205 BY OV) District, generally located east of the intersection of Featherstone Drive and N. John King Boulevard, and take any action necessary.
	 Case Memo
	 Development Application
	 Location Map
	 Preliminary Plat
	 Preliminary Drainage Plan
	 Preliminary Utility Plan

	 P2021-013 - Consider a request by Bart Carroll for the approval of a Preliminary Plat for the Landon Subdivision being a 32.60-acre tract of land identified as Tract 13 of the S. McFadgin Survey, Abstract No. 142, Rockwall County, Texas, situated within the City of Rockwall's Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ), generally located at the southwest corner of the intersection of S. Munson Street and Streetman Road, and take any action necessary.
	 Case Memo
	 Development Application
	 Location Map
	 Preliminary Plat
	 Preliminary Drainage Plan
	 Preliminary Water Plan
	 CASH Will Serve Letter

	 P2021-014 - Consider a request by Humberto Johnson, Jr. of the Skorburg Company on behalf of Jen-Liang Wu for the approval of a Preliminary Plat for the Nelson Lake Subdivision being a 121.16-acre tract of land identified as Tract 2 of the J. M. Gass Survey, Abstract No. 88, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 90 (PD-90) for Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District, generally located at the southeast corner of the intersection of FM-1141 and FM-552, and take any action necessary.
	 Case Memo
	 Development Application
	 Location Map
	 Preliminary Plat
	 Preliminary Drainage Plan
	 Preliminary Water and Wastewater Plan
	 Tree Mitigation Plan
	 Approved Concept Plan
	 Proposed Lot Mix

	 Consider authorizing the Interim City Manager to execute a facility use agreement with the Rockwall YMCA for the purposes of providing swim lessons to members of the Boys and Girls Club at the Gloria Williams Swimming Pool, and take any action necessary.
	 Agreement

	 Consider approval of canopy repairs associated with March 17, 2021 storm damage at Leon Tuttle Athletic Complex/Ballfields ($2,500 insurance deductible, to be funded out of the Recreational Development Fund), and take any action necessary.
	 Quote
	 pics

	 Appointment with Eva Cannon of Siren Rock Brewing Co. to discuss corporate identity signage in the Downtown (DT) District, and take any action necessary.
	 Memorandum
	 Applicant's Letter
	 Proposed Signage
	 Siren Rock Brewing Co. Brand Guidelines
	 Applicant's Signage Examples

	 Z2021-006 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Pat Atkins of KPA Consulting, Inc. on behalf of the owners C. D. T. Rockwall 2017, LLC; Saddle Star Holdings, LLC; and Gwendolyn Reed for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Amendment to Planned Development District 79 (PD-79) [Ordinance No. 20-35] for the purpose of amending the development standards contained in Ordinance No. 20-35 for a 70.408-acre tract of land identified as Tracts 1, 1-03, 1-5 & 2-03 of the P. B. Harrison Survey, Abstract No. 97, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 79 (PD-79) for Single-Family 8.4 (SF-8.4) District land uses, situated within the SH-205 By-Pass Overlay (SH-205 BY-OV) District, located on the north side of John King Boulevard east of the intersection of John King Boulevard and Featherstone Drive, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).
	 Case Memo
	 Development Application
	 Owner Acknowledgements
	 Location Map
	 HOA Notification Map
	 Neighborhood Notification Email
	 Property Owner Notification Map
	 Property Owner Notification List
	 Public Notice
	 Applicant's Request
	 Ordinance Changes
	 Ordinance No. 20-35
	 Proposed Floor Plans
	 Draft Ordinance

	 Z2021-007 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Kevin Harrell of the Skorburg Company on behalf of Ben Klutts, Jr. of the Klutts Farm, LLC for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Change from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Planned Development District for Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District land uses on a 196.009-acre tract of land identified as Tract 6 of the J. A. Ramsey Survey, Abstract No. 186, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, generally located at the northeast corner of the intersection of FM-549 and FM-1139, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).
	 Case Memo
	 Development Application
	 Location Map
	 HOA Notification Map
	 Property Owner Notification Map
	 Property Owner Notification List
	 Public Notice
	 Property Owner Notifications
	 For and Against Map
	 Survey
	 Concept Plan
	 South Central Residential District
	 Harry Myers Park Exhibit
	 Draft Ordinance

	 Discuss and consider an ordinance amending Chapter 22, Miscellaneous Offenses, of the Municipal Code of Ordinances to adopt changes that would address regulatory actions for improvements and storage on unleased land within the takeline, and take any action necessary. (1st reading)
	 Memorandum
	 Draft Ordinance

	 Discuss and consider a request by Nicholas Gamez of DFDVB Homes, LLC on behalf of Zach Shipley for the approval of a Major Waiver to the Downtown (DT) District parking requirements for a Restaurant with Less Than 2,000 SF without Drive-Through or Drive-In on a 0.018-acre tract of land identified as a portion of Lot 7, Block M, Rockwall OT Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Downtown (DT) District, addressed as 109 E. Washington Street, and take any action necessary.
	 Memorandum
	 Development Application
	 Location Map
	 Site Plan

	 Discuss and consider a request by Cameron Slown of Teague, Nall and Perkins, Inc. on behalf of Elias Pope of 8020 Hospitality, LLC for the approval of a Variance to the parking requirements for a Restaurant with 2,000 SF or More without a Drive-Through or Drive-In on a 0.90-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 5, Block A, Harbor District Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 32 (PD-32) [Ordinance No. 17-22], situated within the IH-30 Overlay (IH-30 OV) District, generally located at the southeast corner of the intersection of the IH-30 Frontage Road and Sunset Ridge Drive, and take any action necessary.
	 Memorandum
	 Development Application
	 Location Map
	 Applicant's Letter
	 Building Elevations
	 Site Plan

	 Discuss and consider granting permission for an alcohol waiver associated with the city's May 15, 2021 Founders Day Festival at Harry Myers Park in accordance with Chapter 30, Article I, Sec. 30-2, "Regulated Activities in Parks" of the Code of Ordinances, and take any action necessary.
	 Memo

	 Discuss and consider bond program street appurtenances, and take any action necessary.
	 Discuss and consider update from Rockwall Police Chief regarding attrition, recruiting and retention associated with the Police Department, and take any action necessary.
	 Discuss and consider appointments to the city's ART Commission and Comprehensive Plan Advisory Committee (CPAC), and take any action necessary.



